# PROCEEDINGS

## OF THE

# THIRTY-SIXTH CONFERENCE

OF THE

Georgia Daughters National Society

# Daughters of the American Revolution

IN GEORGIA

ENTERTAINED BY THE THRONATEESKA CHAPTER COMMODORE RICHARD DALE CHAPTER ALBANY, GEORGIA March 19-20-21, 1934

MRS. JUL	IAN McCU	RRY	-	-	-	-	State	Regent
MRS. J. S.	. ADAMS	-	-	-	State	Recor	ding S	ecretary
MRS. MEI	LL KNOX	-	-	State	Chairm	an Pr	ess Co	mmittee



Bookplate for Georgia books in library at Constitution Hall, a contribution of the Georgia Society D. A. R. to the Georgia Bicentennial program.

#### HISTORY

The work of providing a bookplate for the Georgia books in the library at Constitution Hall was begun by Mrs. John S. Adams during her first term of office as State Librarian, Georgia D. A. R. 1931-1932. At the time Mrs. Adams planned a design which, with the addition of the motto and Bicentennial dates, is the sketch used.

The Bookplates were presented to the Georgia Society D. A. R. on March 16, 1933, by Mrs. E. B. Freeman in her report to the Georgia State Conference, as chairman of the Bookplate Committee, and accepted for the Georgia Society by Mrs. Julian McCurry, State Regent of Georgia.

#### Significance

Many phases of Georgia history are embodied in the design of the State D. A. R. Bookplate. In the upper center appears an inset of a photogravure of General James Edward Oglethorpe, the founder of the state; the shield of Oglethorpe is placed on the upper left and is balanced on the right by the great seal of the state of Georgia. On the left of the center inscription "Ex Libris D. A. R. Georgia," is an Indian figure representing the original inhabitants of this domain; on the right is a replica of the Statue of Liberty. The motto, "Amor patriae patrumque," carries the thought of love of country and of ancestry. Intertwining these and blending them into an interesting whole is a delicate tracery of the Cherokee rose, Georgia's state flower. A few full blown cotton bolls, Georgia's staple crop, also appear in the embellishment of the sketch. The Bicentennial idea is expressed in the dates, 1733-1933.



MRS. JULIAN McCURRY State Regent, 1932-33-34 Vice-President General, National Society D. A. R., 1934-1937



MRS. JOHN W. DANIEL State Regent, 1934-35-36

# CONTENTS

Page
Address of State Regent 40
By-Laws of State Conference154
Directory of Chapters173
Courtesy Expression
Items of Information:
Memorials
Important Days to be Observed162
Badges for State Conference
Student Loan Fund
Historical Collection163
Trophies and Awards164
Requirements for Honor Roll
In Memoriam152
Minutes:
Thirty-Sixth Annual Conference 16
Executive Board (Elberton)
Georgia Delegation (Washington, D. C.)
Names of Chapters (Formation)
National Officers
Officers Since Formation 4
National Society of Children of the American Revolution167
Program of State Conference
Reports:
Officers
Committees
Chapters
State Committees, 1934-1935
State Conferences
State Officers' Club
State Officers, 1934-1935Back Cover

#### STATE REGENTS OF THE DAUGHTERS OF THE AMERICAN **REVOLUTION IN GEORGIA SINCE THE FORMATION** OF THE NATIONAL SOCIETY

- \*First State Regent-Mrs. Augustus Ramon Salas, Waynesboro, Ga., for the year 1891.
- \*Second State Regent-Mrs. Harry Jackson, Atlanta, Ga., for the year 1892.

\*Third State Regent-Mrs. S. B. C. Morgan, Savannah, Ga., for the years 1893, 1894, 1896, and 1897.

\*Fourth State Regent-Mrs. Porter King, Atlanta, Ga., for the year 1898.

\*Fifth State Regent-Mrs. Robert Emory Park, Macon, Ga., for the years 1899, 1900, 1901, and 1902.

\*Sixth State Regent-Mrs. Ira Yale Sage, Atlanta, Ga., for the years 1903, and 1904.

Seventh State Regent-Mrs. James A. Rounsaville, Rome, Ga., for the years 1905, and 1906.

Eighth State Regent-Miss Anna Caroline Benning, Columbus, Ga., for the years 1907, and 1908.

Ninth State Regent-Mrs. P. W. Godfrey, Covington, Ga., for the year 1909.

\*Tenth State Regent-Mrs. John M. Graham, Marietta, Ga., for the years 1910, 1911, and 1912.

Eleventh State Regent-Mrs. Sheppard W. Foster, Atlanta, Ga., for the years 1912, 1913, and 1914.

\*Twelfth State Regent-Mrs. Thaddeus C. Parker, Macon, Ga., for the years 1914, 1915, and 1916.

Thirteenth State Regent-Mrs. Howard H. McCall, Atlanta, Ga., for the years 1916, 1917, and 1918.

Fourteenth State Regent-Mrs. James S. Wood, Savannah, Ga., for the years 1918, 1919, and 1920.

Fifteenth State Regent-Mrs. Max E. Land, Cordele, Ga., for the years 1920, 1921, and 1922.

Sixteenth State Regent-Mrs. Charles Akerman, Macon, Ga., for the years 1922, 1923, and 1924.

Seventeenth State Regent-Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge, Athens, Ga., for the years 1924, 1925, and 1926.

Eighteenth State Regent-Mrs. Herbert M. Franklin, Tennille, Ga., for the years 1926, 1927, and 1928.

Nineteenth State Regent-Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney, Columbus, Ga., for the years 1928, 1929, and 1930.

Twentieth State Regent-Mrs. Bun Wylie, Atlanta, Ga., for the years 1930, 1931, and 1932.

Twenty-first State Regent-Mrs. Julian McCurry, Athens, Ga., for the years 1932, 1933, and 1934.

Twenty-second State Regent-Mrs. John W. Daniel, Savannah, Ga., for the years 1934, 1935, and 1936.

#### **Honorary State Regents**

\*Mrs. Martha Berrien Duncan

\*Mrs. W. H. Bordon

\*Miss Julia McKinley

\*Mrs. Mary A. Washington

\*Mrs. Harriet Gold Jefferies

\*Mrs. William Lawson Peel

\*Mrs. J. H. Redding

- \*Mrs. S. B. C. Morgan
- \*Mrs. John M. Graham

Mrs. Howard H. McCall

Mrs. S. W. Foster

Miss Anna Caroline Benning

\*Mrs. T. C. Parker

Mrs. Max E. Land

Mrs. James S. Wood

Mrs. Charles Akerman

Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge

Mrs. Herbert Franklin

Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney

Mrs. Bun Wylie

Mrs. Julian McCurry

# THE VICE-PRESIDENTS GENERAL

#### Served in the Following Order:

Mrs. Lucien Cocke, Roankoe, Va. (Formerly Mrs. Hugh Hagan). \*Mrs. Albert Cox, Atlanta, Ga.

Mrs. Lizzie Bailey, Griffin, Ga.

\*Madam Proschaska, Atlanta, Ga. (Formerly Mrs. Dickson).

- Miss Anna Caroline Benning, Columbus, Ga.
- \*Mrs. Hoke Smth, Atlanta, Ga.
- \*Mrs. S. B. C. Morgan, Savannah, Ga.
- \*Mrs. I. Y. Sage, Atlanta, Ga.
- \*Mrs. Robert E. Park, Macon, Ga.
- Miss Anna Caroline Benning, Columbus, Ga.
- \*Mrs. William Lawson Peel, Atlanta, Ga.
- Mrs. Sheppard W. Foster, Atlanta, Ga.
- Mrs. Howard H. McCall, Atlanta, Ga.
- Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge, Athens, Ga.
- Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney, Columbus, Ga.
- Mrs. Julian McCurry, Athens, Ga.

#### THE NATIONAL SOCIETY OF THE DAUGHTERS OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION

#### (Organization-October 11, 1890)

#### MEMORIAL CONTINENTAL HALL

Seventeenth and D Streets, N. W., Washington, D. C.

NATIONAL BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

## 1934-1935

#### **President General**

Mrs. Russell William Magna, Memorial Continental Hall, Washington, D. C.

#### Vice-Presidents General

(Term of office expires 1935)

- Mrs. Frank Hamilton Marshall, 1227 East Broadway, Enid, Okla.
- Mrs. Nathaniel Beaman, 1315 Westover Avenue, Norfolk, Va.
- Mrs. C. Edward Murray, 180 West State St., Trenton, N. J.
- Mrs. Joseph Hayes Acklen, Kensington Place and 24th Ave., Nashville, Tenn.

- Mrs. E. Thomas Boyd, 2588 Dexter St., Denver, Colo. Mrs. Joseph M. Caley, 1513 Green St., Philadelphia, Pa. Mrs. Walter Lawrence Tobey, 401 North C St., Hamilton, Ohio. (Term of office expires 1936)
- Mrs. John Carroll Coulter, 1516 Richland St., Columbia, S. C. Mrs. James F. Trottman, 508 LaFayette Place, Milwaukee, Wis.
- Mrs. Howard Bailey, 4944 Lindell Blvd., St. Louis, Mo.
- Mrs. Lue R. Spencer, 638 E. Capitol St., Washington, D. C. (Nebr.).
- Mrs. Victor Lisle Warren, Dover-Foxcroft, Maine.
- Mrs. John W. Kirkpatrick, 516 W. Pine St., Eldorado, Kan. Miss Helen Harman, 1717 Varnum St., Washington, D. C.
- - (Term of office expires 1937)
- Mrs. Wm. Perry Herring McFaddin, 1906 McFaddin Ave., Beaumont, Texas. Mrs. Julian McCurry, Coordinate College, Athens, Ga.

- Mrs. Frederick F. Grundrum, 2214 21st St., Sacramento, Calif. Mrs. Bessie Carroll Higgins, 1045 N. Main St., Spencer, Iowa. Miss Minnie M. Dilley, 417 Winona St., Northfield, Minn, Mrs. Henry Zoller, Jr., 4402 Charlecote Pl., Guilford, Baltimore, Md. Mrs. Roscoe C. O'Bvrne, 912 Main St., Brookville, Indiana.
  - 5

#### **Chaplain General**

Mrs. Raymond G. Kimbell 422 Forrest Ave., Wilmette, Ill.

## **Recording Secretary General**

Mrs. Henry B. Joy, Memorial Continental Hall.

# **Corresponding Secretary General**

Mrs. John M. Beavers, Memorial Continental Hall.

# **Organizing Secretary General**

Mrs. Frank H. Parcells, Memorial Continental Hall.

#### **Treasurer General**

Mrs. Katherine Arnold Nettleton, Memorial Continental Hall.

# **Registrar General**

Mrs. Stanley F. Read, Memorial Continental Hall.

#### **Historian General**

Mrs. William L. Dunne, Memorial Continental Hall.

## Reporter General to Smithsonian Institute

Mrs. Emmett H. Wilson, Pasadena, Calf.

#### Librarian General

Mrs. Frank M. Dick, Memorial Continental Hall.

#### **Curator General**

Miss Myra Hazard, Memorial Continental Hall.

# PROGRAM D. A. R. CONFERENCE

#### MUNICIPAL AUDITORIUM

#### Monday, March 19, 1934

Meeting of Credential Committee, 2:00 to 4:00 P. M., New Albany Hotel.

Executive Board meeting, 3:00 P. M., New Albany Hotel. Banquet, 6:00 o'clock, Valencia Room, New Albany Hotel. Solo-Mrs. R. E. McCormack.

Solo-Mr. Neely Peacock.

Thronateeska and Commodore Richard Dale, Hostess Chapters.

#### Monday Evening at 8:00 O'Clock

#### Municipal Auditorium

Bugle Call: Boy Scout Don Yancey.

Processional: Entrance of Standard Bearers, Pages, Distinguished Guests, Ex-State Regents, Ex-National Officers, State Officers, National Officers, Vice-President General, Hostess Regents, and State Regent.

Thirty-sixth Georgia State Conference, Daughters of the American Revolution called to order by State Regent, Mrs. Julian Mc-Curry.

Invocation: Rev. H. S. Cobey, Rector St. Paul's Episcopal Church. Pledge to the Flag: Mrs. John M. Slaton.

American Creed: Led by Mrs. Howard H. McCall, Ex-Vice-President General.

"Star-Spangled Banner": Audience.

Addresses of Welcome:

Mrs. Leo Leader, Hostess Regent, Thronateeska Chapter, D. A. R. Mayor R. F. Armstrong, City of Albany; presented by Mrs.

S. S. Bennet, Honorary Regent, Commodore Richard Dale Chapter.

Mrs. W. C. Holman, President, Federated Women's Clubs of Albany.

Mr. H. T. McIntosh, representing Men's Civics Clubs of Albany; presented by Mrs. J. W. Walters, Honorary Regent, Thronateeska Chapter.

Response: Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge, Ex-Vice-President General.

Presentation of State Regent: Mrs. W. C. Fripp, Regent, Commodore Richard Dale Chapter, D. A. R.

Address of State Regent: Mrs. Julian McCurry.

Solo......Mrs. O. D. Culpepper Presentation of National Officers: Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney, Vice-President General.

Introduction of Mrs. Wm. H. Becker, National Chairman of National Defense, Embodying Patriotic Education Committee; by Mrs. Bun Wylie.

Address......Mrs. Wm. H. Becker Solo.....Mrs. H. B. Knowles Presentation of State Officers by State Regent.

Introduction of Distinguished Guests: Ex-Vice-President Generals, Honorary and Ex-State Regents, Heads of other Patriotic Organizations—Mrs. Herbert Franklin.

Response for Distinguished Guests: Miss Virginia Hardin.

Announcements: Mrs. W. E. Rowsey.

Benediction: Dr. J. N. Peacock, Pastor, First Methodist Church.

#### Tuesday Morning, March 20, 1934, 9 O'Clock

Bugle Call: Don Yancey.

Entrance of Standard Bearers, Pages, State Officers, Hostess Regents, State Regent. Conference called to order by State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry. Prayer......Mrs. C. D. Shelnutt, State Chaplain "America" ..... Audience Minutes of Executive Board Meeting: Mrs. John Adams, Recording Secretary. Pledge to the Flag......Mrs. John M. Slaton Presentation of Program......Mrs. J. M. Patterson Roll Call. Reading of Rules .... Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge, State Parliamentarian Minutes of Evening Session, March 19, 1934. Solo.....Mr. Roy Corley Report of Vice-President General......Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney **Report of State Officers:** State Recording Secretary ...... Mrs. John S. Adams State Corresponding Secretary ...... Mrs. Thomas Mell State Treasurer......Mrs. John W. Daniel State Auditor......Mrs. Henry Carswell State Consulting Organizing Secretary ...... Mrs. T. E. Ryals State Librarian......Mrs. Stewart Colley State Historian......Mrs. J. Harold Nicholson State Consulting Registrar......Mrs. J. L. Mims State Reporter to Smithsonian Institute..... ......Mrs. Harrison Hightower State Curator......Mrs. J. M. Simmons State Chaplain......Mrs. C. D. Shelnutt Song: "America the Beautiful".....Audience State Chairmen Reports (Historical Division): Preservation of Historical Spots and Marking of Oglethorpe Highway......Mrs. Robert Travis Historical Programs and Pageants ...... Mrs. Max E. Land Historical Post Cards ...... Mrs. E. C. Pittman County Histories......Mrs. Alfred N. Murray Filing and Lending of Historic Papers ...... Mrs. J. L. Beeson

Marking Old Trails......Mrs. Alex Anderson Meadow Garden.....Mrs. Sanford Gardner Kenmore Gardens.....Mrs. J. V. H. Rucker Marking Revolutionary Soldiers' Graves...Mrs. Albert Tidwell

# PROCEEDINGS

## OF THE

# THIRTY-SIXTH CONFERENCE

OF THE

Georgia Daughters National Society

# Daughters of the American Revolution

IN GEORGIA

ENTERTAINED BY THE THRONATEESKA CHAPTER COMMODORE RICHARD DALE CHAPTER ALBANY, GEORGIA

March 19-20-21, 1934

MRS. JULIAN McCURRY - - - State Regent MRS. J. S. ADAMS - - State Recording Secretary MRS. MELL KNOX - - State Chairman Press Committee



Bookplate for Georgia books in library at Constitution Hall, a contribution of the Georgia Society D. A. R. to the Georgia Bicentennial program.

#### HISTORY

The work of providing a bookplate for the Georgia books in the library at Constitution Hall was begun by Mrs. John S. Adams during her first term of office as State Librarian, Georgia D. A. R. 1931-1932. At the time Mrs. Adams planned a design which, with the addition of the motto and Bicentennial dates, is the sketch used.

The Bookplates were presented to the Georgia Society D. A. R. on March 16, 1933, by Mrs. E. B. Freeman in her report to the Georgia State Conference, as chairman of the Bookplate Committee, and accepted for the Georgia Society by Mrs. Julian McCurry, State Regent of Georgia.

#### Significance

Many phases of Georgia history are embodied in the design of the State D. A. R. Bookplate. In the upper center appears an inset of a photogravure of General James Edward Oglethorpe, the founder of the state; the shield of Oglethorpe is placed on the upper left and is balanced on the right by the great seal of the state of Georgia. On the left of the center inscription "Ex Libris D. A. R. Georgia," is an Indian figure representing the original inhabitants of this domain; on the right is a replica of the Statue of Liberty. The motto, "Amor patriae patrumque," carries the thought of love of country and of ancestry. Intertwining these and blending them into an interesting whole is a delicate tracery of the Cherokee rose, Georgia's state flower. A few full blown cotton bolls, Georgia's staple crop, also appear in the embellishment of the sketch. The Bicentennial idea is expressed in the dates, 1733-1933.



MRS. JULIAN McCURRY State Regent, 1932-33-34 Vice-President General, National Society D. A. R., 1934-1937



MRS. JOHN W. DANIEL State Regent, 1934-35-36

# CONTENTS

Page
Address of State Regent 40
By-Laws of State Conference154
Directory of Chapters173
Courtesy Expression
Items of Information:
Memorials161
Important Days to be Observed
Badges for State Conference
Student Loan Fund
Historical Collection
Trophies and Awards
Requirements for Honor Roll
In Memoriam
Minutes:
Thirty-Sixth Annual Conference
Executive Board (Elberton)
Georgia Delegation (Washington, D. C.)
Names of Chapters (Formation)165
National Officers
Officers Since Formation 4
National Society of Children of the American Revolution
Program of State Conference
Reports:
Officers
Committees
Chapters
State Committees, 1934-1935
State Conferences
State Officers' Club
State Officers, 1934-1935Back Cover

#### STATE REGENTS OF THE DAUGHTERS OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION IN GEORGIA SINCE THE FORMATION OF THE NATIONAL SOCIETY

- \*First State Regent-Mrs. Augustus Ramon Salas, Waynesboro, Ga., for the year 1891.
- \*Second State Regent-Mrs. Harry Jackson, Atlanta, Ga., for the year 1892.

\*Third State Regent-Mrs. S. B. C. Morgan, Savannah, Ga., for the years 1893, 1894, 1896, and 1897.

\*Fourth State Regent-Mrs. Porter King, Atlanta, Ga., for the year 1898.

\*Fifth State Regent-Mrs. Robert Emory Park, Macon, Ga., for the years 1899, 1900, 1901, and 1902.

\*Sixth State Regent-Mrs. Ira Yale Sage, Atlanta, Ga., for the years 1903, and 1904.

Seventh State Regent-Mrs. James A. Rounsaville, Rome, Ga., for the years 1905, and 1906.

Eighth State Regent-Miss Anna Caroline Benning, Columbus, Ga., for the years 1907, and 1908.

Ninth State Regent-Mrs. P. W. Godfrey, Covington, Ga., for the year 1909.

\*Tenth State Regent-Mrs. John M. Graham, Marietta, Ga., for the years 1910, 1911, and 1912.

Eleventh State Regent-Mrs. Sheppard W. Foster, Atlanta, Ga., for the years 1912, 1913, and 1914.

\*Twelfth State Regent-Mrs. Thaddeus C. Parker, Macon, Ga., for the years 1914, 1915, and 1916.

Thirteenth State Regent-Mrs. Howard H. McCall, Atlanta, Ga., for the years 1916, 1917, and 1918.

Fourteenth State Regent-Mrs. James S. Wood, Savannah, Ga., for the years 1918, 1919, and 1920.

Fifteenth State Regent-Mrs. Max E. Land, Cordele, Ga., for the years 1920, 1921, and 1922. Sixteenth State Regent-Mrs. Charles Akerman, Macon, Ga., for

the years 1922, 1923, and 1924.

Seventeenth State Regent-Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge, Athens, Ga., for the years 1924, 1925, and 1926.

Eighteenth State Regent-Mrs. Herbert M. Franklin, Tennille, Ga., for the years 1926, 1927, and 1928.

Nineteenth State Regent-Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney, Columbus, Ga., for the years 1928, 1929, and 1930.

Twentieth State Regent-Mrs. Bun Wylie, Atlanta, Ga., for the years 1930, 1931, and 1932.

Twenty-first State Regent-Mrs. Julian McCurry, Athens, Ga., for the years 1932, 1933, and 1934.

Twenty-second State Regent-Mrs. John W. Daniel, Savannah, Ga., for the years 1934, 1935, and 1936.

#### **Honorary State Regents**

\*Mrs. Martha Berrien Duncan

\*Mrs. W. H. Bordon

\*Miss Julia McKinley

\*Mrs. Mary A. Washington

\*Mrs. Harriet Gold Jefferies

\*Mrs. William Lawson Peel

\*Mrs. J. H. Redding

\*Mrs. S. B. C. Morgan

\*Mrs. John M. Graham

Mrs. Howard H. McCall

Mrs. S. W. Foster

Miss Anna Caroline Benning

- Mrs. Max E. Land

Mrs. James S. Wood

Mrs. Charles Akerman

Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge

- Mrs. Herbert Franklin
- Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney
- Mrs. Bun Wylie
- Mrs. Julian McCurry

\*Mrs. T. C. Parker

# THE VICE-PRESIDENTS GENERAL

#### Served in the Following Order:

Mrs. Lucien Cocke, Roankoe, Va. (Formerly Mrs. Hugh Hagan).

- \*Mrs. Albert Cox, Atlanta, Ga.
- Mrs. Lizzie Bailey, Griffin, Ga.

\*Madam Proschaska, Atlanta, Ga. (Formerly Mrs. Dickson).

- Miss Anna Caroline Benning, Columbus, Ga.
- \*Mrs. Hoke Smth, Atlanta, Ga.
- \*Mrs. S. B. C. Morgan, Savannah, Ga.

- \*Mrs. I. Y. Sage, Atlanta, Ga. \*Mrs. Robert E. Park, Macon, Ga.
- Miss Anna Caroline Benning, Columbus, Ga.
- \*Mrs. William Lawson Peel, Atlanta, Ga. Mrs. Sheppard W. Foster, Atlanta, Ga. Mrs. Howard H. McCall, Atlanta, Ga.
- Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge, Athens, Ga.
- Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney, Columbus, Ga.
- Mrs. Julian McCurry, Athens, Ga.

#### THE NATIONAL SOCIETY OF THE DAUGHTERS OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION

#### (Organization-October 11, 1890)

#### MEMORIAL CONTINENTAL HALL

Seventeenth and D Streets, N. W., Washington, D. C.

NATIONAL BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

1934-1935

#### **President General**

Mrs. Russell William Magna, Memorial Continental Hall, Washington, D. C.

#### **Vice-Presidents General**

#### (Term of office expires 1935)

- Mrs. Frank Hamilton Marshall, 1227 East Broadway, Enid, Okla.
- Mrs. Nathaniel Beaman, 1315 Westover Avenue, Norfolk, Va. Mrs. C. Edward Murray, 180 West State St., Trenton, N. J.
- Mrs. Joseph Hayes Acklen, Kensington Place and 24th Ave., Nashville, Tenn.
- Mrs. E. Thomas Boyd, 2588 Dexter St., Denver, Colo.
- Mrs. Joseph M. Caley, 1513 Green St., Philadelphia, Pa.
- Mrs. Walter Lawrence Tobey, 401 North C St., Hamilton, Ohio. (Term of office expires 1936)
- Mrs. John Carroll Coulter, 1516 Richland St., Columbia, S. C. Mrs. James F. Trottman, 508 LaFayette Place, Milwaukee, Wis.

- Mrs. Howard Bailey, 4944 Lindell Blvd., St. Louis, Mo. Mrs. Lue R. Spencer, 638 E. Capitol St., Washington, D. C. (Nebr.).
- Mrs. Victor Lisle Warren, Dover-Foxcroft, Maine.
- Mrs. John W. Kirkpatrick, 516 W. Pine St., Eldorado, Kan. Miss Helen Harman, 1717 Varnum St., Washington, D. C.
- - (Term of office expires 1937)
- Mrs. Wm. Perry Herring McFaddin, 1906 McFaddin Ave., Beaumont, Texas.
- Mrs. Julian McCurry, Coordinate College, Athens, Ga.
- Mrs. Frederick F. Grundrum, 2214 21st St., Sacramento, Calif.
- Mrs. Bessie Carroll Higgins, 1045 N. Main St., Spencer, Iowa. Miss Minnie M. Dilley, 417 Winona St., Northfield, Minn,
- Mrs. Henry Zoller, Jr., 4402 Charlecote Pl., Guilford, Baltimore, Md.
- Mrs. Roscoe C. O'Bvrne, 912 Main St., Brookville, Indiana.

#### **Chaplain General**

Mrs. Raymond G. Kimbell 422 Forrest Ave., Wilmette, Ill.

#### **Recording Secretary General**

Mrs. Henry B. Joy, Memorial Continental Hall.

#### **Corresponding Secretary General**

Mrs. John M. Beavers, Memorial Continental Hall.

### **Organizing Secretary General**

Mrs. Frank H. Parcells, Memorial Continental Hall.

#### **Treasurer General**

Mrs. Katherine Arnold Nettleton, Memorial Continental Hall.

#### **Registrar General**

Mrs. Stanley F. Read, Memorial Continental Hall.

#### **Historian General**

Mrs. William L. Dunne, Memorial Continental Hall.

#### **Reporter General to Smithsonian Institute**

Mrs. Emmett H. Wilson, Pasadena, Calf.

#### Librarian General

Mrs. Frank M. Dick, Memorial Continental Hall,

#### **Curator General**

Miss Myra Hazard, Memorial Continental Hall.

# PROGRAM D. A. R. CONFERENCE

#### MUNICIPAL AUDITORIUM

#### Monday, March 19, 1934

Meeting of Credential Committee, 2:00 to 4:00 P. M., New Albany Hotel.

Executive Board meeting, 3:00 P. M., New Albany Hotel.

Banquet, 6:00 o'clock, Valencia Room, New Albany Hotel.

Solo-Mrs. R. E. McCormack.

Solo-Mr. Neely Peacock.

Thronateeska and Commodore Richard Dale, Hostess Chapters.

#### Monday Evening at 8:00 O'Clock

#### Municipal Auditorium

Bugle Call: Boy Scout Don Yancey.

Processional: Entrance of Standard Bearers, Pages, Distinguished Guests, Ex-State Regents, Ex-National Officers, State Officers, National Officers, Vice-President General, Hostess Regents, and State Regent.

Thirty-sixth Georgia State Conference, Daughters of the American Revolution called to order by State Regent, Mrs. Julian Mc-Curry.

Invocation: Rev. H. S. Cobey, Rector St. Paul's Episcopal Church. Pledge to the Flag: Mrs. John M. Slaton.

American Creed: Led by Mrs. Howard H. McCall, Ex-Vice-President General.

"Star-Spangled Banner": Audience.

Addresses of Welcome:

Mrs. Leo Leader, Hostess Regent, Thronateeska Chapter, D. A. R.

Mayor R. F. Armstrong, City of Albany; presented by Mrs. S. S. Bennet, Honorary Regent, Commodore Richard Dale Chapter.

Mrs. W. C. Holman, President, Federated Women's Clubs of Albany.

Mr. H. T. McIntosh, representing Men's Civics Clubs of Albany; presented by Mrs. J. W. Walters, Honorary Regent, Thronateeska Chapter.

Response: Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge, Ex-Vice-President General.

Presentation of State Regent: Mrs. W. C. Fripp, Regent, Commodore Richard Dale Chapter, D. A. R.

Address of State Regent: Mrs. Julian McCurry.

Solo......Mrs. O. D. Culpepper Presentation of National Officers: Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney, Vice-President General.

Introduction of Mrs. Wm. H. Becker, National Chairman of National Defense, Embodying Patriotic Education Committee; by Mrs. Bun Wylie.

Address......Mrs. Wm. H. Becker Solo......Mrs. H. B. Knowles Presentation of State Officers by State Regent. Introduction of Distinguished Guests: Ex-Vice-President Generals, Honorary and Ex-State Regents, Heads of other Patriotic Organizations-Mrs. Herbert Franklin.

Response for Distinguished Guests: Miss Virginia Hardin.

Announcements: Mrs. W. E. Rowsey.

Benediction: Dr. J. N. Peacock, Pastor, First Methodist Church.

#### Tuesday Morning, March 20, 1934, 9 O'Clock

Bugle Call: Don Yancey.

Entrance of Standard Bearers, Pages, State Officers, Hostess Regents, State Regent. Conference called to order by State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry. "America" ..... Audience Minutes of Executive Board Meeting: Mrs. John Adams, Recording Secretary. Pledge to the Flag ...... Mrs. John M. Slaton Presentation of Program......Mrs. J. M. Patterson Roll Call. Reading of Rules .... Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge, State Parliamentarian Minutes of Evening Session, March 19, 1934. Solo.....Mr. Roy Corley Report of State Regent......Mrs. Julian McCurry Report of Vice-President General......Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney Report of State Officers: State Recording Secretary ...... Mrs. John S. Adams State Corresponding Secretary ...... Mrs. Thomas Mell State Treasurer......Mrs. John W. Daniel State Auditor......Mrs. Henry Carswell State Consulting Organizing Secretary ....... Mrs. T. E. Ryals State Librarian......Mrs. Stewart Colley State Historian......Mrs. J. Harold Nicholson State Consulting Registrar......Mrs. J. L. Mims State Reporter to Smithsonian Institute..... ......Mrs. Harrison Hightower State Curator......Mrs. J. M. Simmons State Genealogist.....Mrs. Henry Redding Song: "America the Beautiful"......Audience State Chairmen Reports (Historical Division): Preservation of Historical Spots and Marking of Oglethorpe Highway......Mrs. Robert Travis Historical Programs and Pageants ...... Mrs. Max E. Land Historical Post Cards......Mrs. E. C. Pittman Filing and Lending of Historic Papers ...... Mrs. J. L. Beeson Marking Old Trails......Mrs. Alex Anderson

Meadow Garden.....Mrs. Sanford Gardner Kenmore Gardens.....Mrs. J. V. H. Rucker Marking Revolutionary Soldiers' Graves...Mrs. Albert Tidwell Collection and Preservation of Family Bible Records......

Mrs. Eli Thomas American Creed	
Reports of State Chairmen continued, beginning with "A":         American Merchant Marine Library	American CreedMrs. Glenmore Green
American Merchant Marine LibraryMrs. M. J. Guyton Beautifying National HighwaysMrs. C. H. Leavy Bookplate for Georgia Books in Library at Constitution HallMrs. E. B. Freeman Conservation and ThriftMrs. Frank Dennis Constitution Hall Finance CommitteeMrs. Roby Redwine Cooperative Relations Between D. A. R. and C. A. R. Mrs. Y. H. Yarbrough Cooperative Relations Between D. A. R. and S. A. R. 	Reports of State Chairmen continued, beginning with "A":
Beautifying National Highways	
Bookplate for Georgia Books in Library at Constitution HallMrs. E. B. Freeman Conservation and ThriftMrs. Frank Dennis Constitution Hall Finance CommitteeMrs. Roby Redwine Cooperative Relations Between D. A. R. and C. A. R. Mrs. Y. H. Yarbrough Cooperative Relations Between D. A. R. and S. A. R. Mrs. Bert Tyler Custodian of Flag and Conference PropertiesMrs. W. C. Fripp D. A. R. MagazineMrs. Ober D. Warthen D. A. R. Forest ParkMrs. C. A. Rudolph ForestryMrs. H. Fay Gaffney Georgia Room in Administration Building, Washington Mrs. J. M. Patterson	
Constitution Hall Finance CommitteeMrs. Frank Definis Constitution Hall Finance CommitteeMrs. Roby Redwine Cooperative Relations Between D. A. R. and C. A. R. 	Bookplate for Georgia Books in Library at Constitution
Constitution Hall Finance CommitteeMrs. Frank Definis Constitution Hall Finance CommitteeMrs. Roby Redwine Cooperative Relations Between D. A. R. and C. A. R. 	HallMrs. E. B. Freeman
Cooperative Relations Between D. A. R. and C. A. R. Mrs. Y. H. Yarbrough Cooperative Relations Between D. A. R. and S. A. R. Mrs. Bert Tyler Custodian of Flag and Conference PropertiesMrs. W. C. Fripp D. A. R. MagazineMrs. Ober D. Warthen D. A. R. Forest ParkMrs. Ober D. Warthen D. A. R. Forest ParkMrs. C. A. Rudolph ForestryMrs. H. Fay Gaffney Georgia Room in Administration Building, Washington Mrs. J. M. Patterson	Conservation and Inflit
Mrs. Y. H. Yarbrough Cooperative Relations Between D. A. R. and S. A. R. Mrs. Bert Tyler Custodian of Flag and Conference PropertiesMrs. W. C. Fripp D. A. R. MagazineMrs. Ober D. Warthen D. A. R. Forest ParkMrs. Ober D. Warthen D. A. R. Forest ParkMrs. C. A. Rudolph ForestryMrs. C. A. Rudolph ForestryMrs. H. Fay Gaffney Georgia Room in Administration Building, Washington Mrs. J. M. Patterson	Constitution Hall Finance Committee Mrs. Roby Redwine
Cooperative Relations Between D. A. R. and S. A. R. Mrs. Bert Tyler Custodian of Flag and Conference PropertiesMrs. W. C. Fripp D. A. R. MagazineMrs. Ober D. Warthen D. A. R. Forest ParkMrs. Ober D. Warthen D. A. R. Forest ParkMrs. C. A. Rudolph ForestryMrs. C. A. Rudolph ForestryMrs. H. Fay Gaffney Georgia Room in Administration Building, Washington Mrs. J. M. Patterson	Cooperative Relations Between D. A. R. and C. A. R.
Custodian of Flag and Conference PropertiesMrs. W. C. Fripp D. A. R. MagazineMrs. Ober D. Warthen D. A. R. Forest ParkMrs. T. O. Tabor Ellis IslandMrs. C. A. Rudolph ForestryMrs. H. Fay Gaffney Georgia Room in Administration Building, Washington 	Cooperative Relations Between D. A. R. and S. A. R.
D. A. R. MagazineMrs. Ober D. Warthen D. A. R. Forest ParkMrs. T. O. Tabor Ellis IslandMrs. C. A. Rudolph ForestryMrs. H. Fay Gaffney Georgia Room in Administration Building, Washington Mrs. John D. Pope AnnouncementsMrs. J. M. Patterson	
D. A. R. Forest ParkMrs. T. O. Tabor Ellis IslandMrs. C. A. Rudolph ForestryMrs. H. Fay Gaffney Georgia Room in Administration Building, Washington Mrs. John D. Pope Announcements	
D. A. R. Forest ParkMrs. T. O. Tabor Ellis IslandMrs. C. A. Rudolph ForestryMrs. H. Fay Gaffney Georgia Room in Administration Building, Washington Mrs. John D. Pope Announcements	D. A. R. MagazineMrs. Ober D. Warthen
Ellis IslandMrs. C. A. Rudolph ForestryMrs. H. Fay Gaffney Georgia Room in Administration Building, Washington Mrs. John D. Pope AnnouncementsMrs. J. M. Patterson	D. A. R. Forest ParkMrs. T. O. Tabor
ForestryMrs. H. Fay Gaffney Georgia Room in Administration Building, Washington 	Ellis IslandMrs. C. A. Rudolph
Georgia Room in Administration Building, Washington Mrs. John D. Pope Announcements	ForestryMrs. H. Fay Gaffney
AnnouncementsMis. J. M. Fatterson	Georgia Room in Administration Building, Washington
AnnouncementsMis. J. M. Fatterson	
Adjournment	Announcements
Aujournment.	Adjournment.

Luncheon, 1:00 o'clock, New Albany Hotel.

Hostess Chapters: Thronateeska Chapter, D. A. R.; Commodore Richard Dale Chapter, D. A. R.

#### Tuesday Afternoon, 2:00 O'Clock

State First Vice-Regent, Mrs. W. F. Dykes, presiding.

#### State Chairmen Reports (Education Division):

Tributes to Deceased Members....Mrs. C. D. Shelnutt, State Chaplain Closing Prayer—Mrs. Lawson Davis, Chaplain, Commodore Richard Dale Chapter.

Announcements......Mrs. J. M. Barnett Adjournment.

Dinner, 6:00 o'clock, Hotel Gordon.

#### Tuesday Evening, 8:00 O'Clock

Chapter Regents' Evening

Music.

Bugle Call: Don Yancey.

Processional: Entrance Standard Bearers, Pages, State Regent, Chapter Regents.

Conference Called to Order......Mrs. Julian McCurry Invocation.....Dr. Raleigh White, First Bäptist Church Pledge to the Flag......Mrs. John M. Slaton Minutes of the afternoon session omitted.

Music: Girls' Glee Club, High School; Boys' Glee Club, High School ---Mrs. H. H. Perry, Director.

Reports of Chapter Regents Beginning with "A." (Limited to two minutes):

Oothcaloga Chapter, Adairsville ...... Mrs. W. P. Whitworth Thronateeska Chapter, Albany ...... Mrs. Leo Leader Commodore Richard Dale Chapter, Albany ...... Mrs. W. C. Fripp Council of Safety Chapter, Americus......Mrs. W. H. Emmet Knox-Conway Chapter, Ashburn......Miss Annie Lou Thrasher Elijah Clarke Chapter, Athens......Miss Annie Crawford Atlanta Chapter, Atlanta......Mrs. James Dawkins Cromer Joseph Habersham Chapter, Atlanta ...... Mrs. R. K. Rambo Augusta Chapter, Augusta......Mrs. A. H. Brenner Elizabeth Washington Chapter, Augusta ...... Mrs. E. G. Wilson Bainbridge Chapter, Bainbridge ...... Mrs. A. B. Conger Lamar-LaFayette Chapter, Barnesville ...... Mrs. E. L. Coleman Gov. Peter Early Chapter, Blakely ...... Mrs. R. C. Singleton Brunswick Chapter, Brunswick .......... Mrs. C. H. Leavy Lanahassee Chapter, Buena Vista ...... Mrs. S. M. Burt Cairo Chapter, Cairo......Mrs. J. A. Pope Camilla Chapter, Camilla......Mrs. S. H. Floyd Etowah Chapter, Cartersville......Mrs. Sam Candler Tomichichi Chapter, Clarkesville......Mrs. Phil Ogletree Button Gwinnett Chapter, Columbus......Mrs. J. M. Murrah George Walton Chapter, Columbus......Mrs. A. I. Jessup Oglethorpe Chapter, Columbus ...... Mrs. George J. Burrus, Jr. James Pittman Chapter, Commerce......Mrs. C. E. Pittman Col. John McIntosh Chapter, Conyers ...... Mrs. J. H. McCalla Fort Early Chapter, Cordele......Mrs. D. H. Standard Sergeant Newton Chapter, Covington .... Miss Annabel Robinson Benjamin Hawkins Chapter, Cuthbert....Mrs. Chales S. Harris Gov. John Milledge Chapter, Dalton......Mrs. Clarence Fraker Stone Castle Chapter, Dawson......Mrs. J. D. Weaver Dorothy Walton Chapter, Dawson ...... Mrs. Jonathan Williams Baron DeKalb Chapter, Decatur.....Mrs. Carl Hudgins John Laurens Chapter, Dublin.....Mrs. A. T. Coleman Col. William Few Chapter, Eastman....Mrs. Thos. J. Sappington

Samuel Reid Chapter, Eatonton ...... Mrs. H. L. Gardner Stephen Heard Chapter, Elberton......Miss Edna Rogers Nathaniel Abney Chapter, Fitzgerald ...... Mrs. Harold Beall James Monroe Chapter, Forsyth ...... Mrs. E. W. Banks Gov. Treutlen Chapter, Fort Valley ...... Mrs. O. R. Flournoy Fort Valley Chapter, Fort Valley ...... Mrs. O. I. Snapp Col. Wm. Candler Chapter, Gainesville..Mrs. George H. Ashford Arthur Fort Chapter, Grantville......Mrs. V. G. Williams Music: Solo......Mrs. C. C. Gregorie Reports of Regent, continued-Oliver Morton Chapter, Gray .........Mrs. Homer Harris David Meriwether Chapter, Greenville ...... Mrs. R. S. Parham Pulaski Chapter, Griffin......Mrs. James B. Turner John Benson Chapter, Hartwell......Mrs. Frank Kidd Hawkinsville Chapter, Hawkinsville ...... Mrs. Ruel Anderson John Ball Chapter, Irwinton......Mrs. J. H. Porter William McIntosh Chapter, Jackson......Mrs. J. D. Jones Altamaha Chapter, Jesup......Mrs. H. K. Slover, Acting Regent William Marsh Chapter, LaFayette ...... Mrs. Tom W. Lee LaGrange Chapter, LaGrange ...... Mrs. Thomas G. Polhill Roanoke Chapter, Lumpkin ...... Mrs. W. A. Fitzgerald Mary Hammond Washington Chapter, Macon...Mrs. Julian Lewis Nathaniel Macon Chapter, Macon ...... Mrs. L. C. Rader Henry Walton Chapter, Madison ...... Miss Sue Reid Vason Fielding Lewis Chapter, Marietta ..... Mrs. Charles N. Clotfelter Stephen Hopkins Chapter, Marshallville ..... Miss Willie E. Rice Nancy Hart Chapter, Milledgeville ...... Miss Floride Allen Matthew Talbot Chapter, Monroe......Mrs. Roy J. Nunnally Archibald Bullock Chapter, Montezuma.......Mrs. F. M. Mullino Sergeant Jasper Chapter, Monticello......Mrs. H. C. Tucker Elizabeth Marlow Chapter, Monticello.....Mrs. J. S. Wilson John Benning Chapter, Moultrie.....Mrs. L. L. Dickinson Oconee Chapter, McRae......Mrs. W. S. Mann Sarah Dickinson Chapter, Newnan ...... Mrs. Wade Stallings Hawthorn Trail Chapter, Pelham ...... Mrs. W. C. Twitty, Sr. General Daniel Stewart Chapter, Perry .... Mrs. F. G. Chandler Hannah Clarke Chapter, Quitman ...... Mrs. H. T. Brice Gov. Jared Irwin Chapter, Sandersville ...... Mrs. Louise Evans Lachlan McIntosh Chapter, Savannah ...... Mrs. Henry L. Purse Bonaventure Chapter, Savannah ...... Mrs. Artie Usher Noble Wimberly Jones Chapter, Shellman .... Mrs. J. E. McGlann John Clarke Chapter, Social Circle ...... Mrs. Geo. W. Funk Hancock Chapter, Sparta......Mrs. W. H. Britt Adam Brinson Chapter, Swainsboro ...... Mrs. Irwin A. Brannen Gov. David Emanuel Chapter, Swainsboro....Mrs. W. H. Flanders Briar Creek Chapter, Sylvania......Mrs. P. R. Kittles Barnard Trail Chapter, Sylvester......Mrs. I. H. Mann Major General Samuel Elbert Chapter, Tennille..... Thomson Chapter, Thomson......Mrs. Clyde F. Hunt Toccoa Chapter, Toccoa.....Mrs. J. W. Marks Gen. James Jackson Chapter, Valdosta ...... Mrs. W. W. Sanders Vidalia Chapter, Vidalia......Mrs. J. E. Mercer

Burkhalter Chapter, Warrenton......Mrs. M. L. Felts Kettle Creek Chapter, Washington......Mrs. W. I. Jackson Jonathan Bryan Chapter, Waycross......Mrs. Claudia E. Little Lyman Hall Chapter, Waycross......Mrs. Dan Lott Edmund Burke Chapter, Waynesboro .... Mrs. Edward T. Agerton Sunbury Chapter, Winder......Mrs. Mildred Pledger Announcements......Mrs. J. M. Patterson Benediction.

Wednesday Morning, March 21, 1934, 9:00 O'Clock Conference Called to Order by State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry. Invocation......Dr. E. A. Landau Pledge to Flag......Mrs. John M. Slaton Minutes of afternoon and evening sessions. Music: Solo......Mrs. C. C. Gregorie Reports of State Chairmen, continued:

Mrs. W. E. Mann, State Second Vice-Regent, Presiding. Patriotic Days:

Armistice Day	Mrs. W. J. Vereen
Flag Day	Mrs. Frank Kidd
Georgia Day	Mrs. John A. Perdue
LaFayette Day	Mrs. Tom Lee
Woodrow Wilson Day	
George Washington's Birthday	Miss Evelyn Cockrele
Independence Day	Mrs. James S. Wood
Constitution and Magna Charta Day.	Mrs. E. C. McDowell
Thomas Jefferson Memorial	Mrs. E. A. Caldwell
DEGAT TIME AND AND	A 1 35

#### RESOLUTIONS, 10:30 A. M.

#### Mrs. Chas. Akerman, Chairman

Georgia Banquet at CongressMrs. Ruby Singl	eton
Girl Home MakersMrs. Lena Felker L	
Manual For Immigrants Mrs. Rosa McMa	
Traveling Genealogical Library Mrs. J. T. Wadsw	orth
Indian WelfareMrs. Alvah D	avis
LegislationMiss Virginia Ha	rdin
Member of Anti-Tuberculosis Board Mrs. W. H. Flan	
Patriotic SongsMiss Cena Whitel	nead
Press	Inox
Patriotic LecturesMrs. Oscar McKe	nzie
PublicityMrs. W. E. M RadioMrs. Lucius McCon	lann
RadioMrs. Lucius McCor	inell
Real Daughters Mrs. W. C. Ve	reen
Scrap Book	
Text Books	tton
Transportation	man
CourtesyMrs. H. M. Fran	
Constitution Hall Memory Book	ane
Century of Progress International Exposition, Chicago,	
1933Mrs. James T. Co	mer
Welfare Women and ChildrenMrs. Reta Co	

Nomination of State Officers, the State Regent, Presiding. Announcements......Mrs. W. E. Rowsey

Adjournment.

Luncheon, Wednesday, 1:00 O'Clock, Radium Springs. Hostesses: Albany Women's Club, American Legion Auxiliary, Business and Professional Women's Club, Colonial Dames, Dougherty County U. D. C., Pilot Club, Spanish-American Auxiliary.

#### Wednesday Afternoon, 2:00 O'Clock

Conference Called to Order by State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry. Minutes of the morning session.

New Business:

Election of State Officers.

Presentation of State Officers.

Awarding and Presentation of Trophies by State Chairmen:

Helen Rogers Franklin Trophy ...... Mrs. Jena C. Collier Blanche McFarland Gaffney Trophy ...... Mrs. T. D. Power Helen McCall Bashinski Trophy ...... Mrs. I. Bashinski Mrs. John A. Perdue Loving Cup ...... Mrs. A. H. Brenner Awarding of Prizes by State Chairmen:

Sarah H. Garard Award .... Mrs. Thomas J. Sappington, Chairman Marion Sibley Wylie Award......Mrs. Julian Jones State Regents' Award......Mrs. Frances Brown Chase State Treasurer's Award......Mrs. E. J. Oliver State Editor's Award......Mrs. A. S. Hardy Report of Time and Place ...... Mrs. Chas. Rice, Chairman Farewell to Visitors. Song: "Keep the Faith."

Prayer.......Rev. J. S. Wynn, Pastor, Byne Memorial Baptist Church Aujournment.

Afternoon Tea at the home of Mrs. Leo Leader, Regent, Thronateeska Chapter, D. A. R.

#### The Pledge to the Flag

"I pledge allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America and to the Republic for which it stands-one nation, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all."

#### The Star-Spangled Banner

O say, can you see, by dawn's early light,

What so proudly we hail'd at twilight's last gleaming-

Whose broad stripes and bright stars, through the perilous fight, O'er the ramparts we watched were so gallantly streaming? And the rockets' red glare, the bombs bursting in air,

Gave proof, through the night, that our flag was still there, O say, does that Star-Spangled Banner yet wave,

O'er the land of the free, and the home of the brave?

#### The American's Creed

"I believe in the United States of America as a government of the people, by the people, for the people; whose just powers are derived from the consent of the governed; a Democracy within a Republic; a sovereign nation of many sovereign States; a perfect union, one and inseparable; established upon those principles of freedom, equality, justice and humanity for which American patriots sacrificed their lives and fortunes. I therefore believe it my duty to my country to love it; to support its constitution; to obey its laws: to respect its flag, and to defend it against all enemies.'

-William Tyler Page.

#### America

My country, 'tis of thee, Sweet land of liberty, Of thee I sing; Land where my fathers died, Land of the Pilgrim's pride; From every mountain side Let freedom ring.

My native country, thee— Land of the noble free,— Thy name I love; I love thy rocks and rills, Thy woods and templed hills; My heart with rapture thrills Like that above. Let music swell the breeze, And ring thro' all the trees Sweet freedom's song;

Let mortal tongues awake;

Let all that breathe partake

Let rocks their silence break, The sound prolong.

Our fathers' God to Thee, Author of liberty, To Thee we sing; Long may our land be bright With freedom's holy light, Protect us by Thy might, Great God, our King.

#### KEEP THE FAITH

(Air: "Columbia, the Gem of the Ocean")
O, our national organization,
A band of the fair and true,
We pledge thee thy daughters' devotion,
Our love and allegiance renew.
May thy name that we cherish stand ever,
As new members we add to thy roll,
For service and duty forever
To country a beautiful scroll.

#### Chorus:

Keep faith with the brave and the true, "Carry on" in work that's to do.

Let "over the top" be our motto,

Our standard, the Red, White and Blue.

O, the Star-Spangled Banner we cherish, And the D. A. R. takes the stand:

We pledge that its glory ne'er perish, Nor its beauty grow dim in the land;

Our grandsires fought to defend it In the days of its perilous youth.

We daughters will ever protect it, Its folds of bright living truth.

The fires of the fierce revolution, Where thunders were heard 'round the world, Kindled thoughts of our grant constitution

Kindled thoughts of our great constitution,

And Liberty's flag was unfurled; Our ancestors fought for our freedom

And Liberty's torch held on high;

We hold up the torch that they left us

And bear it aloft to the sky.

#### By ELIZABETH DUNCAN LANIER.

Adopted as a State D. A. R. Song, April, 1919.

#### IMPORTANT GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Article VIII of the By-Laws of the National Society, relative to the wearing of the insignia, must be complied with.

2. No delegate shall be entitled to the floor until she rises, addresses the Chair, gives her name and chapter and waits for recognition.

3. No delegate shall speak a second time on the same question, if a delegate who has not spoken asks the floor; and no delegate shall speak more than twice on the same question, unless permission of the House be given by a two-thirds vote on regular motion.

4. Debate shall be limited to two minutes at a time for each speaker.

5. Reports shall not be read from chapters that have no delegate in the convention, but such reports shall be filed by the Secretary and published in the minutes.

6. All main motions or resolutions shall be written, signed by the member offering same and sent to the Recording Secretary's desk before the adjournment of the meeting during which they are offered.

7. Reports and material for the Proceedings must be typewritten in shape for the printer before they are handed in, and all such material must be sent to the table of the State Recording Secretary before the close of the Conference.

8. In nominating candidates for State officers the nominating speech shall be limited to three minutes, which may be followed by one seconding speech of one minute.

9. Notices shall be read at the close of each session.

# MINUTES

#### MARCH 19, 1934, ALBANY, GEORGIA

The Executive Board of the Georgia Society D. A. R. met on Monday afternoon, March 19, 4:00 o'clock, at the Municipal Auditorium, Albany, Georgia, the State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry, presiding. In the absence of the State Recording Secretary, Mrs. John S. Adams, Mrs. E. Blount Freeman served as Secretary Pro Tem.

The Lord's Prayer was repeated by the assembly, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag led by Mrs. John M. Slaton.

Roll call showed 14 state officers and 36 state chairmen present. The Minutes of the Executive Board meeting held in Elberton, Georgia, October 21, 1933, were read and approved. The State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, introduced Mrs. Herbert Fay

The State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, introduced Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney, Vice-President General from Georgia, who extended cordial greetings to the Board and spoke of the leading activities of that great and magnificent organization, the National Society D. A. R.

The Regent introduced three Honorary State Regents, Mrs. Herbert M. Franklin, Mrs. Charles Akerman, and Mrs. Max E. Land.

Mrs. Gaffney, Vice-President General and Honorary State Regent, made motion that a rising vote of confidence and appreciation be extended the State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry, with the assurance that the Executive Board and the Georgia Society D. A. R. stand solidly behind her at all times. A rising vote of confidence and appreciation was given.

Mrs. John W. Daniel, State Treasurer, gave a condensed report of the work of her office, which will be given in full at the Tuesday morning session of the Georgia State Conference.

Honorary State Regent, Mrs. Talmadge, spoke of recent bereavements in the families of two members of the Executive Board, Mrs. John S. Adams, State Recording Secretary, and Mrs. Harrison Hightower, State Reporter to Smithsonian Institution, and made motion that the Corresponding Secretary send to each a telegram of sympathy. Motion seconded and carried. Upon motion of Mrs. J. M. Simmons, this body stood for one minute in silent prayer for these members.

In reply to inquiry from Mrs. Talmadge as to whether any amount be still due on the president's table at Constitution Hall, Mrs. Daniel, State Treasurer, replied that while there is no bill out against this item, the balance due was taken from the state treasury and hence is designated as deficit on her books.

Mrs. Travis, Chairman Preservation of Historic Spots and Marking of Oglethorpe Highway, presented the question of the Executive Board's endorsing the Oglethorpe Highway, Route 38, which extends from Midway to the Alabama state line. Mrs. Gaffney made motion to this effect. Motion seconded and carried.

At a previous meeting of the Executive Board the Regent was authorized to create a new committee to be designated the Traveling Genealogical Library. Mrs. J. D. Wadsworth of Columbus, chairman, was called upon at this time to speak on this work. Mrs. Wadsworth urged the advisability of admitting the general public to the use and benefits of this library. This library is to be the repository of inherited family data and, since the South has preserved so few of her records, it was shown to be our duty to make these records available to all her citizens. The Regent, Mrs. Mc-Curry, stated that the Georgia D. A. R. is sponsoring a bill in Congress to give \$30,000 to reclaim all old census records.

Mrs. Dykes, Chairman Lucy Cook Peel Memorial, made motion that money paid from state D. A. R. treasury to Stein for publishing Vol. IV., "Historical Collections Georgia D. A. R.," be refunded the state treasury since the Lucy Cook Peel Memorial Committee has now sufficient funds to cover this amount, \$4.27. Motion seconded and carried.

Mrs. Travis stressed the wisdom of having state highways clearly located and named before being endorsed by Georgia D. A. R., as complications have arisen in the past over failure to do so. Mrs. Travis requested that a committee be appointed to decide which chapters shall receive the money paid in to her committee. The Regent named Mrs. Rosa McMaster, Mrs. A. H. Brenner, Mrs. E. J. Oliver, and Miss Virginia Harden on this committee.

Mrs. Travis made motion that the Bainbridge Chapter be granted the privilege of using \$35.00 for marking Jackson Trail, this amount having been previously granted this chapter for marking Fort Recovery. Motion seconded and carried.

Mrs. Akerman, Chairman of Resolutions, read three resolutions which were referred to the Resolutions Committee and which will be presented to the State Conference at the Tuesday morning session.

Mrs. T. D. Power of Columbus, made motion that the Executive Board endorse Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney, Georgia's Vice-President General, for a national office on Mrs. Gillentine's ticket. Mrs. A. N. Murray, Columbus, seconded. Mrs. Wylie, Mrs. Land, Mrs. Dykes, Mrs. Talmadge, Mrs. Gaffney, Miss Virginia Hardin, and Mrs. Mell Knox spoke to this motion. Discussion developed that, as the Board had at a previous meeting, on October 21, 1933, endorsed Mrs. Julius Talmadge for a national office on Mrs. Becker's ticket, it would place Georgia in an embarrassing position to endorse candidates on opposing tickets, and would materially weaken the voting strength of the state. The Regent referred the matter to The Parliamentarian stated that there is no the Parliamentarian. ruling in the National Society upon which she could base a decision, but to her knowledge no State Conference had gone on record as endorsing candidates on opposing tickets. Rather than divide a hitherto harmonious state into factions, Mrs. Talmadge asked the Board to rescind the motion passed at the October, 1933. Board meeting. The members of the Board refused to consider this action. A substitute motion was immediately made by Mrs. Max Land, Honorary State Regent, "That Georgia decide by a closed ballot as to whether the Board should endorse one or two candidates on opposite tickets for national offices." The Regent instructed the Secretary to prepare ballot, appointing Mrs. Murray, Mrs. Colley, Mrs. Smith, and Mrs. Rucker, tellers. Mrs. Murray, chairman, read result, which was 40 to 3 in favor of endorsing only one candidate.

Mrs. Dykes, Chairman Lucy Cook Peel Memorial, made motion that the purchase of Vols. II, III, and IV, "Georgia D. A. R. Historical Collections," be placed on the list of honor roll requirements for the coming year. A rising vote was taken. Result 34 to 9 in favor of motion.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. MRS. JULIAN McCURRY, State Regent.

MRS. E. BLOUNT FREEMAN, Acting Recording Secretary.

The Daughters of the American Revolution of Georgia opened their Thirty-sixth Conference in the Municipal Auditorium, Albany, at 8:00 o'clock Monday evening, March 19, 1934.

The initial feature of the evening was a musical program. The bugle call by Boy Scout Don Yancy, heralded the entrance of the impressive processional of Standard Bearers, Pages, Distinguished Guests, Ex-State Regents, Ex-National Officers, State Officers, National Officers, Vice-President General, Hostess Regents, and State Regent.

This processional was headed by Mrs. John M. Slaton, Mrs. Julius Talmadge and Mrs. Bun Wylie, bearing respectively the flag of the United States, the ceremonial flag of the Georgia Society D. A. R., and the official flag of the State of Georgia.

The Thirty-sixth Georgia State Conference was called to order by Mrs. Julian McCurry, State Regent.

The invocation was pronounced by Rev. H. S. Cobey, Rector, St. Paul's Episcopal Church; Mrs. John M. Slaton led the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag, and the recital of the American's Creed was led by Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney, Vice-President General from Georgia, after which the "Star-Spangled Banner" was sung.

With Mrs. W. C. Fripp, Regent Commodore Richard Dale Chapter, and Mrs. Leo Leader, Regent Thronateeska Chapter, presiding, addresses of welcome were given by prominent D. A. R. and citizens of Albany.

In her welcome speech Mrs. Leo Leader paid a beautiful tribute to the D. A. R. Society.

Mayor R. F. Armstrong extended cordial greetings from all citizens of Albany in these words: "Albany is yours." "You are true daughters of Liberty," con-

"Albany is yours." "You are true daughters of Liberty," concluded Mr. Armstrong, "and in your veins flows royal blood." Mr. Armstrong was introduced to the Conference by Mrs. S. S.

Bennett, Honorary Regent Commodore Richard Dale Chapter.

Mrs. W. C. Holman, President Federated Women's Clubs, extended from the club women of Albany greetings abounding in hospitality and gracious welcome.

Hon. H. T. McIntosh, editor of the Albany Herald, spoke for the Alliance, Rotary and Kiwanis Clubs, and assured the Conference of the pleasure it afforded the Men's Civic Clubs to welcome its members to their city.

Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Honorary State Regent and Ex-Vice-President General, in her usual charming manner responded to the addresses of welcome, stating, "Albany is always a happy memory to me," since it was in this fair city that she first attended a Georgia State Conference sixteen years ago.

Mrs. W. C. Fripp, Hostess Regent, presented the State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry, who gave a comprehensive review of the work of the Georgia D. A. R., stressing many of its important achievements. In her inspiring address the State Regent gave as the chief objective of the National Society D. A. R., "Preservation of Patriotism." She paid fitting tribute to President Roosevelt and assured her audience that the D. A. R. would ever give to their country unfailing devotion and loyalty. A vocal solo, "Down in the Forest," by the composer, Landon

A vocal solo, "Down in the Forest," by the composer, Landon Ronald, beautifully rendered by Mrs. O. D. Culpepper, with Mrs. A. H. Tompkins, official accompanist, at the piano, was one of the delightful features of the evening's entertainment. Mrs. Bun Wylie, State Chairman National Defense through Patriotic Education, introduced Mrs. William H. Becker, National Chairman of this committee, who was the main speaker of the evening.

Mrs. Becker held the rapt attention of her audience during a masterly address, giving a true conception of National Defense and bringing a ringing challenge for service which must be met with confidence and an abiding faith that knows no defeat. Mrs. Becker made a stirring plea for the defense of our schools, our churches, our homes-the three-fold bulwark of National Defense.

Mrs. Bun Wylie thanked Mrs. Becker for her magnificent address and made motion that it be printed and a copy of same be sent to each chapter Regent. Motion seconded and carried.

A vocal solo, "Honor and Arms," aria from the opera Samson, composer, Handel, was sung by Mrs. H. B. Knowles, accompanied by Mrs. Tomkins.

The State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, presented her official family, who responded by standing:

State First Vice-Regent, Mrs. W. F. Dykes; State Second Vice-Regent, Mrs. W. E. Mann; Acting Recording Secretary, Mrs. E. Blount Freeman; State Corresponding Secretary, Mrs. Thomas C. Mell; State Treasurer, Mrs. John W. Daniel; State Consulting Organizing Secretary, Mrs. T. E. Ryals; State Librarian, Mrs. Stewart Colley; State Historian, Mrs. J. H. Nicholson; State Consulting Registrar, Mrs. J. L. Mims; State Curator, Mrs. J. M. Simmons; State Chaplain, Mrs. C. D. Shelnutt.

In apt words of poetic beauty and rythm, Mrs. Herbert M. Franklin, Honorary State Regent, introduced the distinguished guests of the evening:

Mrs. Wm. H. Becker, National Chairman National Defense.

Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney, Vice-President General, Honorary State Regent.

Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge, National President Barons of Runnymede, Ex-Vice-President General, Honorary State Regent.

Mrs. Max Land, Honorary State Regent.

Mrs. Charles Akerman, Honorary State Regent. Mrs. Thomas W. Reed, President Georgia Division U. D. C.

Miss Virginia Hardin, State Regent Daughters of the American Colonists.

Mrs. Thomas C. Mell, State President Georgia Chapter Daughters of Founders and Patriots of America.

Mrs. John M. Slaton, charter member National Society D. A. R., State President Colonial Dames XVII Century.

Mrs. Frances Brown Chase, Vice-President General Southern Division Daughters of American Colonists.

Mrs. Bryan W. Collier, President Georgia Society of the Dames of the Court of Honor. Mrs. P. I. Dixon, State President American Legion Auxiliary.

Mrs. Warren D. White, President Service Star Legion. Mrs. Y. Harris Yarborough, State Director C. A. R.

Hon. McClesky Garlych of Waynesboro, compiler of "Petals of the Cherokee."

Mr. Garlych presented the original manuscript of this contribution to Georgia literature to the Georgia D. A. R., dedicating it to Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge. Mrs. Talmadge responded with feeling words of appreciation to this beautiful compliment from the compiler.

The State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, accepted this gift with thanks for the Georgia D. A. R. and stated that it would be placed in the D. A. R. cabinet at Rhodes Memorial Hall.

Miss Virginia Hardin, State Regent Daughters American Colonists, responded in words of appreciation to this introduction of distinguished guests.

Mrs. W. E. Rousey, Chairman of Programs, made announcements of the business sessions and social affairs for Tuesday, March 20th.

After the benediction by Dr. J. N. Peacock, Pastor First Methodist Church, the evening session was brought to a close.

MRS. JULIAN MCCURRY, State Regent.

MRS. E. BLOUNT FREEMAN, Acting Recording Secretary.

#### MORNING SESSION, TUESDAY, MARCH 20

The first business session of the Thirty-sixth Conference, Georgia D. A. R., was called to order by the State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, in the Municipal Auditorium, Tuesday morning, March 20, 9:00 o'clock.

Mrs. C. D. Shelnutt. State Chaplain, led in prayer. "America" was sung, and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given, Mrs. John M. Slaton, leading.

Roll was called and the Minutes of the Executive Board meeting and of the Monday session of the Thirty-sixth State Conference, March 19, were read and accepted with thanks. Acting Recording Secretary, Mrs. Freeman, paid homage to the personal charm, the great executive ability, and devotion to the D. A. R. organization of the State Recording Secretary, Mrs. J. S. Adams who, because off recent bereavement, was unable to attend this Conference. Mrs. Freeman brought a message to the Conference from Mrs. Adams, expressing thanks for excellent co-operation received from state chairmen and chapter regents and requesting those who have not submitted reports to do so as soon as possible.

Telegrams of greeting were read from:

Edith Scott Magna, President General, National Society D. A.R.; Ida Caldwell McFadden, State Regent, Texas; Mary L. Jackson Cooper, State Regent, North Carolina; Mrs. Howard H. McCall, Honorary State Regent; Kate Hinds Steele, State Regent, Tennessee; Jennie S. Murray, Vice-President General, New Jersey; Mrs. John T. Dorsey.

Mrs. I. N. Lucas, Chairman Credentials, submitted the following report:

	Attendance	Voters
State Officers	11	11
Vice-President General	1	
National Chairmen	1	
State Chairmen (5 duplicates)	37	32
Regents or Regents' alternates	37	37
Delegates	21	21
Alternates	3	
Distinguished guests	9	
Totals	120	101

Mrs. Talmadge, Parliamentarian, read rules governing the State Conference. Mrs. Talmadge made a motion that the privilege of the floor be given State Chairmen except when voting for State Officers. Motion seconded and carried.

Mrs. Daniel, State Treasurer, presented the State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, with a gavel carved from wood from a tree which has been growing on historic Yamacraw Bluff for over 200 years. Mrs. McCurry expressed appreciation of this gavel of such great historic value. With State First Vice-Regent, Mrs. W. F. Dykes, presiding, Mrs. McCurry, State Regent, in her excellent report reviewed an eventful year of varied and important work effectively accomplished, including activities of both state and national interest. Upon motion by Mrs. Charles Akerman, a rising vote of thanks and appreciation was given the retiring State Regent for her most successful and outstanding administration.

The report of Vice-President General, Mrs. Gaffney, showed active and varied participation, in important work of the National Society D. A. R. and in the affairs of this and many other states. Upon motion by Mrs. Talmadge a rising vote of thanks was extended Mrs. Gaffney for her excellent report.

Mrs. J. V. H. Rucker, Athens, stated that the Elijah Clarke Chapter wished to present to the Retiring State Regent and member of this chapter a set of Georgia Bicentennial plates which depict in their embellishment scenes of the home and environs of George Walton, Georgia signer of the Declaration of Independence, and ancestor of Mrs. McCurry. Mrs. Tarbutton stated that the Transylvania Club, Sandersville, is proud that the first set of these Georgia commemorative plates is to be presented to our beloved State Regent. Mrs. McCurry expressed appreciation to Georgia D. A. R. for this lovely gift.

Mrs. Franklin made a motion that three sets of these plates be presented by the Georgia D. A. R. to the first lady of the land, Mrs. Franklin Delano Roosevelt. Mrs. Gaffney, Mrs. Land, and Mrs. Shelnutt asked the privilege of seconding the motion, which was carried. Donations were quickly made to cover cost from the following chapters:

Atlanta, \$5.00; Edmund Burke, \$3.00; Commodore Richard Dale, \$3.00; Button Gwinnett, \$3:00; Brunswick, \$3.00; Savannah, \$5.00; Barnard Trail, \$3.00; Col. Wm. Few, \$3.00; Sarah Dickinson, \$1.00; Thomson, \$1.00; John Houston, \$3.00; Council of Safety, \$3.00; Gov. Peter Early, \$3.00; Benjamin Hawkins, \$3.00; William Marsh, \$3:00; Hawkinsville, \$3.00; Gov. Jared Irwin, \$3:00; John Laurens, \$5.00; Thronateeska, \$3.00; Bainbridge, \$3.00; John Clarke, \$2.00; Col. Wm. Candler, \$3.00; Baron DeKalb, \$3.00; Joseph Habersham, \$3.00; Elijah Clarke, \$3.00; Nancy Hart, \$3.00; Dorothy Walton, \$3.00; LaGrange, \$3.00; James Monroe, \$3.00; Gen. Daniel Stewart, \$2.00; Mary Hammond Washington, \$5.00; Stone Castle, \$3.00; Thomasville, \$3.00; Wm. McIntosh, \$3.00; Lamar-La-Fayette, \$3.00; Oglethorpe, \$3.00; Gen. James Jackson, \$3.00; George Walton, \$3.00; Sergeant Newton, \$3.00; Noble Wimberly Jones, \$2.00; total, \$124.00.

The Regent named the following committee to attend to all details of Mrs. Roosevelt's plates: Mrs. Shelnutt, Mrs. Franklin, Mrs. Tarbutton, Mrs. McMaster. In the discussion the interesting fact was disclosed that Mrs. Roosevelt joined the National Society D. A. R. on the service of a distinguished Georgia ancestor, Archibald Bullock,

Mrs. Land, Honorary State Regent, made motion that the Georgia Society also present a set of these plates to our Vice-President General, Mrs. Gaffney. Mrs. Gaffney expressed appreciation for this gift, in the impressive manner characterstic of Georgia's national official.

Additional contributions for plates for Mrs. Gaffney were as follows: Mrs. McCurry, \$1.00; Button Gwinnett Chapter, \$1.00; Thronateeska Chapter, \$1.00; Mrs. C. H. Leavy, \$1.00; Mrs. A. N. Murray, \$1.00; Oglethorpe Chapter, \$1.00; Atlanta Chapter, \$1.00; total, \$7.00.

Reports from the State Officers were taken up: State First Vice-Regent, Mrs. W. F. Dykes; State Second Vice-Regent, Mrs. W. E. Mann; State Corresponding Secretary, Mrs. Thomas Mell; State Treasurer, Mrs. John W. Daniel.

In the absence of the State Auditor the Chair appointed Mrs. J. L. Mims, Auditor Pro Tem. Mrs. Mims stated that the report of the State Treasurer had been audited by Eaton, Saussy & Co., Certified Public Accountants of Savannah, and that they pronounced it correct.

State Officers' reports continued:

State Consulting Organizing Secretary, Mrs. T. E. Ryals. At the conclusion of her report, Mrs. Ryals presented to Mrs. McCurry, State Regent, an original letter written by Edward Butler of Hanover County, Virginia, on August 13, 1781, describing incidents of Revolutionary interest. Edward Butler is an ancestor of Mrs. McCurry, also of State Historian, Mrs. J. H. Nicholson, Mrs. John M. Slaton, Miss Sue Reid Vason, Miss Gerard and Mrs. T. E. Ryals.

Reports of State Officers continued: State Historian, Mrs. J. H. Nicholson; State Consulting Registrar, Mrs. J. L. Mims; State Chaplain, Mrs. C. D. Shelnutt.

Reports of all state officers were accepted with thanks by the Regent.

The following reports from State Chairmen were given:

D. A. R. Manual for Citizenship, Mrs. Rosa McMaster.

Preservation of Historic Spots and Marking of Oglethorpe Highway, Mrs. Robert Travis.

Historical Programs and Pageants, Mrs. Max E. Land.

Historical Post Cards, Mrs. C. E. Pittman.

County Histories, Mrs. Alfred N. Murray.

Filing and Lending of Historical Papers, Mrs. J. L. Beeson.

Kenmore Gardens, Mrs. J. V. H. Rucker.

Marking Revolutionary Soldiers' Graves, Mrs. Albert Tidwell.

Georgia D. A. R. Bookplate, Mrs. E. Blount Freeman.

Co-operative Relations Between D. A. R. and C. A. R., Mrs. Y. H. Yarbrough.

D. A. R. Magazine, Mrs. Ober D. Warthen.

D. A. R. Forest Park, Mrs. T. O. Tabor.

Forestry, Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney.

Georgia Room in Administration Building, Washington, Mrs. John D. Pope,

Reports of State Chairmen were accepted with thanks by the Regent.

A vocal solo by Mr. Roy Corley, accompanied by Mrs. Tompkins, official accompanist, was given at this time.

A letter of grateful appreciation for the work of Mrs. Robert Travis in marking the historic spots in Georgia, over the signatures of Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney and Miss Virginia Hardin was read by Mrs. E. J. Oliver. Mrs. Oliver wished to go on record as commending the excellent work of Mrs. Travis.

By count it was shown that eight Georgia chapters are giving medals for citizenship.

Mrs. C. H. Leavy made a motion that a letter of condolence be sent to Mayor Robert F. Armstrong, of Albany, on the recent death of his little daughter, Jane, who bore the title "Miss Albany." Motion seconded and carried.

The Corresponding Secretary was instructed to send telegrams of sympathy from the Conference to Mrs. John S. Adams, Mrs. Harrison Hightower, Mrs. Peters Knox, and to write letters to Mrs. Lucius McConnell, Mrs. J. D. Cromer, Mrs. R. K. Rambo, and Mrs. Thomas R. Stafford of the Atlanta Constitution.

A page escorted Mrs. LeVant, President of the Albany Garden Club, to the platform, and Mrs. Gaffney expressed to her appreciation for the beautiful corsages presented to the Georgia D. A. R. official family at the Officers' Club breakfast Tuesday morning.

Conference adjourned to attend a luncheon as guests of the Thronateeska and the Commodore Richard Dale Chapters.

#### **TUESDAY AFTERNOON, MARCH 20**

After a delightful entertainment and luncheon at the New Albany Hotel the afternoon session convened at 2:00 o'clock. Mrs. Julian McCurry, State Regent, presided and the meeting was opened with prayer by Rev. L. C. Henderson.

The minutes of the morning session were read and approved.

With First Vice-Regent, Mrs. W. F. Dykes, presiding, reports of the following State Chairmen were given:

Beautifying National Highways, Mrs. C. H. Leavy.

Americanism, Mrs. Mark Smith.

Lucy Cook Peel Memorial, Mrs. W. F. Dykes.

Correct Use of the Flag, Mrs. John M. Slaton.

Approved Schools, Miss Sue Reid Vason.

Sarah Berrien Casey Morgan Fund, Mrs. Tom Wood.

National Defense Through Patriotic Education, Mrs. Bun Wylie. Sons and Daughters of U. S. A., Mrs. J. I. Garard.

- At the close of this report, Mrs. Garard presented to the State Regent the medal won. Mrs. McCurry accepted ths medal<sub>j</sub> with thanks, to be placed in D. A. R. Cabinet, Rhodes Memorial Hall.

At this time the State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, called to the platform Floride Graydon, grand-daughter of Mrs. W. C. Fripp, Regent, Commodore Richard Dale Chapter, and Milicent Leader, young daughter of Mrs. Leo Leader, Regent, Thronateeska Chapter, and introduced them as junior pages of the State Conference.

Mrs. Akerman, Honorary State Regent, spoke of Mrs. Becker's outstanding address and urged chapter regents to take the copy sent them and use to advantage, suggesting that all chapters sponsor a National Defense program, using material contained in Mrs. Becker's address.

Mrs. I. N. Lucas, Chairman Credentals, submitted the following addition to the report of this committee as read at morning session: Regents, 11; delegates, 4; alternates, 1; total attendance, 136; voters, 113.

The principal feature of this session was a beautiful memorial service for members whom the Georgia Socicety has lost by death since the last State Conference. State Chaplain, Mrs. Shelnutt, presided over this impressive ceremony.

The hymn, "Lead Kindly Light," was sung by the assembly. Miss Nannie Flynt, Chaplain Thronateeska Chapter, gave a scripture reading and offered prayer. Mrs. Shelnutt paid a loving tribute to

"Those whom we loved so long, and see no more, Loved and still love-not dead, but gone before." A solo, "Going Home," was sung by Mrs. O. D. Culpepper, accompanied by Mrs. Tompkins, official accompanist.

The closing prayer was offered by Mrs. Lawson Davis, Chaplain Commodore Richard Dale Chapter.

The beautiful flowers used in these farewell rites to deceased members will be placed on the graves of Mrs. J. R. Whitehead and Mrs. J. P. Champion, who were important figures in the D. A. R. chapters of Albany.

Conference adjourned until the evening session.

#### **EVENING SESSION, TUESDAY, MARCH 21**

The Tuesday evening session of the Thirty-sixth State Conference opened at 8:00 o'clock with processional entrance of Standard Bearers, Pages, State Regent, and Chapter Regents.

Conference was called to order by the State Regent, Mrs. Mc-Curry. The invocation was offered by Dr. Raleigh White, Pastor First Baptist Church, and the Pledge to the Flag was led by Mrs. John M. Slaton.

Minutes of the afternoon session were carried over until Wednesday morning.

Music was furnished by the Girls Glee Club and the Boys Glee Club, Albany High Schcool, with Mrs. H H. Perry, director.

The State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, introduced her personal pages, Julia Hay Henderson and Frances Cornell, to the Conference. The group of attractive pages whose courteous services have meant much to the success of the Conference were also introduced:

Susan Falligant, Georgia Falliganat, Floride Graydon, Joan Batty, Hazel Pope Henderson, Evelyn Wilder, Gloria Scoville, Chloe Milner, Eloise Champion, Elizabeth Lucas, Mary Jones, Martha Cheney, and Antoinette Rouschenberg.

The Regent stated that one of the gavels used upon this occasion was presented to the Thronateeska Chapter by Louisa Bacon Strother in 1895. The wood from which this gavel was carved was grown in Midway Churchyard, 1752.

Another gavel used was one which had been presented to the Commodore Richard Dale Chapter by the Organizing Regent, Mrs. John S. Pope. This gavel was made from glove stretchers in her mother's trousseau.

This session was devoted to chapter reports and was featured by Regents from Georgia D. A. R. Chapters.

Seated upon the platform in evening gowns the Chapter Regents presented a beautiful picture and brought to the Conference a resume of D. A. R. work over the state, showing varied activities and important work successfully accomplished.

Reports from the following chapters were given: Oothcaloga, Mrs. W. P. Whitworth; Thronateeska, Mrs. Leo Leader; Commodore Richard Dale, Mrs. W. C. Fripp; Council of Safety, Mrs. W. H. Mrs. P. S. Cummings; Lamar-LaFayette, Mrs. J. C. Collier; Gov. Emmett; Elijah Clarke, Miss Annie Crawford; Atlanta, Mrs. Moreland Speer; Joseph Habersham, Mrs. C. H. Shehan; Bainbridge, Peter Early, Mrs. R. C. Singleton; Brunswick, Miss Virginia Sapp; Lanahassee, Mrs. S. M. Burt; Tomichichi, Mrs. I. H. Sutton; Button Gwinnett, Mrs. J. M. Murray; Geo. Walton, Mrs. Wheeler Tolbert.

At the conclusion of this report, Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney stated that Representative Mrs. Wheeler Tolbert, of George Walton Chapter, was the first member of the Georgia Society D. A. R. to sit in the legislative halls of fame.

Chapter reports, continued:

Oglethorpe, Mrs. Geo. J. Burrus; James Pittman, Mrs. C. E. Pittman; Fort Early, Mrs. D. H. Standard; Sergeant Newton, Mrs. W. D. Travis; Benj. Hawkins, Mrs. Chas. S. Harris.

At this time, Mrs. Culpepper, whose lovely voice has added great charm to the programs of this Conference, sang "Drink to Me Only With Thine Eyes." Mrs. Culpepper was accompanied by the official accompanist, Mrs. Tompkins, whose musical talent has delighted the Georgia D. A. R. during their sojourn in Albany.

Chapter reports continued:

Gov. John Milledge, Mrs. Clarence Fraker; Stone Castle, Mrs. Jonathan Williams; Dorothy Walton, Mrs. W. O. Smith; Baron DeKalb, Mrs. Carl Hudgins; John Laurens, Mrs. A. T. Coleman; Col. Wm. Few, Mrs. Thos. J. Sappington; Stephen Heard, Miss Edna Rogers; James Monroe, Mrs. E. W. Banks; Gov. Treutlen, Miss Wilma Orr; Fort Valley, Mrs. Cornelia Hall; Col. Wm. Candler, Mrs. Geo. H. Ashford; Arthur Fort, Mrs. V. G. Williams.

A solo, "May Morning," sung by Mrs. C. C. Gregorie, was a pleasing interlude at this time.

Chapter reports continued:

Pulaski, Mrs. James B. Turner; Hawkinsville, Mrs. Ruel Anderson; Wm. McIntosh, Mrs. John E. Lane; Wm. Marsh, Mrs. Tom W. Lee; LaGrange, Mrs. Thos. G. Polhill; Roanoke, Mrs. Y. A. Fitzgerald; Mary Hamilton Washington, Mrs. Julian Lewis; Nathaniel Macon, Mrs. J. E. Wright; Henry Walton, Miss Sue Reid Vaston; Fielding Lewis, Mrs. Chas. N. Clotfelter; Stephen Heard, Miss Willie Rice; Nancy Hart, Miss Floride Allen; Sarah Dickinson, Mrs. Wade Stallings; Gen. Daniel Stewart, Mrs. F. C. Chandler; Hannah Clarke, Mrs. H. T. Brice; Gov. Jared Irwin, Mrs. C. D. Shelnutt; Savannah, Mrs. James N. Carter; John Clarke, Mrs. Geo. W. Funk; Maj. Gen. Samuel Elbert, Mrs. Herbert M. Franklin; John Houston, Mrs. E. T. Nottingham; Thomson, Mrs. Clyde F. Hunt; Gen. James Jackson, Mrs. R. Walton Bennett; Vidalia, Mrs. Ober D. Warthen.

The State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, announced a meeting of the Resolutions Committee in her suite at the New Albany Hotel on Wednesday morning, 8:00 o'clock.

After the benediction the meeting was declared adjourned.

# WEDNESDAY MORNING, MARCH 21

The Wednesday morning session of the Thirty-sixth Georgia State Conference was called to order by the State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, at 9:00 o'clock.

The invocation was offered by Rabbi E. A. Landau, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag, directed by Mrs. John M. Slaton. The minutes of the Tuesday afternoon and Tuesday evening sessions were accepted as read.

With State Second Vice-Regent, Mrs. W. E. Mann, presiding, the reports of State Chairmen, beginning with group of Patriotic Days, were given:

LaFayette Day, Mrs. Tom Lee; Woodrow Wilson Day, Mrs. J. W. Oglesby; Constitution and Magna Charta Day, Mrs. E. C. McDowell;

Traveling Genealogical Library, Mrs. J. D. Wadsworth; Legislation, Miss Virginia Harden; Press, Mrs. Mell Knox.

The report on Better Films was read by Mrs. E. Blunt Freeman, a member of the Better Films Committee, by request of Mrs. Hightower, Chairman.

Publicity, Mrs. W. E. Mann; Scrap Book, Mrs. J. Harold Nicholson; Transportation, Mrs. Warren D. White; Constitution Hall Memory Book, Mrs. John E. Lane.

The report of State Librarian, Mrs. Stewart Colley, was given at this time, Mrs. Colley being ill and unable to read her report at the time the other state officers' reports were given.

The Secretary read telegrams of greeting from the following:

Sue Barrow Land; Mrs. Glenmore Green; Mrs. Sidney O. Smith, State Editor; Lottie Vereen; Retta Coney; Mrs. Peter Knox; Mrs. W. H. Flanders; Mrs. Lucius McConnell, State President U. S. D. 1812 of Georgia; W. M. Francis, State President, Sons of American Revolution; Olivia H. S. Keesbee, Regent, Roanoke, Virginia; Mrs. Ed A. Caldwell.

The Resolution Committee was called at 10:30 and Mrs. Akerman, chairman, read the resolutions recommended.

All the resolutions presented were adopted as read with two exceptions and these were voluntarily withdrawn by the presentors. In withdrawing her resolution, Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney stated: "I am glad to withdraw my motion relative to Patriotic Day being created for President Roosevelt and wish to say that I am willing to abide by the decision of our President General, Mrs. Magna, as far as Roosevelt Day period goes." A vote of thanks was extended Mrs. Akerman for the excellent manner in which she presented the resolutions to the conference.

Resolutions were as follows:

# RESOLUTIONS

No. 1. Proposed by State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry.

Resolved: That the Daughters of the American Revolution of Georgia in their Thirty-sixth State Conference assembled, extend their thanks and appreciaton to the Thronateeska and Commodore Richard Dale Chapters and friends of Albany for their hospitality extended at this time.

Adopted.

No. 2. Proposed by Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Past Vice-President General.

Whereas, during the Thirty-ninth Congress of the National Society D. A. R. a motion was presented by the Continental Dames Chapter of the District of Columbia, and passed, making April 3 "National American Creed Day," that being the anniversary of the acceptance of the Americans' Creed by the United States Government, April 3, 1918, and

Whereas, it has been endorsed and will be observed by all patriotic organizations throughout the country;

Be it Resolved: That the Georgia D. A. R. endorse this movement and urge the observance of April 3 as Americans' Creed Day; and

Be it further Resolved: That April 3, designated as Americans' Creed Day, be placed on the list of days to be observed by the Georgia D. A. R. (to be incorporated as such in the Proceedings), and that each chapter urge the use of the Americans' Creed in class rooms, public meetings, over the radio and in speeches, so that every community in Georgia where there is a chapter may become more familiar with the Creed and its principles.

Adopted.

No. 3. Proposed by Mrs. Harris Yarbrough, Mrs. Thomas C. Mell. Resolved: That the resolution to publish C. A. R. Directory and Reports in D. A. R. Proceedings be amended to include the names of the Past State Directors, with dates of their terms of office, and that the Society Children of the American Revolution bear all additional expense incurred by such printing.

Adopted.

No. 4. Proposed by Mrs. J. L. Beeson, Mrs. Y. H. Yarbrough.

Whereaas, the Georgia Daughters of the American Revolution have written a Five Thousand Dollar Loan Scholarship Fund to the Georgia State Woman's College of Valdosta and another Five Thousand Dollar Loan Scholarship Fund to the University of Georgia; and

Whereas, the Georgia Daughters of the American Revolution have created a Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollar Loan Scholarship Fund, hitherto undesignated, in honor of Mrs. Sarah Berrien Casey Morgan;

Be it Resolved: That the Sarah Berrien Casey Morgan Loan Scholarship Fund be given to the Georgia State College at Milledgeville.

Adopted.

No. 5. Proposed by Mrs. Jenna C. Collier, Chairman Helen Rogers Franklin Trophy.

Resolved: That the Helen Rogers Franklin Trophy be further awarded each year until the name-space becomes full, and

Be it Resolved: That after the last award said trophy be placed in the Rhodes Memorial, there to become an object of inspiration to all Georgia Daughters.

Adopted.

No. 6. Proposed by Mrs. Willie W. Fitzgerald, Regent Roanoke Chapter D. A. R.; Mrs. J. Harold Nicholson, State Historian, D. A. R.

Whereas, the Battle of Shepherd's Plantation was fought on Georgia soil in Stewart county, and was the last and final struggle with the Indians as they were conquered and sent West forever; and

Whereas, Roanoke Chapter, D. A. R., wishes to obtain a monument from the United States Government for this battlefield; therefore

Be it Resolved: That we, the Georgia Division, Daughters of the American Revolution, do heartily give our endorsement to the proposed project.

Adopted.

No. 7. Proposed by McClesky Garlich, Burke County Historian, to the Georgia Society, D. A. R. in conference assembled.

"I respectfully request the co-operation of your Society in a move of much histoic value to Burke county and the members of your organization.

"As Historian of Burke County, I am interested in the restoration of Shell Bluff Plantation, the estate of Lyman Hall in Burke county. The United States Government is interested in such a movement and will be more than pleased to take this matter under advisement for restoration of this estate of the Georgia signer of the Declaration of Independence. "On this estate is a beautifully wooded knoll overlooking the Savannah River, where this American patriot was interred and rested for 58 years before his remains were removed to the City of Augusta and placed under the monument to the Signers.

"In this request to the Georgia Society D. A. R. as Historian of Burke county, I merely seek endorsement."

(This movement was given hearty endorsement with the distinct understanding that the Georgia Society D. A. R. assumed no financial or other responsibility that may be attached hereto).

No. 8. Proposed by Mrs. E. J. Oliver, Mrs. R. N. McMaster, Miss Virginia Hardin.

Resolved: That before any highway is marked to commemorate an historic person or event, it shall be designated by the State Legislature.

Adopted.

No. 9. Proposed by Miss Virginia Hardin, State Chairman of Legislation, D. A. R.

Whereas, the Old Stage Coach Road from Athens via Lexington and Washington to Augusta has been re-opened; and

Whereas, said highway passes through the plantation of William H. Crawford, one of the most illustrious men who ever lived in Georgia; therefore

Be it Resolved: That this highway be called the William H. Crawford Highway.

Further, this committee is instructed to proceed with plans for naming this highway after the State Legslature has given said highway numerical designation.

Adopted.

No. 10. Proposed by Miss Virginia Hardin, State Chairman Legislation, Georgia D. A. R.

The Committee on Legislaton has re-indorsed the State Regent's resolution that all teachers in our schools and colleges subscribe to the Oath of Allegiance;

Be it Resolved: That this body go on record as indorsing this resolution.

Adopted.

No. 11. Proposed by Miss Virginia Hardin, State Chairman of Legislation, Georgia D. A. R.

The Enabling Act passed by Congress and adopted by many states, and is to be adopted by other states before it becomes a law. It has not been adopted by Georgia; therefore

Be it Resolved: That the Daughters of the American Revolution use their influence with the members of the Georgia Assembly to see that it is adopted at the next session.

Adopted.

No. 12. Proposed by Miss Virginia Hardin, State Chairman of Legislation, D. A. R.

Since crime has become most prevalent and is undermining the lives and property of the citizens of the United States;

Be it Resolved: That we memorialize our government to enact a law making kidnapping a capital offense.

Adopted.

No. 13. Proposed by Resolutions Committee.

Be it Resolved: That the Georga Daughters of the American Revolution in Conference assembled, send a message to President Franklin Delano Roosevelt expressing admiration, loyal co-operation and untiring service in helping carry out his program of recovery.

Adopted.

No. 14. Proposed by Resolutions Committee.

Be it Resolved: That hereafter all moneys of the Georgia Daughters of the American Revolution be handled by the State Treasurer of that body.

Adopted.

No. 15. Proposed by Resolutions Committee.

Since it is not the policy of the National Society Daughters of the American Revolution to celebrate any days other than those days that have a strict D. A. R. significance;

Be it Resolved: That this organization discontinue observance of all days and events not emphasizing or memoralizing Revolutionary heroes, Revolutionary activities and D. A. R. activities.

Adopted.

#### **RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE**

Mrs.	Chas. Akerman, Chairman,	Mrs. Jno. M. Slaton,
Mrs.	Julius Talmadge,	Mrs. Max Land,
Mrs.	Bun Wylie,	Mrs. J. W. Daniel,
Mrs.	Howard McCall,	Mrs. Mell Knox,
Mrs.	Mark Smith,	Mrs. Tom Wood.

Mrs. W. F. Dykes, Chairman Lucy Cook Peel Memorial Committee, presented four volumes of "Historical Collections of Georgia" to the library of the State Consultng Registrar.

Mrs. J. L. Mims, State Consulting Registrar, accepted the books in behalf of the office and expressed thanks and appreciation to Mrs. Dykes, stating that the library is in great need of reference books.

Mrs. Herbert M. Franklin, Courtesy Chairman, expressed thanks to all those to whom the conference is indebted.

Upon motion of Mrs. Herbert M. Franklin it was decided to reduce the number of Georgia commemorative plates to be given Mrs. Roosevelt from three dozen to one dozen, these to be Colonial blue, and that the contributions of chapters to this fund be cut in half.

The nomination of State Officers for the years 1934-1936 was next entered into, the State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, presiding over the Following is the slate of officers nominated and unannomination. imously endorsed by the Georgia State Conference:

State Regent, Mrs. John W. Daniel, Savannah; nominated by Mrs. E. J. Oliver; seconded by Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney.

State First Vice-Regent, Mrs. W. E. Mann, Dalton; nominated by Mrs, Mell Knox; seconded by Mrs. Bun Wylie.

State Second Vice-Regent, Mrs. John S. Adams, Dublin; nominated by Mrs. A. T. Coleman; seconded by Mrs. John M. Slaton.

State Recording Secretary, Mrs. Harrison Hightower, Thomaston; nominated by Mrs. E. T. Nottingham; seconded by Mrs. Bun Wylie.

State Corresponding Secretary, Mrs. J. Thomas Wood, Savannah; nominated by Mrs. Robert J. Travis, Savannah; seconded by Mrs. Di Ingram.

State Treasurer, Mrs. Thomas C. Mell, Atlanta; nominated by Miss Virginia Hardin; seconded by Mrs. Max Land, Mrs. Warren D. White, and Mrs. Thomas Wood.

State Auditor, Mrs. James Dawkins Cromer, Atlanta; nominated

by Mrs. Bun Wylie; seconded by Mrs. W. F. Dykes. State Consulting Organizing Secretary, Mrs. T. O. Tabor, Elber-ton; nominated by Mrs. Lucy Peel; seconded by Mrs. Y. H. Yarbrough.

State Librarian, Mrs. Sidney O. Smith, Gainesville; nominated by Mrs. George H. Ashford; seconded by Mrs. J. L. Mims.

State Historian, Mrs. J. L. Beeson, Milledgeville; nominated by Miss Floride Allen; seconded by Mrs. J. H. Nicholson.

State Consulting Registrar, Mrs. John M. Simmons, Bainbridge; nominated by Mrs. P. S. Cummings; seconded by Mrs. A. T. Coleman.

State Reporter to Smithsonian Institute, Mrs. Alfred N. Murray, Columbus; nominated by Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney; seconded by Mrs. Wheeler Tolbert.

State Curator, Mrs. James Harold Nicholson, Madison; nominated by Miss Sue Reid Vason; seconded by Miss Floride Allen.

State Genealogist, Mrs. Stewart Colley, Grantville; nominated by Mrs. Charles Akerman; seconded by Miss Virginia Harden.

State Editor, Mrs. John T. Dorsey, Marietta; nominated by Miss Mary Towers; seconded by Mrs. Clyde F. Hunt.

State Assistant Editor, Mrs. Hazel Pope Henderson, Albany; nominated by Mrs. W. C. Fripp; unanimous endorsement by Conference.

State Chaplain, Mrs. Julia Bacon Osborne, Albany; nominated by Mrs. Leo Leader; unanimous endorsement by Conference.

Each State Officer nominated responded in gracious words of acceptance.

Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Parliamentarian, stated that by a twothirds vote of the house, the order of business might be changed and the above named officers elected at the morning instead of during the evening session as slated. Mrs. Talmadge made motion to this effect and the motion was seconded and carried. There being no opposing candidates the Recording Secretary Pro Tem, Mrs. Freeman, was instructed to cast the ballot for the slate of officers who had been nominated and unanimously endorsed, by the Georgia State Conference, and Mrs. McCurry, State Regent, declared the slate of officers elected.

Mrs. Julius Talmadge nominated the Retiring State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry, for the office of Vice-President General National Society D. A. R. This nomination was seconded by a rising vote of the entire Conference. Mrs. Max Land also personally seconded this nomination which was unanimously carried.

Mrs. J. V. H. Rucker nominated the Retiring State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry, for Honorary State Regent of Georgia D. A. R. Mrs. Talmadge made motion that the unanimous consent of this body be given to vote by voice and not by ballot. This motion was seconded and carried. Mrs. McCurry, in the pleasing manner which has endeared her to the hearts of the Georgia D. A. R. for the past two years, expressed her thanks to her endorsers.

Mrs. Bun Wylie nominated Mrs. Julius Talmadge as Georgia's candidate for election to the national office of Corresponding Secretary General on Mrs. Becker's ticket. This nomination was seconded and a rising vote of endorsement was enthusiastically given. Mrs. Talmadge thanked the Georgia D. A. R. for this endorsement, the expression of their love and confidence.

Mrs. Max Land stated that Mrs. W. C. Fripp and Mrs. Leo Leader, Hostess Regents, had sent telegrams of sympathy to Mrs. J. S. Adams, and Mrs. Harrison Hightower.

Mrs. Gaffney, Vice-President General, spoke of research done for Miss Ruth Blair, State Historian, and requested regents to send in reports of all educational and charity work, in money value, for the past five years. Mrs. R. J. Travis stated that \$25.00 each would be paid to the following chapters for marking historic spots:

Vidalia Chapter, to mark old Fort King George.

Elizabeth Marlow Chapter, Monticello, to mark the coach road. Burkhalter Chapter, Warrenton, to erect a boulder to contain one hundred names of Revolutionary soldiers from that county.

John Ball Chapter, Irwinton, to mark the old state coach road out of Allentown.

Following a motion to adjourn, the Regent declared the Conference adjourned until the afternoon session.

#### WEDNESDAY AFTERNOON, MARCH 21

The closing session of the Thirty-sixth Georgia State Conference convened on Wednesday afternoon at 2:00 o'clock after a delightful luncheon served at Radium Springs. At this time the Conference was entertaind by the following patriotic and civic clubs:

Albany Women's Club; American Legion Auxiliary; Business and Professional Women's Club; Colonial Dames; Dougherty County U. D. C.; Pilot Club; Spanish-American Auxiliary.

Conference was called to order by the Regent, Mrs. McCurry, and the minutes of the morning session were read and approved.

Mrs. McCurry, the Retiring State Regent, presented the State Regent's Pin to the incoming State Regent, Mrs. John W. Daniel, stating that she was proud to have the honor of being the first state regent to enjoy the privilege of placing this insignia of office upon an incoming state regent. The gavel was also presented to the new regent at this time.

Mrs. Daniel, newly elected State Regent, responded in gracious words of acceptance and introduced her official family to the Conference. Each new officer accepted with words of appreciation and pledges of loyalty and service. Many gorgeous flowers were presented to the new officers of the Georgia Society.

Mrs. Talmadge, Honorary State Regent and Ex-Vice-President General, stressed the fact that in the National D. A. R. election in April, Georgia has only one candidate, the Retiring State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, and urged the importance of her election.

The awarding and presentation of trophies was next in order of business.

The Helen Rogers Franklin Trophy, for general excellence, was presented by Mrs. Jena C. Collier to the Elijah Clarke Chapter, Athens, and was accepted by Miss Annie Crawford, Regent.

Honorable mention: John Houston Chapter, Thomaston; Oglethorpe Chapter, Columbus; Gov. David Emanuel Chapter, Swainsboro; Baron DeKalb Chapter, Decatur.

The Blanche McFarlan Gaffney Trophy, to the chapter doing the best work in forestry in Georgia, was awarded to the Oglethorpe Chapter, Columbus, by Mrs. T. D. Powers, and accepted by Mrs. J. D. Wadsworth. The Button Gwinnett Chapter, Columbus, received honorable mention.

The Helen McCall Bashinski Trophy, to the chapter securing the largest number of Certified Bible Records, was presented by Mrs. I. Bashinski, chairman, to the John Houston Chapter, Thomaston, and accepted for the chapter by Mrs. Mark Smith. Honorable mention to Tomichichi Chapter, Clarkesville.

Mrs. John A. Perdue Loving Cup, to chapter securing the largest number of new subscriptions to the D. A. R. Magazine, was awarded to the John Houston Chapter, Thomaston, by Mrs. Thomas Wood, and accepted for the chapter by Mrs. E. T. Nottingham, Regent.

The Sarah H. Garard Award, to chapter having the largest total enrollment of members in Sons and Daughters of U. S. A., was presented by Mrs. Thomas J. Sappington, chairman, to the John Ball Chapter, Irwinton, and accepted by Mrs. J. H. Porter, Regent.

Ball Chapter, Irwinton, and accepted by Mrs. J. H. Porter, Regent. Mrs. Bun Wylie presented her own award, the Marion Sibley
Wylie Award of \$5.00 to the chapter securing on a percentage basis the greatest number of new members, to the Oglethorpe Chapter, Columbus. This chapter, with a membership of 64, showed an increase of 11.

The State Regent's Award of \$10.00 to the chapter giving the largest amount to educational work on a percentage basis, was presented by Mrs. Frances Brown Chase to the Elijah Clarke Chapter, Athens, and received by Mrs. J. V. H. Rucker.

The Col. Wm. Few Chapter, Esstman, received honorable mention.

The State Treasurer's Award of \$5.00, to the first chapter meeting all Honor Roll Requirements, was presented by Mrs. E. J. Oliver to the Sunbury Chapter, Winder.

This award will be mailed to the chapter as there was no member present to receive it.

The State Editor's Award of \$10.00 to the chapter sending in best publicity material for the D. A. R. column in the Atlanta Constitution, was presented by Mrs. Thomas Wood to the Hawkinsville Chapter and accepted by Mrs. Ruel Anderson, Regent.

Honorable mention: Elijah Clarke Chapter, Athens; John Laurens Chapter, Dublin; Bainbridge Chapter, Bainbridge.

The Regent, Mrs. McCurry, presented to Amie Weston Smith, a page from the Thronateeska Chapter, one of the spoons which the National Society gives their Real Daughters upon joining this organization. This spoon had been originally presented to Mrs. Sarah Ashe Hall, a Real Daughter and the great grandmother of the little page.

Mrs. Daniel, State Treasurer, read the list of Honor Roll Chapters, as follows:

Knox-Conway, Ashburn; Council of Safety, Americus; Commodore Richard Dale, Albany; Elijah Clarke, Athens; Lamar-LaFayette, Barnesville; Bainbridge, Bainbridge; Brunswick, Brunswick; Fort Early, Cordele; Button Gwinnett, Columbus; James Pittman, Commerce; Sergeant Newton, Covington; Benjamin Hawkins, Cuthbert; George Walton, Columbus; Gov. John Milledge, Dalton; Baron DeKalb, Decatur; John Laurens, Dublin; Fort Valley, Fort Valley; Gov. Treutland, Fort Valley; Arthur Fort, Grantville; John Ball, Irwinton; William McIntosh, Jackson; William Marsh, LaFayette; Fielding Lewis, Marietta; LaGrange, LaGrange; Mary Hammond Washington, Macon; Nancy Hart, Milledgeville; Henry Walton, Madison; John Benning, Moultrie; Gov. David Emanuel, Swainsboro; Sarah Dickinson, Newnan; John Clarke, Social Circle; John Houston, Thomaston; Thomson, Thomson; Toccoa, Toccoa; Burkhalter, Warrenton; Sunbury, Winder.

An invitation to hold their Thirty-seventh State Conference in the City of Athens in March, 1935, was extended to the Georgia Society D. A. R. by Miss Annie Crawford, Regent of the Elijah Clarke Chapter. Telegrams endorsing this invitation were read by the Secretary from the following organizations and citizens of Athens:

A. G. Dudley, Mayor; Elmer Noble, Secretary Athens Lions Club;

Athens Chamber of Commerce, Abit Nix, President; J. H. Griffeth, Clarke County Commissioners; Georgian Hotel; Holman Hotel; Kiwanis Club; Rotary Club.

This invitation was accepted with a rising vote of thanks.

Mrs. Thomas J. Sappington, Regent of the Col. Wm. Few Chapter, Eastman, extended an invitation to the Executive Board to hold their meeting for the fall of 1934 in that city. The Regent, Mrs. McCurry, requested Eastman to postpone this invitation until 1935. The invitation was accepted with thanks by changing 1934 to 1935.

Mrs. Di Ingram brought an invitation from the Gen. James Jackson Chapter to the Executive Board for their fall meeting, 1934, to be held in the City of Valdosta. This invitation was accepted with thanks.

The Secretary read two telegrams of congratulations to the newly elected State Regent, Mrs. John W. Daniel, from the Savannah Chapter, D. A. R., and from Miss Henrietta Cahpton. Mrs. Max Land expressed thanks on behalf of the State Regent and state officers to the two hostess chapters for the charming hospitality shown the Georgia State Conference by the City of Albany.

Mrs. W. C. Fripp, Regent of the Commodore Richard Dale Chapter, expressed for herself and for Mrs. Leo Leader, Regent Thronateeska Chapter, pleasure in having the Georgia D. A. R. as guests of the two Albany chapters.

The following committee was appointed by the Regent to pass upon the minutes of the closing session: Mrs. J. M. Simmons, Mrs. A. T. Coleman, Mrs. E. T. Barnes, and Mrs. I. Bashinski.

The State D. A. R. song, "Keep the Faith," was sung by the assembly.

A meeting of the Press Committee for May 17 was called by Mrs. Mell Knox, chairman.

Prayer was offered by Rev. W. S. Wynn, Pastor Byrne Memorial Baptist Church.

Following a motion to this effect the State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, declared the Thirty-sixth Georgia State Conference officially adjourned.

MRS. JULIAN MCCURRY, State Regent.

MRS. E. BLOUNT FREEMAN, Acting Recording Secretary. Approved by Committee.

# MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD, D. A. R., OCTOBER 21, 1933, ELBERTON, GA.

The Executive Board of the Georgia Society D. A. R., met at the First Methodist Church, October 21, 1933, at 10:00 o'clock A. M., guest of the Stephen Heard Chapter.

The State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry, called the meeting to order.

Prayer was offered by the State Chaplain, Mrs. Shelnutt.

Led by Mrs. Slaton, the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given.

State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, introduced Miss Edna Rogers, Regent of the hostess chapter, who gave a gracious welcome to the Board and announced that immediately after lunch an historical pageant would be given at the Nancy Hart Cabin, a few miles out of the city.

State Regent opened her remarks with the words, "Being in Elberton is a home-coming to me," closing with a poem on "Faith." The First Vice-Regent, Mrs. Dykes, was called to the chair and the Regent read her report which was of great interest and received with enthusiasm; some of the outstanding features was the account of her visit to the Century of Progress Exposition, where she attended the Board meeting and the National Flag Day celebration.

At one of the luncheons for this occasion, the flowers used were sent by Vice-President General from Georgia, Mrs. Gaffney, from her own gardens at Columbus, Ga.

The Regent passed on to the Board many suggestions covering important activities sponsored by the President General, Mrs. Magna, stressing the necessity of the nation-wide effort to complete the payment in full for Constitution Hall.

The Regent again took the chair and the Recording Secretary Mrs. Adams, read a telegram from Mrs. Ober Warthen, D. A. R. Magazine Chairman, calling attention to the November issue which carried a photograph of Mrs. McCurry and her article on plans for the coming year.

Roll call was omitted, roll showed that 10 state officers and 25 state chairmen were present. First Vice-Regent, Mrs. Dykes, again was called to the chair and the Regent read a letter from Mrs, William A. Becker, of New Jersey, a potential candidate for President General in 1935, inviting Mrs. Julius Talmadge to accept a place in her cabinet. Mrs. Franklin nominated Mrs. Talmadge and the Board, by a rising vote, unanimously indorsed Mrs. Talmadge for national office. Mrs. Talmadge expressed her appreciation for this honor, saying she would not have accepted this place without the endorsement of this Board.

Mrs. Bun Wylie, Honorary State Regent, presented the name of Mrs. Julian McCurry as candidate for Vice-President General from Georgia in 1934. Mrs. Herbert Franklin, Honorary State Regent, indorsed Mrs. McCurry, stating that former state regents had declined this honor in favor of the present State Regent.

The Executive Board unanimously indorsed Mrs. McCurry for Vice-President General from Georgia. The Regent resumed the chair and the reports of state officers were heard. Those reporting were: First Vice-Regent, Mrs. Dykes; Second Vice-Regent, Mrs. Mann; State Recording Secretary, Mrs. Adams; State Corresponding Secretary, Mrs. Mell; State Librarian, Mrs. Colley; State Historian, Mrs. Nicholson; State Reporter to Smithsonian Institute, Mrs. Hightower; State Editor, Mrs. Smith; State Chaplain, Mrs. Shelnutt.

The chair announced she had received the report of the State Treasurer, Mrs. Daniel, who was unable to attend this meeting. The report showed that the amount due The McGregor Company for the printing of the D. A. R. Proceedings was yet unpaid. Total balance on hand, \$248.84.

In the absence of Mrs. Akerman, Chairman of Resolutions, the chair appointed Mrs. Talmadge, Chairman Pro Tem, adding to this committee Mrs. Franklin and Mrs. Hightower.

New members of the Board were introduced by the Regent and were as follows: Mrs. Leo Leader and Mrs. W. C. Fripp, of Albany, hostesses for the State Conference of 1934; Mrs. Alexander Anderson, of Nelson, Chairman of Marking Old Trails; Mrs. Mark Smith, of Thomaston, Chairman, Americanism; Mrs. Thomas J. Sappington, Thomasville, Chairman of the Sarah H. Garard Award. Mrs. Anderson, in reporting, said she would give the marker for Old Fort Heard, and have it placed. Report of Mrs. Vereen, Chairman Armistice Day, was placed on file.

Reports were given as follows: Mrs. McDowell, Chairman Constitution and Magna Charta Day; Mrs. Slaton, Chairman Correct Use of the Flag; Mrs. Murry, Chairman County Histories; Mrs. Kidd, Chairman Flag Day.

Mrs. Hightower, Chairman Better Films, stated that a weekly postcard review is now available to any one enough interested to send self-addressed government post card to Mrs. Russell, National Chairman.

Mrs. Lane, Chairman Constitution Hall Memory Book, wishes all bits of old useless gold saved and sent to her. This gold will be melted and molded into clasps for the memory book which will contain the names of donors to Constitution Hall.

Mrs. T. O. Tabor, in reporting on her Chairmanship D. A. R. Forest Park, described the log cabin, a replica of the Nancy Hart Cabin that had recently been erected at a cost of \$250.00. On the old chimney is placed a bronze table with an inscription telling that the cabin was built by Georgia D. A. R. marking the place where Nancy Hart performed deeds of bravery during the Revolution and that the tablet was placed by the Nancy Hart Chapter, Milledgeville, and the Stephen Heard Chapter, Elberton.

Mrs. Dorsey, Chairman for Educational Funds for Local Schools, pleaded that chapters increase their loan funds for this department.

Mrs. McCall, Chairman Georgia D. A. R. Student Loan Fund, spoke of the direct aid derived from this fund, and has through its different branches become a power in an educational way in Georgia.

Reports continued: Mrs. Bashinski, Chairman of Helen McCall Bashinski Trophy; Miss Virginia Hardin, Chairman of Legislation; Mrs. W. F. Dykes, Chairman of Lucy Cook Peel Memorial; Mrs. Leonard Wallace, Chairman of Medals and Prizes; Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Parliamentarian and Chairman of Rules; Mrs. J. H. Nicholson, Chairman of Scrap Books; Mrs. Thomas Sappington, Chairman Sarah H. Garard Award.

All reports accepted as given.

Mrs. Talmadge, Chairman Pro Tem of Resolutions Committee, read the following resolutions:

#### Resolutions Passed by the Executive Board of the D. A. R., Elberton, Georgia, October 21, 1933

1. Resolved: That State Regent of Georgia, Mrs. Julian Mc-Curry, on behalf of her organization, expresses to the Stephen Heard Chapter, of Elberton, her appreciation for their gracious hospitality and splendid entertainment.

Adopted.

2. Resolved: That the Georgia Society of the Daughters of the American Revolution does, as an organization, express itself to be in complete harmony with the President of the United States in his National Recovery Administration; that each member believes that it is the patriotic duty of a loyal American citizen to stand back of President Roosevelt in every way to promote for this country prosperity and peace; to keep ever before her during these days of readjustment the ideals of the forefathers we honor with our organization, and a copy of this resolution to be sent to the President of the United States.

Adopted.

3. Inasmuch as the D. A. R. is a mother organization of the C. A. R., and wishing to instill love for the mother organization and looking forward to making them members of the D. A. R. organization;

Resolved: That we print in the State D. A. R. Proceedings the Directory of Society of C. A. R. and Society reports.

Moved adoption.

RICHMOND W. McCURRY, State Regent of D. A. R. Adopted.

4. Resolution offered by Mrs. J. D. Wadsworth, Librarian of Oglethorpe Chapter, D. A. R.:

Resolved: That Oglethorpe Chapter, Columbus, present through its librarian, Mrs. J. D. Wadsworth, to all the Georgia D. A. R., the idea of establishing a permanent Traveling Genealogical Library for the use of all the Georgia chapters, the same to be supported by all the Georgia chapters, and donations from the public.

Respectfully submitted.

# HATTIE (Mrs. J. D.) C. H. H. WADSWORTH.

We move that the State Regent investigate this matter and report at State Conference in March.

Seconded and adopted.

5. Resolved: That all the chapters be requested to write a complete history of the Revolutionary soldiers whose graves have been, and shall be, marked by the chapters, and sent to the Department of Archives of Georgia, for reference for the Georgia Society.

> MRS. HOWARD McCALL, MRS. JULIUS TALMADGE.

Adopted.

6. Resolved: That all chapters that have not sent in the roster of their members, including names of Revolutionary ancestors and descendants, to the Department of Archives, be requested to do so at once, and hereafter keep the roster up to date.

MRS. JULIUS TALMADGE, Acting Chairman.

MRS. HOWARD McCALL,

MRS. JOHN M. SLATON,

MRS. BUN WYLIE,

MRS. HARRISON HIGHTOWER,

MRS. HERBERT M. FRANKLIN.

Resolutions Committee.

Adopted.

Whereas: The State of Georgia is considering taking over the State D. A. R. Forest Park as a State Park; and

Whereas: The D. A. R. are vitally interested in preserving historic spots; be it

Resolved: That the State D. A. R. deed this property to the State if the the conditions can be met satisfactorily.

The committee moved that the matter be left to the discretion of the State Regent and the committee, with power to act. The motion was seconded and carried.

In the discussion of Resolution No. 4, Mrs. Mell read a letter from Mrs. Lue R. Spencer written to Mrs. Wadsworth explaining the Traveling Genealogical Library. In discussing the benefit derived from such a plan, Mrs. McCall mentioned several county histories of genealogical value. Mrs. Colley, State Librarian, also entered into the discussion. The advisability of Georgia establishing a permanent Genealogical Library will be brought before State Conference in March. On motion of Mrs. Dykes, four volumes of the Lucy Cook Peel Memorial Georgia Records will be presented to the Traveling Geneatogical Library.

Mrs. Slaton expressed appreciation of the delightful manner in which the Joseph Habersham Chapter had asisted the Atlanta Chapter in the entertainment of the Thirty-fifth State D. A. R. Conference in Atlanta.

When it was learned that Miss Sue Reid Vason, Chairman Approved Schools, could not attend the Board meeting on account of illness, Miss Virginia Hardin suggested that a letter expressing regret be sent to her at this time.

Mrs. McMaster gave report Immigrants' Manual, 16,000 had been used, 100 sent to London; Georgia had used only 67, bringing a request from the President General, Mrs. Magna, that once during the year, the Manual be read before the chapter.

Mrs. Yarbrough brought to the attention of the Board that pictures of Georga's Real Daughters had been reproduced in "Motion Picture" during the autumn months.

Mrs. Mann, Chairman of Publicity, urged all chapter regents to send to her a report of any special work of state and national interest in order that she may send it to the D. A. R. Bulletin and Magazine.

Mrs. Nicholson, State Historian, requested all chapter regents to send her a list of Revolutionary soldiers' graves, where located and when marked. This record is to be filed in State Archives.

Mrs. Bun Wylie, Chairman National Defense Embodying Patriotic Education, brought a comprehensive message to the Board from the President General, Mrs. Magna, stressing the fact that as a patriotic organization we are called upon to rally to the President's call in supporting the NRA.

Mrs. McMaster announced a birthday present to the Board, a copy of "Petals of the Cherokee," from the author, McClesky Garlych. The regent accepted it in words of thanks. The book will be placed in Constitution Hall Library.

Mrs. Shelnutt spoke briefly on the plan of the Transylvania Club of Sandersville, as a contribution to Georgia Bicentennial, they announce their sponsorship of a set of commemorative plates which shall depict scenes of our famous state. Any one desirous of these plates may order direct from the club.

Reports of Mrs. Hardy, Chairman State Editor's Award, and Mrs. Frances Brown Chase, Chairman State Regent's Award, were given. State Editor, Mrs. Smith, in giving her report, said: "The num-

State Editor, Mrs. Smith, in giving her report, said: "The number of chapter reports received in duplicate copy and in a form acceptable for newspaper publishing has increased quite a good deal since the exhibit of model reports at the Spring Conference."

Mrs. Rice, Chairman of Time and Place, reported: "No invitations had been received up to date, but there was ample time before the Spring Conference."

Motion to adjourn, carried.

Guests were invited to a seated luncheon at the Samuel Elbert Hotel, presided over by Miss Edna Rogers, Regent of the Hostess Chapter. State Chaplain, Mrs. Shelnutt, gave thanks, and Miss Rogers introduced her official family.

State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, introduced Mrs. Paul Brown, wife of Congressman Brown. During the luncheon hour a very pleasing program of music was given by Mrs. T. D. Seymour, Mr. William Thornton, and Miss Hanson Hayes, with Mrs. W. T. Thornton at the piano. State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, introduced Mrs. Franklin, Courtesy Chairman, who in her own inimitable manner, acknowledged with grateful appreciation the delightful reception that had been given the Board by the Stephen Heard Chapter, showing herself familar with the many Indian legends that make history in Elbert county.

Immediately after lunch all D. A. R. and guests were driven to the Nancy Hart homestead to witness the charmingly given pageant arranged by the Stephen Heard Chapter, Miss Edna Rogers, Regent.

MRS. JULIAN McCURRY, State Regent.

MRS. JOHN S. ADAMS, Recording Secretary.

# MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GEORGIA DELEGATION, DAUGHTERS OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION, IN WASHING-TON, DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA, APRIL 17, 1934

Members of the Georgia delegation assembled in the Michigan Room of Memorial Continental Hall at 2:00 o'clock on Tuesday afternoon, April 17, 1934. State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry, called the meeting to order promptly on the hour, giving a most gracious welcome to all, stating it was indeed gratifying to have present such a goodly number of Georgians and that while there was no special business to transact, she was happy to see such an enthusiastic gathering.

Speaking of her candidacy for Vice-President General, she said: "Whether I am elected or defeated, it shall not be said of me that I am a dead D. A. R."

The State Regent introduced Mrs. Gaffney, Vice-President General from Georgia and Honorary State Regent, requesting that she explain the order of voting and give the delegation the benefit of her five years experience in national work.

Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Honorary State Regent from Georgia and Ex-Vice-President General, was next presented, responding in her usual charming and gracious manner.

Mrs. McCurry called the names of the candidates who compete for the coveted honors of seven Vice-Presidents General of the .D. A. R.

The Georgia delegation voiced enthusiasm over the prospect of their beloved Richmond McCurry's election to the high office of Vice-President General.

State Regent introduced Mrs. John W. Daniel, the newly elected State Regent, and those members of her official family. Each responded in a pleasing manner, pledging anew their loyalty to the D. A. R. cause.

• Mrs. Warren White, of Atlanta, extended an invitation to the delegation to attend an informal wedding reception of her niece, Miss Martha Hall, who would become the bride of Mr. Daniel O'Shea on April 18. Mrs. McCurry thanked Mrs. White for this courtesy to the Georgia delegation.

On motion of Mrs. Gaffney and Mrs. Dykes, Corresponding Secretary, Mrs. Mell was requested to send a telegram of good wishes to the bride and groom.

Mrs. Hightower announced any one wishing to secure tickets to the President General's banquet at the Mayflower Hotel, she could supply them at \$3.00 each.

It was voted to send a telegram of love and sympathy to Mrs. Ramspeck, wife of Congressman Ramspeck, in the passing of her father. The State Regent stressed the fact that the Georgia banquet will be served in the main dining room of the Mayflower Hotel at 6:30 on the evening of the 17th and that reservations should be made with Mrs. Ruby Singleton, chairman, who was present at this meeting.

A striking tribute of the love and high esteem in which Mrs. McCurry is held in the hearts of all Georgia D. A. R. was evidenced in the greeting she received from 42 D. A. R. members, one of the largest delegations from Georgia in many years.

Those present were: Mrs. Julian McCurry, Athens; Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney, Columbus; Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Athens; Mrs. John W. Daniels, Savannah; Mrs. W. F. Dykes, Atlanta; Mrs. W. E. Mann, Dalton; Mrs. John Adams, Dublin; Mrs. T. C. Mell, Atlanta; Mrs. Harrison Hightower, Thomaston; Mrs. John Simmons, Bainbridge; Mrs. John M. Slaton, Atlanta; Mrs. Warren White, Atlanta; Mrs. Charles Rice, Atlanta; Mrs. E. Blount Freeman, Dublin; Mrs. A. T. Coleman, Dublin; Mrs. C. S. Cummings, Bainbridge; Mrs. A. N. Murry, Columbus; Mrs. Jeff Kelly, Columbus; Miss Virginia Hardin, Atlanta; Mrs. Frances Brown Chase, Atlanta; Mrs. Y. H. Yarbrough, Milledgeville; Miss Claudia Little, Waycross; Mrs. John F. Little, Warrenton; Mrs. R. L. Jones, Albany; Mrs. Chas. Council, Americus; Mrs. John Satterfield, Macon; Mrs. J. W. Estes, Decatur; Mrs. K. L. Holly, Griffin; Mrs. S. C. Vanderslice, Jesup; Mrs. Cole, Albany; Mrs. Ruby Singleton, Jackson; Mrs. John E. Lane, Jackson; Mrs. C. W. Buchanan, Jackson; Mrs. Hugh Peterson, Ailey; Miss Martha Houston, Columbus; Mrs. Henderson, Savannah; Mrs. Sappington, Eastman; Miss Sapp, Brunswick; Mrs. Paul, Savannah; Mrs. Hulsey, Gainesville; Mrs. Carter, Savannah; and Mrs. Purse, Savannah.

> MRS. JULIAN MCCURRY, State Regent. MRS. JOHN S. ADAMS, State Recording Secretary.

# ADDRESS

## ADDRESS OF STATE REGENT, MRS. JULIAN MCCURRY, AT THIRTY-SIXTH STATE CONFERENCE, DAUGHTERS OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION

Greetings to our Hostess Regents of Albany, Distinguished Guests and Daughters of the American Revolution.

Although officially the calendar still has a few days to turn before welcoming in spring, there is already that feeling of rejuvenation and recreation which is in itself a spiritual spring. There is a sense of warmth and welcome for us here, and a bit of planting of seeds for D. A. R. growth in the next year. For it is at the State Conference that all D. A. R. planting is really done—there each chapter delegate receives her inspiration for the chapter's work in the next year. And in order to reap a golden harvest, let us turn ourselves to the business of sowing with industry and whole-heartedly.

This Conference already has assumed a beautiful symbolism to me. For the last time I greet you as your State Regent. I feel as I imagine the conductor of a great symphony feels when he last raises his baton to direct his musicians. And the two years that I have served as Regent have been beautiful harmonies, in which the voices of all instruments were heard—blended in euphony. A symphony in which a thousand different instruments are played an organization in which 5,000 women work together for a common good. You must see the similarity; as the instruments of an orchestra are tuned one with the other for harmony, so we are tuned with the times for progress.

The Daughters of the American Revolution have ever been in harmony with the times. A brief review of our works and achievements will indicate as much. It was the Georgia Society of the National D. A. R. that introduced the first scholarship fund, in behalf of the advancement of national education. The marking of historic spots throughout our nation has served to keep the memory of our valiant forefathers alive, to keep American history from becoming "as dry as dust." To summarize the many achievements of the D. A. R. would be too long a process to attempt in one evening.

But outstanding among this organization's work has been the preservation of patriotism. In the face of conflicting ideas in war and peace, placid pacifism against national defense, we have as a body come to uphold the ideal of preparedness. In passing, let me add that we do not advocate war for the sake of battle, or war for the sake of the financier, but rather a sense of armed security for a country that we love.

A sophisticated cynic might well call us a body of sentimental, ancestor worshippers. But I hold, and I know that you agree with me, that patriotism is a noble sentiment rather than a maudlin sentimentality. The patriotism which we revere is not the sensational flag-waving hysteria that is held up for ridicule; it is that finer emotion, with which we enshrine the memories of the great Americans who have made us a national symbol of freedom and democracy that has no equal the worfd over.

The love which we have for our country is not blind adoration-

it is perhaps, somewhat like the love of a mother for a child, though this may seem paradoxical. For although we have that sense of devotion which is patriotism unshaken in our hearts, we know that our country is not without faults. These faults are usually within our powers of correction. No mythical Utopia was ever reached without complete cooperation of its inhabitants. Unless every citizen in the United States gives his complete cooperation to the government we can never hope for a Utopia here.

One of the most essential forms of expression of patriotism is through music. Music is the most universal of the arts in its appeal—for in poetry one is limited by adjectives and meter; painting is limited to a small square of canvas; architecture is confined by mortar and stone, and sculpture is bound close in marble and bronze. But a song can live forever in the human heart, and on the lips; and with a song there is always an answering emotion.

The natives of Africa used the measured beat of the tom-toms in primitive rhythm to so excite themselves that they were not afraid in battle. In the last war, our boys in khaki sang "Over There" to bolster courage. And though there is a vast difference between the African tom-tom and the marching song of the A. E. F., the effect was the same.

I have always been impressed by the fact that the United States had a national anthem before George Washington took oath of office as first President of the United States, which shows that a nation expresses its patriotism in music before it has a ruler.

Everyone knows of the famous composition of the "Star-Spangled Banner." I am told by friends in far-away countries that there is nothing which makes them quite so homesick as hearing a band play these stirring strains. And the patriotism that stirs the hearts of present-day Americans, is the same emotion that created our country—one nation, indivisable, with liberty and justice for all.

I cannot stress too deeply the immediate need for active patriotism. If the national conditions were normal, it might be well enough to sit quietly and say, "We love our country," and go blissfully about the business of living our own lives. But we cannot, today, remembering the ideals of the Daughters of the American Revolution, sit quietly by. There are many things to be done.

Were this a time of war, we would busy ourselves with lint and bandages and knitting. Because the country is not in a state of war we cannot be idle. There can be bandages for the emotional wounds that the depression has made, to keep the hearts of our fellowmen from festering with hate and cruelty to a government that permitted a depression. As a soldier in battle strives to keep up his flag, so we must strive to keep up our morale.

Surely there was never a more able leader for the crisis than our President, Franklin Roosevelt. A year ago, the country was in turmoil—banks closed, people panic-stricken and frantic. Today, the cloud of fear has become so faint that few of us notice it at all.

Nor do I advocate the Pollyanna optimism that is as fatal as pessimism to the growth of the nation. But this I know: That with faith in God and the nation, and courage in action and word, there is nothing to fear.

Fear is about the worst of the evils that have descended on our nation. Nothing can dissipate fear but confidence. There is a myth for children, told of a little boy who was sent to a miraculous fountain for water to cure his mother of a mysterious malady. The fountain was guarded by monsters—an elephant, and a tiger, and a dragon. The lad, fortified by his love for his mother, went bravely to the fountain, and found there engraved the words, "Perfect love casteth out all fear." As [he turned around, he found that the monsters had become a snap-dragon, a tiger lily, and elephant ears.

A charming story, but one with a moral: Nothing can allay our depression-fear but perfect love of home and God and country. Let me plead with you to keep that love undimmed by selfish interests and to continue to give to this organization and your country the unfailing devotion of a patriot.

As conductor, I am stepping from the stand—leaving, like Shubert, a beautiful unfinished symphony of love and loyalty and patriotism. But this know, that forever and ever, as long as this nation exists, there will be a harmonious band of women, the Daughters of the American Revolution, who will carry-on.

Accept my thanks for the most beautiful years of my life, working with people I love for a cause I love—for a country we all love.

# OFFICERS' REPORTS

# ANNUAL REPORT OF STATE REGENT

# Mrs. Julian McCurry, State Regent March 19, 1934

The past year has been one of national significance; it has witnessed the recovery of our country  $from_i$  the lethargy of a depression which bound the nation in fear. Now that the fear of the future is changing to a hope for the future, the brief review of D. A. R. achievements will indicate that despite the trying times we have gone steadily forward. We have gone a bit slowly, perhaps, but with an ever-increasing purpose to the unattainable goals we have set for ourselves.

There have been no brilliant spurts of accomplishment, but like the patient tortoise of fabled fame we have gone on and on, slowly and surely.

I have no regrets as I make this final report of my stewardship as your Regent; rather, there is an intense feeling of pride and joy in seeing the loyalty of our organization hold us together in our work. The times of stress have served to increase the need for our patriotism, and we have met the test of the past two years with a sense of responsibility not unlike the magnificent patriotism of the forefathers whose memory we honor.

It is difficult to summarize the work of the past year. Each day has brought its problem, and its achievement, and I can only touch upon the highlights. The days which will be unmentioned in this report were almost as eventful as the days that I record.

Among the most interesting experiences in my D. A. R. Regency was my visit to the Century of Progress Exposition, in June, 1933, where I attended the Board meeting and the National Flag Day On June 13 the State Regents held their meeting celebration. at which the following points were brought out: (1) The distinction between a Daughter of a Revolutionary Soldier and a Real Daughter of the American Revolution is that the Real Daughter must be, or have been, a member of the Daughters of the American (2) The difference between a military flagpole and Revolution. one accepted for civilian use. The flagpole topped by an eagle is not to be used by anyone except a military official. The civilian pole is topped with a ball or an arrow. (3) In boxes for Ellis Island contributions of magazines with instructions for crocheting, knitting and other handiwork are in demand. (4) The National Mag-azine Chairman instructs each Chapter Treasurer to deduct 20 cents from each \$2.00 subscription for her chapter, sending \$1.80 to the National Treasurer with the name and address of the subscriber. (5) The Committee on the Sons and Daughters of the Republic has been changed to the Sons and Daughters of the U. S. A.

At the registration in D. A. R. Headquarters in Chicago, questionnaires were filled in by all people. This has proved quite valuable in getting the names of non-members who are interested in D. A. R. work, and would like to become members. At the present, we are interested in increasing our organization, and the registration cards of non-members were mailed to the State Regents of various states, and an attempt will be made to follow-up this interest in D. A. R. activities, with the hope of increasing our roll.

Following the Board meeting on June 13, Mrs. Herrick, of Illinois, entertained the members of the Board, and among the other unique features of the occasion was the decoration. Our Vice-President General, Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney, had sent the flowers from her Georgia garden, and they were very beautiful, despite their long trip, and made an effective decoration.

The Illinois State D. A. R. was the hostess at a dinner on the evening preceding the actual Parade of the Flags, and on the morning after the celebration we were their guests at breakfast.

With military escort, the Pages from the different states, each carrying her state flag, marched to the American flag in the Parade of the Flags. There they formed an avenue of flags, through which the officials passed, and the American flag was raised—a ceremony which impresses every patriot with its true symbolism of our nation. Mrs. Magna read an original poem to the flag, and the exercises were continued in the Hall of the States with an address by Mrs. Magna, and appropriate music.

Those attending from Georgia were: Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney, Vice-President General; Miss Sue Reid Vason, Regent of the Henry Walton Chapter, and Georgia Page; Miss Lottie Lou Wallace, Miss Sue Wallace, Mrs. John Marshall Slaton and your Regent.

The members of the John Benson Chapter, Hartwell, honored me as State Regent by dedicating a radio broadcast over Station WTFI to me. The program was very interesting, including, with musical selections, a history of the chapter and a talk on D. A. R. work in the state.

In August it was my privilege to visit Mrs. Harrison Hightower, of Thomaston, State Reporter to the Smithsonian Institute, where I attended a beautiful historical pageant celebrating the Georgia Bicentennial year. I also enjoyed being the guest of honor at a reception given by the John Houston Chapter at the lovely home of Mrs. E. T. Black, where I had the pleasure of meeting my loyal fellow-workers of that chapter.

Personal pleasure was mine to present to the Rhodes Memorial Department of Archives a miniature of Oglethorpe, in honor of my State Historian, Mrs. J. Harold Nicholson, which was graciously acknowledged by Miss Ruth Blair. We have purchased the cabinet which was authorized by a resolution at the last Conference and placed it in the Rhodes Memorial. The miniature of Oglethorpe is in this cabinet.

I regret very much that I was unable to accept the invitation to the Fourth of July celebration of the Joseph Habersham Chapter, due to a previous engagement, but I know that I was ably represented by Mrs. W. F. Dykes, Vice-Regent.

While the house-guest of Mrs. J. Harold Nicholson in September, I had the pleasure of attending a reception given in my honor to the local Atlanta Board members, and those from nearby chapters.

I was able to bring to two chapters personally the Regent's Fall Message: the Henry Walton Chapter, Madison, and the Elijah Clarke Chapter, Athens.

On November 15, there was a nation-wide celebration of the President General's birthday, in an effort to raise funds for liquidating the debt on Constitution Hall. This was wonderfully successful, for \$30,000.00 was made by the plan. I attended the local birthday party at the Elijah Clarke Chapter, Athens.

I also regret my inability to have attended the celebration of

the twenty-fifth anniversary of the General James Jackson Chapter, but my duties kept me in Athens at that time.

It was a great honor for me to attend the U. D. C. State Convention in Athens October 17, 18, and 19 as distinguished guest from the D. A. R., where I had the privilege of responding to the welcome given the heads of every organization.

The State Board meeting was held in Elberton, Georgia, where the Board members were the guests of the Stephen Heard Chapter, Miss Edna Rogers, Regent. There we saw an impressive pageant in which the story of Nancy Hart was re-enacted. There is a replica of one of the rooms in Nancy Hart's cabin in the Nancy Hart Reservation, and it provided a very interesting glimpse back into Revolutionary times. The Board meeting was very successful and a happy occasion.

October 25th found your Regent in Washington at the National Board meeting.

ard meeting. The following important matters came out there: It is desired that our files be open at Washington. If the files are opened to people who contemplate joining, they may be ma-terially helped in tracing ancestral lines. Please have the Corresponding Secretary send names of members who are willing to have their files opened to National Headquarters.

There have been some changes in committees: The Committee on Better Films has been dropped, for the reason that so many other organizations have similar committees and it seems to be an unnecessary duplication. It was considered advisable to combine the two committees of Historical Research and Preservation of Historic Spots into a single committee on Historical Research. We are to drop the title, Manual for Immigrants and substitute D. A. R. Manual for Citizenship. Instead of National Defense Embodying Patriotic Education this committee has been changed to National Defense Through Patriotic Education. Instead of National Registrar's the name will be in the future National Membership A medal for Good Citizenship has been adopted, the Committee. design to be worked out by a committee.

Gifts to the Library and Museum are henceforth to be reported at State Conference, and by the Librarian General and the Curator General at Congress. Owing to the great value of both the books to the library and gifts to the museum, in order to preclude any possible loss or damage to any of them, the presentation of gifts at Congress will be discontinued. The above officers will give due mention and credit to such contributions.

I was the guest of the Lamar-LaFayette Chapter of Barnesville in the lovely home of Mrs. Jena Collier, where we were entertained at a luncheon and I talked with the members of this Chapter on the State D. A. R. work, on November 28.

On December 3 at the Rhodes Memorial the Daughters of the American Revolution held open house. Miss Ruth Blair, State Historian of Georgia, received with the state officers, and the D. A. R. records and relics pertaining to Revolutionary times were on display. I was the house-guest of Mrs. Nicholson, State Historian, where she entertained for me at a lovely luncheon.

A memorial shaft was unveiled on December 5 to William H. Crawford by Miss Annie Crawford, his great-granddaughter, who is Chapter Regent of the Elijah Clarke Chapter. I attended these exercises and placed a wreath on the Memorial in the name of the Georgia D. A. R.

I was unable to attend the meeting of Federal Emergency Relief on December 12, but wired my efficient Vice-Regent, Mrs. W. F. Dykes, to attend. This was organized by order of Mrs. F. D.

Roosevelt, and it affords me much pleasure to see the D. A. R. so recognized to be of national importance.

I was a member of the committee to work on NRA, and personally had 425 to sign pledge cards.

On February 1 your Regent attended the National Board meeting, where plans for the National Congress were made.

The Annual Congress will convene in Washington at Constitution Hall on April 16 and adjourn on April 20. The Georgia headquarers will be at the Mayflower Hotel this year. An innovation this year is the charge of \$1.00 registration fee. The money derived therefrom will go to defray expenses of the Congress.

The President General will receive the delegates on Tuesday, April 17, at Constitution Hall at 9 o'clock.

The Georgia Banquet will be held at the Mayflower Hotel on Tuesday evening, April 17. Chairman of the Banquet Committee is Mrs. Ruby Singleton, 1701 Massachusetts Avenue, Washington, D. C.

On February 8, Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Miss Annie Crawford and I went to Gainesville, where we were entertained at a luncheon, guests of the Col. William Candler Chapter, Mrs. George Ashford, Regent. There were other out-of-town guests, members of the D. A. R. chapters of Clarkesville, Cornelia, Commerce, and Toccoa. We discussed the work of the D. A. R. Society, and I addressed the members. In the afternoon we were entertained at a beautiful tea in the home of Mrs. Sidney Smith, State Editor.

On February 15 I attended the birthday celebration of my own chapter, Elijah Clarke, in the home of Miss Annie Crawford, Regent; each former chapter Regent, including myself, gave a short talk summarizing her regime.

On February 22 I was entertained at a luncheon by the Toccoa Chapter, Mrs. J. W. Marks, Regent. The George Washington motif was carried out effectively by all members dressing in Colonial costume. I had the privilege of making a short talk after the luncheon.

I regret that I was only one person on this day, for I would like to have attended the meetings of the Atlanta Chapter and the Fort Valley Chapter.

In company with my Chapter Regent, Miss Annie Crawford, I had the pleasure of attending a meeting and tea given by the Baron DeKalb Chapter in Decatur, where I gave a short talk.

On February 26 I was the guest of Matthew Tolbert Chapter at Monroe, in company with Mrs. Erwin and Mrs. Talmadge; Mrs. Talmadge and I were the speakers of the occasion.

Your Regent had the honor to place wreaths on two markers in Washington, Wilkes County, Ga., erected by the D. A. R. and Mrs. Alex Anderson on February 23. These markers were made of Georgia marble, and I have a charming memento of the occasion in a marble ashtray, cut from the same block, which was given me by Mrs. Anderson. This occasion and program was planned by Mrs. J. Harold Nicholson, State Historian, and many prominent D. A. R. members were present. The land on which the marker stands was deeded to the D. A. R. by Miss Pink Anderson, on whose plantation one of the markers is erected.

It was with deep regret that I had to decline the invitation of the James Pittman Chapter Birthday Party March 16 and the invitation to a luncheon with the Council of Safety in Americus March 22.

In closing let me add that the two years I have served as Regent for Georgia have been happy, successful years, and I am deeply grateful to every Daughter in the state for the loyal cooperation and splendid support accorded me while in office. Yet I know, withal, that the same loyalty will be given to every Regent in the future as it has been given to every Regent in the past, and with unfaltering purpose, we will, as a State Society, press on and on, inspired by our memories of yesterday and our dreams of tomorrow, and living in the very present so that our achievements will remain a symbol of remembrance for the past, and a hope for the future.

# VICE-PRESIDENT GENERAL, NATIONAL SOCIETY D. A. R.

## Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney

The outstanding occurrences for Georgia continue along the lines of the Bicentennial celebrations, inasmuch as the year is only half completed, and with the Daughters, "Patriotism is a glorious reality."

> "God bless the spinning wheels and looms, Flintlock and powderhorn, Log cabins in whose humble rooms Five Presidents were born. And may the spirit of our sires Impel all, in God's sight, To keep progression's altar fires Forever burning bright."

April, 1933, brought another Continental Congress which I had the great pleasure to attend.

At this time I wish to assure you that I deem it a privilege to have been one of the honor guests at another of our lovely Georgia banquets, and sit with its members on such a delightful occasion, and carry for you the proverbial bouquet of gorgeous yellow roses. The excellently planned program that was carried out during the Congress still deserves much praise. I was very pleased to have shared these educational treats with you.

Upon my return home I began immediately to fill the days with worthwhile tasks, and one of the first was a Historical program held at the Columbus Country Club. Following the luncheon, many women of Georgia were signally honored who had accomplished outstanding merit along educational, artistic and cultural lines. I was selected as toastmistress, and represented you as Program chairman.

Next day, I gave a broadcast on "What the Daughters of the American Revolution Do," at Mrs. Magna's request.

On the first Thursday in May I addressed the members of the George Walton Chapter, and at the close of my address I explained the purpose of the birthday party arranged for November 15, and what joy it would bring to the organization to know that the debt on Constitution Hall was being reduced, in such a uniform manner.

June 14. I had an invitation to address for the third time the Summer School Convocation of the Alabama Polytechnical Institute, under the auspices of the Light Horse Harry Lee Chapter, at Auburn, Alabama.

Due to the fact that the National Board meeting for June was scheduled to be held in Chicago, where the Century of Progress was being enacted, I was denied the pleasure of returning to dear Auburn, the girlhood home of my mother, and the college from which my father graduated.

However, the visit to this wonderful western city, where a Star

and a Miracle were bringing all tourists and educators to its gates, was the high point of my pleasant duties as your National Representative, at this particular time. Two experiences only, shall suffice for this especial journey: First, that I had the joy of sending my flowers from "Pinehaven" Green Island Hills, to be used for the floral decorations at the luncheon at the Union League Club, and another that I was privileged to take part in the wonderful parade of the Daughters of the American Revolution, and to hear the inspiring address given by Mrs. Magna.

July brought an earnest request from the Brunswick Chapter to contribute an article for the special edition of the Brunswick News. I was glad to contribute this and my subject gave the impressive points of the Century of Progress. Other patriotic addresses were sent to chapters to be read, for me, when I found it impossible to accept the invitations.

August, was the month that President Roosevelt began to make his dreams come true. At this time not only America but the whole world was re-fashioned and built upon the lines of National Recovery Administration. The satisfactory movement of "Thinking and Living for Others" was started, and citizenship has had a different meaning since that time.

Your Vice-President General was at once appointed as State Third District Chairman of Women's Division, NRA. I immediately formed the first NRA Forum in Georgia. We held frequent meetings at our Columbus Woman's Clubhouse, in the name of cultural programs, and excellent talks were made by the foremost educators and club women of Georgia. These forums were continued throughout the summer months when NRA was declared to be 100 per cent.

Button Gwinnett Chapter invited me to be the principal speaker at their October meeting, the opening one for their D. A. R. activities, and I was pleased to address them, touching at length upon the much discussed subject. "Recognition of Soviet Russia."

Many invitations came to me in November to attend and participate in the chapter programs, but duties in my own home chapter held me.

In December, Oglethorpe Chapter asked me to bring a tribute to the World War President, Mr. Woodrow Wilson, in observance of this especial patriotic day. I accepted this courtesy, and thanked the chapter in conclusion for the honor, since it was accorded me due to the fact that I created this patriotic day in our Georgia Society and was the first state chairman appointed.

January found me in Washington, D. C. I at once began one of the happiest, busiest winters of my life. My first appearance as representing the President General was occasioned by attending a lecture at Constitution Hall, and sharing the President General's box, with other national officers. This was given by the Geographic Society, who had chosen Julian Bryan as the lecturer; the subject, "Changing World in Russia."

Following this, I attended, as your representative, a symphony concert at our lovely hall, with Hans Kindler, conductor. Every few days there was some chapter of the District holding

Every few days there was some chapter of the District holding meetings or giving benefits, and I attended most of these. Was the guest of Mrs. Beavers, Corresponding Secretary General, National Society D. A. R.; Miss Harman, Vice-President General; Mrs. Harry C. Groves, State Regent of the District; Mrs. Caldwell, Past Vice-President General, and Mrs. Hodgkins, of the National Society Daughters of Founders and Patriots of America.

The last week of January I was the house guest in New York

of my dear friend and runningmate, Mrs. William Pouch, Vice-President General. While in New York State I was the honor guest of the Rufus King Chapter, then the C. A. R. Society at Staten Island, where I gave addresses. Following these engagements was a meeting of the Greater New York Chapters Council. This was held in the Washington Hotel and a luncheon assembling over 500 women brought to a close an interesting program. It was my happy pleasure to again address the Daughters of New York City. That evening I shared honors with Mrs. Gibbs, State Regent of New York, at a beautiful play in the Musical Hall of Radio City, "Mary Queen of Scotland."

Among the prominent women whom it was my pleasure to meet, and to be entertained as your Georgia representative, were Mrs. Clermont C. Covert, who is interested in Tamassee; Mrs. Laurens, State Chairman of "Approved Schools;" Mrs. Lockwood, Vice-Regent of New York; Mrs. Livingston Rowe Schuyler, Regent of Manhattan Chapter, also Past Honorary President United Daughters of the Confederacy, and Mrs. Chapman, Past National Chairman, National Society D. A. R.

February brought the National Board meeting, Dutch dinner and luncheon for members of same. These I attended, and greatly enjoyed. Then came the National Defense Conference at the Mayflower Hotel. I attended some of these sessions and heard some interesting and instructive addresses.

The two hundred and second anniversary of the birth of George Washington was a joint celebration of the Sons, Daughters and Children of the American Revolution held in Memorial Continental Hall. I had the pleasure again of being an honored guest, and attended with the other national officers. Mrs. Magna gave the principal address, using as her theme, "The Youth of George Washington."

My last invitation before leaving for home that evening, was to join the enthusiastic citizens of the nation at a meeting to be held in Constitution Hall, and hear President Roosevelt give his recent broadcast. This was indeed a great pleasure to silently re-affirm my allegiance and yours, to our illustrious leader, the Honorable Franklin Delano Roosevelt. While there were many other invitations sent me as your state and national representative, it was impossible to accept all, but after my stay of nearly three busy months in the nation's Capitol, I bring you this conviction, with deepest affection.

There are new horizons before us—new horizons, dedicated to the unbeatable soul who offers no allbis, makes no excuses, takes his lickings, and with eyes to the future, carries on. With you I welcome 1934—a year for greater accomplishments for the Georgia Daughters of the American Revolution.

## STATE FIRST VICE-REGENT

# Mrs. W. F. Dykes

As my two years of service are drawing to a close, it is with a tinge of sadness I make my last report as your State First Vice-Regent. These have been happy days as we worked together and I am loath to give them up. Sweet friendships have been formed and delightful associations will ever be a pleasant memory. In October I attended the State Executive Board in Elberton where we were delightfully entertained at luncheon. Representing the State Regent, on July 4, at Joseph Habersham Chapter, gave an address. I was honor guest, in the absence of the State Regent, at the Georgia Products Dinner, given by the Joseph Habersham Chapter, and made patriotic address. Received with the State Regent at the reception given the D. A. R. by the State Historian, Miss Ruth Blair, at the Rhodes Memorial Hall. Represented the State Regent at the unveiling of the stone marker, by the Old Guard and U. D. C., on Peachtree Road, Atlanta. Was honor guest, again representing the state, at the George Washington luncheon, given by the Atlanta Chapter, February 22. Was an honor guest at the U. D. C. Convention in Athens, in October. Attended reception given State Regent and officers by the Baron DeKalb Chapter in Decatur.

With deep appreciation of the kindly consideration, helpfulness and ever ready cooperation you have given me, I am closing my administration with the happy memory of two most interesting and instructive years of service. I am grateful for this opportunity to serve my country, through my beloved Society, Daughters of the American Revolution.

### STATE SECOND VICE-REGENT

#### Mrs. W. E. Mann

As State Second Vice-Regent I met with the Executive Board in Elberton in October.

In November I attended the Tennessee State D. A. R. meeting in Chattanooga, where I was the recipient of many delightful social courtesies; a luncheon at the Hotel Patton, a tea and reception at the home of Mrs. Johnson, former State Regent of Tennessee, a luncheon given by the clubs at the Kosmos Woman's Club, and was also invited to share honors at a dinner which I was unable to accept.

An invitation was received to attend the Tennessee State D. A. R. meeting and luncheon in Knoxville in March.

It was a matter of sincere regret that I could not attend the reception given to our State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, by the Decatur Chapter, D. A. R.

#### STATE RECORDING SECRETARY

#### Mrs. John S. Adams

During my temporary absence from Georgia sojourning in Washington, D. C., I have made many trips back to the state in the interest of the D. A. R. organization, traveling many hundred miles to attend the different calls as they come.

Mrs. Mell Knox, Chairman of the Press Committee, extended a most cordial invitation to the committee to be her guest on June 15, 1933. I journeyed to Social Circle with all of the garnered material, together with the minutes of the Thirty-fifth Conference, for the inspection of the committee. I returned to the state in October, when I went to Elberton to take the minutes of the State Executive Board meeting. Mrs. Knox has issued another warm invitation to the Press Committee to be her guest on the morning of May 17. Again I am ready to deliver to this committee the work of the Georgia Daughters.

Because of my inability to be present at the Thirty-sixth Annual Conference in Albany, Mrs. E. Blount Freeman, of Dublin, was appointed by State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, to fill my place in the recording of the minutes of this Conference. Your Recording Secretary is extremely grateful to Mrs. Freeman for the magnificent work she accomplished and the Georgia Daughters wish to publicly recognize her thorough and painstaking efforts.

The compilation of the Proceedings is a fascinating piece of work, a wonderful experience enriched by friendships and in saying farewell as your Recording Secretary, I am deeply grateful for the many beautiful messages of love sent us in our recent bereavement. All this enables me to feel there is consolation in the knowledge that our sorrow is shared by those who love us.

To our beloved Regent I express my appreciation for her true guiding hand at all times.

#### STATE CORRESPONDING SECRETARY

## Mrs. Thomas C. Mell

To have served as Corresponding Secretary with a Regent who was always kind and understanding has been my happy privilege. Many letters have been received and many written.

Four telegrams sent during Conference last year (Atlanta) (to Mrs. Walton, two to Mrs. Magna, and one to Col. Scott), \$3.26; copies of Mrs. Magna's address sent Regents, \$1.421/2; State Regent's Fall message mailed, \$2.63; notices of October Board meeting (Elberton), \$1.661/2; State Regent's Spring letters mailed, \$2.97; credentials for State Conference at Albany, \$2.75; invitations to Distinguished Guests, \$3.03; two telegrams sent by Executive Board (Albany) (to Mesdames Adams and Hightower), 64 cents; three telegrams sent by State Conference (to Mesdames. Adams, Hightower, and Knox), \$1.88; telegram sent Mrs. Magna from Conference, 96 cents; letters sent at request of Conference (15), 25 cents; amount spent, \$21.46. Checks received from State Treasurer, \$7.21; \$14.25; total,

\$21.46.

The delightful invitations received from chapters during the last two years have been deeply appreciated and I regret that all could not have been accepted. Thanks for the splendid Year Books sent me.

# REPORT ON AUDIT DAUGHTERS OF THE AMERICAN REVOLU-TION IN GEORGIA FOR THE PERIOD MARCH 1, 1933 TO **MARCH 10, 1934**

March 12, 1934.

Mrs. John W. Daniel, State Treasurer,

Daughters of the American Revolution in Georgia.

Savannah, Georgia.

Dear Madam:

Pursuant to your instructions, we have made an audit of the books and records of the Treasurer's records of the Daughters of the American Revolution in Georgia for the period March 1, 1933 to March 10, 1934. We submit herewith our report consisting of the following ex-

hibits, together with certain comments in explanation of them and of the scope of our work.

Exhibit A-Condensed statement of receipts, disbursements and balances for the period March 1, 1933 to March 10, 1934-Reconcilement of bank account.

Exhibit B-Detailed statement of receipts, disbursements and balances for the period March 1, 1933 to March 10, 1934.

The exhibits submitted are drawn up in the form followed in previous years. The cash transactions were traced through your bank account and the bank account was reconciled as shown in Exhibit A. The checks received too late for deposit were examined by us. Transfers between funds during the year were as follows: Credited to Regent's Table Fund ......\$49.50 From Georgia Book Plate Fund 49.50

From Georgia Book Flate Fund	10.00
Charged to State Dues	2.28
From Chock Tax Account	2.28

is \$129.62. To obtain the true balance in this fund, there should be added to the above amount the loans made from this fund, which amount to \$350.00 at March 10, 1934.

The records of the State Treasurer show that she has on hand a \$1,000.00 bond of the Atlanta Laundries, which is part of the May Talmadge Loan School Fund.

In passing these various assets from one State Treasurer to her successor a receipt showing full details should be given and taken. We wish to express our appreciation of this assignment and to

assure you of our desire to serve your organization.

Respectfully submitted, EATON, SAUSSY & CO., Certified Public Accountants.

Reported by: S. P. Driscoll, C.P.A. 2367-4

2001 2		
EXHIBIT "A"		VE-222 - 12277-527
	JRSEMENTS	
ANCES OF MRS. JOHN W. DANIEL, STATE	TREASUREI	R, PERIOD
MARCH 1, 1933 TO MARCH 10, 1934		
Balance, March 1, 1933	\$2,400.40	
Receipts :	8.8	
Cash Receipts\$6,457.65		
Transfers		
the second se	00 500 10	
Total Receipts	\$6,509.43	
Total to be Accounted for		\$8,909.83
Disbursements:		
Cash Disbursements\$7,565.54		
Transfers		
	AT 017 00	
Total Disbursements	\$7,617.32	
Balance in Bank, March 10, 1934	\$1,292.51	

Total Accounted for .....

\$8,909.83

# RECONCILEMENT OF BANK BALANCE MARCH 10 1934

Savannah, Geor Balance per Bank Add : Checks Rece	Statement ived too late for deposit	$$2.472.64$ 100.00
		\$2,572.64
Deduct: Outstand	ing Checks-	
175	\$25.00	
179		
180	3.00	
181		
182		
183		
184		
186	4.93	
187		
188		
189		
190		
191		
Fotal Outstanding	g Checks	\$1,280.13
Balance per Book	s (See Above)	\$1,292.51

# EXHIBIT "B"

DETAILED	STAT	LEWE	INT O	F 1	RECEIPTS,	DISBU	RSEMENTS	AND	BAL-
ANCES	OF M	ARS.	JOHN	w.	DANIEL,	STATE	TREASURER	, FOR	THE
PERIOD	MAE	CH 1	1, 1933	TO	MARCH 1	0, 1934			

ACCOUNT	MARCH 1, 1933	ADDITIONS	Deductions	MARCH 10 1934
			\$ 2.28T	
State Dues	\$738.36	\$871.60	1,117.31	\$490.37
Immigrants' Manual	136.55	238.60	375.15	4100.01
National Defense	214.20	314.10	528.30	
Ellis Island	47.05	77.29	124.34	
Publications and Bulletin	39.62	46.90	86.52	
Forest Park	284.70	474.70	536.70	222.70
Georgia Book Plate	49.35	1.00	49.50T	.85
		341.90	323.80	179.80
Kenmore Gardens	161.70		742.00	4.27
Lucy Cook Peel-Memorial	75.53	662.20	742.00	4.21
S. B. C. Morgan-Students		- 11 AA	074.00	100.00
Loan Fund	239.90	741.62	851.90	129.62
Marking George Washington				0.0
Highway	97.55	3.25	100.00	.80
Marking Historic Spots	95.34	158.00	134.00	119.34
Chapter Histories	**********	1.10	*********	1.10
D. A. R. Magazine		8.00	8.00	
Real Daughters	13.50			13.50
Chapter Work		1.209.82	1,209.82	
Index of Georgia Records	4.20	1,200,02	4.20	
Navy and Marine	.25	.25	.50	
Constitution Hall	2.00	524.72	526.72	
Bible Records	5.00	021.12	020.12	5.00
Sweeney Medal		5.00	5.00	
Sweeney Medal	•••••••	49.50T	5.00	
Regent's Table—Constitu-				
tion Hall	108.10	86.10	250.00	6.30
Sunshine Fund	100110	15.00	15.00	
Memory Book		1.00	1.00	
Tamassee school	42.00	11.00	53.00	
Kate Duncan Smith School	16.00	10.00	26.00	
Memorial Flowers	12.50	10.75	8.00	15.25
Meadow Gardens	16.00	33.00	36.00	13.00
	20100	1.00	30.00	1.00
Scholarship Fund			***********	
Merchant Marine Library		1.00		1.00
Monte Verde	1.00	1.00		2.00
Anti-Tuberculosis Fund		2.00		2.00
Welfare Women and Children	**********	1.00	**********	1.00
Bicentennial Markers	*********	503.50	500.00	3.50
Marking Oglethorpe Highway		101.25	Mast States	101.25
Tax on Checks	0.0000000000000000000000000000000000000	2.28T	2.28	
Cash Transactions		\$6,457.65	\$7,565.54	\$1,292.51
Transfers	\$2,400.40	51.78	51.78	
Totals	\$2,400.40	\$6,509.43	\$7.617.32	\$1,292.51

Note :- T indicates transfers.

# STATE AUDITOR

# Mrs. Henry J. Carswell

# Mrs. James L. Mims, Auditor Pro-Tem

In the absence of the State Auditor, Mrs. Henry J. Carswell, I have examined the State Treasurer's books.

I find that the books have been audited by Eaton, Saussy Co., Certified Public Accountants of Savannah, Ga., who certify that they are correct.

# STATE CONSULTING ORGANIZING SECRETARY

#### Mrs. T. E. Ryals

No report for the State Proceedings, as no new chapters were organized last year.

# STATE LIBRARIAN

# Mrs. Stewart Colley

It has been a definite pleasure to serve you for the past two years. In every way in which we have been asked to cooperate with the Librarian General, we have done so at once.

Much good work has been done in the state by donating books to our accredited D. A. R. schools and also to the American Merchant Marine Library. Lamar County History has been compiled by the Lamar-LaFayette Chapter of Barnesville and a copy has been presented to Memorial Continental Library.

#### REPORT OF STATE HISTORIAN, 1933-1934

#### Mrs. J. Harold Nicholson, State Historian

"History is the depository of great actions, the witness of what is past, the example and instructor of the present, and the monitor of the future.

With this wise adage always in mind, your Historian has endeavored to impress the Georgia Daughters with the importance of preserving history, of making history, and of looking to the future history of our Society and of our country. The Historian General, Mrs. William Louis Dunne, writes, "The study of history serves both as an inspiration and as a warning."

Never before has Georgia history been studied and stressed more than from February 12, 1933, Georgia Day,—the beginning of the Bicentennial celebration—with services and prayers in the churches throughout our state, to Thanksgiving Day, in November, 1933, its close. More research has been done and more interest felt in the early history of our state in the last 18 months than during any other similar period since its founding.

The celebrating of this important event has special appeal to the Georgia Daughters of the American Revolution, as the founding of our colony and the establishing of our state is the period of history we commemorate as a Society. In compiling state records and in research, Georgia D. A. R. have taken a most active part. The interest the chapters as a whole and the members as representatives of the D. A. R. have manifested in this state-wide anniversary has been very inspiring.

The state of Georgia staged a Bicentennial pageant in the Municipal Stadium in Savannah, April 27-29, 1933, celebrating the two hundredth anniversary of the Founding of the Colony of Georgia, beginning with "the Meeting of the Trustees of the Colony, in London, 1732," and continuing to the present time. Many of the descendants of those accompanying Oglethorpe to Georgia and who are prominent Georgia D. A. R., represented their illustrious ancestors in the various episodes of this pageant. The three Savannah D. A. R. chapters took an active part in this jubilee; the Savannah Chapter staged "The Ball for President Monroe;" the Bonaventure Chapter, "Eighteenth Century Colonial Life," and the Lachlan McIntosh Chapter presented the episode of "The Arrest of Governor James Wright."

The Lachlan McIntosh Chapter also sponsored the publication of the book, "Wills of Chatham County, Georgia, 1733-1817." This work was done by Mabel Freeman LaFar and Caroline Price Wilson, members of the chapter, and is considered an outstanding accomplishment in the field of genealogy. Among the wills are those of Sir James Wright and his wife, Lady Sarah; Sir Patrick Houston; Peter Tondee; Archibald Bullock; Samuel Elbert; Button Gwinnett, and others prominent in the early history of our state. The book contains all names which are mentioned in the wills, the locality of the lands, estates and adjoining properties. Your Historian considers this book the outstanding historical work accomplished by a chapter during the past year.

All chapters have been most active in observing Georgia's two hundredth birthday in various appropriate ways: the reading of splendid original historical papers prepared by members of the chapters; lectures on Georgia's early history by eminent speakers; moving pictures portraying the colonization of our state accompanied by lectures; the sponsoring of Georgia Products dinners; the presenting of Bicentennial pageants assisted by other local patriotic organizations; by window displays of Colonial relics; D. A. R. floats in NRA parades; by study and presentation of music and songs covering a period of 200 years, written by Georgia poets and Georgia composers; and one chapter was instrumental in having the names of four streets in their city changed to names of prominent pioneer settlers of Georgia. Out of 65 chapters making reports on historical work, no chapter reported less than two entire programs based on Georgia history; and every chapter reported part of every program given to the study of our state history. This is a wonderful manifestation of deep interest felt and displayed in observing this state-wide anniversary.

The suggested monthly programs issued by Mrs. Max Land on the study of "The National Society, D. A. R., Its Organization, Properties, and Activities," has been faithfully carried out by the The Study Programs outlined by the Historian General chapters. on "The Establishment of the United States Under the Constitution" have likewise been observed. This outline for the historical work, 1933-1934, by the Historian General, with her letter and mine of explanation, were mailed to each Chapter Regent in August. In September, the Historian General's Questionnaire, accompanied by my letter, in regard to the teaching of American History and Civil Government in all public and private schools in the state was sent to all the chapters. This was a fact-finding survey to ascertain if these studies are required or elective courses in the white and colored schools of Georgia, and if required as a credit for graduation. Ready responses were received from 70 chapters.

With the help of the State Department of Education and Statistics, your Historian compiled eight charts giving the number of white and colored public schools in the state; the number of municipal systems, with school population and number of schools in each; the number of county or school districts not under municipal control, with school popu<sup>1</sup>ation and number of schools in each; also the number of private colleges and academies in the state with approximate attendance and number covered in report.

My third Chapter Letter, in January, was in the form of an inquiry concerning historical work for the entire year. To this last questionnaire 65 chapters sent marvelous reports of work accomplished. All of my letters to the chapters and the letters of the Historian General, Mrs. Dunne, have been published in the D. A. R. columns of the newspapers in Georgia.

In response to my appeal to the chapters to write articles, not exceeding 1,500 words, on the person, place or event for which the chapter is named, I have received 40 most interesting and instructive sketches. A copy of these will be presented to the State Department of Archives and History, and I hope to have them published in booklet form later.

Your Historian has written articles on the early history of Georgia which have been published in the newspapers. One of these articles, "The Development of the State Flag of Georgia," contained data never before made public. Descriptions were given of the different flags with dates and where used. Another article appearing in the March issue of the D. A. R. Magazine contained the names of 25 of the heads of the 35 families who came in 1733 on the ship "Anne" with James Edward Oglethorpe to establish the Colony of Georgia. This list of names was presented to me as State Historian of the Georgia D. A. R. by Miss Ruth Blair, the Director of the Department of Archives and History of the State of Georgia, after many years research on her part in England and in America. I was given the honor of being the first to present this valuable data to the public.

General Lindley Camp, Adjutant-General of Georgia, has turned over to the Department of Archives in Rhodes Memorial Hall for preservation and use approximately 50,000 original letters, military rosters and other documents, of dates 1784-1865; and more than 100 books of military commissions and letters of date 1790-1865. Some years ago it was suggested by the D. A. R. that these records be placed in the Department of Archives and History by the then Adjutant-General; but their transfer was not accomplished until very recently, the last ones being removed to Rhodes Memorial Hall only a few weeks ago.

These records are now being copied for the County Histories by Miss Blair and her staff, and a number of the counties have already received their copies. The other counties will be furnished copies of their records as rapidly as the work is completed. The D. A. R. and other patriotic organizations feel the deepest appreciation and gratitude for this act of Adjutant-General Camp and for the cooperation shown to us by him and by Miss Blair whose interest and labors in our behalf are beyond praise.

Through the enthusiasm of your State Historian of our D. A. R. two markers have been erected by the Georgia Society of the D. A. R. in Wilkes County, Ga. One was erected on the Danburg-Washington highway on the Stephen Heard plantation bearing this inscription: "Stephen Heard, Acting Governor of Georgia, lived and transacted the State Government near here in 1780. Erected by the Georgia Daughters of the American Revolution, February 27, 1934." This marker was the gift of the State Society and of your State Historian of D. A. R. to Wilkes County, one of the oldest counties in Georgia. The land on which this marker is erected was donated by Miss Pink Anderson whose wish and intention it is to place a wall about this portion of land in replica of the old fort and to beautify the grounds enclosed. Miss Anderson also made the address at this unveiling.

The other marker was erected in the town of Washington, Wilkes County, bearing this inscription: "Washington Wilkes County, Georgia, was laid out first under legislative act of January 31, 1780, and a second time under legislative provision of July 31, 1783. Erected by the Georgia Society of the Daughters of the American Revolution, February 27, 1934." The address at this unveiling was made by Miss Ruth Blair, Archivist and Historian of the State of Georgia. This marker was the gracious gift of the State Chairman of Marking Old Trails, Mrs. Alex Anderson. It is of pink marble from the Tate quarries, standing almost six feet high, and was designed by Mr. Alex Anderson. The handsomest monuments in the world are of this valuable marble from the Ttate quarries in These two markers cost at least \$600.00. Both North Georgia. markers were unveiled with appropriate ceremonies on February 27, 1934.

Washington, Georgia, is considered by many historians the first town in the United States named for "The Father of His Country." Many prominent D. A. R. were present and made appropriate talks, among them Mrs. Julian B. McCurry, State Regent of Georgia; Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge, Mrs. Thomas C. Mell, Mrs. Eli Thomas, Mrs. J. L. Beeson, Mrs. J. I. Garrard, Mrs. Harry Erwin, and Mrs. J. Harold Nicholson, D. A. R. State Historian. Addresses were made also by several prominent citizens of Wilkes County: Mr. John Callaway, Mr. Boyce Ficklen, Sr., Mr. Earle Norman, and Mayor Johnson.

Mrs. W. I. Jackson, Regent of Kettle Creek Chapter, presided over both unveilings and at the beautiful luncheon given by the chapter to the visiting D. A. R. and other guests.

Your Historian has taken part in the exercises at the unveiling of Government markers on the graves of the following Revolutionary soldiers: Major James Carter (marked by Augusta Chapter); John Daniel Bagwell and John Graves (marked by Atlanta Chapter); William Fears (marked by Elizabeth Marlow Chapter) and Thomas Gordon (marked by Baron DeKalb Chapter). Many Revolutionary soldiers' graves have been located and marked the past year.

Our chapter activities in historical lines have been many and varied. Every chapter has reported sponsoring programs in observance of at least four special anniversaries: Georgia Day, George Washington's Birthday, Flag Day, and Constitution Day.

Washington's Birthday, Flag Day, and Constitution Day. Many Bible Records, Tombstone Inscriptions, and copies of wills have been obtained.

The Oglethorpe Highway is now being marked, and the Nancy Hart Memorial Park has received much attention; an exact replica of this Revolutionary heroine's home has been built here which contains some of her personal possessions. Lineage books have been purchased; D. A. R. Magazines have been bound and placed in public libraries; two chapters reported keeping a fine collection of historical and genealogical books in the local city library; good papers have been written on historical subjects; five historical articles drawn from original sources have been written by Mrs. J. L. Beeson on Cherokee Indian history and have been published and received signal recognition. One chapter reported presenting a copy of the American Creed and the Salute to the Flag to the teachers in all the city and county schools in their county with the request that the pupils be required to learn both. The collecting, preserving and displaying of Indian relics was reported by another chapter and the Elijah Clarke Chapter reports taking care of an old cemetery and keeping it in good condition.

Thous

- A marker has been erected on the old Alabama road through Upson County by the State and John Houston Chapter. Handsome stone markers bearing bronze tablets have been placed by the Hawkinsville Chapter at the side of memorial trees planted in honor of George Washington, Woodrow Wilson and General James Ed-The site of Oglethorpe's home on St. Simon's ward Oglethorpe. Island has been marked. Old Fort King George has been located. An old Indian trail and village has been located which will be marked in the near future. One chapter reported locating four historic spots in its vicinity. The Matthews Talbot Chapter marked the site of an Indian battle on Jack's Creek. An old fort for the protection against the Indians was located in Oconee County, and numerous other historic spots have been located in various parts of the state.

Old cemeteries have been kept up and Indian relics preserved. The Lachlan McIntosh Chapter has had the records of St. John's Lutheran Church in Charleston, S. C., 1759, photostated and they are now being translated from the "Old German."

Talks have been made by your State Historian at meetings of the following chapters: Atlanta Chapter; Oliver Morton Chapter, of Gray; Sergeant Jasper Chapter, of Monticello; the James Monroe Chapter, of Forsyth, where the Regent, Mrs. E. W. Banks, gave a Juncheon in my honor. At receptions given by the Baron DeKalb Chapter and the Atlanta Chapter your Historian has also been an honored guest.

Your Historian had the pleasure of entertaining the State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry, and giving a reception in her honor. A miniature of General Oglethorpe was presented to Rhodes Memorial Hall by the State Regent of the D. A. R. as a tribute to the work of your Historian.

It has been my pleasure to serve as a member of the D. A. R. National Committee on Historical Research, having received the honor of this appointment by the President General, Mrs. Russell William Magna. Also, your Historian has had charge of the Scrap Book, to which she has added many valuable and interesting clippings and other data.

A Travelling Genealogical Librery is sponsored by the Georgia Society D. A. R. for the purpose of compiling and preserving the family history of each member, and of soliciting the donation of books pertaining to genealogical research. A chairman has been appointed in each chapter, and letters sent to the Chapter Regents. As a member of this State Committee your Historian has assisted in this work.

In reply to my questionnaire regarding the most important historical work accomplished by the chapters, the majority of chapters answered: "Publishing the County History," or "Helping with the County History;" "Historical Work Done in Public Schools;" "Awards of Scholarships, Cash Prizes and Medals to Pupils in the Colleges, High Schools and Grammar Schools for the Best Average in American History or the Best Essay on a Given Subject in Georgia or American History." Thirty-six chapters are most active in this educational work.

Gifts and indefinite loans have been made by Georgia D. A. R. to the Georgia State Department of Archives during the past year, among them: Miniature Display Table; Medal presented to Mrs. Bun Wylie by George Washington Bicentennial Commissioners; Medal presented by United States Government to Mrs. Howard Mc-Call, Sr., as a "dollar woman of Georgia;" Manuscripts; Copies of Original Land Grants; Family Compilations; Bible and Others Records; Genealogical Records; Copies and Abstracts of Wills; Records copied from Minutes of Old Churches; Copies of Obituary Notices, and Old Letters; and many other priceless gifts. It is hard to exactly estimate the money actually spent in historical research, but the value of the work reported by the different chapters would total several thousands of dollars. Its historical value is incalculable.

Among the valuable records received by your Historian may be listed the following: from the Henry Walton Chapter, Mrs. Kirby S. Anderson, Historian, the " List of the Original Land Lottery of 1805 for Morgan County, containing over 400 names;" the "List of the Original Land Lottery of 1815 for Morgan County;" the "History of a Pioneer Family-Five Generations;" the "History of the First Mills and Historic Homes in Morgan County." From the William McIntosh Chapter, Mrs. John Edward Lane, Historian, the "Complete List of Soldiers in the Indian Wars, and Treaties with the Indians;" "Genaologies of Fifty-five Pioneer Families of Butts County;" the "Names of Three Daughters of Revolutionary Solwith all data which have never been found before. diers,' From the chapter in Commerce, Georgia, came the list, compiled by Mrs. James Pittman, Regent, of "Revolutionary Soldiers and Widows of Revolutionary Soldiers as Listed in the Cherokee Land Lottery of 1838, in Jackson County," and "Those Entitled to Draw in the Land Lottery of 1829 and the Land Lottery of 1825, in Jackson The Bainbridge Chapter, Mrs. L. O. Hooper, Historian, County." has sent "The History of the Revolutionary Ancestors of the Members of the Chapter-Thirty in All:" "Copy of the Will of the Grandmother of George Washington;" "Family Record of Mathew Whitfield, Most Prominent in the Early History of the Colony."

A complete list of all the Revolutionary soldiers buried in Hart County, with the necessary dates and data, was furnished by John Benson Chapter, Hartwell.

In carrying on the various types of splendid historical work we, the Georgia Daughters of the American Revolution, are offering tribute not only of the organization and to Georgia soldiers of the Revolution but we are honoring our own ancestors and, following in their footsteps, are making our country through our combined efforts an even greater and safer country for posterity.

Your Historian is deeply grateful to all chapters and to all members of our Society for the hearty cooperation, the cheerful and efficient assistance they have given to her at all times.

In the Proceedings of the Georgia Society D. A. R., 1926, page 91-97, complete list of the Revolutionary soldiers whose graves have been located and marked by the Georgia D. A. R. was presented by Mrs. S. V. Sanford, then State Chairman, assisted by Mrs. Howard H. McCall. My questionnaire sent each Chapter Regent, February 14, 1934, asked for a list of Revolutionary soldiers whose graves have been marked, with data. Continuing with the list of 1926, assisted by the chapters, I have compiled the following. Reference: Georgia's Roster of the Revolution, Lucian Lamar Knight, unless stated otherwise. Year marked given last.

#### Graves of Revolutionary Soldiers Marked by D. A. R. Since 1926

ASHBURN: KNOX-CONWAY CHAPTER-Rev. William Pate buried; Turner County. 1929.

ATHENS: ELIJAH CLARKE CHAPTER—Benjamin Haygood burled, Stroud's Crossroad cemetery, Monroe County; 1932. Hiram Howard and Nathan Johnson. 1929. Reuben Ransome, burled old Ransome plantation, Clarke County, near Athens, Lexington road, Fletcher Tuck place; 1932. Family markers on graves: Daniel DuPree, burled near Crawford, Lexington road, Oglethorpe County; 1933. Clarke Taylor burled in Taylor cemetery lot, Oglethorpe County; 1933. Ferdinand Phinizy, bruied Phinizy burying ground, Oglethorpe County; 1933. Marked grave of Philip Ryan, burled Jackson County; 1932.

son County; 1932. ATLANTA: ATLANTA CHAPTER—John Daniel Bagwell, buried Gwinnett County, seven miles from Lawrenceville, Sweetwater Primitive Baptist Church cemetery. Reference: State Records of North Carolina, Vol. 16, page 1023; Roster of Soldiers of North Carolina, page 111; 1933. Benjamin Brown, buried Brown's cemetery, 11 miles from Fayetteville, Fayette County, near Line Creek Baptist Church. Served with North Carolina Regimen; 1932. Daniel Clower, buried Bethesda Mthodist Church cemetery, seven miles from Lawrenceville, Gwinnett County. Born in Pennsylvania; 1932. Capt. David Dickson, buried Clayton County, in a field five miles from Jonesboro. Lived in South Carolina before moving to Georgia; 1932. Basil Neal (or O'Neal), buried Columbia County, in the O'Neal family cmetery, on a country road between Washngton and Angusta, 14 miles from Thomson. English parentage; born in Maryland; moved to Virginia prior to settling in Georgia. Reference: Autobiography of his son, Basil Llewellen Neal, and U. S. Pension Bureau. ATLANTA: JOSEPH HABERSHAM COUNTY—John Hanna Brooks. Jr.

ATLANTA: JOSEPH HABERSHAM COUNTY-John Hanna Brooks, Jr., buried near Clinton, Jones County. Given Land Grant, Washington County. Born Fayetteville, N. C.; 1933. Lewis Flemister; 1931. William Stubly Shirley, buried near Clinton, Jones County; private 2nd Company Georgia Battalion, Col. Robert Middleton. Born and married in Washington County; 1933.

AUGUSTA: AUGUSTA CHAPTER—Major James Carter, buried in Bugg cemetery, on H. B. King estate, near Argusta, Richmond County, Kissing Bower road, between Wrightsboro and Milledgeville roads. Killed, Battle of White House, Augusta, Ga., 1780. References: White's Historical Collection of Georgia, page 608. Historical Quarterly of 1932. Hugh McCall's History of Georgia, page 487; 1933.

BARNESVILLE: LAMAR-LaFAYETTE CHAPTER-Lt. Vines Collier, buried old Collier plantation, near Lexington, Oglethorpe County; 1933.

BRUNSWICK: BRUNSWICK CHAPTER-Samuel Wright; 1929. Major Raymond Demere, buried on St. Simon's Island; 1930.

COLUMBUS: BUTTON GWINNETT CHAPTER-Richard Christmas; 1929.

COMMERCE: JAMES PITTMAN CHAPTER—Sherrod Thompson, buried Jackson County, near Jefferson, on Isabell's farm. Received two Land Grants, Jackson County; 1928; Samuel McKie or MacKie, buried Banks County; 1928. William Thomas, buried Banks County. Drew Land in Irwinton County in 1831. Lived Jackson County; 1928. Henry Parks, Sr., buried Franklin County; 1928. Jacob Braselton, Sr., buried Jackson County, two land draws, Capt. Deaton's District; 1929. Isaac Boring, buried Jackson County; 1929. Col. James Little, buried near Carnesville, "Little graveyard." Received Land Grant, Franklin County; 1927.

COVINGTON: SERGEANT NEWTON CHAPTER-Richard Terrell; 1932. DALTON: GOV. JOHN MILLEDGE CHAPTER-John Phinazee, buried near lamilton, Harris County; 1929.

Hamilton, Harris County; 1929. DECATUR: BARON DeKALB CHAPTER—William Morris, buried Cedar Grove cemetery, southwest of Decatur, DeKalb County. Enlisted 10th North Carolina Regiment, Baker's Company; 1927. Daniel Jones, buried Old Fellowship cemetery in DeKalb County. Born, Rhode Island; 1928. Thomas Gordon, buried Zoah's churchyard, Gwinnett County. Born in Virginia. Served Capt. James Johnson's Company, Sixth Virginia Regiment; 1934. John Daniel; 1925.

DUBLIN: JOHN LAURENS CHAPTER—Gen. Blackshear, buried nine miles from Dublin, old home place, Laurens County; 1927. Peter Callaway, buried "Greenwood," Laurens County; 1927. Amos Love, buried Laurens County; 1933. John Shim, buried "Greenwood," Laurens County; 1928. Eli Warren; 1933. Capt. Hardy Smity, buried Laurens County, marked by family.

EATONTON: SAMUEL REID CHAPTER-Elisha Hearn; 1927. Samuel Reid; 1928.

ELBERTON: STEPHEN HEARD CHAPTER—James Adams, buried Cold Water cemetery, near Cold Water Church, Flbert County. Two draws. Maj David Dobbs' Battalion, Capt. Horton's District. Thomas Adams, buried Old Harmony Church cemetery, Elbert County, near Brewer's Mill. Received Land Grant, Maj. Dobbs' Battalion, Capt. Horton's District. Lieutenant Colonel William Alston, buried Elbert County. Born, Warren County, N. C. Member of Council of Safety, 1774. and Constitutional Convention, 1776. Lieutenant-Colonel of Third Regiment of Continental Troops, North Carolina. David Clark, a private, buried family burial ground, Elbert County. Born in Virginia. Served under Col. John Gibson, Ninth Virginia Regiment. Chris-toppher Clarke, buried of family burial ground. Elbert County, near Elberton. in Virginia. Served under Col. John Gibson, Ninth Virginia Regiment. Chris-topher Clarke, buried old family burial ground, Elbert County, near Elberton. Lived in Virginia. Land Grant, Elbert County, 1825, Capt. Bill's District. Capt. James Cunningham, buried Elbert County. Turner Christian, buried family cemetery, near Dewey Rose, Elbert county. Land Grant, Capt. Perin's District. Benjamin Brown, buried Ruckersville District, Elbert County. Born, Orange County, Virginia. Enlisted in Walker County, N. C., as private. In Battle of King's Mountain. Jacob Higginbotham, buried Centerville District, Elbert County. Born, Amherst County, Virginia. Served as Captain Virginia Militia. Captain Dionysus Oliver, buried Stinchcomb cemetery, Elbert County. GAINESVILLE: COL. WILLIAM CANDIER CHAPTER\_Removed remeines

GAINESVILLE: COL. WILLIAM CANDLER CHAPTER-Removed remains of Col. William Clarke and his wife, Ruth Goodwin Clarke, to Alta Vista cemetery, near Galnesville, Hall County; 1927. Beal Baker and Henry Parks; 1934.

GRAY: OLIVER MORTON CHAPTER-Adam Carson and Samuel Barrow, buried Round Oak, Jones County; 1931. Oliver Morton, buried near Morton, Jones County; 1930. Reuben Roberts, buried near Roberts Station, Jones Cornty; 1930.

GREENVILLE: DAVID MERIWETHER CHAPTER-Peter Kolb, buried Meriwether County; 1929.

GRIFFIN: PULASKI CHAPTER-Daniel Orr, marked by family; 1930.

GRIFFIN: PULASKI CHAPTER—Daniel Orr, marked by family; 1930. HARTWELL: JOHN BENSON CHAPTER—Angus McCurry, Sr., buried Mount Zion Church cemetery, six miles from Hartwell, Hart County. Born in Scotland. Settled in North Carolina, 1774. Received Land Grant, Wayne County; 1932. David Carter, Sr., buried Mount Zion Church cemetery, six miles from Hartwell, Hart County. Born in New Jersey. Served in Virginia and North Carolina; 1932. Major Nathaniel Durkee, buried Redwine Meth-odist cemetery, Hart County. Reference: Hart County History, page 354. Amos Richardson, buried Sardis Baptist Church cemetery, near Hartwell, Hart County. Moses Haynes, buried Holly Springs Baptist Church cem-etery, Hart County. Land Grant, Elbert County formerly). Born in Virginia. Served Captain in Virginia. John McMullan, buried family burying ground, north side of Big Cedar Creek, Hart County. Born in Dublin, Ireland, stited in Virginia. Made first military suit worn by General Washington, after becoming Commander in Chief of Army. Elisha Dyer, buried Hart Coun-ty; 1927. Grave marked by family. Dozier Thornton, buried on farm near after becoming Commander in Chief of Army. Elisha Dyer, buried Hart Coun-ty; 1927. Grave marked by family. Dozier Thornton, buried Hart Coun-ty; 1927. Grave marked by family. Dozier Thornton, buried on farm near Bowersville, Hart County. Born in Virginia. Served, North Carolina. Wil-liam Glover, buried Shoal Creek District, Hart County. Born, Prince County, Md. Served, North Carolina. James Hunt, Jr., buried near Nuburg com-munity, in field, Hart County. Born in Virginia. Drew Land, Elbert and Muscogee Counties.

HAWKINSVILLE: HAWKINSVILLE CHAPTER—George Walker, II., bur-ied George Walker family graveyard, 16 miles north of Cochran, Bleckley County, Born, Burke County, Georgia. Served in Georgia; 1934. William Carson, buried Wilcox County; 1931. Archibald Odum; 1931.

CATSON, BUFIEL WHICOX COURTY; 1993. ArCHIDAG COURT, 1993. JACKSON: WILLIAM MCINTOSH CHAPTER—Levi Jester, buried old Jes-ter cemetery, near Towaliga Baptist and Fellowship Presbyterian Churches, Butts County. Born, Edgefield District, S. C. Received land, Butts County. William Jester, buried Jester family burial ground, near Towaliga Church, Butts County. Born, Scotland, Lived in Virginia and South Carolina. Rob-ert Smith, buried old Rocky Mount cemetery, near Cork, Butts County. Born South Carolina. In Battles of Hanging Rock, Ninety-Six, and Eutaw Springs, S. C. Drew land in Butts County. Richard Speake, buried private cemetery, Irana Savings District Butts County. Rorn in Georgia. Served n South South Caronna. In Butts County. Richard Speake, Durled private Centred, S. C. Drew land in Butts County. Born in Georgia. Served n South Carolina. Drew land in Georgia. Francis Ward, buried nine miles northeast of Eatonton, Putnam County. Served First Lieutenant, Ninth Company, First Battalion, Burke County Regiment; 1984. William Butrill, buried Butts County. Born in England. Lived in Virginia and North Carolina. Drew

JEFFERSONVILLE: OLD MARION CHAPTER-John Shine, buried old Shine farm, Twiggs County; 1927.

100

IRWINTON: JOHN BALL CHAPTER-David Clay, buried Lord's graveyard, four miles north of Toomsboro, Milledgeville road; 1930. Robert Barnett, buried private graveyard, five miles west of Irwinton, road to Dry Branch; 1927.

LaGRANGE: LaGRANCE CHAPTER-John Nicholson, buried Pleasant Grove cemetery, four miles west of Blairsville, Union County, Ga.; 1928.

LUMPKIN: ROANOKE CHAPTER—Jacob Green, buried Hopewell Church cemetery, few miles west of Gadsden, Ala., St. Clair County. Lived in York District, South Carolina; 1931. Thomas Williams, buried East Side cemetery, Lumpkin, Stewart County, Ga. Served with Georgia Militia; 1930.

MARSHALLVILLE: STEPHEN HOPKINS CHAPTER-John L. Marsh, buried Marshallville cemetery. Served, Benton's Brigade, South Carolina.

buried Marshallville cemetery. Served, Benton's Brigade, South Carolina.
MILLEDGEVILLE: NANCY HART CHAPTER—Capt. Edward Beeson, buried near Gadsden, Ala.; 1929. Joba Myrick; 1929. William Babb; 1932. Capt.
Andrew Du Bourg, buried City cemetery, Milledgeville, Baldwin County. Born,
France; 1933. Joshua Cook, buried Cook cemetery, Washington County; 1932.
James DeLaunay, buried City cemetery, Milledgeville, Baldwin County. Born in Pennsylvania; 1932. Peter Fair, buried City cemetery, Milledgeville, Baldwin County. Born,
etery, east, Baldwin County; 1932. Michael Harvey, buried family cemetery, east, Baldwin County, 1932. Corp. Drewry Jackson, buried family cemetery, near Bethel Church, Baldwin County; 1932. Jonathan Miller; 1933.
William Moran, buried Baldwin County; 1932. Richard Parham, buried family cemetery, East Baldwin County. John Robinson, buried Fast Baldwin County (formerly Hancock County); 1932. James Thomas, buried Thomas cemetery,
eight miles easts of Milledgeville, Butts County. Lived in Virginia. Moved ol family cemetery, Ga., later Hancock County. Drew land, Baldwin County; 1932. William McGehee; 1933. Thomas Humphries, Jr., buried family cemtery, East Baldwin County. Streed Watson's Battalion; 1933. Ephraim Ivey; 1932. Rev. Carey Cox; 1934. Francis Boykin, buried 10 miles from Milledgeville; 1929. James Youngblood; 1932. Patrick Carr, Thomas Peter Carnes, John Maxwell, John Shields and John Simmons; 1933. Reference: Report of Mrs. J. L. Beeson, State Historian, 1930-1932; State Proceedings D. A. R., 1931-1932.

MONTICELLO: MATTHEW TALBOT CHAPTER-William Bostwick; 1929.

MONTICELLO: SERGEANT JASPER CHAPTER—John Davidson, buried Davidson family burial ground, near Shady Dale, Jasper County. Drew land in 1827. Hartwell Ezell, buried Ezell family burial ground, eastern part of Jasper County. Drew land in 1827. Littleton Johnston, buried old cemetery near Gladesville, Jasper County. Jeremiah Lumsden, buried Lumsden family burial ground, northwestern part of Jasper County. Drew land in 1827. Thomas Meriwether, buried Jordan buri al ground, east of Monticello, Jasper County. Drew land Cherokee Lottery, 1831. Capt. Henry Slappy, buried family burial lot, Monticello, Jasper County.

MONTICELLO: ELIZABETH MARLOW CHAPTER—William Fears, buried Jasper County, five miles from Monticello, Methodist Church cemetery; 1933. John Spearman, buried two miles east of Shady Dale, Jasper County, Methodist Church cemetery; 1933. Jacob Mercer, buried Baptist Church cemetery, Shady Dale, Jasper County; 1931. Lewis Yancey, buried Yancey family burial ground, western part of Jasper County, near Ocmulgee River; 1931.

SAVANNAH: BONAVENTURE CHAPTER—Corp. Jonathan Bahn and John Berry, buried Ebenezer cemetery, Georgia; 1928. Governor Josiah Tattnall, Jr., buried Bonaventure cemetery; 1929.

SOCIAL CIRCLE: JOHN CLARKE CHAPTER-Isaac Boring, buried Jackson County on land given him for service. Young Gill, buried Myers burying ground, Social Circle, Walton County. Joseph Herndon, buried Herndon cemetery, between Monroe and Social Circle, Walton County. Served in Battle of Guilford Court House, N. C.

SPARTA: HANCOCK CHAPTER—Tully Choice, buried near Oconee River, 17 miles west of Sparta, Hancock County; 1932. William Harper, buried near Oconee River, 17 miles west of Sparta, Hancock County; 1932. Warren, buried near Oconee River, 17 miles west of Sparta, Hancock County; 1932. Samuel Harris, buried eight miles west of Sparta, near Shoulder Bone Creek, on land given him for service; 1929. Zodac Turner, buried Sparta cemetery, Hancock County; 1929. John Shachelford, buried two miles north of Sparta on land given him for service, Hancock County (formerly part of Washington County); 1929.

SYLVANIA: BRIAR CREEK CHAPTER-John Arnett and James Scott; 1934. Austin Lane, buried at Emma Lane, Screven County; 1930. Richard Cooper and Wilson Connor, b Ga.; 1930. Major Cone; 1930. buried Dead River cemetery, near Mt. Vernon,

SYLVESTER: BARNARD TRAIL AND NOBLE WIMBERLY JONES CHAPTERS—Purnell Truitt, buried seven miles west of Washington, Wilkes County. Enlisted in Delaware. Served in South and received Land Grant, Wilkes County, Ga.; 1928. NOBLE WIMBERLY JONES

SHELLMAN: NOBLE WIMBERLY JONES CHAPTER-Lewis Gardner, buried New Bethel cemetery, Randolph County. Elisha Walker, buried old Walker cemetery, near Wrightsville, Johnson County. Granted Land, Washington and Johnson Counties; 1929.

SWAINSBORO: ADAM BRINSON CHAPTER-Wilson Drew, buried Union Grove Church cemetery, near Herndon, Emanuel County; 1931. Jacob Durden, buried Bill Canady cemetery, five miles from Graymont, Emanuel County. buried Bill Canady cemetery, five miles from Graymont, Emanuel County. Drew land; 1930. Jonathan Coleman, buried Bark Camp cemetery, five miles from Midville, Burke County; 1931.

SWAINSBORO: GOV. DAVID EMANUEL CHAPTER-David Edenfield, buried in Edenfield cemetery, near Swainsboro, Emanuel County. Served with South Carolina troops. Joseph Sumner, buried Flanders Sumner cemetery, near Swainsboro, Emanuel County. Drew land, 1827. Ephraim Herrington, buried in Emanuel County; 1934.

THOMASTON: JOHN HOUSTON CHAPTER AND JEFFERSONIA CHAP-TER AT ROBERTA-Col. Benjamin Hawkins, Indian Agent, buried on Flint River at old Indian Trading Post, five miles from Roberta; 1930.

JOHN HOUSTO NCHAPTER AND SERGEANT NEWTON CHAPTER: COV-INGTON-William Norris, buried near Covington, Newton County; 1933.

TOCCOA: TOCCOA CHAPTER-John Stonecypher and Richard B. Hooper; 1930.

VALDOSTA: GEN. JAMES JACKSON CHAPTER-William Peters; 1929.

WARRENTON : BURKHALTER CHAPTER-Henry Pool, buried near Gibson, Glascock County; 1930.

WEST POINT: CHATTAHOOCHEE CHAPTER-James Cameron, buried Long Cane cemetery, between West Point and LaGrange; 1930.

WINDER: SUNBURY CHAPTER-John McElhannan, buried Jackson County, seven miles northeast of Winder; 1930.

Grave of Capt. Charles Hicks, Principal Chief of Cherokee Nation, marked by State D. A. R. and Gov. John Milledge Chapter, Dalton. Buried near Dalton, Whitfield County; 1932. Grave of Indian Chief, McIntosh, buried Walker County. Marked by Wil-

liam Marsh Chapter, LaFayette.

### STATE CONSULTING REGISTRAR

### Mrs. James L. Mims

Many inquiries, concerning almost every phase of the work, have come to my desk, to all of which I have replied, giving the information sought, to the best of my ability.

Early in the year, I sent communications to the Chapter Regents and Registrars, through the official D. A. R. column of the Atlanta Constitution, as to the procedure in sending in application papers, asking for chapter rosters, stressing membership, etc.

Several chapters sent rosters.

Quite a number of application papers, many of which were new lines, have passed through my hands, all of which were promptly verified and forwarded to Washington.

The National Registrars' Committee, of which your State Registrar is, by virtue of office, a member, is serving also as a National We have stressed membership this year. Membership Committee. Upon the Registrars fall, naturally, the duty of actively expanding membership-a service greatly needed in this time of withdrawals and reduced applications, due to financial conditions. I have urged Chapter Regents, in appointing their committees, to see that their Chapter Registrars are on the Membership Committee.

Knowledge of members gives many opportunities for soliciting

eligible members. This could best be attained through a systematic method of handling the membership, such as a card index filing system would afford.

An objective toward which I have worked for the past two years is the installation of such a system, and I trust that the time is not far distant when it can be installed, thereby affording greater opportunity for service, for the succeeding Registrar, and enabling her to expand membership. It would be a splendid thing, too, if every chapter could install card index systems for chapter membership. Several chapters have expressed interest and I have furnished information.

I have kept the records of our Georgia members that are sent from the Registrar General after each National Board meeting.

Books belonging to the office are: 69 volumes of lineage books; two index volumes; one copy of Georgia Historical Collections; one copy of Reprint of Land Lottery of 1827; one copy of Notable Southern Families; Vol. III, by Zella Armstrong; seven leaflets of the Camp family; one volume of Rosters of Georgia Chapters; some unassorted papers of family records; a quantity of supplemental blanks for lineage of descendants of members; several volumes of State Proceedings and a number of Chapter Year Books.

### STATE REPORTER TO SMITHSONIAN INSTITUTE

## Mrs. W. H. Hightower

Through the kindness and courtesy of the State Historian, the list of Revolutionary Soldiers' graves was sent direct to the Reporter General to Smithsonian Institute both in 1933 and 1934. According to custom, all other state records necessary for the Smithsonian report are secured by the Reporter General from the reports of the State Regents and the various national committees, found in the published Proceedings of Continental Congress.

## STATE CURATOR

#### Mrs. John M. Simmons

My connection with this department has brought to me dreams of its future growth and development, and of what it may mean to our state.

There have been many interesting relics located of real historic value to the people of Georgia. I had the pleasure of attending two teas during the year where my lady was gowned in dresses of ye olden days, old shawls of the finest lace, paisley and plaid; fans of peafowl and painted silk, gowns of silk, satin, linen and homespun. Hand tucked shirts, baby dresses of tucking, puffing and insets of embroidery and lace were on display, interesting old quilts, beautiful china, glass, silver, books and rare old documents were viewed with delight.

I wish we had more entertainments of like character, for it creates an appreciation of our early American relics and makes us want to care for and preserve them.

Haven't you some old treasure that you would like to donate to the museum at Memorial Continental Hall, Washington City? We are all proud of our museum there.

Then a gift would mean much to the Georgia D. A. R. for our cabinet at Rhodes Memorial Hall. If you do not care to make a gift, a loan would be appreciated.

Gifts and loans to Rhodes Memorial Hall are: A whale oil lamp of pewter from Miss Ajetta Cummings,; a chelsea saucer and waterford glass salt cellar originally owned by the grandmother, Mrs. Randolph H. Ramsay, of your Curator.

Two pieces of china were given to the National D. A. R. Museum by your Curator.

## STATE GENALOGIST

## Mrs. Henry Storey Redding

Personal letters were sent to each Chapter Regent in the state with a copy of Instructions to Chapters sent out by the national chairman. Extremely interesting and valuable contributions have been received from those chapters that responded.

A report of the year's work has been sent to our National Vice-Chairman, Mrs. Howard McCall, and the records to the National Chairman, Mrs. D. K. Moore.

Forty-one pages of data contributed by those chapters that responded to the request made by the State Chairman, containing: Records from an old Bible belonging to Mrs. C. H. Halbrook, Atlanta, purchased 1804 by Benjamin Hicks. Copied by Mrs. Helen M. Prescott for Joseph Habersham Chapter. A copy of a letter written by John Adams to The Young Men of Augusta, Ga.; Philadelphia July 20, 1798. A copy of the obituary notice of Capt. John Freeman, a Revolutionary soldier of Wilkes County, died May 29, 1806. Copies of family records compiled from research by James M. Bowles, Taylorville, Tenn.

Inscriptions from tombstones in old Richland Church cemetery, Twiggs County, Georgia, located about six miles below Jeffersonville. Photostats of the Bennett Family Chart with a copy of the Coat-of-Arms, which was sent directly to Washington. Copied by Mrs. Mark Cooper and Mrs. Bernard Wolff for Atlanta Chapter. The records of Harmony Baptist Church, Putnam County, 1854-1872, continued by Mrs. John E. Dance, for Atlanta Chapter.

Tombstone inscriptions in Linwood Cemetery, Columbus, Ga., copied by Mrs. J. D. Wadsworth for Oglethorpe Chapter. Earliest birth date shown to have been 1777. Wilkinson County reports a complete re-indexing of county records by Miss Julia Todd and a painstaking committee for John Ball Chapter, Irwinton, Ga.

## STATE EDITOR

### Mrs. Sidney O. Smith

It is with a sense of appreciation to the Georgia D. A. R. that I come to the end of my term of serving as State Editor. I have enjoyed the work, the pleasant cooperation of my associate, Mrs. L. C. Rader, and the other happy contacts which have come to me. As stated at the Executive Board meeting the custom, growing with the Chapter Reporters, of sending duplicate, typewritten copies of chapter reports written in a concise form, has been of great help the latter part of my term, and I trust the method will be used by every chapter for the incoming Editor. May I suggest to state officers and state chairmen that your messages sent for publication in the D. A. R. column be of different content and expression from the messages sent direct to the chapters, as the latter are read at chapter meetings, and to have them repeated in the column is needless; whereas a different message would be read with interest.

The generosity of the Atlanta Constitution and of Mrs. Rix Stafford is appreciated. As outgoing Editor, however, I recommend that there be wider publicity for the organization through the Editor's office.

## STATE CHAPLAIN

## Mrs. C. D. Shelnutt

As I come to the close of my term of office, as your State Chaplain, I wish to publicly express my appreciation of the many courtesies extended me; and for your hearty cooperation.

To be an officer, committed to the task of presiding over the Memorial programs at our State Conferences, is a deeply appreciated honor.

In August of last year I prepared a ritual for use at the regular monthly meetings and mailed a copy to every Chapter Regent in the state. My response to this gesture has been most gratifying, indicating an increased interest in the reading of the scripture and prayer as an expression of gratitude to God for His care and protection. In appreciation for our State Regent, Mrs. Julian Mc-Curry, I lovingly dedicated this little volume to her.

I attended the annual Board meeting held in Elberton, and the beautiful luncheon as guest of the Stephen Heard Chapter.

I have been invited to many parts of the state to functions of various kinds, but owing to distance in many instances I have been unable to respond; and in other instances conflicting engagements prevented my acceptances.

I have written numbers of notes of condolences to those of our organization who have lost loved ones.

I feel that the year has not passed without some helpful ministrations and that some of the time has been given in the uplift and advancement for the good of our organization.

Since my last report at the 1933 Conference, 41 members have been claimed by death and they are sadly missed.

# COMMITTEE REPORTS

## AMERICANISM Mrs. Mark Smith

This committee is of vital concern and interest to us, if for no other reason than that its prime motive is to get at the knowledge and appreciation of America by those seeking citizenship in our country. Some of the work of this committee is not applicable to our particular locality; however, it is a fine and meritorious work to inspire our boys and girls to a more comprehensive knowledge of our heroes of American history and the general outline of our government.

A questionnaire, received from your National Chairman, was sent to each of the 95 chapters, and of the 62 chapters reporting 34 have a Chairman of Americanism, in other instances the Regent performs this work. Fifty chapters have had programs on Americanism. A phase of the work well worth while has been the attention given to illiterate Negroes here in our own state by members of the chapters who have contributed of their time to teach them to read and write, and the giving of shoes, clothing, and books.

Forty-seven chapters have given 98 prizes for excellence in U. S. History and essays on American Heroes, totaling \$392.25. D. A. R. medals, silver loving cups, citizenship medals, and books, have been given in many instances and one chapter has the distinction of giving a medal to the honor cadet in a R. O. T. C. unit. Many D. A. R. floats added to the beauty of the NRA parades this winter.

Seventeen chapters have helped to keep schools open during this period of depression and others have reported this feature of the work unnecessary in their communities. In Georgia, our state and counties have not fallen down on educational funds. Sixteen chapters have helped teachers to better pay. It is with pride that we report eight of our chapters having members on the board of education.

Two of our chapters have reported that they had committees in attendance on court where immigrants were accepted as citizens in the United States; one chapter presenting Immigrants' Manual to 26 applicants for citizenship.

The Preamble to the Constitution of the United States is either used in meetings, studied in schools, or published in the Year Books of 36 of our chapters.

The work of Americanism has been carried on in many unique and interesting ways, special programs have been presented on all Patriotic Days, and its true value cannot be computed in dollars and cents. We heartily commend the work of each of the 62 chapters whose reports we have received.

Total expenditures under Americanism, \$874.48.

## AMERICAN'S CREED

### Mrs. Glenmore Green

The American's Creed Committee, realizing the importance of implanting in the minds of youth the principles incorporated in the American's Creed, requested each Chapter Regent to appoint a Creed Chairman.

Many of the chairmen appointed were teachers in the local and

rural schools and special credit should be given them for teaching the Creed in many effective ways.

Two years ago it was estimated that only 2 per cent of any large assembly in Georgia could recite the Creed, whereas, today thousands of children can lead in reciting the Creed.

Special mention should be made of Columbus Chapters' joint presentation of lantern slides, "Half-Forgotten Romances of American History," preceded by the Creed and recited in concert.

Of Fielding Lewis Chapter, Marietta, Ga., whose entire membership have memorized the Creed.

Indebtedness expressed for numbers of editorials in state papers and public addresses on the subject, and grateful acknowledgment of appreciation of 84 Chapter Regents and their committees.

#### AMERICAN MERCHANT MARINE LIBRARY

#### Mrs. M. J. Guyton

An important work being done by the D. A. R. is supplying the men of our American Merchant Marine, and also those of the light house and coast guard service, with good reading matter. Seamen read more than almost any other class of working men, and because of their calling they cannot use public libraries. Our part is to help supply them with good healthy literature.

Special requests are made for books pertaining to the business of the ship; books on navigation, engineering and radio. There is great demand for books of fiction, history, biography, music, poetry, accounting and farming, also foreign language books. Do not send school books. The National Geographic Magazine is appreciated. Funds are also essential as the work must be carried on regularly and efficiently.

The chapters have responded generously, and reported 250 books sent, and \$6.00. The John Laurens Chapter, Dublin, sent \$5.00, and the Commodore Richard Dale Chapter, Albany, sent \$1.00. The Association pays freight charges. Send box of books to J. H. Hutton, Dispatch Agent, American Merchant Marine Library Association, Dock Board Tool House, Poydras Street and River, New Orleans, La. Be sure to notify your State Chairman how many books you have sent.

## ANTI-TUBERCULOSIS

#### Mrs. W. H. Flanders

My plan for tuberculosis work was three-fold: first, the holding of clinics with help from the State Health Department to ascertain the active cases; second, the raising of funds for our fight against tuberculosis by the sponsoring of Christmas T. B. Seal Sales; third, the proper expenditure of funds raised.

Many chapters have actively cooperated with my program, changing it where necessary to meet the needs of their respective communities.

The three outstanding reports are from: Oglethorpe Chapter, Columbus, reporting \$50.00 contributed through the Public Nurse Association.

Elijah Clarke Chapter, Athens, reporting \$66.00 worth of T. B. Seals purchased.

Governor David Emanuel Chapter, Swainsboro, reporting two clinics sponsored, five patients sent to Alto and \$101.78 raised by the sale of T. B. Seals.

### APPROVED SCHOOLS

#### Miss Sue Reid Vason

A letter was sent out in the fall asking each chapter to stress the fact that the schools that had been approved were in need, also urging that each chapter have a program during the year, telling of the work of the schools.

In the spring this letter was followed by a questionnaire sent by National Chairman. Thirty-six chapters responded stating that they had held programs, appointed chairmen, and had helped in educational work.

Georgia is in the Southeastern Division of Approved Schools and for the year 1933 led all in her division.

The amount expended to the schools amounted to \$46.00, however the amount expended towards scholarships to various schools in the state and their own localities, amounted to more than \$5,000.00.

Various chapters reported that they had aided by sending books and clothes to their schools.

## ARMISTICE DAY

### Mrs. Wm. J. Vereen

Many interesting and enthusiastic reports have come to me, as your State Chairman. Outstanding among them was the program jointly observed by the Button Gwinnett Chapter at Columbus with the aid of Fort Benning, the largest Infantry School in the world. Representatives joined the American Legion in their exercises, which took place on Broadway at the German-captured Field Piece (souvenir of the World War and won by the local Legion for largest membership).

Practically all chapters joined with the schools and churches in their communities in observing this day.

Two chapters reported the sale of poppies.

Chickamauga reports the first World War Memorial Auditorium.

### BEAUTIFYING HIGHWAYS

#### Mrs. C. H. Leavy

My report on Beautifying Highways is not as complete nor gratifying as if all chapters had sent me detailed reports of work accomplished.

Accounts that were sent in indicate that hundreds of dogwood, crepe myrtle, oaks and holly trees were planted with roses, honeysuckle and other vines used to advantage in many bald places, on fences and on shoulders of completed paving.

Areas surrounding roadside markers have been planted and beautified, adding beauty and interest to these historic spots.

Near Thomaston, the Jno. Houston Chapter has sponsored the beautification of a section on the highway, which marks an old Indian trail that became a stage route from Augusta to Montgomery, Ala., in 1826. Surrounded by 200 or more native trees and shrubs this park is a most beautiful spot.

Elijah Clarke Chapter has a special committee, which has worked faithfully on landscaping and beautifying the area around historic markers, tending and caring for the completed plantings.

Four hundred and eighty-six trees and shrubs were planted dur-

ing the year by Sergeant Newton Chapter, with a special tree honoring President Roosevelt.

The grounds around the old Hartford Road marker were graded and attractively planted in grass and shrubbery by the Jno. Ball Chapter.

The Roanoke Chapter has beautified three historic spots with beautiful shrubbery and flowers and sponsors roadside planting in the county.

Many chapters report a slowing-up of new projects, incident to financial conditions, but no let-up was permitted in caring for the hundreds of trees and shrubs previously planted.

Brunswick Chapter works with the garden clubs in roadside planting, and has beautified the area around two historic markers on nearby highways.

#### BETTER FILMS

### Mrs W. H. Hightower

We can never cease to be grateful to our National Chairman, Mrs. Russell, for inaugurating the weekly Post Card Review, for without our own D. A. R. Guide to Motion Pictures, the work of the D. A. R. Better Films Committee was impracticable if not altogether unwise. Here in Georgia, almost five days distant from Hollywood, often some of the best pictures are shown before the reviews reach us, and about one-fourth of the pictures shown are not reviewed in the Guide. Otherwise, the service is perfect.

After so many years of free and abundant Better Films literature, our people have been a little slow to take advantage of this service, but at least one Guide is received in each chapter, and several are sent to teachers, editors, and theatre managers.

Of the 95 chapters in Georgia, 83 have appointed Better Films Chairmen and the other 12 Regents receive the Guide; 62 chapters have reported to the State Chairman, and 60 of these make a monthly report to the chapter. Ten report the Guides published regularly in the local papers. Some newspapers object to what they consider free publicity, as the theatres are good paying advertisers.

About 50 per cent of the pictures shown are classed I and II. In fact, all of the I and II pictures are shown, but it would be hard to find six pictures every week classed I and II to be shown, and in many towns we have a daily change of program.

Mrs. Selden of Mary Hammond Washington Chapter, Macon, has charge of the only continuous Junior Matinee in the state, but several chapters sponsor them at intervals. Mrs. Wade of Baron-DeKalb Chapter, Decatur, does outstanding work, and asks that the "Serials" beloved by children, be mentioned in the Guides, so that they may be more intelligently selected.

The three Columbus chapters are doing splendid work under the joint chairmanship of Miss Julia Traylor, who recently gave an interesting lecture, "Half Forgotten Romances of American History," illustrated with movie shorts and colored slides.

Nearly all of our chairmen are movie fans and see from one to five pictures a week, and in several instances some member of the committee sees every picture.

Only four towns have City Better Films Committees, and in each instance the D. A. R. Chairman is a member. In only four towns does any other organization do Better Films work, in each instance the P.-T. A., but the D. A. R. Guides are used for information in many women's gatherings. There have been very few benefit shows this year, but no chapter sponsors a show not selected from Class I or II.

In many of the small towns, the school teachers are notified by telephone whenever a Number I picture suitable for school children is shown.

We sincerely hope that the Post Card Guide will be continued and that Georgia may again have the honor of being the first state to subscribe to it 100 per cent.

## BLANCHE MCFARLAND GAFFNEY TROPHY

#### Mrs. T. D. Power, State Chairman

From the first glad-hand of welcome by the people of Albany, to this the day of our departure, nothing has been left undone or said by Albanians to make the State Conference, Daughters of the American Revolution, one of the delightful and unforgetable memories.

In relinquishing this prized trophy it is the expressed wish of the members of Button Gwinnett Chapter that I convey with it their love and that you may find as much joy in its possession as they have experienced.

And now, Madam Regent of the Oglethorpe Chapter, it is my privilege and very great pleasure to award to you the Blanche Mc-Farland Gaffney trophy and into your care and keeping I deliver it. This prize is offered from year to year by an esteemed member of your chapter, one you have delighted to pay tribute to, making her Honorary Chapter Regent.

May it prove an inspiration to you. Display it on public patriotic occasions, magnify the purpose for which it has been offered and in its possession may you find that joy which comes only to those who have striven and achieved.

Again, I congratulate you and with this treasured trophy accept also my every good wish for another year of even greater achievements.

### BOOKPLATE FOR GEORGIA BOOKS IN LIBRARY AT CONSTITUTION HALL

#### Mrs. E. Blount Freeman

The Georgia D. A. R. Bookplate recently passed its first birthday. This anniversary was observed by 1,000 copies of the bookplate being sent to chapters to be used in the books of their chapter libraries. These bookplates were purchased at the special price of \$1.00 per hundred in an order for 1,000 labels. After March 1 the price was advanced to \$13.00 per thousand or \$1.30 per hundred.

Interest in the Georgia D. A. R. Bookplate continues to grow. On January 29 I received a letter from Miss Natalie Sumner Lincoln, Editor of the D. A. R. Magazine, requesting a 500 word sketch of the bookplate which, together with a reproduction of the design, she wishes to use in this magazine. This article has been sent to Miss Lincoln and will appear in an early issue of the official organ of the National Society D. A. R.

On December 7 a request came from Miss Ella Bradley, Librarian of the Eastman Memorial Foundation, Laurel, Mississippi, for one of our bookplates to be included in the bookplate collection of this library. This collection is used for exhibition purposes and as models for art students in decorative designing. Miss Bradley also favored us with a copy of her library bookplate.

On October 3 bookplates were sent to Mrs. Nicholson, State His-

torian, to be used in books presented by her to the Rhodes Memorial Library. Several chapters have asked for copies to be used in their chapter scrapbooks. Mrs. Dick, Librarian General, wrote: "I wish to express to you

Mrs. Dick, Librarian General, wrote: "I wish to express to you and to the Georgia D. A. R. my approval and admiration for the design and for the beautiful sentiment embodying many phases of Georgia history." Miss Lincoln, Editor of the D. A. R. Magazine, says: "We would like to congratulate you on such a beautiful and interesting bookplate."

## COLLECTION AND PRESERVATION OF FAMILY BIBLE RECORDS

### Mrs. Eli A. Thomas, Chairman

The collection of family Bible Records this year is important and gratifying. We are sure, however, that there are still many family records in old Bibles yet to be found, copied and sent in for future publication and preservation.

The Bashinski silver vase for the largest number of Bible Records sent in goes this year to the John Houston Chapter of Thomaston, with 92 Bibles. The Tomichichi Chapter, of Clarkesville, runs a close second with 83 Bibles, and receives honorable mention.

In addition to the 245 Bible Records, in this collection are 944 Tombstone Records from 41 cemeteries, 67 wills copied from Will Book A, Forsyth, Monroe County, Ga., from 1824 to 1847, and one deed.

The John Houston Chapter sent 92 Bible Records, as follows :

From Bible Earliest	date	From Bible Birdsong	Earliest date
Charles G. Adams	1851	Birdsong	
John Archer	1761	James R. Black	
Cant William Battle	.1758	Rev. Wesley Branan	
Beckham	1814	Maxie Brooks	
Thomas Black	1803	Miles Brown	
Boyt	.1827	Joseph Brown	
P. G. Britt	1828	Poter Buffington	
Rhodom M. Brooks	1851	Thomas Canthorn	1/8/
William M. Brown	1841	Honry Chambliss	
Thomas H. Brown	1841	Levi Cheney	
Peter P. Butts	1811	Samuel Cook	
Miles Cannon		Jonathan Dawson, Sr	
Isaac Chatfield	1814	Dr. J. C. Drake	
George Galghin Cobb	1850	Fleuellen	
Thomas Dallas	1776	John Goode	
Thomas Dickson	1769	Grimes-Turner	
Fincher-Ivey	1781	Hightower	
Thomas B. Gay	1818	Thomas P. Holloway	
Archibald Gray	1782	William B. Jackson	
William H. Hartsfield	1830	Stephen M. Lester	
Edward Holloway	1818	Thomas McCall	
William P. Jones	1826	B. G. McKenney	
Samuel Knox		James H. Marchman	
Jordan Lyons	1813	John J. Moore	
Abner McCoy	1773	Rev. Daniel J. Myrick	
John H. McKenney	1828	William P. Norris	1804
Charles H. Matthews	1828	William T. Patrick	
W. J. Moore	1826	William P. Persons	
Rev. Eli Parks Neese	1838	Henry Pye	
Olive		R. B. Reeses	
John Pearson	1742	James F. Reeves	
James Madison Pound	1835	Ben F. Sanders	
Thomas Raines		D. A. J. Sessions	
Eustace R. Reeves	1807	John Snelson	
Allen Richardson		William Stephens	
Henry Schoeller	1838	William Spivey	
Daniel Beall		James S. Tisinger	

Anthony G. Smith	1501
	Benjamin Trice1764
Anthony G. Smith	Joel Walker
Latimer A. Stokes	Benjamin Weaver1760
William Thornton 1800	Benjamin Weaver
John Traylor	Paniamin P White 1811
D	Gerhamm D. White-
Reuben Turner	Seaborn W. Woodall
Warren	Hardy J. Wheless1820
Warren	Amos W. White1811
Bartlett-Beasley1775	Anderson Worthy1791
The Tomichichi Chapter, of Clarkesvil	le, sent 83 Bible Records, as follows:
From Bible Earliest date	From Bible Earliest date
William Giddins	William Capers Harrell
william Gluums	william Capers Harren 1704
Benjamin Jones	Andrew J. Willbanks1794
John G. Crow	James M. Brooks, Sr1845
Mrs. H. A. Dockins	W. W. Berry
Shade Alley	(1, 1, 1)
Shade Alley	Shade Alley
David Hall Porter	William Hardwick family1760
Lott Warren1856	Lott Warren1797
Edward Williams & E. F. Starr. 1780	Edward Williams & E E Starr 1846
Howard F. Meixsel	William C. Daniel
Barnard Hill	William C. Daniel
John Joyce	Iacoh W Wheeler 1848
John Joyce 1045	Schmidt family 1810
Francis Yonge Glover	Taralia family 1859
John Stewart1803	William Fisher
Herrin-Carpenter	William Fisher
Hesekiah Forrester	Barry
Daniel Sessions1826	Stribling-Wilkinson
Gilliam Wilbanke 1811	Peter Tatum
Gilliam Wilbanks	Powell Blair
S T Omena 1904	Powell Blair
S. J. Owens	Villiam Clark
Littleton M. Cash1700	John M. Crandell
Lewis Butler1795	
Cincinnatus Herrin1851	Elijah L. Duckett
Joseph D. House1840	Hamilton Wynn
Daniel Falknor	Hanny P Straight 1867
Landers family 1871	Harry R. Straight
Landers family	Kinsey family
Hobson family	Charles W. Landers.     1843       Elijah L. Duckett.     1843       Hamilton Wynn.     1802       Harry R. Straight.     1867       Kinsey family.     1827       Hobson ffamily.     1850
Elmo Washington Landers	
Franks family1881	
Mrs. Mary Kesler Strange	Charles W Landers 1863
Joseph B. R. Frankum 1800	Maulin family
William Hames 1800	William Fisher
William Hames	william Fisher
Bilor Dorbor Lordon 1000	Andrew Gailey
Riley Parker Jordan	James
Riley Parker Jordan	James
Riley Parker Jordan	James         1859           Calvin         Crew         1833           Thomas         F. Jones         1817
Riley Parker Jordan     1860       Gray Crowe     1793       Jason A. Dover     1823       William M. Winters     1816	James
Riley Parker Jordan     1860       Gray Crowe     1793       Jason A. Dover     1823       William M. Winters     1816	James 1859 Calvin Crew. 1853 Thomas F. Jones. 1817 Bowen family. 1764 Science Series 1857
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813	James 1859 Calvin Crew. 1853 Thomas F. Jones. 1817 Bowen family. 1764 Science Series 1857
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1843	James 1859 Calvin Crew. 1853 Thomas F. Jones. 1817 Bowen family. 1764 Science Series 1857
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785	James 1859 Calvin Crew. 1853 Thomas F. Jones. 1817 Bowen family. 1764 Science Series 1857
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary, M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820	James 1859 Calvin Crew. 1853 Thomas F. Jones. 1817 Bowen family. 1764 Science Series 1857
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751	James         1859           Calvin Crew.         1833           Thomas F. Jones.         1817           Bowen family.         1764           Solomon Squier.         1851           J. L. Gillespie.         1822           Henry Ball.         1811           G. W. Barker.         1797           Prunal Truitt.         1795
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851	James         1859           Calvin Crew.         1833           Thomas F. Jones.         1817           Bowen family.         1764           Solomon Squier.         1851           J. L. Gillespie.         1822           Henry Ball.         1811           G. W. Barker.         1797           Prunal Truitt.         1795           Chennault-Snelson         1800
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851	James         1859           Calvin Crew.         1833           Thomas F. Jones.         1817           Bowen family.         1764           Solomon Squier.         1851           J. L. Gillespie.         1822           Henry Ball.         1811           G. W. Barker.         1797           Prunal Truitt.         1795           Chennault-Snelson         1800
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo	James         1859           Calvin Crew.         1833           Thomas F. Jones.         1817           Bowen family.         1764           Solomon Squier.         1822           Henry Ball.         1822           Henry Ball.         1811           G. W. Barker.         1797           Prunal Truitt.         1795           Chennault-Snelson         1800           ws:         Tombstones Listed
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo	James         1859           Calvin Crew.         1833           Thomas F. Jones.         1817           Bowen family.         1764           Solomon Squier.         1822           Henry Ball.         1822           Henry Ball.         1811           G. W. Barker.         1797           Prunal Truitt.         1795           Chennault-Snelson         1800           ws:         Tombstones Listed
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery	James         1859           Calvin Crew.         1833           Thomas F. Jones.         1817           Bowen family.         1764           Solomon Squier.         1817           J. L. Gillespie.         1822           Henry Ball.         1822           Henry Ball.         1811           G. W. Barker.         1797           Prunal Truitt.         1795           Chennault-Snelson         1800           ws:         Tombstones Listed           anks County         13
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery	James         1859           Calvin Crew.         1833           Thomas F. Jones.         1817           Bowen family.         1764           Solomon Squier.         1817           J. L. Gillespie.         1822           Henry Ball.         1822           Henry Ball.         1811           G. W. Barker.         1797           Prunal Truitt.         1795           Chennault-Snelson         1800           ws:         Tombstones Listed           anks County         13
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery	James         1859           Calvin Crew.         1833           Thomas F. Jones.         1817           Bowen family.         1764           Solomon Squier.         1817           J. L. Gillespie.         1822           Henry Ball.         1822           Henry Ball.         1811           G. W. Barker.         1797           Prunal Truitt.         1795           Chennault-Snelson         1800           ws:         Tombstones Listed           anks County         13
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Ison graveyard, Spalding County         From Cash and Moss cemetery Banks	James       1859         Calvin Crew       1833         Thomas F. Jones       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier       1851         J. L. Gillespie       1822         Henry Ball       1811         G. W. Barker       1797         Prunal Truitt       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County       1         h and Gainesville       16         County       7
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Cash and Moss cemetery, Banks         From Broad River Church centery, B         From Broad River Church centery	James         1859           Calvin Crew         1833           Thomas F. Jones         1817           Bowen family         1764           Solomon Squier         1851           J. L. Gillespie         1822           Henry Ball         1811           G. W. Barker         1797           Prunal Truitt         1795           Chennault-Snelson         1800           ws :         Tombstones Listed           anks County         13           h and Gainesville         16           County         2
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Ison graveyard, Spalding County         From Cash and Moss cemetery, Banks         From Broad River Church cemetery.         From Harmony Rantist Course	James       1859         Calvin Crew.       1833         Thomas F. Jones.       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier.       1821         J. L. Gillespie.       1822         Henry Ball.       1811         G. W. Barker.       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County.       13         h and Gainesville.       16         County.       7         rv       2
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Ison graveyard, Spalding County         From Cash and Moss cemetery, Banks         From Broad River Church cemetery.         From Harmony Rantist Course	James       1859         Calvin Crew.       1833         Thomas F. Jones.       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier.       1821         J. L. Gillespie.       1822         Henry Ball.       1811         G. W. Barker.       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County.       13         h and Gainesville.       16         County.       7         rv       2
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Ison graveyard, Spalding County         From Cash and Moss cemetery, Banks         From Broad River Church cemetery.         From Harmony Rantist Course	James       1859         Calvin Crew.       1833         Thomas F. Jones.       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier.       1821         J. L. Gillespie.       1822         Henry Ball.       1811         G. W. Barker.       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County.       13         h and Gainesville.       16         County.       7         rv       2
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truit       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo       From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Loatherwood Church cemetery, Banks       From Broad River Church cemetery         From Broad River Church cemetery, Sanks       From Harmony Baptist Church cemetery, server Grow Wofford cemetery, four miles eas	James       1859         Calvin Crew       1833         Thomas F. Jones       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier       1851         J. L. Gillespie       1822         Henry Ball       1811         G. W. Barker       1797         Prunal Truitt       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County       13         h and Gainesville       16         County       2         ry       2         ren miles east of Cornelia       6         t of Baldwin       3
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truit       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo       From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Loatherwood Church cemetery, Banks       From Broad River Church cemetery         From Broad River Church cemetery, Sanks       From Harmony Baptist Church cemetery, server Grow Wofford cemetery, four miles eas	James       1859         Calvin Crew       1833         Thomas F. Jones       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier       1851         J. L. Gillespie       1822         Henry Ball       1811         G. W. Barker       1797         Prunal Truitt       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County       13         h and Gainesville       16         County       2         ry       2         ren miles east of Cornelia       6         t of Baldwin       3
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truit       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo       From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Loatherwood Church cemetery, Banks       From Broad River Church cemetery         From Broad River Church cemetery, Sanks       From Harmony Baptist Church cemetery, server Grow Wofford cemetery, four miles eas	James       1859         Calvin Crew       1833         Thomas F. Jones       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier       1851         J. L. Gillespie       1822         Henry Ball       1811         G. W. Barker       1797         Prunal Truitt       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County       13         h and Gainesville       16         County       2         ry       2         ren miles east of Cornelia       6         t of Baldwin       3
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truit       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo       From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Loatherwood Church cemetery, Banks       From Broad River Church cemetery         From Broad River Church cemetery, Sanks       From Harmony Baptist Church cemetery, server Grow Wofford cemetery, four miles eas	James       1859         Calvin Crew       1833         Thomas F. Jones       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier       1851         J. L. Gillespie       1822         Henry Ball       1811         G. W. Barker       1797         Prunal Truitt       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County       13         h and Gainesville       16         County       2         ry       2         ren miles east of Cornelia       6         t of Baldwin       3
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truit       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Slass P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Cash and Moss cemetery, Banks         From Broad River Church cemetery         From Harmony Baptist Church cemetery, see         From Small cemetery, one mile east of         From Harmony Church cemetery, Banl         From Harmony Church cemetery, Banl	James       1859         Calvin Crew       1833         Thomas F. Jones       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier       1851         J. L. Gillespie       1822         Henry Ball       1811         G. W. Barker       1797         Prunal Truitt       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County       13         1       n and Gainesville       16         County       7         ry       2         ry       8         ren miles east of Cornelia       6         t of Baldwin       3         Leatherwood Church       5         ts County       20         r Cornelia       12         as County       19
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truit       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Slass P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Cash and Moss cemetery, Banks         From Broad River Church cemetery         From Harmony Baptist Church cemetery, see         From Small cemetery, one mile east of         From Harmony Church cemetery, Banl         From Harmony Church cemetery, Banl	James       1859         Calvin Crew       1833         Thomas F. Jones       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier       1851         J. L. Gillespie       1822         Henry Ball       1811         G. W. Barker       1797         Prunal Truitt       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County       13         1       n and Gainesville       16         County       7         ry       2         ry       8         ren miles east of Cornelia       6         t of Baldwin       3         Leatherwood Church       5         ts County       20         r Cornelia       12         as County       19
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truit       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Slass P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Cash and Moss cemetery, Banks         From Broad River Church cemetery         From Harmony Baptist Church cemetery, see         From Small cemetery, one mile east of         From Harmony Church cemetery, Banl         From Harmony Church cemetery, Banl	James       1859         Calvin Crew       1833         Thomas F. Jones       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier       1851         J. L. Gillespie       1822         Henry Ball       1811         G. W. Barker       1797         Prunal Truitt       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County       13         h and Gainesville       16         County       2         ry       2         ren miles east of Cornelia       6         t of Baldwin       3
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Ison graveyard, Spalding County         From Cash and Moss cemetery, Banks         From Broad River Church cemetery         From Harmony Baptist Church cemetery, set         From Small cemetery, one mile east of         From Small cemetery, one mile east of         From Moford ccmetery, near         From Marmony Church cemetery, Bank         From Harmony Church cemetery, Bank	James       1859         Calvin Crew       1833         Thomas F. Jones       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier       1851         J. L. Gillespie       1822         Henry Ball       1811         G. W. Barker       1797         Prunal Truitt       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County       1         h and Gainesville       16         County       2         ry       2         ren miles east of Cornelia       6         t of Baldwin       3         Leatherwood Church       5         ss County       20         r Cornelia       12         ss County       19         vington, sent nine Bible Records as fol-
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Ison graveyard, Spalding County         From Cash and Moss cemetery, Banks         From Broad River Church cemetery         From Harmony Baptist Church cemetery, set         From Small cemetery, one mile east of         From Small cemetery, one mile east of         From Moford ccmetery, near         From Marmony Church cemetery, Bank         From Harmony Church cemetery, Bank	James       1859         Calvin Crew       1833         Thomas F. Jones       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier       1851         J. L. Gillespie       1822         Henry Ball       1811         G. W. Barker       1797         Prunal Truitt       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County       1         h and Gainesville       16         County       2         ry       2         ren miles east of Cornelia       6         t of Baldwin       3         Leatherwood Church       5         ss County       20         r Cornelia       12         ss County       19         vington, sent nine Bible Records as fol-
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truit       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Cash and Moss cemetery, Banks         From Broad River Church cemetery         From Broad River Church cemetery, ser         From Mofford cemetery, one mile east of         From Harmony Church cemetery, nea         From New Hope Church cemetery, nea         From Harmony Church cemetery, nea         From Bible       Earliest date         Anderson family       1790	James       1859         Calvin Crew       1833         Thomas F. Jones       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier       1851         J. L. Gillespie       1822         Henry Ball       1811         G. W. Barker       1797         Prunal Truitt       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County       1         h and Gainesville       16         County       2         ry       2         ren miles east of Cornelia       6         t of Baldwin       3         Leatherwood Church       5         ss County       20         r Cornelia       12         ss County       19         vington, sent nine Bible Records as fol-
Riley Parker Jordan       1860         Gray Crowe       1793         Jason A. Dover       1823         William M. Winters       1816         B. T. Biggers       1813         Mary M. Turk Chambers       1848         William Turk       1785         Thaddeus C. S. Truitt       1820         Shade Alley       1751         Silas P. Squiers       1851         Also 112 Tombstone Records as follo         From Leatherwood Church cemetery, B         From Ison graveyard, Spalding County         From Cash and Moss cemetery, Banks         From Broad River Church cemetery.         From Marmony Baptist Church cemetery, set         From Small cemetery, one mile east of         From Small cemetery, one mile east of         From Marmony Church cemetery, Bank         From New Hope Church cemetery, Bank         From Harmony Church cemetery, Bank	James       1859         Calvin Crew       1833         Thomas F. Jones       1817         Bowen family       1764         Solomon Squier       1851         J. L. Gillespie       1822         Henry Ball       1811         G. W. Barker       1797         Prunal Truitt       1795         Chennault-Snelson       1800         ws:       Tombstones Listed         anks County       13         h and Gainesville       16         County       1         h and Gainesville       16         County       2         ry.       8         ree miles east of Cornelia       6         sc county       20         r Cornelia       12         ss County       19         vington, sent nine Bible Records as fol-

George Loyd	Washington Loy	d	
Jeremiah Lumsden1753	James Stockdale	(N. (	2.)1754
Miles G. Turner, Sr1780			
The Button Gwinnett Chapter of Col	umbus sent eight	Bible 1	Records as fol-

The Button Gwinnett Chapter, of Columbus, sent eight Bible Records as forlows:

From Bible	Earliest date	From Bible	Earliest date
Michael Chlhoun		Otis Jenkins Calho	un1860
Jesse A. Goodwin		Briggs-Wright	
Wilhelm-Wright		William DeLoach	
Cary Cox		Joshua Moore	
The Oglethorpe Cha	apter, of Columbus,	sent seven Bible Ree	cords as follows:
From Bible		From Bible	Earliest date
Joseph Cooper		Thornton-Smith	
Dillingham		Isaac Holland	
James Dunlap John	son1806	Benjamin Henry	
William Griggs			

Also 50 Tombstone Records as follows:

The Bainbridge Chapter sent seven Bible Records as follows:

From Bible Earliest date	From Bible Earliest date
Jonas Rudisill, Jr	Samuel King1749
George Thomas Stribling	Kindrick-Mound family
Jeremiah Osburn	John Morgan
Jonas Rudisill, Sr. 1729	10-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-11-1

The Stephens Hopkins Chapter, of Marshallville, sent six Bible Records as follows 2

From Bible	Earliest	date	From Bible	Earliest date
William H.	Lee	1792	John Read	
Jesse Rice		.1791		Buckner
			Augustus Fran	klin Williams
The James	Monroe Chapter, of	Forsy	th, sent six Bibl	e Records as follows:
From Bible	Earliest	date	From Bible	Earliest date
Dunn famil	y	1791	Archibald H.	Sneed family1786
Dunn family	records	.1815	Daniel Ponder	r
John McMie	cle	1736	Samuel Shi	

Also 119 Tombstone Records as follows:

Also 119 Tomostono Records as follows:
Tombstones listed
From Oakland cemetery, Forsyth, Ga
From Taylor cemetery at Smars, Ga
From Park family graveyard, near Brent
From Smith and Holland graveyard
From McCowen cemetery, Monroe County
From Salem M. E. Church, South, cemetery, near Bolingbroke
From batem M. B. Church, bouth, centerery, near bonngbroke
Also 67 names from Will Book A Forsyth Ga Monroe County from 1894-

Also 67 names from Will Book A, Forsyth Ga., Monroe County, from 1824-1847.

The John Ball Chapte	r, of Irwinton,	sent five Bible Recor	rds as follows :
From Bible	Earliest date	From Bible	Earliest date
Samuel Meredith,		James E. Boothe, S	r1806
Hughs family		Hugh I. Dennard.	
Hughes family			

Also six Tombstone Records as follows:

			Tombstones listed
From Frank's Place	raveyard, 1% mil	es from Bradley, Ga.	
From John Bradley's	Place graveyard, 2	2¾ miles from Bradl	ey, Ga 5
The Stephen Heard	Chapter, Elberton	, sent four Bible Re	cords as follows:
From Bible	Earliest date	From Bible	Earliest date
Thomas Jones		R. P. Carter	1858
Elijah Benson Norma	in, Sr1794	Williamson Rogers.	
The LaGrange Chap	pter sent three Bi	ble Records as follow	ws:
From Bible	Earliest date	From Bible	Earliest date
Harris-Sasnett		Ayres-Cook	
Alexander Lane			

The Fielding Lewis Chapter, of Marietta, sent three Bible records as follows: The Roanoke Chapter, of Lumpkin, sent three Bible Records as follows: From Bible Earliest date From Bible Earliest date Cleveland family 1792 Morton family 1809 Also 52 Tombstone Records as follows: Tombstones listed 5 The Lanahassee Chapter, of Buena Vista, sent three Bible records as follows: Also 137 Tombstone Records as follows: Tombstones listed From Pineville cemetery, Buena Vista..... 23 The Dorothy Walton Chapter, of Dawson, sent two Bible Records as follows: November, 1856. The Adam Brinson Chapter, of Swainsboro, sent one Bible Record as follows: Earliest date From Bible Also 68 Tombstone Records as follows: Tombstones listed The Lamar-LaFayette Chapter, of Barnesville, sent one Bible Record as follows : From Bible Earliest date The John Benson Chapter, of Hartwell, sent one Bible Record as follows: From Bible Earliest date Miss Alice May Massengale sent one Bible Record as follows: From Bible Earliest date The Etowah Chapter of Cartersville, sent 156 Tombstone Records as follows: Tombstones listed The Baron DeKalb Chapter, of Decatur, sent 146 Tombstone Records as follows : Tombstones listed 

 From Decatur, Ga., cemetery.
 91

 From Decatur, Ga., cemetery.
 35

 From Old Harmony churchyard, Laurens County, S. C.
 20

 The Hawkinsville Chapter sent four Tombstone Records as follows: Tombstones listed From George Walker cemetery, Bleckley County..... ..... 4

#### CENTURY OF PROGRESS INTERNATIONAL EXPOSITION **CHICAGO**, 1933

#### Mrs. James D. Cromer

Gov. John Milledge Chapter of Dalton, Mrs. Clarence H. Fracker, Regent, reports that a majority of her members attended the Exposition.

John Clarke Chapter of Social Circle, Mrs. Clara B. Funk, Regent, reports seven members attending.

Barnard Trail Chapter of Sylvester, Mrs. I. H. Mann, Regent, reports five members attending.

Atlanta Chapter of Atlanta, reports seven attending, including Mrs. John M. Slaton, who was there on Flag Day, June 14, when the National Board met in Chicago.

#### COLLECTION AND PRESERVATION OF FAMILY BIBLE RECORDS

## Mrs. Eli A. Thomas

The John Houston Chapter, of Thomaston, wins the prize with 92 Bible Records sent in.

Honorable mention to Tomochichi Chapter, of Clarkesville, with 83 Bible Records sent.

#### **Bible Records by Chapters**

92 from John Houston Chapter, of Thomaston. 83 from Tomochichi Chapter, of Clarkesville.

9 from Sergeant Newton Chapter, of Covington.

8 from Button Gwinnett Chapter, of Columbus.

7 from Oglethorpe Chapter, of Columbus.

7 from Bainbridge Chapter.

6 from Stephen Hopkins Chapter, of Marshallville.

- 6 from James Monroe Chapter, of Forsyth.
- from John Ball Chapter, of Irwinton. 5
- 4 from Stephen Heard Chapter, of Elberton.
- 3 from LaGrange Chapter.

3 from Fielding Lewis Chapter, of Marietta.

3 from Roanoke Chapter, of Lumpkin.

2 from Lanahassee Chapter, of Buena Vista.

1 from Adam Brinson Chapter, of Swainsboro.

1 from Lamar-LaFayette Chapter, of Barnesville. 1 from John Benson Chapter, of Hartwell.

- 1 from Miss Alice May Massengale, of Atlanta.
- 242 total number of Family Bible Records. 827 total number of Tombstone Records from 31 cemeteries.
- 67 Wills listed from Will Book A, Monroe County, Georgia, 1824-1847.

### CONSTITUTION HALL MEMORY BOOK

#### Mrs. John Edward Lane

The Constitution Hall Memory Book Committee was established in 1933. The object of it was to collect from loyal Daughters everywhere contributions of old and useless gold to be melted and wrought into clasps for the Memory Book in which will be inscribed the names of all donors both to it and Constitution Hall, and to

be kept there for all time. The more that is given the more the book will be embellished, with, perhaps, gold corners and even the back binding. It is in vision to have the binders made of leather or rare brocade. It will be a thing of beauty and a symbol of the united love and loyalty of patriotic Daughters.

I thank the chapters most sincerely for their generous response to my appeal in this worthy work, and the National Chairman, Mrs. Brosseau, once President-General, wishes me to say to you that she is "deeply grateful to the State of Georgia for all that it is doing now as well as its work of the past."

The estimated amount contributed, \$154.56.

## CONSTITUTION AND MAGNA CHARTA DAY

### Mrs. E. C. McDowell

Magna Charta stands for the development of human liberty and self-government for us.

It was not a constitution or instrument of government as we understand it; it simply exchanged the unwritten customs and traditional rights of Englishmen, attained through centuries of struggle for the restraint of written law imposed upon the personal despotism of the King, and secured to all Englishmen their rights to free and unbought justice, to security of persons and property and to good government.

The American Government was built upon the principles of Magna Charta.

Our Constitution was built by the founders upon the rock of eternal verities, not upon sifting sands but on the foundation of the God-given rights of liberty and justice. Its principles have been slowly establishing themselves since the earliest known history of the Anglo-Saxon race until now. For imbedded in the Constitution lies the great successor of Magna Charta, lies the whole sum and substance of Americanism.

Fifty-seven chapters observed this date.

#### CONSERVATION AND THRIFT

## Mrs. Frank A. Dennis

The Georgia Society Daughters of the American Revolution have cooperated with all welfare agencies. Forty-five chapters reported Conservation and Thrift Chairmen; 636 Daughters aided in Red Cross community drives and other welfare work; 437 more engaged in other forms of relief work. Jobs were given the unemployed, destitute aided, lunch rooms established, school lunches prepared, clothes and books for needy children provided, circulating libraries established for mill villages, charity wards in hospitals given showers and books, games given juvenile detention home.

Amount of money given for aid of human conservation, \$1,852.00.

Second only in importance is conservation of natural resources. Our Daughters last year planted 6,345 trees, preserved many more, planted shrubs, bulbs and vines for beauty in parks, on highways, library and school grounds. A drive was made for the elimination of obnoxious weeds and to prevent forest fires and careless burning of fields and woods. Bird sanctuaries have been established.

Four thousand fifty dollars and fifty-seven cents was spent in all forms of conservation last year.

Georgia's outstanding work in conservation is of course our Nancy Hart Park and preservation of Meadow Garden.

Three historic Georgia trees with their pictures are in the files

in Memorial Continental Hall. They are: Laniers Oak, Lovers Oak, and Wesley Oak, all in Brunswick.

In November I wrote urging use of ligustrum, pine and cedar rather than holly, and asked all daily papers to carry an editorial commending the preservation of holly and wood plants. At your chairman's request the Game and Fish Department of the State sent bulletins of interest on wild life to all chapter Regents.

## CO-OPERATIVE RELATIONS BETWEEN C. A. R. AND D. A. R. Mrs. Young Harris Yarbrough

In October, I sent a letter to every Regent, not now sponsoring a C. A. R. Society, urging them to appoint one of their members, who would act as Organizing President, also to give one meeting during the year to C. A. R. work.

Our State Regent has shown great interest and has aided the Her chapter, the Elijah Junior Organization in every way possible. Clarke, sponsored the organization of the Count D'Estaing Society. Others cooperating with societies which they have sponsored are Atlanta Chapter, Joseph Habersham Chapter, Atlanta; Baron DeKalb Chapter, Decatur; LaGrange Chapter, LaGrange; Mary Hammond Washington Chapter, Macon; Henry Walton Chapter, Madison; Nancy Hart Chapter, Milledgeville; Savannah Chapter, Savannah; Jonathan Bryan Chapter, Waycross.

I have sent to other chapters, necessary information for the organization of C. A. R. Societies, in reply to requests. The next few years will determine who will take possession of the youth of America. Shall it be patriots or radicals?

## CORRECT USE OF FLAG Mrs. John M. Slaton

Chapters reporting, 49; number having Flag Chair, 33; number whose members know Pledge of Allegiance to Flag, 96; (a) printed in year book, 5; (b) repeated at meetings, 49.

Number chapters originating patriotic decoration, 5; number chapters presenting Flags, 3 chapters (eight flags).

List to whom: one to court room, two to schools, one school receiving five (Milledgeville).

Number wishing Flag lessons, 6; number presenting Flag Codes, 27; to members, 4; to others (22 to schools, not framed, one to court room, framed; to all Regents attending last Conference).

Lectures in schools and in women's clubs, and addresses on Wash-

ington's Birthday (used "Star-Spangled Banner" booklet). Letters written, 97; how many Georgia D. A. R. own Flag? All. Appreciation of Mrs. Arthur D. Wall's booklet.

## COUNTY HISTORIES

#### Mrs. Alfred Noel Murray

In closing my two years as chairman of County Histories, I feel that we have gone forward with the work for each year there has been a gain. Up to date the D. A. R. chapters have assisted in having 17 histories printed: Hart, Cobb, Dougherty, DeKalb, Fulton, Colquitt, Bartow, Lamar, Marion, Crisp, Dodge, Irwin, Wilkinson, Walker, Macon, Coweta, Upson; two in hands of printers; 15 manuscripts: Terrell, Houston, Laurens, Jackson, Spalding, Pulaski, Mitchell, Putnam, Emanuel, Washington, McDuffie, Warren, Ware,

Elbert, Hancock; seven outlined: Decatur, Early, Butts, Troup, Baldwin, Wilkes, Barrow; 12 collecting material: Walton, Turner, Clarke, Screven, Stewart, Sumter, Randolph, Jones, Glynn, Hall, Rockdale, Morgan.

## D. A. R. FOREST PARK

#### Mrs. T. O. Tabor, Jr.

This year a reproduction of Nancy Hart's Log Cabin has been built on the original home site at a cost of \$250.00. The cabin has an old field stone chimney, on the outside of which a bronze tablet has been placed by the Stephen Heard and Nancy Hart Chapters to mark this historic home site.

The members of the State D. A. R. Executive Board visited the Forest Park in October when they were entertained by the Stephen Heard Chapter of Elberton. At this time pupils of the Nancy Hart Memorial School presented a pageant at the Log Cabin depicting the life of Nancy Hart, the visit of the British soldiers, and her capture of them. The red coats of the soldiers in the woods around the cabin made a very colorful and realistic scene.

The road through the park is in good condition and the shrubbery adds much to the beauty of the grounds. Many native shrubs have been planted at the entrance and along the driveway.

We are indeed grateful to the 51 chapters making contributions to the D. A. R. Forest Park which totaled \$179.10 this year.

## D. A. R. MAGAZINE

## Mrs. Ober D. Warthen

Your D. A. R. Magazine Committee is happy to announce that Georgia is "holding her own" as to subscriptions and expects a decided increase next year.

The Magazine has, during the past year, carried four articles of special interest to Georgia D. A. R.—three of them with pictures. The June, 1933, issue had an excellent summary of the Thirty-

fifth Georgia Conference, written by Mrs. W. E. Mann. The July (Century of Progress) number carried a picture and ar-

The July (Century of Progress) humber carried a picture and article from one of our hostess chapters, the Commodore Richard Dale, written by the Regent, Mrs. W. C. Fripp, about a Colonial sitting room arranged by the chapter for the American Legion Benefit Fair and which won first prize.

The October issue told of a meeting of the Burkhalter Chapter at Warrenton, at which Georgia's two Real Daughters, Mrs. Mary Pool Newsome and Miss Sarah Pool, unveiled a government marker at the grave of their father, Henry Pool, a Revolutionary soldier. The picture shows them seated beside the beautifully decorated grave.

November's pages were graced by the beauty of our State Regent, Mrs. McCurry, and her plans for Georgia.

Mrs. J. H. Nicholson's article on the Georgia Bicentennnial is scheduled to appear in the forthcoming issue. The State Capitol building of Georgia will embellish the cover of the November release and I have been advised that within the next few months a picture and short article on the Georgia Bookplate will appear.

Daughters, let each of us subscribe for our official publication and keep in touch with the work of our wonderful organization.

## ELLIS ISLAND

## Mrs. C. A. Rudolph

During the year Georgia chapters have given more attention to this department than during the previous year. I wish to thank all members for their loyalty and response. Reports show that 32 chapters have paid \$55.72 as their quotas, two of them having paid in excess; 20 chapters report Ellis Island programs and 20 boxes sent with an estimated value of \$103.85. This shows the importance of the work.

If each member could serve as State Chairman for one term, the importance of the work would be understood and great would be the response. My service as State Chairman, in addition to the honor, has given me much pleasure and the satisfaction of knowing that we have helped, in a measure, those less fortunate than ourselves.

### FANNIE TRAMMELL MEMORIAL FUND

### Mrs. H. L. Jarvis

#### Mrs. W. E. Mann, Co-chairman

Our collections have been unusually good under the circumstances and we are glad to report a large bank balance that is almost entirely promised for the coming year to students.

The following is our report for 1933:

Balance in bank last report, March, 1933, \$86.21; money repaid and interest, \$872.07; total, \$958.28.

Eight loans to students, and tax, \$542.66; balance in bank. \$415.62; total, \$958.28. The Fannie Trammell Memorial Loan Fund, 1933, \$5,108.38;

interest in 1933, less tax, \$27.41; total, \$5,135.79. Total outstanding loans to 38 students, \$4,720.17; balance in bank, February 15, 1934, \$415.62; total, \$5,135.79.

#### FLAG DAY

### Mrs. Frank T. Kidd

The observance of Flag Day, June 14, had its usual response by the Georgia D. A. R. Fitting programs were put on in the chapters, and the flag displayed on dates that the book gives on Correct Use of the Flag. Your chairman sent to the official page in the Atlanta Constitution an article stressing the importance of Flag Day and asking every chapter to cooperate in its celebration. I have mailed every Regent dates given in the book on Correct Use of the Flag.

I consider it a privilege to have been the one to remind our 96 chapters to observe Flag Day and I have received splendid reports from 58 chapters.

I must make mention of the Oglethorpe Chapter, with Mrs. Geo. Burrus, Jr., as Regent; Flag Day was observed with a luncheon and a wonderful program.

#### FORESTRY

#### Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney

My work as Forestry Chairman has been covered so fully in the chapter reports and the Blanche McFarland Gaffney trophy report that it is unnecessary to emphasize it further.

## FILING AND LENDING HISTORICAL PAPERS AND PATRIOTIC LECTURES AND LANTERN SLIDES COMMITTEE

### Mrs. J. L. Beeson

The papers received before the expiration of the date, February 1, 1934, were 31. A few have come later.

Most of the failures for non-acceptance come from not obeying the rules. These are:

## **Preparation of Manuscripts**

1. All papers from a state should pass through the hands of the State Chairman. Those papers approved by her are forwarded to the National Chairman and her assistants.

2. Papers must be plainly and neatly typed on one side of the paper only. Remember to leave a  $1\frac{1}{2}$  inch margin at the top of each page.

3. Use white medium weight paper, 8½ x 11 inches.

4. Fasten at the top of the paper. Do not tie or put covers on new papers; it increases postage charges, and all papers are backed when filed.

5. At the top of the first page of each paper give the name of the writer, chapter and state, and date of writing.

6. We request two copies of each paper—the original and one carbon.

7. Do not send genealogical papers; they belong to another division.

8. Pictures and programs are not accepted. The space is limited. Your chairman has had requests for papers from teachers and club women other than D. A. R., but Georgia has no state bureau for keeping or lending of historical papers. Your chairman would recommend the establishment of a Lending Bureau as early as possible, and also the establishment of the Traveling Genealogical Library. The topics of the historical papers received are:

Armistice Day; LaFayette; Washington's Appointments to the First Cabinet; Prose-poem, Moina Michael; Thomas Woodrow Wilson; Woodrow Wilson, His Speeches and Messages; The First Election; Thanksgiving; Homes of Distinguished Cherokee Indians; A History Story of Milledgeville, an Old Georgia Capital.

Old Oglethorpe University, Alma Mater of Sidney Lanier; Old Fort Wilkinson; History of the Moravian Mission at Spring Place, Georgia; Crawford W. Long; Lincoln and Davis; "The Epic of America;" Charles Holmes Herty; "The Rise of Civilization;" Ideals of Citizenship; James Edward Oglethorpe; Founding the Colony.

Georgia's Part in the Revolution; Immigrants and Early Settlements of America; Franklin, the Constitution Maker; Georgia Before the Coming of Oglethorpe; Alexander Hamilton Stephens; What Does It Mean to Be An American?

The chapters sending historical papers were: John Ball, 4; Barnard Trail, 1; Bonaventure, 7; Elijah Clarke, 6; Nancy Hart, 5; Oglethorpe, 5; George Walton, 3.

#### GIRL HOME MAKERS

## Mrs. Lena Felker Lewis

Your State Chairman mailed a copy of the Girl Home Makers' Manual to each chapter in Georgia, requesting that a Girl Home Makers' Club be organized in every chapter, or that each chapter interest itself in some phase of the work as outlined in this manual. A number of chapters reported splendid work along these lines

during the past year, and show an increasing interest in real home making activities among our girls.

The several organizations already working in this field have been assisted in their activities by our D. A. R. chapters, since cooperation and not rivalry is always the spirit displayed by those engaged in good works. The following chapters have reported definite activity, the majority giving prizes for work among the Girl Home Makers: Oglethorpe Chapter, Columbus; Button Gwinnett Chapter, Columbus; Gov. John Milledge Chapter, Dalton; LaGrange Chapter, LaGrange; Stephen Heard Chapter, Elberton; Matthew Talbot Chapter, Monroe; John Laurens Chapter, Dublin; Mary Hammond Washington Chapter, Macon; Augusta Chapter, Augusta; Barnard Trail Chapter, Sylvester.

A number of chapters have promised to take up the work next year.

#### GEORGIA D. A. R. STUDENT LOAN FUND

#### Mrs. Howard H. McCall

The work this year has been outstanding because it has succeeded so well despite the financial stress of the times, and the inability of many students to repay loans. The salaries of many have been reduced so much that it had seemed impossible to pay, but the payments have been made, and the chairmen were thus enabled to respond to the many applications made this year for loans, and all have splendid reports to bring you.

It gives me pleasure to bring the report of amount now on hand in the five state funds.

World War Memorial Fund, \$7,825.37; Fannie Trammell Memorial Fund, \$5,135.79; May Erwin Talmadge Scholarship Fund, \$5,699.46; Sarah Berrien Casey Morgan Memorial Fund, \$210.00; Valdosta Loan Fund, \$5,633.21; the Brunswick Chapter reports a Student Loan Fund of \$500.00.

The David Emanuel Chapter reports an increase in the Marion Sibley Wylie Student Loan Fund.

It gives me pleasure to quote from the report to 1933 Congress of the National Chairman of the Student Loan Fund Committee, Mrs. Walter Tobey of Ohio, as follows:

"The honor of being the first state to establish a Student Loan Fund falls to the State of Georgia, where a state fund was proposed in 1916, and established February 13, 1917. In 16 years the total of state and local funds in the State of Georgia has grown to \$39,097.36, the largest of any state in the Union, and more than 137 boys and girls have been assisted in securing a higher education. This record is one of the brightest stars in the history of achievements of the Daughters of the American Revolution in Georgia. It is a great contribution to the citizenship of the state and the Union, and it liberates a powerful force reflected in the leadership taken by the boys and girls who have received this timely aid, without which their present position would have been impossible."

Only one fund remains unfinished: the Sarah Berrien Casey Morgan Fund, a memorial to one of our most beloved leaders. We would like to finish this by the 1935 Conference. This is such worthwhile work.

## GEORGIA ROOM, ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, WASHINGTON Mrs. John D. Pope

It has been my pleasure to serve as chairman of the Georgia Room the past two years with Mrs. Julius Talmadge as co-chairman.

The Georgia Room is the main office in the Administration Building and is furnished as required.

During my term as chairman, we have placed a steel filing cabinet and desk chair as requested.

I have enjoyed serving you and in serving you, we serve our country.

### GEORGE WASHINGTON'S BIRTHDAY

### Miss Evelyn Cockrell

The George Washington Bicentennial is a thing of the past, but the spirit which made it such a success carries on.

Washington had so many virtues we can well emulate this observance of his birth by the D. A. R. is not only to us, but to the schools and civic organizations which join with us in the celebration. In this day when so many of our famous characters in history are being vilified in so-called historical novels and biographies it is fitting that we strive even harder to honor them ourselves and teach our children to honor them.

It has been a pleasure to be chairman of this committee and I wish to thank the 55 chapters who notified me of their observances of George Washington's Birthday.

### HELEN ROGERS FRANKLIN TROPHY

### Mrs. Jena C. Collier

Sufficient publicity concerning this trophy was given; notices were sent to state papers and cards were written to chapter regents.

In judging the papers submitted, the committee (100 per cent present) met on March 13, reviewed all reports and arrived at a decision.

May I say "thank you" now to the members on my committee for their help and earnest cooperation in judging the reports of the chapters.

I take pleasure in awarding this beautiful Helen Rogers Franklin Trophy which is given for general excellence to the Elijah Clarke Chapter, of Athens, whose outstanding activities are an inspiration to other chapters. Special mention is made of the John Houston Chapter, Thomaston; Oglethorpe Chapter, Columbus; Gov. David Emanuel Chapter, Swainsboro, and Baron DeKalb Chapter, of Decatur, for splendid work done.

## HISTORIC POST CARDS

### Mrs. C. E. Pittman

Four chapters have responded with a number of very interesting Historic Post Cards of local, state and nation-wide interest.

Elijah Clarke Chapter, Athens, 28 cards of Georgia and Florida scenes, also Virginia scenes of Washington's home and Thomas Jefferson's home and others of like interest. A descriptive booklet of Old Fort Marion and St. Augustine, Fla.

Hawkinsville Chapter, D. A. R., three post cards of the three memorial trees: the Magnolia tree to George Washington, planted in 1932; the Oak tree to Woodrow Wilson, planted in 1924; the Cedar tree to Oglethorpe, planted in 1933. All native trees. Erected on the western approach to Memorial Bridge over the Ocmulgee River.

Oglethorpe Chapter, Columbus, two post cards. One, the Memorial shaft in the Historical Triangle at Fort Benning; the other, marking the spot where Oglethorpe crossed the Chattahoochee River on an historic mission nearly two centuries ago.

Five cards from James Pittman Chapter, Commerce: Rainbow Falls, Montana; Sunset Over Black Rock, Salt Lake City, Utah; First House Built in Utah, now under pergalo on Temple Block, Salt Lake City; The Gates of the Mountain on the Missouri River, Montana; The City of Polson, Montana.

In the scrap book I have finished will be found the descriptive list of cards sent by Elijah Clarke Chapter, Athens. Also the Oglethorpe Chapter Year Book, with reproduction of original Seal of Georgia on front and back covers with description of Seal on inside of back cover.

I have finished the scrap book turned over to me by Mrs. Logan, and have completed one myself, using all post cards in my possession. Both scrap books will be given to Rhodes Memorial Hall at an early date.

Have written 25 letters and 20 postals.

#### IMMIGRANTS' MANUAL

#### Mrs. H. B. McMaster

Chapter reports show an increase of many activities, in distributing the Manual and having placed them in schools, libraries and other public places.

Would like to urge for the coming year individual instruction to those applying for citizenship in their locality, which is undoubtedly a step forward in presenting the Manual. See that it is used in our schools, thereby making better Americans of our own children; teaching the correct usage of our flag and more love for our country.

Wish to thank the many chapters who have used the Manuals in their meetings, and the many splendid radio programs which they have sponsored.

The members as a whole do not yet realize the value of this little book; am asking them to buy one and see that their chapter pays her 10 per cent per capita.

Chapters are requested to send all orders through the State Chairman, a charge for single copies, 20 cents each, in lots of 25 or more, 15 cents; in lots of 50 or more, 12 cents each; 100 or more, 10 cents. When ordering state purpose for which they are desired and the proposed method of distribution.

Number of Manuals reported distributed, 66; classes of Americanization, 2; radio and programs sponsored, 18; Manuals placed in schools and school libraries, 35; public libraries, 2; and many other activities which I failed to receive. More than 71 chapters paid per capita tax.

## INDIAN WELFARE AND CITIZENSHIP

## Mrs. J. Alva Davis

The Mary Hammond Washington Chapter D. A. R., Macon, had programs on Indians.

Dr. C. C. Harrold spoke on "Indians in Georgia Before Oglethorpe," at their October meeting and General Walter Harris spoke on "Indian Mounds in Old Ocmulgee Fields" at their February meeting.

The John Clarke Chapter, of Social Circle, has this report: At one of our meetings, government schools for Indians were discussed and Indian music was rendered.

The Elijah Clarke Chapter, of Athens, reports that one program was given to the study of "Georgia Indians and Legends," which was most instructive and interesting.

Roanoke Chapter, Lumpkin, reported that they always gave one meeting during the year to a program on Indians.

The Dorothy Walton Chapter, of Dawson, had an Indian program of songs, readings, etc., including "Indian Welfare and Citizenship."

Oglethorpe Chapter, of Columbus, reports that they are interested in Indian Welfare and that Columbus abounds in Indian lore, and that Chattahoochee, Cusseta, etc., are the results of Indian occupation during the early history of the city.

The General Daniel Stewart Chapter, of Perry, had a program on Indians, and their members were urged to give much time to the study of Indians.

#### INDEPENDENCE DAY

#### Mrs. James S. Wood

Independence Day, July 4, is always very generally celebrated, not only by the Georgia Daughters of the American Revolution but by all classes of citizens in our state. In the past, to ask if you celebrated this great anniversary of the Declaration of Independence was practically to ask an unnecessary question. However, it is well to ask this question, in these times, when there has come to the attention of our government considerable unpatrictic propaganda among persons striving to instill into the minds of American college students a feeling of unrest and general disrespect for the Constitution. The Daughters of the American Revolution must strive to instill into the rising generation a greater patrictism and pride of country, and must combat the evil influences that would disrupt our nation.

In observing Independence Day the real significance of the occasion should be stressed and the younger citizens should be encouraged to participate in the celebration, thus becoming better acquainted with the important historical fact and arousing in them greater patriotic interest. Ten chapters reported celebrations.

#### LAFAYETTE DAY

#### Mrs. Thomas W. Lee

As LaFayette's birthday should be observed at the first meeting of the chapters in the fall, in August I sent the following typed cards to the 96 chapter Regents in the state:

"As September 6 is the natal day of LaFayette, I am suggesting that at the meeting your chapter holds nearest this date, you include appropriate observance of this on your historic program. After the meeting please notify me that I may make my report."

I received up to March 8, 46 replies. Most reports were made as I suggested, right after the meeting, others straggled in all along, with quite a shower the last few days before my report was compiled.

Most chapters had papers or speakers giving high lights in the events in history, in which LaFayette played the important role.

The three Columbus chapters placed a wreath on the Memorial Shaft which they jointly erected in his honor, in addition to the historical program feature.

## LEGISLATION

#### **Miss Virginia Hardin**

The Committee on Legislation has endorsed the State Regent's suggestion that all teachers in our schools and colleges subscribe to the Oath of Allegiance. We go further and ask that all teachers be required to take that oath.

We also endorse the bill before our Congress, which should be known as the "Enabling Act." This act would be to enable the Congress to see that all states pass the amendment to do away with child labor. We also respectfully suggest that you each interview your candidates for legislative and other offices as to their position on the Child Labor Bill, which may be brought before the Legislature or the Congress.

We are in favor of our government enacting a law making kidnapping a capital offense.

We invite your cooperation in all matters pertinent to this work.

### LUCY COOK PEEL MEMORIAL Mrs. W. F. Dykes

The Lucy Cook Peel Memorial Committee has passed through another trying year financially. While the last book of Georgia Records published has been paid for the sales have been so small that little income from them has been realized. The appropriation of state, schools, and public libraries has been cut so materially, that few have been in a position to purchase books. Several hundred of Volume II are stored with The McGregor Company, in Athens, and large numbers of Volumes III and IV are packed in boxes and stored at North Fulton School. This is a fireproof building and through the courtesy of Mr. Dykes, no storage is charged —all books are insured.

We are not in a position to publish another volume until we dispose of these on hand. We must devise some plan to sell the books and return to the State D. A. R. treasury, the amount borrowed to pay Stein, the publisher of the last Volume. The only way we can help this committee is to have each chapter buy a book and to do this it will have to be made an Honor Roll Requirement. As chairman of this committee, I urge that this be done. Large packages of valuable papers (historical) have been sent to the Librarian General. Our records are marvelous in their historic value and we are endeavoring to place them in the hands of our Georgia D. A. R. libraries, schools and colleges. I wish to thank the chapters for their interest in sending me cards reporting their paid quota to Lucy Cook Peel Memorial.

"A people that take no pride in the noble achievements of remote ancestors will never achieve anything worthy to be remembered with pride by remote generations." We feel that the D. A. R. agree in spirit with this great principle, so we Georgia Daughters must rally to the help of this committee in their constructive work.

## MAY ERWIN TALMADGE SCHOLARSHIP FUND Mrs. Barnett Solomon

Students' notes, \$4,505; amount in bank, \$194.46; Atlanta Laundries bond, \$1,000; total, \$5,699.46.

Our collections are improving with improved conditions. As fast as repayments accumulate, new loans are made. Twenty-six students are now using money from this fund. Some loans are not yet due and others are almost repaid. A certificate of honorary record is given when payments are completed. These are used as character reference when applying for position.

The lending and collecting of this money brings many a human interest story. The deep appreciation for opportunities made possible makes you realize how much is being accomplished by the fund.

## MARKING REVOLUTIONARY SOLDIERS' GRAVES Mrs. Albert Tidwell

The following chapters have made reports in answer to my request—card sent to every Regent in the state:

Joseph Habersham Chapter, Atlanta: two markers placed.

Elijah Clarke Chapter, Athens: three graves located (Ferdinand Phinizy, Clarke Taylor and Daniel Dupree).

Atlanta Chapter, Atlanta: two graves unveiled (John Graves and John Daniel Bagwell—and also Capt. David Dickson), and one grave located: James Waldroup. Number of Daughters of Revolutionary Soldiers' graves located— three: Betty Graves Ward, Lonie Waldroup and Violet Waldroup.

Augusta Chapter, Augusta: one grave (Major James Carter).

Lamar-LaFayette Chapter, Barnesville: one grave located, marker ordered (Austin Dabney, a mulatto).

Brunswick Chapter, Brunswick: three graves located.

James Pittman Chapter, Commerce: Several graves located, two markers ordered.

Baron DeKalb Chapter, Decatur: one grave marked (Thomas Gordan).

John Laurens Chapter, Dublin: one grave located (Josiah Warren).

Stephen Heard Chapter, Elberton: six graves marked (Capt. Jacob Higginbotham, Benjamin Brown, David Clarke, Christopher Clarke, Capt. James Cunningham, Lieutenant-Colonel Wm. Alston). Three graves recently located (John Rucker, George Snellings, and William Alexander).

Col. Wm. Candler Chapter, Gainesville: two graves marked (Henry Parks and Beal Barker). One marker ordered (William Clarke).

John Benson Chapter, Hartwell: two graves marked (William Glover and John Martin White).

Hawkinsvile Chapter, Hawkinsville: two graves marked (George Walker II and George Walker III).

Nancy Hart Chapter, Milledgeville: two markers ordered (Carey Cox and R. S. and John Boram).

Elizabeth Marlow Chapter, Monticello: one Revolutionary Soldier grave marked (William Fears).

Adam Brinson Chapter, Pulaski: two graves of Revolutionary Soldiers located and grave of one Daughter.

Gov. Daniel Emanuel Chapter, Swainsboro: two graves marked (Ephriam Herrington and J. C. Summer).

Brier Creek Chapter, Sylvania: two graves marked (John Arnett and James Scott).

John Houston Chapter, Thomaston and Sergeant Newton Chapter, Covington: one grave marked (Wm. Morris).

### MEDALS AND PRIZES

#### Mrs. Leonard Wallace

In offering medals and prizes the Georgia Daughters of the American Revolution strive to encourage the school children to earn the trophies and in that way the advantages gained remain with them always. The benefits of this are incalculable, for those who have worked for these rewards are better students, better home-makers, and better citizens. This year 66 chapters have reported to me, 61 of which gave medals and prizes valued at \$687.25.

Oothcaloga—History medal; prize for historical essay; two citizenship medals. Commodore Richard Dale—\$5.00 to girl in senior class for best historical essay. Thronateeska—\$5.00 to high school boy for best essay on Colonial Georgia. Council of Safety—Two history medals. Elijah Clarke—Two citizenship medals in Athens junior high school; \$10.00 to University of Georgia student writing best historical essay. Atlanta—Six medals for best essays on historical subjects; total, \$60.00. Joseph Habersham—Medal to most efficient student of R. O. T. C. at Georgia Tech. Augusta— Three \$5.00 prizes to students making highest marks in American history. Bainbridge—Two history prizes. Lamar-LaFayette—History medal to seventh grade pupil.

Gov. Peter Early—Two history medals: one citizenship medal given by Regent. Brunswick—Medal for American history; \$5.00 for home economics. Lanahassee—\$10:00 medal and \$5.00 prize for highest average in United States history; \$2.50 for highest average in Georgia history. Etowah—Three prizes for best essay on "What It Means to Me to Be an American;" total, \$10.00. Col. John McIntosh—Three American history prizes. Tomochichi— \$10.00 scholarship to Camp Wilkins; prize to Expression Department of Piedmont College. Button Gwinnett—Two history prizes. James Pittman—\$5.00 history prize; \$4.00 in song prizes; \$1.50 for library magazine; \$1.00 for best all-round student. Fort Early— History medal. Benjamin Hawkins—\$5.00 history medal. Gov. John Milledge—\$30.00 in medals and prizes. Dorothy Walton— One history prize; one patriotic song prize. Baron DeKalb— Five citizenship medals; one D. A. R. ring; total \$20.00. John Laurens—\$5.00 history prize. Col. Wm. Few—Three history prizes; one citizenship medal. Stephen Heard—History prize. James Monroe—Two history prizes; one citizenship medal.

Gov. Treutlen—One history prize; one domestic science prize; total, \$10.00. Fort Valley—One American history prize. Col. Wm. Candler—Eight history and citizenship prizes. Arthur Fort —American history prize. Pulaski—American history medal. Hawkinsville—Seven citizenship medals. John Ball—Silver loving cup for historical essay. William Marsh—Two medals for United States history. LaGrange—One history prize; one citizenship prize; total, \$10.00. Mary Hammond Washington—Silver loving cup for essay on Alexander Stephens. Nathaniel Macon—\$5.00 history prize; \$5.00 citizenship prize. Henry Walton—Sweeney history medal; two citizenship prize. Stephen Hopkins—Two prizes for oratorical contest. Nancy Hart—Citizenship medal. Matthew Talbot—D. A. R. American history medal; two citizenship prizes; Girl Home-maker's medal. Elizabeth Marlowe—Sweeney history medal. Sergeant Jasper—D. A. R. history medal. John Benning—Two historical essay prizes. Sarah Dickinson—Two gold history medals. Gen. Daniel Stewart—Two history prizes; two citizenship prizes. Hannah Clark—Six citizenship prizes; two history prizes. Governor Jared Irwin—Two history prizes. Bonaventure—History medal. John Clarke—History medal; three citizenship prizes. Gov. David Emanuel—Ten citizenship medals. Barnard Trail—Four citizenship medals; one history medal; \$2.50 home economics prize; two prizes for learning patriotic songs. Major Gen. Samuel Elbert —Two history prizes. John Houston—\$10.00 for best historical essays. Thomasville—\$5.00 history prize; \$5.00 for outstanding work at Girl Scout camp. Toccoa—Two prizes for historical essay. Vidalia—\$5.00 prize for American history; two \$2.50 prizes for Georgia history. Burkhalter—Gold history medal; prize to boy considered best all-round American. Sunbury—Two Sweeney medals for history; cook book in domestic science class.

### NATIONAL DEFENSE THROUGH PATRIOTIC EDUCATION

## Mrs. Bun Wylie

The subjects of interest in legislation are National Defense; Immigration and Crime. Bills have been introduced in Congress for increase in navy, army, and air forces. Your chairman has sent letters and telegrams to Georgia senators and congressmen urging support of these, bills. Have sent letters and literature to chapter chairmen for programs and activities of all kinds combating communism, atheism and pacifists. The D. A. R. of Georgia are doing constructive work.

Of the 96 chapters in Georgia, 70 have reported Chairman on National Defense through Patriotic Education, with active committees. They have had special programs including study of the Constitution, current events, and citizenship classes in chapters and schools combating communism. Flags, Creeds and Pledge to the Flag given to schools. National Defense Week, February 12 to February 22 has been celebrated with special programs, prominent speakers and patriotic demonstrations, of parades and pageants, "so that the attention of the people has been drawn to American principles."

The outstanding work of the chapters has been: clubs formed in schools and medals offered for good citizenship and the writing of essays on patriotic subjects; Correct use of Flag taught; Flag Codes distributed in schools; patriotic speeches and lectures; chapter scholarships in schools and colleges; patriotic songs; medals given in schools for highest marks in American history; Americanism taught and foreigners naturalized; preparedness programs; marking historic spots, highways and Revolutionary soldiers graves; historical records and books published and sold; subscriptions to D. A. R. Magazine; Georgia Bicentennial celebrations, 200th anniversary of Georgia; observance of patriotic and historic days; cooperation with relief work for unemployed and promotion of NRA; boxes sent to Ellis Island; 15 cents per capita for National Defense; 10 cents Immigrants Manual; 3 cents Ellis Island; total, \$8,368.50.

#### PATRIOTIC SONGS

### **Miss Cena Whitehead**

Forty-seven chapters sing patriotic songs at their meetings; 30 of these encourage the singing of patriotic songs in the schools.

The Barnard Trail Chapter has offered two prizes in the public schools to the grades learning patriotic songs.

The Dorothy Walton Chapter gives a grade prize each year, known as the Regent's Prize, for learning patriotic songs. The James Pittman Chapter offers three prizes, valued at \$4.00, to the grades singing patriotic songs best.

The Oglethorpe Chapter has patriotic songs printed in the local papers and the children clip them and learn them. I think this would be a good idea for other chapters to follow.

The Elijah Clarke Chapter had four patriotic songs printed and each monthly meeting is opened by singing one of them.

The Governor Treutlen Chapter is urging the members to learn the songs.

I earnestly urge the Daughters to encourage the use of our patriotic songs in schools and at their chapter meetings.

#### PRESS COMMITTEE

#### Mrs. Mell Knox, Chairman

The Press Committee met May 17, 1934, in Social Circle in all day session at the home of the chairman.

The manuscript of the Proceedings was edited and sent to the printers. The Press Committee regrets the omission of some reports which had not been received and calls attention again to the resolution requiring receipts of all reports by May 1.

The Printers Code has so increased the price that reports had to be cut, in order to keep the cost as near that of previous years as possible. Reports of unusual length have been paid for by individuals.

Those desiring additional copies may purchase these through the Recording Secretary Mrs. Harrison Hightower, Thomaston, Ga., at 50 cents a copy.

Those present were: Mrs. John Adams, Mrs. W. E. Mann, Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Mrs. Francis Brown Chase, Mrs. James F. Wiley, Mrs. Harrison Hightower, and ex-offico members, Mrs. Julian Mc-Curry and Mrs. J. W. Daniel, with Mrs. Mell Knox, chairman, and hostess.

## PRESERVATION OF HISTORIC SPOTS

#### Mrs. Robert Travis

Your chairman regretted that she was unable to attend the exercises by the Sergeant Newton Chapter of Covington, Mrs. W. D. Travis, Regent, at the dedication of the marker on the Old Stage Coach Road that led to Milledgeville. This marker was erected at the Old Brick Store, the first brick building in Newton county, where Newton County's first superior court was held April 15, 1822. Later it was decided to move the court to Newtonborough, now Covington. The exercises were held on June 14. 1933, and Dr. S. V. Sanford, of the University of Georgia, and Hon. Claud Smith, of Covington, were the speakers.

This marker was the contribution of the Sergeant Newton Chapter to the Bicentennial celebration in Georgia, and this small chapter deserves credit for this splendid piece of work done without the help of the State D. A. R. The Baron DeKalb Chapter, of Decatur, marked one Revolutionary soldier's grave, and 146 Tombstone Records made and sent.

Chapters requesting state help in marking historic spots:

The John Ball Chapter, at Irwinton, through Mrs. Victor Davidson, has requested \$50.00 to assist in marking the Federal Highway at Allentown, where it crossed two Indian trails. These trails are called by several names: Jameson's Trail, Old Federal Trail, and the Old Stage Coach Road, leading from Milledgeville to Tallahassee, Florida.

Mrs. Wm. A. Fitzgerald, Regent of the Roanoke Chapter, at Lumpkin, Stewart county, wishes the endorsement of the Georgia D. A. R. to secure government aid to mark the Battle of Shepheard's Plantation. White considers this one of the most desperate battles of the Creek War in 1836.

Mrs. Lewis Godbee, Chairman of Preservation of Historic Spots, of the Vidalia Chapter, requests the D. A. R. to assist in marking Fort King George, and to help in getting government aid.

The Elizabeth Marlow Chapter, at Monticello, has its request on file for assistance in marking the Old Stage Coach Road and Old Inn at Shady Dale.

The Burkhalter Chapter, at Warrenton, wishes to erect a large boulder with the names of more than 100 Revolutionary soldiers on a copper plate; the soldiers serving from Warren county in the Revolutionary war.

Last year it was decided to give \$35.00 to the Bainbridge Chapter, to mark Camp Recovery. As Camp Recovery had been marked by the United States government, your chairman was called one evening to find out if the money could not be used to mark the Jackson Trail. So your chairman took the liberty of giving the chapter permission to use the money for that purpose. The Bainbridge Chapter is putting up a large boulder to place the bronze tablet on, and the bronze tablet cost \$35.00.

From Mrs. C. E. Pittman, of Commerce, Regent of the James Pittman Chapter, comes a list of the Revolutionary pensioners from Jackson county.

Chapters donated \$119.34 for marking historic spots.

As its part in the celebration of the founding of the colony of Georgia, the Savannah Chapter, D. A. R., planted four trees in Oglethorpe Square on Abercorn Street, between York and State Streets, on February 13, 1933.

The Savannah, Lachlan McIntosh and Bonaventure Chapters joined in the marking of the George Washington Highway in Chatham county in May, 1933.

The Elijah Clarke Chapter, of Athens, has located in Oconee county, the site of an old Indian fort on the old Thrasher place (formerly Clarke county). The Elijah Clarke Chapter also reports that the marker erected on the site of the Wm. H. Crawford estate had to be moved to a new location on account of the relocation of the Athens-Crawford highway.

The Regent of the LaGrange Chapter, at LaGrange, sent the list of historic places in her county (Troup).

The Brunswick Chapter, at Brunswick, reports erecting a handsome granite marker on the site of the only home of General James Edward Oglethorpe in America, on St. Simon's Island, last November.

From Mrs. Jessie S. Collier, Corresponding Secretary of the Lamar-LaFayette Chapter, comes interesting material on the historic spots in Lamar county, namely: Gachet house, where La-Fayette stopped in 1825, marked in 1931. A granite marker has been purchased to mark the old Alabama

A granite marker has been purchased to mark the old Alabama road, originally an' Indian trail from Augusta to Columbus, across the Chattahoochee River.

The Augusta Chapter, Augusta has spent \$52.50 for the upkeep of Meadow Garden, the home of George Walton, this year.

The Council of Safety Chapter, at Americus, planned to clean the stone at Chee-Haw, near Leesburg, where the Peace Treaty was signed with the Indians, and to place a sign on the highway directing the public to Chee-Haw.

The LaGrange Chapter reports the old Stage Coach Road from Griffin to Montgomery.

#### George Washington Highway in Georgia

The most important work done by your chairman during the year has been the marking and dedication of the George Washington Highway, from Savannah to Augusta, through the towns of Sylvania and Waynesboro. It was through these towns that George Washington passed on his memorable visit to Georgia in 1791.

Two granite markers of our own Stone Mountain granite were erected in each of the five counties on the highway: Chatham, Effingham, Screven, Burke, and Richmond. These markers were hauled by the State Highway Department, and were installed by the county commissioners of each county.

The second marker in Chatham county was placed where the old Augusta road leaves the present Route 21, near the Chatham county line.

The first exercises on May 19 were held at Sylvania, under the auspices of the Briar Creek Chaper, Mrs. Peter Kittles, Regent, at 11:00 A. M., in the D. A. R. square in the center of the city, where one of the markers was placed.

The other marker in Burke county was placed on the Peach Orchard road near the Richmond county line.

The Oglethorpe Chapter, at Columbus, has been granted permission by the city commission to mark an oak, standing near the Oglethorpe Boulder, the Oglethorpe Oak. This truly marks the spot where Oglethorpe made the famous treaty with the Indians at Coweta Town in 1739. The tree is over 100 years old and was planted by an ancestor of four Oglethorpe Chapter members.

The Oglethorpe Chapter, at Columbus, has erected a granite boulder at the intersection of Broadway and Fourth Street, marking the spot where General James Edward Oglethorpe crossed the Chattahoochee River in 1739, on his visit to Coweta Town.

#### Kenard's Trail or Ferry

"Here General Oglethorpe crossed the Chattahoochee and at Coweta Town, southwest of this point, signed his famous treaty with the Indians, August 31, 1739. Erected by the Oglethorpe Chapter, Daughters of the American Revolution, Columbus, Georgia, 1922."

From records sent in by the Oglethorpe Chapter is the statement that at Fort Mitchell, 10 miles south of Columbus, was situated the Indian Agency in 1805, and that the remains of the fort are still evident on Federal Road at Chattahoochee River crossing, and that it was the playground of the Indians in early historic days. Two miles away from Coweta is the oldest town of historic record in North America.

#### Nancy Hart Highway-Marked by the Georgia D. A. R.

The only highway in the country named for a woman.

These markers on the Nancy Hart Highway were unveiled during the third week of February, 1930, at the following points: Washington, Waynesboro, Sandersville, Tennille, Wrightsville, Dublin, and Waycross. Every town with a D. A. R. chapter from Hartwell to Waycross, now posses a large Nancy Hart marker. Ten large markers and one small one have been placed on this The Nancy Hart Highway is 375 miles in length. highway.

Consent for the naming of this highway from Hartwell to Augusta, via. Elberton and Washington, and from Augusta through Waynesboro, Louisville, Sandersville, Tennille over Route 15, throughout the state to Florida, was secured from the Chairman of the State Highway Board, Mr. John N. Holder.

In 1931 the chairman reports 11 markers erected at a total The chapters in Hartwell and Elberton donated cost of \$380.00. stones and the citizens of Wrightsville donated the marker.

In 1932 three markers were unveiled at Thomson, Louisville, and Total cost \$165.00. This completed the marking of Glenwood. the Nancy Hart Highway.

John Benson Chapter, at Hartwell, gave one Nancy Hart High- way marker, \$125.00.

Stephen Heard Chapter, at Elberton, gave a Nancy Hart marker that was placed at the intersection of Cherokee Trail Road and one mile from the home site of Nancy Hart, \$125.00.

Governor Jared Irwin Chapter, at Sandersville, gave marble post to mark highway. mark highway. Cost \$16.50. Major General Samuel Elbert Chapter, at Tennille, gave a small

marble post to mark highway. Cost \$16.50.

Wrightsville gave a highway marker valued at \$16.50. No chapter located there.

The John Benson Chapter, at Hartwell, helped to secure through Congressman Brand \$1,000 for a memorial to Nancy Hart to be placed on the Bankhead Highway.

1

#### PROGRAMME

#### Mrs. Max E. Land

Mrs. Max E. Land, State Chairman of Historical Programmes and Pageants of the Georgia Daughters of the American Revolution, issues the following suggestive monthly programs for Georgia Chapters, D. A. R.

General subject study: "The National Society, Daughters of the American Revolution, Its Organization, Properties, and Activities."

#### September

Song, "America," by the audience.

The Flag Salute.

The American's Creed.

Reading of State Regent's Fall Message.

Music.

Message of the President General (from D. A. R. Magazine). Paper-"Interesting Incidents in the Life of LaFayette" (birth-

day, September 6).

Anthem, "Star-Spangled Banner."

#### October

Song, "Columbia, the Gem of the Ocean," by audience.

The Flag Salute.

The American's Creed.

Paper, "History of the Georgia Society (from Georgia Chapter Histories).

Music.

Paper, "History of the National Society." (Material may be obtained from Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney, Vice-President General from Georgia).

Paper, "Our D. A. R. Insignia."

### November

Song, "America, the Beautiful," by audience.

The Flag Salute.

The American's Creed.

Paper, "Description of Constitution Hall." (From D. A. R. Magazine of April, 1930).

Music.

Celebration of the birthday of our President General, Mrs. Russell William Magna, November 15, for purpose of raising money for Constitution Hall.

## December

Song, "America," by audience.

The Flag Salute.

The American's Creed.

Paper, "The Work of the D. A. R. at Ellis Island." (February, 1931, Magazine).

Reading of Immigrants' Manual (by request of President General).

Music.

Paper, "In Celebration of Christmas."

#### January

Patriotic Music (to be selected).

The Flag Salute.

The American's Creed.

Paper, The D. A. R. Approved Schools, stressing Tomassee and Kate Duncan Smith, which are owned by our Society. (Material may be secured from Mrs. William H. Pouch, National Chairman, 135 Central Park, W., New York. Moving pictures of schools may be obtained from Mrs. Pouch. Material may also be secured by writing direct to schools).

Music.

Paper, "Our D. A. R. Student Loan Fund, Its History and a Discussion of both the National and State Funds, How Operated, Where Used, Etc."

#### February

Public Celebrations of Georgia Day, February 12, and of Washington's Birthday, February 22.

#### March

Song, "America," by audience.

The Flag Salute.

The American's Creed.

Reading of State Regent's Spring Message.

Music.

Paper, "The National Defense Program of the D. A. R." (Secure material from Chairman of National Defense).

#### April

Song, "America, the Beautiful."

The Flag Salute.

The American's Creed.

Reports from State Conference.

Paper, "Memorial Continental Hall," including history and description of Museum State Rooms and old Auditorium. (Material may be obtained from D. A. R. Magazine).

Music.

Paper "Administration Building," including work of the offices —Treasurer's, Registrar's and Magazine. (Material may be secured from D. A. R. Magazine). May

Patriotic Music. The Flag Salute. The American's Creed. Election of Officers. Reports from Continental Congress, D. A. R. Music. Paper, "Real Daughters." Round table discussion of D. A. R. activities in which your chapter is most interested.

June

Song, "America." The Flag Salute.

The American's Creed.

Paper, "The Daughters and the Flag" (stressing correct use of the Flag).

Reading of the Flag Code.

Music.

Patriotic address.

Anthem, "The Star-Spangled Banner." Note: I suggest that the President General's monthly message appearing in the D. A. R. Magazine, be read at each monthly meeting.

## PUBLICITY

### Mrs. W. E. Mann

Your Publicity Chairman sent reports of the Executive Board meeting in Elberton and the State Conference held in Atlanta to the D. A. R. Magazine.

The chapter meetings in the state are reported in local papers and a D. A. R. news column maintained weekly through the generosity of the Atlanta Constitution.

A picture and description of the State Capitol building has been sent to the D. A. R. Magazine at the request of Miss Lincoln.

#### REAL DAUGHTERS

#### Mrs. W. C. Vereen

Nineteen chapters reported to State Chairman. Eight chapters remembered our Real Daughters, Miss Sarah Poole and Mrs. Mary Poole Newsome.

Hawkinsville Chapter located the graves of two daughters of Revolutionary soldiers: Mary Duhart Walker Bryan and Rebecca Walker Dennard.

Vidalia Chapter located the graves of seven daughters of Revolutionary soldiers: Nancy Vonnor, Lucy Connor Ryals, Maria Con-nor, Eliza Connor Ryals, Winnie Ryals Calhoun, Penelope Ryals Connor, and Martha Connor.

## SARAH BERRIEN CASEY MORGAN MEMORIAL FUND Mrs. J. Thomas Wood

The name of Sarah Berrien Casey Morgan means to Georgia D. A. R.-years of faithful, efficient service for the organization; wise counsel in days of perplexity; unfaltering courage and tireless effort in behalf of worthy boys and girls.

You created a loan fund in her honor and I am happy to report that two young ladies have received loans to complete their education. One is a senior and one a junior in Georgia colleges. Your chairman does not think it wise to make loans to freshman students.

The amount raised for the loan fund is \$477.52. This includes a bit of interest and the two loans which amounts to \$350.00, leaving \$127.52 in the state treasury.

#### SCRAP BOOK

## Mrs. J. Harold Nicholson

The State Scrap Book has been my cherished and constant companion for seven happy years. The compiling of its pages has brought me in contact with your daily activities and noble ambitions. It contains your accomplishments, both great and small.

My desire has been to leave on each page your personal touch. The pictures, the poems, and articles you have sent me are all found between its covers. To these I have added bits of information, photographs, and the achievements of our big family—the Daughters of Revolutionary Heroes.

The history of our Society and the history of our state has been transplanted to its pages. And winding in and out among its leaves is the theme of love of our fellowman, loyalty to the D. A. R., and service to our country and to the high ideals to which we are pledged.

Thirty-five pages have been added to the Scrap Book the past year. Among the outstanding contributions are the following articles, pictures, and reports:

Georgia's Bicentennial Celebration and Her Progress the Past Two Hundred Years.

Georgia, a Great Experiment and the Diversity of Her First Settlers.

Pictures of General James Edward Oglethorpe, King George III, Tomichichi, and other prominent people and notable events in the early history of our state.

Interesting articles and photographs of the homes of distinguished Cherokee Indians.

Stories and pictures of Revolutionary patriots and the marking of their graves.

Articles and photographs of the placing of markers by memorial trees.

Descriptions of the unveiling of handsome markers on historic spots.

Georgia's Daughters honored both at home and abroad.

Georgia's Bookplates in the Library at Constitution Hall.

A copy of the telegram to Colonel Walter Scott on the occasion of the visit of his daughter, the President General, to our State Conference.

History of Franklin county, containing a list of the names of the persons to whom land was granted as bounties after 1785.

Among the many splendid Chapter Year Books, there stands out the one of the Oglethorpe Chapter, in Columbus, with an exact reproduction of the Seal of the Trustees of Georgia on its covers. This Seal is in the British Museum in England.

I have given information as to the compiling of Chapter Scrap Books and have urged all chapters to keep these personal records. It gives me great pleasure to report that four-fifths of the chapters are enthusiastic over their scrap books.

## SONS AND DAUGHTERS OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA Mrs. James I. Garrard

It is gratifying to report interest manifested by our Georgia chapters in organizing young America in Sons and Daughters of the United States of America Clubs. I feel sure if Chapter Regents will make a more careful study of the Handbooks mailed them they will find they cannot afford not to sponsor these clubs.

Georgia won distinction last year by winning the national medal offered by Mrs. Robert Bagnell, National Chairman, Sons and Daughters of the U. S. A. Clubs, for having organized the greatest number of new clubs. We gratefully acknowledge this honor and give many thanks to the two chapters responsible for this signal honor: The Governor David Emanuel Chapter, and the John Ball Chapter. This medal will be presented to Miss Ruth Blair, State Historian, for the D. A. R. case in Rhodes Memorial Hall, Atlanta.

Sons and Daughters of the U. S. A. Clubs are organized for the purpose of "teaching the underlying principles of national, state, and municipal governments; the discussion and practice of patriotism and whatever tends to promote good citizenship; and sincere preparation for intelligent and unselfish participation in the duties of citizenship." It is vitally important to obtain the interest and cooperation of the superintendent of schools in your community. After his consent to organize the school children, work with the teachers of your local and county schools. D. A. R. members who are teachers can be of great help.

This year we have 13 clubs, four of which are new. The total membership is 319.

The John Ball Chapter is doing a splendid work among the rural schools. United States flags have been given each club. One club has started writing a community history. Christmas cards were made and sent to veterans in hospitals. Patriotic days are observed and the singing of patriotic songs is encouraged.

Nancy Hart Chapter and the State Chairman gave United States flags to each club and citizenship medals will be offered to club members. Patriotic days have been observed. The teachers are finding these clubs to be of great help in their school work and the pupils have received them enthusiastically.

We are trying to inculcate in the minds of all children what constitutes a good citizen as related to the United States, the state, his community, his family and to himself, by emulating the lives of heroes and by being of service to those with whom he comes in daily contact. To those Regents who have not taken up this work, I urge you to realize what it will mean in future years to have all children well grounded in what it means to be an American citizen, the greatest inheritance of all.

## STATE EDITOR'S AWARD

## Mrs. A. S. Hardy

The D. A. R. columns of the Sunday Atlanta Constitution for the past year have been replete with interesting accounts of the activities of the state officers and (the D. A. R.) chapters.

To decide just which chapter sent in best publicity material has been no easy task, but after a careful survey has been made of the original manuscripts, your committee has selected the Hawkinsville Chapter as the winner of the prize. The Elijah Clarke Chapter, of Athens, and the John Laurens Chapter, of Dublin, sent in reports of every meeting and were up to their usual standard of excellence. We also wish to make special mention of the Commodore Richard Dale Chapter, of Albany, and of the Bainbridge Chapter.

## STATE REGENT'S AWARD

#### Mrs. Frances Brown Chase

State Regent's award was given to Elijah Clarke Chapter, Athens, by unanimous vote of the committee. The percentage basis was in excess of the many chapters competing for this honor.

#### TEXTBOOKS

### Mrs. Ben J. Tarbutton

One member of this committee outlined a course in Americanization and American History in her high school.

Several chapters have reported prizes to be given by th D. A. R. for high school pupil having highest record in American history.

I wish to urge each chapter to have a committee to review the history books in their city and county schools so we may know what our children are being taught.

#### TIME AND PLACE

#### Mrs. Charles F. Rice

As Chairman of Time and Place, it is my pleasure to present the following report:

The State Executive Board met in Elberton October 21 by invitation of the Stephen Heard Chapter, Miss Edna Rogers, Regent.

The State Conference for 1934 will meet in Albany, March 19-20-21, by invitation of the two chapters, the Thronateeska, Mrs. Leo Leader, Regent, and the Comodore Richard Dale, Mrs. W. C. Fripp, Regent.

The General James Jackson Chapter, Valdosta, has extended an invitation to the State Executive Board to meet with them in October, 1934.

The Elijah Clarke Chapter, Athens, Miss Annie Crawford, Regent, extends a cordial invitation to the Georgia Daughters to be their guests at State Conference in 1935.

#### TRAVELING GENEALOGICAL LIBRARY

#### Mrs. J. D. Wadsworth

At the October, 1933, meeting, the plan for the Traveling Genealogical Library, as outlined by Mrs. Lue R. Spencer, Vice-President General, from Nebraska, who established one in Nebraska 10 years ago, was presented to Oglethorpe Chapter, with the following resolution:

"I move that Oglethorpe Chapter present, through its librarian, Mrs. J. D. Wadsworth, to the Georgia D. A. R., the idea of establishing a Traveling Genealogical Library, for the use of all the Georgia chapters and the public at large. The same to be supported by all the Georgia chapters and donations from the public.

Respectfully submitted, H. C. H. H. Wadsworth." Oglethorpe Chapter approved it and said it should be sent to the Resolutions Committee. So the plan and resolution were sent to Mrs. McCurry who endorsed it enthusiastically, and presented it to the State Board meeting in October. Copies were also sent to Mrs. Daniel and Mrs. Stewart Colley, both of whom were delighted with it.

The State Board struck out the words, "and the public at large," thinking the public would abuse the privilege. The Board in-

structed Mrs. McCurry to investigate further and report to State I wrote Mrs. McCurry the following rea-Conference in March. sons for opening it to the public: "I am sorry indeed to note that the Board cut out 'and the public,' as I feel that will limit the usefulness of the Library to future generations. The Library should be the repository of inherited family data, and, of course, of all other family data, but inherited is more often apt to be correct. And as numerous families have intermarried through the generations and missing links are found in most unexpected places, we will lose a valuable source of information. You see, I hope to make this collection of inherited data one of the main objects of the Library, and by opening it to the public, to secure data heretofore unknown, but of inestimable value. If the public has access to the Library, those interested could be asked to contribute their data which would make the Library vast in scope, whereas, if it is limited to the D. A. R. we would acquire little other than what is already on record. It has wonderful possibilities but would include a world of work, too. The South has so few records we ought not to neglect any opportunity to collect them and make them available to the public; and this ought to be done before more of the older generation pass away."

On January 19, I sent a letter to each Chapter Regent explaining the plan for the Library and asking their members' cooperation in instructing their delegates to vote for the resolution at Conference.

#### VALDOSTA LOAN FUND

#### Mrs. Di Ingram

The same condition prevailed this year as reported last year in regard to this fund.

Due to small bank balance in September, 1933, we only pledged help to two students for this year. However, we feel collections will possibly be such by this fall we can again assist several.

The balance on hand March, 1933, \$5,633.85; the balance on hand March, 1934, \$5,638.21. This includes all money now loaned to students.

#### WELFARE WOMEN AND CHILDREN

#### Mrs. Retta Coney

I bring to you report of a year replete with zealous work, free gifts of untiring love and devotion of Georgia Daughters for worthy causes and work among the needy.

I proudly assert that endless work has been accomplished through the cooperation of our members. While the fields of Georgia are ripe with the harvest, I assure you her gleaners do not sleep.

In submitting this report to Conference, I extend sincere thanks to each chapter for supporting me in my work.

#### WOODROW WILSON DAY

#### Mrs. J. W. Oglesby, Jr.

It gives me great pleasure to be the one to bring a message on Woodrow Wilson Day. Also to do my bit to help make his birthday a national holiday. To me he ranks only second to the Father of our Country, George Washington.

He carried our country gloriously through the greatest war of all time, and through the period following. He was "Great in Peace and Great in War." May we continue to honor and respect the memory of one who gave his all for his country.

The chapters have done their part in celebrating the birthday of Woodrow Wilson. I thank them for the cards written to tell me of their observance of the day.

There were several chapters who had outstanding reports. The Hawkinsville Chapter placed a concrete tree marker, with bronze tablet as a memorial, something which will stand up through the ages, to show the love and respect we give a Great Patriot, Woodrow Wilson.

# WORLD WAR MEMORIAL LOAN FUND

## Mrs. Julius T. Dudley

February 12, 1932. On hand \$7,825.37, which includes the balance of cash and money loaned to students. Last report made October 5, 1932, balance on hand was \$7,557.61.

The original amount of \$5,000.00, raised by assessments and gifts—\$2,500.00 by Elijah Clarke Chapter and \$1,500.00 by Georgia State D. A. R.—Was placed at the University of Georgia in 1919. At first only an endowment fund, is now both endowment and revolving. Students are recommended by the chapter and the State Regent for loan, and pay 4 per cent interest. Many of the loans have been paid in full with interest, but not all.

# CHAPTER REPORTS

## **OOTHCALOGA CHAPTER, ADAIRSVILLE**

## Mrs. Alice Butler Howard, Regent

Membership of 13; has observed nine special days, including public celebrations of Flag Day and Armistice Day. Two prizes in history, two citizenship medals and one high school scholarship have been offered this year.

The chapter is sponsoring the teaching of the American's Creed and the observance of Creed Day in the local school. A set of Encyclopedia Brittanica has been donated to the school library.

We feel that the work done each year in the school justifies the existence of this small chapter.

## COMMODORE RICHARD DALE CHAPTER, ALBANY

### Mrs. W. C. Fripp, Regent

Interest centered around the entertainment of State Conference, as joint hostess with Thronateeska Chapter and the pleasure of having Mrs. William Becker, of New Jersey, National Chairman of National Defense, as our guest of honor.

The chapter has 29 resident and five non-resident members; two new members and several papers pending; lost a beloved associate member by death and one resignation.

Meetings were opened with "America," Solute to the Flag, American Creed, and prayer. We have used the Historical Programs as outlined by Mrs. Max Land, State Chairman.

All designated patriotic days observed with addresses and papers at regular meetings and we have responded to all civic and patriotic requests. Over 500 trees and shrubs have been planted by members.

The chapter has sponsored two large card parties; brought the Rag Bag Alley Puppet Show to Albany, and worked up a local "ad" sheet, which increased the funds in the treasury. Members have cooperated with civic workers in Red Cross drive, Salvation Army drive, contributed to Empty Stocking Fund, and also served actively on committee for President's Ball.

Celebrated Mrs. Magna's birthday and sent \$5.00 towards debt on Constitution Hall. Also made a splendid gift of old gold for Constitution Hall Memory Book and sent a report of each meeting to State Editor. Has given three local scholarships, rented two typewriters for Opportunity School, bought new draperies for their hospital room, and given a special light for same, sent 51 books to Kate Duncan Smith School, a box valued at \$10.00 to Ellis Island, and a D. A. R. membership to Merchant Marine Library, and sent Christmas gifts and cards to Georgia's two Real Daughters, and contributed to Bicentennial pageant and table in Constitution Hall. Also gives each year a prize of \$5.00 to a senior in girls' high school for best essay on a selected subject in American history. Sent to State Historian for State Scrap Book a photograph of Commodore Richard Dale for whom our chapter is named, with history of his service in War of Revolution. We have marked with D. A. R. emblem the grave of our beloved Ex-Regent, Mrs. (J. P.) Eloise

Stewart Champion, and was awarded first prize at the Albany Garden Flower Show for a colonial living room table.

The outstanding historical work was accomplished in renaming four of Albany's streets to Oglethorpe, Gordon, Whitney, and Roosevelt Avenues.

Total disbursements for year, \$369.98.

#### THRONATEESKA CHAPTER, ALBANY

#### Mrs. Leo Leader, Regent

Membership of 75.

We have held monthly meetings in the club house, celebrating Thronateeska's thirty-ninth birthday, January 4, with a birthday party at the home of Miss Cena Whitehead.

All patriotic days have been observed with appropriate exercises.

We cooperated with other organizations of the city in putting on a Georgia Bicentennial pageant at Radium Springs, depicting Georgia from its founding, contributing \$10.00 towards the expense thereof.

At the request of the Garden Club we displayed a "Shadow Box" at the Flower Show.

In Conservation and Thrift we have planted 2,500 trees and 500 shrubs. In human conservation we have canvassed for the NRA; helped with the Red Cross and Salvation Army drives; helped with the lunches for the underprivileged children at school, and giving \$10.00 to the book fund for these children. We also rented a type-writer for the Opportunity School at an expense of \$18.00. Our Loan Scholarship Fund is maintained at \$75.00.

A box of books was collected for the Merchant Marine Library. Instead of giving a benefit party in behalf of Memorial Continental Hall, donation was made by the chapter. A prize of \$5.00 was given to the boy in high school writing the best essay on Colonial Georgia.

A history of Dougherty County, Georgia, compiled by Mrs. John R. Whitehead, Mrs. Sydney Jones, Mrs. Wm. Rowsey, and Miss Lucy Pond, members of Thronateeska Chapter, and entitled, "History and Reminiscences of Dougherty County, Georgia," was adopted as the official history of Dougherty County by the September, 1933, grand jury.

Three graves of Ex-Regents are being marked with the official marker.

A lovely new flag was given the chapter by two of its members.

We joined with other organizations of the city in giving a luncheon for the State Convention of the Business and Professional Women's Club. Also, a committee from Thronateeska Chapter cooperated with others in arranging for the President's Ball held here which proved to be a highly successful event.

We featured among other parties, a card party in connection with a fashion show at Rosenberg's store, entertaining 350 people.

The outstanding work for the year has been the preparation for the State Conference.

Our expenditures for the year totaled \$382.87.

## ATLANTA CHAPTER, ATLANTA Mrs. James Dawkins Cromer, Regent

Atlanta Chapter had the honor and very great pleasure of entertaining the State Conference in March. The memory of the delightful contacts made, and the inspiration gained from the splendid reports of the 96 chapters, remains with us until the present time. Dolly Madison Society C. A. R. is in a flourishing condition. They have 40 members on the roll, and have held six meetings.

The chapter is very proud of her 10 gift scholarships valued at \$2,260.00, which, together with the scholarships at Agnes Scott College (\$300.00), a loan scholarship at Wesleyan College in Macon (\$300.00), and a half-scholarship at North Avenue School (\$87.50), make a total of \$2,947.50.

Nine gold medals are presented by the chapter each year, for best essays on a given historical subject, six to the Junior High Schools, and one each to Washington Seminary, North Avenue School, and Marist College, valued at \$90.00.

Two Revolutionary soldiers' graves have been marked. The grave of another soldier has been located, and will be marked soon. The graves of three daughters of Revolutionary soldiers have also been located.

A box was sent to Ellis Island. Twenty immigrants were admitted to citizenship.

The Magazine Chairman reports six renewals, and five new subscriptions. The scrap book is a complete and detailed history of the meetings.

We celebrated Armistice Day, and gave a party in honor of the birthday of Mrs. Magna, our President General. Free will offering for the debt on Constitution Hall amounted to \$25.15.

The following valuable gifts have been made to the chapter: An illustrated map of Georgia drawn by Cornelia Cunningham, of Savannah, and presented by Mrs. Fletcher Spratling; a copy of the first D. A. R. Magazine, dated July, 1892, No. 1, Vol. I, presented by Mrs. Bernard Wolff; a volume of original poems by Mrs. J. P. Womble; "Georgia, a Pageant of Years," published by the Georgia Society Colonial Dames of America, and presented by the Regent. A very beautiful silk United States flag was presented by Mrs. J. O. Wynne, a former Regent.

Nine new members have been added to our roll, and six were lost by death. Our membership now is 315.

Chapter contributions during the year have included: \$10.00 to Georgia Hall at Warm Springs; \$25.15 to Constitution Hall (already mentioned); \$10.00 extra donation to the Georgia D. A. R. Bicentennial table at State Capitol Fund; \$5.00 to Poppy Day Fund for Disabled World War veterans; old gold for Memory Book in Constitution Hall, and \$164.20 given through the State D. A. R. Society.

Total receipts for the year, May 15, 1933 to May 15, 1934, being \$1,733.53; disbursements, \$1,508.29, leaving a balance in bank of \$225.24.

## ELIJAH CLARKE CHAPTER, ATHENS

#### Miss Annie S. Crawford, Regent

We have held regular monthly meetings, opening each with prayer, followed by the Pledge to the Flag, the reading of the American Creed, and the singing of patriotic songs in concert; the attendance at each meeting being an average of 75 per cent of our resident members.

The chapter has celebrated 17 patriotic days; 10 required and seven optional. Splendid historic and patriotic lectures have featured each program, and two radio broadcasts have been given. Memorial Day was observed with exercises at the cemetery and the placing of flags and flowers on the graves of Revolutionary heroes in Clarke County.

We have two loan funds for young women at the University of Georgia, the total amount being \$1,537.99. This is one of the outstanding chapter loan funds in our national organization. We have also made the following donations: \$5.00 to Tamassee; \$5.00 to Kate Duncan Smith School; a donation to Monte Verde; a box of clothing to Crossmore, and a box of juvenile books to Kate Duncan Smith School.

We have given one historical essay prize of \$10.00 in the University of Georgia, and two citizenship medals in the junior high school.

Our Better Films Chairman has been most active and efficient in helping to bring better and cleaner pictures to our city.

We have contributed \$45.00 to Constitution Hall, and made a gift of old gold to the Memory Book. A contribution has also been made to Meadow Garden.

An old Indian fort has been located in Oconee County; also the graves of the following Revolutionary soldiers have been found in Oglethorpe County: Ferdinand Phinizy, Clarke Taylor, and Daniel Dupree.

The Count D'Estaing Chapter of the Children of the American Revolution has been formally organized; their first meeting being held on February 17.

On account of the relocation of the highway, we have moved our marker on the Wm. H. Crawford estate to a more favorable location, and have landscaped the surrounding grounds. We have cared for our other historic markers. Our Regent unveiled a monument to Wm. H. Crawford, and other members of our chapter assisted in the program.

We have added a number of copies of the D. A. R. Magazines to our library collection. We have sent a box of books to the Merchant Marine Library. A splendid Year Book has been published by our chapter, and a collection of patriotic songs for use at our chapter meetings has been compiled and printed.

We have completed our second scrap book, and are well into our third volume. We have collected and sent in 26 historic postcards.

We have planted 164 trees, with shrubs and plants to the amount of \$474.57. Local lakes and streams have been stocked with 20,000 fish. We have aided in planting church grounds, furnishing for the same 200 loads of dirt, sod, one bushel of bulbs and 100 pounds of grass seed. A tree in memory of Elijah Clarke has been sent to the English Avenue School Memorial Park in Atlanta. A tree from the grave of General Oglethorpe has been located on the University of Georgia campus.

We have cared for five needy families, and have distributed charity in the form of clothing, money, medicines and food to the poor in our community. To the T. B. Hospital, we have contributed cheer in the form of visits, food, flowers and literature.

We have bought \$66.00 worth of T. B. Seals and have given \$156.00 to the Red Cross organization.

A committee from our chapter helped with the Roosesvelt Ball for the Warm Springs Foundation. We also aided in the NRA Drive.

We assisted in entertaining the U. D. C. Annual Convention, and have cooperated with other patriotic organizations.

We feel that we are closing a year of worthwhile achievements.

### JOSEPH HABERSHAM CHAPTER, ATLANTA

### Mrs. R. K. Rambo, Regent

Through the fine work of Miss Juanita Chisholm, Chairman, patriotic days were observed with special programs of value and interest.

A valuable gift, a gavel, was donated to the chapter by Mrs. James N. Brawner, Past Regent. The wood from which the gavel is made was cut from a limb of the original tree, 200 years old, still standing on the spot where General James Oglethorpe landed at Yamacraw Bluff, Savannah, Georgia, 1733.

November 13, the chapter was the guest of Mrs. William H. Kiser, honoring the birthday of her mother, Mrs. William Lawson Peel, founder of the Joseph Habersham Chapter.

Our Chairman of Scholarships, Mrs. T. J. Ripley, has made a wonderful record for 1933 and 1934; she has secured 18 scholarships, valued at \$1,860.00.

Two silver cups were presented to schools of Atlanta for the best essays on Georgia history.

A bronze medal, the "Spinning Wheel," is given each year through the chapter to the most efficient student of the Army R. O. T. C. of Georgia Tech.

The chapter contributed to local charities, sewing at Red Cross headquarters, and visiting at Hospital 48.

We have four new subscribers to the D. A. R. Magazine and four renewals.

Two markers for Revolutionary soldiers' graves were placed on October 8, 1933, Clinton, Jones County, Georgia. Our Regent, Mrs. R. K. Rambo, presided at this unveiling.

We report with deepest regret the passing of two of our beloved members: Mrs. D. I. McIntire, died November, 1933, and Miss Carrie L. Stanton, died July 7, 1933.

#### COUNCIL OF SAFETY CHAPTER, AMERICUS

#### Mrs. W. M. Emmet, Regent

Fifty-six paid members. We have held regular monthly meetings, with splendid programs and attendance.

All patriotic and historic days have been observed with appropriate music and addresses. We have used the D. A. R. Guide to motion pictures. Two radio broadcasts were given, one on La-Fayette's birthday and the other one on our work at Ellis Island. The chapter took an active part in Armistice Day celebration, and we have cooperated with all patriotic and civic organizations at all times. We helped to prepare, donate, and serve food to undernourished children at grammar school.

Flags have been displayed at all meetings, and Flag Chairman has had a notice in the paper asking merchants to display flags on all patriotic occasions. Two medals were given for excellence in American history, one to high school, and one to college, valued at \$5.00. A box was sent to Ellis Island valued at \$10.00; \$4.00 was contributed to Continental Hall in honor of President General, Mrs. Magna's birthday.

A non-resident member, Mrs. Gus Harris, of Leesburg, was in-

strumental in having the grounds nicely cleaned around Chee-Haw Monument. Council of Safety has met all Honor Roll Requirements.

One of our best beloved members has passed away this year, Mrs. W. A. Dodson, who was one of the charter members.

Bronze markers are placed on all deceased members' graves by chapter.

## ELIZABETH, WASHINGTON CHAPTER, AUGUSTA Mrs. W. I. Wilson, Regent

The Elizabeth Washington Chapter sends greetings. Meetings are held in the homes of the members with our flag always present. Our little ritualistic ceremony, led by our Chaplain, is very impressive and helpful. When our first group of officers were selected a Chaplain was included. Mrs. Ida Moseley Blasingame has filled this office most acceptably during the last four years. The chapter owns a handsome flag, the gift of Mrs. Elizabeth McAllister, which is properly displayed on patriotic occasions.

Flag Codes have been given to the different schools; also a few magazines to the rural schools. Pamphlets and D. A. R. Magazines placed in the library. Our Committee on Research Work are collecting data and establishing ancestral lines with surprising success. Our members have helped the other organizations in all their undertakings. (Mrs. Anderson Sibley and Miss Katherine Mealing did magnificent work on the recent Red Cross Drive. And Miss Julia Mealing has given intelligent attention to the Better Films work and has several interesting reports on file. Mrs Russell Wright has filled and presented to the chapter a valuable scrap book and is compiling another). Our members appreciate the privilege of having placed the first foundation stone for the Morgan Memorial Loan Fund and promise to always "Lend a Hand" whenever possible in furthering this splendid work in honor of the peerless leader and lovable woman, Mrs. Sarah Berrien Casey Morgan.

Our Real Granddaughter, Miss Mary Jane Burnley, is an example for us. In her eighties, she is smilingly content as the world rushes by. She keeps up with current events, while she makes exquisite lace and tatting or pieces together a lovely quilt to give away.

Our newest Daughter is a resident of New York City.

Obligations all cancelled, including our handsome granite marker on Washington Street, placed to commemorate the visit of General George Washington in 1791. Our garden is growing and forming a lovely background for it, where crepe myrtle and jessamine vine, cedar of Maine, and Georgia pine, althea and canna of gorgeous color everywhere are seen. Abelia, Carolina cherry, and camellias there. All growing.

"A tree is a Psalm of Beauty,

A tree is a green-leafed prayer."

Our chain of membership is unbroken, though there has been much illness. Due to banks and other corporations going into retirement, our funds are inaccessible. Consequently our contributions are painfully small, which we deplore; but our local need could not be ignored. Membership, 42, several having moved away. Our Corresponding Secretary, Mrs. Mamie Bland Goodwin, in her own inimitable way, fills out with suitable words and sends dainty and attractive cards to comfort the bereaved, cheer up the convalescent and entertain the "shut in." This method, we think, is better than others we have known of.

## AUGUSTA CHAPTER, AUGUSTA

## Mrs. A. H. Brenner, Regent

The Georgia Bicentennial program was completed. Five dollars was given for the Society's name being enrolled among the participants, at the State Capitol. Addresses were delivered at meetings, and public events, showing valuable research work in local history, by leading young men of the city.

After selecting locations for the George Washington Highway markers furnished by the State Highway Commission, the County Commissioners kindly cooperated by receiving those designated for Richmond County and had them put in place.

Proceeding through Richmond County the marker at the juncture of the Hepzibah road was unveiled and the marker nearest the city of Augusta was the scene of impressive ceremonies amid a large gathering.

Flag Day, like all designated days, was appropriately observed. On July 3, the usual Flag Festival was observed, by decorating citizens with small flags in honor of the Fourth.

The program, "The National Society, Its Organization, Properties, and Activities," was printed in Year Book form dedicated to:

Mrs. Sarah Berrien Casey Morgan, Charter Member, National Society D. A. R., 1891, Vice-President General, 1900-1904, Regent Georgia Society, 1893-94, 1896-97, Founder and First Regent, Augusta Chapter, 1892-94, And a devoted member until her death, June 28, 1931."

All meetings of the Augusta Chapter have been held at Meadow Garden except in December, when the chapter was entertained by the Regent, and in January, when Mrs. Charles Bowen, the Genealogist, was hostess.

Three prizes of \$5.00 each were given to high school boys and girls making the best records in American history.

Twenty-five dollars was given to provide books for needy high school girls.

Two entertainments were given for World War veterans at the Lenwood Hospital. Decorated cars were entered in the Memorial Day parade, and assistance given in all city wide undertakings. Patriotic music, and delightful musical programs have been provided for all meetings.

The President General's birthday was celebrated and a gift of \$10.00, and donations of gold, sent for the Memory Book.

An outstanding piece of work was the location of the grave of Major James Carter, and the unveiling of a government marker on Saturday, November 25. Major Carter is recorded in history as one of the heroes of the "White House" engagement, participated in by so many notable officers of the Revolution in order to free Augusta from British control. Major Carter's grave was located in the Bugg burying ground, on what was the Bugg property, now the estate of Mrs. H. B. King, on the Kissing Bower road.

February is always a busy month. On the 8th, a card party and fashion show was given at the Bon Air-Vanderbilt Hotel for the benefit of Meadow Garden. Revolutionary descendants served as models, displaying in a most charming fashion exclusive spring gowns, hats, etc., from the Bon Air Shop.

On the morning of February 21 the men of Augusta were given

an opportunity to assist in needed repairs on the caretaker's cottage at Meadow Garden, by purchasing small flags. On the afternoon of the 22nd, Meadow Garden was open to the public. Though the expenses at Meadow Garden always call for a large part of the annual income, insurance and needed repairs, have made extra efforts imperative. However, state and national dues have been paid on 107 members, and donations made to every item on the Honor Roll.

Income for the year, \$1,184.62. Received from Meadow Garden from other chapters, \$20.00; received from visitors, and regular efforts, \$115.91; total Meadow Garden fund, \$135.91; total chapter fund; \$1,184.62; handled by Chapter Treasurer, \$1,320.53; membership, 107; dropped, 11; resigned, seven; transferred, two; lost by death, one; new members, transferred three; by application, one.

#### BAINBRIDGE CHAPTER, BAINBRIDGE

#### Mrs. P. S. Cummings, Regent

The Bainbridge Chapter has had a very active and successful year. Held regular monthly meetings with programs, patriotic songs and historical anniversaries observed based on data sent out by Mrs. Max Land, State Chairman of Programs. There are 44 members, and one new member has been added to the roll. We are honored with having Mrs. J. M. Simmons, State Curator, as a member of our chapter.

All Honor Roll Requirements have been met. In helping to lift the debt of Constitution Hall we contributed \$7.00. A small box of gold was sent for the Memory Book at Constitution Hall. We have also sent a small box to Ellis Island to help with D. A. R. work there; at Christmas we helped with public welfare work in Bainbridge, donating a small sum for this work out of the treasury. Our members in many instances have responded to calls for charity, giving milk, food and money to the needy.

Loaned \$20.00 to aid a student in graduating from college. Offered two prizes in our school for the best averages in American history. Our Historian has filed a number of tombstone and Bible Records and two historical program papers have been filed with our State Chairman, Mrs. J. L. Beeson, for filing and lending.

We have added to our library two new books, "Compendium of American Genealogy," Volume I, and "History of Wilkes County," Volume I.

In Conservation and Thrift we have been active, planting a number of trees, shrubs, plants and bulbs; we have also planted some of these on the highway of our county.

We sent New Year cards to Georgia's Real Daughters, and have reported all patriotic dates to the State Chairman; accounts of all meetings have been mailed to the State Editor as well as to the local papers.

Finally, we have ordered the marker for Andrew Jackson's Trail and are working on a beautiful boulder, to be placed on the highway; this boulder will be made of native rock. We hope to report this project completed within a few weeks.

Our total disbursements for the past year were \$250.00.

## LAMAR-LAFAYETTE CHAPTER, BARNESVILLE

## Mrs. E. L. Coleman, Regent

The Lamar-LaFayette Chapter D. A. R. has 24 members enrolled, 18 resident, two resignations, and two papers in Washington. The meetings are held in the homes, the flag is displayed, and each meeting is opened with a patriotic song, a prayer by the Chaplain, Pledge to the Flag, and the American's Creed. All designated patriotic days have been observed with appropriate programs and all Honor Roll Requirements have been met.

The Chapter Year Book followed the course of study outlined for use, "The National Society D. A. R., Its Organization, Properties, and Activities," being dedicated to "those women whose patriotic foresight made possible the National Society D. A. R."

Georgia Day was observed with a program at the auditorium of Gordon Institute.

The meetings are reported to the local paper and all activities have been reported to the State Chairman.

A copy of the Lamar County History has been sent to the Librarian General, Continental Hall, Washington.

The members bought and used Christmas Seals. A decorated car was entered in the NRA parade.

Aid has been given to illiterates in the form of clothing, money, and text books.

A D. A. R. medal is given to the student in the seventh grade making the highest average in American history.

There are three subscriptions to the D. A. R. Magazine, one being placed in the Carnegie Library for the use of all the members.

Cards were sent from the chapter for reports for Better Films.

A marker has been ordered for the grave of Austin Dabney, a colored Revolutionary soldier, who fought under Clark and was wounded at the Battle of Kettle Creek.

The chapter was honored to have Mrs. Julian McCurry, State Regent, as its guest in November.

### GOVERNOR PETER EARLY CHAPTER, BLAKELY

#### Mrs. Raymond Singletary, Regent

Interesting programs recommended by the State Program Chairman have been used.

Patriotic days have been fittingly observed by public exercises in the school auditorium.

The chapter voted to meet Honor Roll Requirements and also contributed gold for clasps for the Constitution Hall Memory Book.

The active Chairman of Better Films Committee has requested a higher type pictures and suggested special children's films for matinees.

Chapters of Early County History have been sent to the Georgia Department of Archives and History.

Two medals are offered by the chapter, one in grammar school grades and one in high school grades for the highest average in American history. A citizenship medal is offered by the Regent.

School books and clothing have been furnished underprivileged children and the members have cooperated in Red Cross and other relief work in the community.

## LANAHASSEE CHAPTER, BUENA VISTA

## Mrs. S. M. Burt, Regent

Our chapter moves steadily on in patriotic work. "Old Man Depression" has been a "Compression" on our pocketbooks, causing six of our members to withdraw. I am glad to say the remaining members have gained new zeal and enthusiasm. We hope to do great work in the near future. We have one new member and prospects for several more. Our meetings are opened with reading and prayer led by our Chaplain, and closed by repeating the American Creed in concert.

Ninety-five per cent of our resident members attend the meetings. All patriotic days were observed with appropriate exercises. We have placed Flag Codes, attractively framed, in two of our county schools; also asked that the American Creed be taught in our schools. We give a \$5.00 prize and a gold medal to be worn one year by the pupil making the highest average in United States history, also a \$2.50 prize to the pupil making the highest average in Georgia history in our school. A number of trees and shrubs have been planted by individual members. All state and national dues have been paid. We have sent \$2.00 for Marking Historic Spots and 10 cents per capita for Immigrant's Manual. We have one subscription to the D. A. R. Magazine. Forty Bible Records and 120 Tombstone Records have been sent in and the grave of the daughter of a Revolutionary soldier has been marked.

## BRUNSWICK CHAPTER, BRUNSWICK

## Mrs. C. H. Levy, Regent

Fifty-six members.

Year Books featured programs on important battles of the Revolutionary War, with observance also of special patriotic days. Assisted with funds toward placing a handsome granite marker

Assisted with funds toward placing a handsome granite marker on the site of the only home in America of Gen. Jas. Edward Oglethorpe, located on St. Simon's Island. Unveiling attended by hundreds of people, with a fine address by a noted orator.

Sponsored a special Bicentennial editon of the Brunswick News, funds derived applying to Educational fund.

National Education Week observed by visits of members to the schools, who addressed the students. Five hundred dollar Student Loan continued this year.

Flag Codes and Lessons were distributed to the schools and studied by the children. Georgia flags were presented to each grade.

Flag Day celebrated with luncheon meeting on St. Simons Island, with patriotic address.

Ritual, as suggested by State Chaplain, used by Chapter Chaplain at each meeting.

A gold medal was presented in high school for excellence in American history, and a \$5.00 cash prize given in home economics class.

Chapter is compiling an interesting scrap book. Purchased 100 Georgia book plates.

Contributed to Constitution Hall fund, honoring President General's birthday; also to Salvation Army, Y. W. C. A., Red Cross, and City Hospital. Did much local welfare work, and bought and sold Christmas Seals to assist tubercular work. Sponsored forestry programs in schools, and assisted in selling tickets to the President's Ball, honoring the birthday of President Roosevelt.

Special meeting in February celebrating the chapter's thirty-first birthday, with talks by Ex-Regents on progress of chapter.

Total amount expended by chapters for the year, \$331.85.

## ETOWAH CHAPTER, CARTERSVILLE

### Mrs. Sam Candler, Regent

The meetings of the Etowah Chapter are held in the homes of the members and are opened with prayer, Salute to the Flag, and the American Creed. Patriotic Days have been observed. We have 46 members.

We offered a prize of \$5.00 in high school and two prizes, \$2.50 each, in grammar schools, for the best essays on Georgia heroes. In November we gave \$10.00 to be used on Continental Hall indebtedness. A collection of old gold has been sent to be used for clasps on Memory Books. About 150 Tombstone Records have been sent to State Chairman. We have paid our state and national dues.

## CAIRO CHAPTER, CAIRO

## Mrs. J. H. Pope, Regent

The Cairo Chapter has a membership of 25.

Nine regular meetings are held, opening with prayer by Chaplain, followed by singing "America" and repeating American Creed.

Flag lessons have been given by the Flag Chairman at most of the meetings.

The Program Committee has prepared most interesting and instructive programs on historical subjects and different phases of the D. A. R. work. All the programs have been well rendered.

Social meetings have been held semi-annually.

Patriotic days have been observed.

The D. A. R. and American Legion jointly sponsored Armistice Day with a splendid program, speeches, music and decorations were noteworthy.

An American Creed Committee was appointed and very effective work has been accomplished. The American Creed was taught to the pupils of our schools. Patriotic songs are used and emphasized in the schools.

The D. A. R. presented to the North Side Grammar School a United States flag with the pole and standard. Appropriate exercises were given when the flag was presented, including story of the flag.

On Georgia Day the chapter sponsored the sale of miniature Georgia flags. The proceeds of the sale of these flags will go to buy large Georgia flags for the schools.

The Chairman of Better Films Committee has mailed out the Weekly Reviews of the Better Films and done what she could to encourage good, clean pictures for our town. Historical books will be given for the best average in American

Historical books will be given for the best average in American nistory in both the grammar and high school.

Scholarship was given by the chapter for one high school pupil. Two music scholarships are given.

Plans are being made by the Chairman of Conservation and Thrift to beautify approaches to the town. Our financial report is as follows: National dues, \$25.00; state dues, \$5.00; United States flag for school, \$7.50; sale of miniature Georgia flags, \$6.50; year books, \$3.30; high school scholarships, \$2.50; book for prizes in American history, \$3.00; two music scholarships, \$72.00.

## CAMILLA CHAPTER, CAMILLA

#### Mrs. S. H. Floyd, Regent

The Camilla Chapter D. A. R. has 18 members, three living elsewhere, making only 15 active members.

A benefit bridge was given on Mrs. Magna's birthday and \$5.00 sent to Constitution Hall.

Each member, individually, has given aid in helping the poor of the town and surrounding territory, in supplying school books and looking after the children in school by supplying their needs in food and clothing.

On account of the depression the members decided to contribute to the needs at home and the chapter has not given to anything which constitutes the Honor Roll. Only the above mentioned \$5.00 to Constitutional Hall has been given.

#### GEORGE WALTON CHAPTER, COLUMBUS

## Mrs. Albert I. Jessup, Regent

Enrollment is now 55; two members having resigned, one transferred, and three new members added; with papers for others pending.

A year book of particular interest was arranged. The subject of our program was, 'Seven Wonders of Georgia." Three of these papers, being given, have gone forward to the Filing and Lending Committee, and four others are yet to be presented.

Patriotic days have been observed with splendid historical programs, window decorations and flag display.

We joined with other chapters in celebrating Flag Day, June 14, having an instructive program.

On Armistice Day our chapter was represented in the NRA parade which event marked an expression of loyalty to our government.

In celebration of Georgia's Bicentennial we cooperated with all organizations in the city and county in producing one of the most comprehensive celebration programs that was possible to formulate, comprising the joyous carnival spirit as well as a deep reverence for Georgia's history and heroes. Her distinguished founders and leaders marked the occasion of the celebration of Georgia's 200th birthday.

Our Better Films Committee has been very active throughout the year. At a joint party in February our capable chairman, Miss Julia Traylor, presented to the three chapters, in a delightful way, "Half-Forgotten Romances of American History," showing colored slides. Charming views were depicted of the romance of early days.

Our Conservation Chairman reports 155 shrubs, 66 trees, and 350 bulbs planted.

The Historian, Miss Jessop, has presented most interesting articles at each meeting of the year.

Genealogical Committee reports five old wills and Bible Records, also marriage records.

We sold Red Cross Seals through the Public Health Association, amount, \$8.50.

Our donation to Georgia Hall was \$5.00. We collected \$23.00 also for Georgia Hall in the Tag Day drive.

In furthering patriotic education, we are giving a scholarship in the Columbus High School and are presenting historical books to each of the high schools. We are also placing colored Flag Codes and "Manuals for Immigrants" in our schools.

Our members responded to calls of every charitable organization, and also solicited in the Community Chest drive.

A revision of our Chapter By-Laws was made, allowing an increase in membership to 75. Two officers, Librarian and Parliamentarian, were added.

The chapter endorsed our Vice-President General, Mrs. H. F. Gaffney, for the office of Organizing Secretary General as proposed by Mrs. F. M. Gillentine in her slate as candidate for President General.

All Honor Roll Requirements have been met, and miscellaneous disbursements amounted to \$103.79.

#### **OGLETHORPE CHAPTER, COLUMBUS**

## Mrs. George J. Burrus, Regent

Oglethorpe Chapter D. A. R. gave to Georgia its retiring Vice-President General, Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney, and newly elected Reporter to the Smithsonian Institute, Mrs. A. N. Murray.

A priceless possession of the chapter is the replica of the original Seal of the Trustees of Georgia now in the British Museum. This plaster impression was donated to the chapter by the late Mrs. A. O. Blackmar, having been secured by her husband. Engraved plates have been made possible through the generosity of Miss Benning. The impressions on the outside covers of the 1933-34 Year Book are printed from these plates, thereby giving exact representation of this great historical object.

Special work has been done along all lines including Honor Roll Requirements. For Ellis Island the chapter joined with George Walton in sending box to Ellis Island valued at \$3.00; for National Defense, Embracing Patriotic Education the chapter participated in and endorsed an elaborate program during National Defense Week; editorials appeared in the local press, radio programs, Boy and Girl Scouts, Ft. Benning officers, and civilians all joined in the celebration.

Total expenditures made by the chapter during the conference year, \$352.61.

Patriotic Days have been stressed, especial attention being given to newspaper editorials; show window displays on Broadway; display of flags by chapter members, special parties, etc.

Education Week was featured by a window display showing the interior of a Colonial sitting room.

An inspiring New Year's message was given by Mrs. James Gilbert to the chapter at the January meeting. At this time the chapter voted to finance M's. Wadsworth's expense in launching the Traveling Genealogical Library for Georgia D. A. R.

On the committee for the 150 women of Columbus for the NRA program, 16 were chosen from the Oglethorpe Chapter; the chapter participated in the NRA parade, furnishing a float in which the three chapters participated.

A copy of the life of James Edward Oglethorpe was sent to the

State Historian complying with a request for a sketch of the person for whom the chapter was named.

As to Bicentennial work, the chapter dedicated its book to Oglethorpe, also used the Georgia Seal, and participated in every phase of the celebration in Columbus which lasted one week. Also representative rode in the Bicentennial parade, and representative attended the Savannah celebration. Post cards of Oglethorpe Boulder and also of Historic Circle at Benning were sent the State Historian. Oglethorpe Chapter placed the boulder and the three local chapters placed the tablets at Ft. Benning, marking historic trails.

In honor of Oglethorpe, the chapter has been granted the privilege of naming a majestic oak in the vicinity of the Oglethorpe Boulder.

Fifty Tombstone Records were sent to the Chairman of Geneological Records. Also name of a Revolutionary soldier.

To the State Editor have been sent accounts of every meeting and also notices of special entertainments sponsored by the chapter, and of the honors bestowed upon chapter members.

The chapter participated in the Red Cross Roll Call, and purchased about \$25.00 worth of buttons. Has also assisted in teaching foreign born.

Forty books were sent to American Merchant Marine Library; Mrs. Chas. Davis, Miss Sarah Tune, Co-Chairmen. Books valued at \$5.00, and \$5.00 has been sent to Tamassee School; Armistice Day has been covered in Patriotic Days; Oglethorpe Chapter has plans for the beautification of the highway leading to Ft. Benning. The chapter supervises the upkeep of the planting in Oglethorpe Circle, which is maintained by the city. Three highways leading into Columbus were planted by Oglethorpe Chapter, D. A. R.

Every motion picture coming to Columbus to the best theatres is reviewed by a committee composed of members of the three local chapters. If good, every member is notified, if bad, no mention is made.

The chapter won the Blanche McFarland Gaffney trophy, which will appear in the Forestry Report. Mrs. Holland and Mrs. C. J. Tune, Co-Chairmen.

Oglethorpe Chapter contributed to Book Plate in Continental Hall.

Seven Bible Records were sent to the State Chairman, and 50 Tombstone Records.

Constitution and Magna Charta Days have been observed.

Historic tree was sent to State Chairman of Conservation and Thrift. The chapter urged living Christmas trees both for indoor and outdoor lighting. As a planting program by chapter members, the report includes: 3,000 trees, 6,275 berry shrubs, 3,000 wild flowers, 15,000 bulbs, 3,000 vines 3,487 hardy plants. Special mention was made of conservation of the holly, dogwood and other slow growing trees and evergreens; fire protection to forests. As to human conservation, Oglethorpe members have cooperated with the CWA and the CCC and NRA plans; along the highways crepe myrtle and dogwood have been planted; editorials have featured Conservation and Thrift. Human conservation also includes cooperating in Red Cross drive and Christmas Seals; given food and clothing to needy, these being personal gifts, and has also cooperated with the Welfare Bureau, Salvation Army, Community Chest, Juvenile Court, Public Health Nurse Association, Orphans' Home, and other welfare agencies. Chapter has endorsed the elimination of weeds and other work of this nature, such as polluted streams.

In addition to a contribution of \$25.00 to Constitution Hall, Oglethorpe Chapter contributed \$15.00 worth of old gold for the clasps for the Book of Remembrance in which will be placed the names of the donors to Constitution Hall.

D. A. R. Forest Park has been mentioned in Honor Roll Requirements.

Mrs. Owen Edge, Chairman of D. A. R. Magazine, has secured 12 subscriptions to the Magazine. During the past year, the chapter has enjoyed the D. A. R. loving cup given by Mrs. John A. Perdue for the largest number of subscriptions last year. The magazine was also displayed in local window for patriotic days and education week.

For local schools, two scholarships of \$10.00 each have been given to students attending the local industrial school. Oglethorpe Chapter has also provided clothing for needy school children, and has also assisted with a local milk fund.

Five papers have been sent to the Chairman of Filing and Lending Historical Papers.

At the Flag Day program, copies of the "Star-Spangled Banner" were placed at each guest's place.

As to forestry, the chapter has contributed \$7.70 to the D. A. R. Park; given name to Oglethorpe Oak, and urges its conservation; has replanted three highways with crepe myrtles; is planting highway to Ft. Benning; urges living Christmas trees; won honorable mention.

Historic postcards of the Boulder and Historic Triangle at Ft. Benning, together with copy of Year Book containing picture of Georgia Seal sent to Chairman of Historic Post Cards.

Chapter members sold Tuberculosis Seals, and purchased about \$50.00 worth of same.

National Defense Embodying Patriotic Education embraces almost every activity.

Patriotic songs have been urged in the local schools, and the Musical Director reports that patriotic songs are taught in the local public schools.

The local radio station, WRBL, is most cooperative in patriotic programs and especially so during National Defense Week.

Post cards and gifts sent to Georgia's Real Daughters.

Oglethorpe Chapter has cooperated in the program of Welfare of Women and Children.

This chapter endorses the plan of the Home Maker's Club.

## BUTTON GWINNETT CHAPTER, COLUMBUS

#### Mrs. J. W. Murrah, Regent

We have met all Honor Roll Requirements, have added five new members and two new subscribers to the D. A. R. Magazine, making a total of 44 paid memberships and three subscribers to the magazine.

We have cooperated with other organizations in observance of patriotic days in public entertainments, newspaper articles, addresses, displaying flags in homes and in public buildings. We were especially active in putting over the NRA program, making a door to door canvass in a section of the city assigned to us.

We have reported to all State Chairmen who have requested reports.

We have sent 36 volumes to American Merchant Marine Library,

valued at \$50.00, and assisted the City Federation of Clubs to collect 104 volumes for local county schools for negro and underprivileged children to use. We aided the Red Cross drive and the Christmas Seal sales with special committees. Better Films Committee has censored and sponsored pictures locally and secured slides for "Half-Forgotten Romances of American History" for a joint D. A. R. entertainment in February.

Our Chapter History has been compiled and published. We have sent photograph of memorial tree planted in honor of one of our Past Regents to State Chairman.

We have cooperated with Supervisor of Good Will Center in fostering plays, entertainments, formation of mother's clubs and girl's clubs, also girl reserve group, teaching cooking, sewing and crocheting. We have aided in the Sunday School and Christmas tree for underprivileged at Good Will Center.

About two-thirds of our membership attend monthly meetings. Our special work has centered about education. We have two scholarships to our Industrial High School. One of our girls graduates this year. We contributed clothing for graduation. These two scholarships amount to \$20.00. We have contributed \$5.00each to Tamassee and Kate Duncan Smith Schools. We have offered two prizes of \$2.50 each to a pupil in each of the two high schools making the best average in American history. We have made special gifts to Ellis Island, a Christmas box valued at \$7.00; to Meadow Garden, \$5.00; for Better Films, \$2.55; to Bicentennial marker, \$3.00; birthday gift to Mrs. Magna for Constitution Hall, \$11.25; old gold contributed for Book of Remembrance.

We purchased Chatham County Record of Wills for library. Our members have aided in beautification of highways by planting trees and shrubs along their own lawn fronts.

We have collected seven Bible and one Cemetery Record.

The chapter has expended for national and local expenses, \$209.56.

### COL. JOHN MCINTOSH CHAPTER, CONYERS

### Mrs. J. Henry McCalla, Regent

Total membership, 19; national dues paid; state dues paid; patriotic picture given to school, \$5.00; three prizes for excellence in history given to school, \$7.00; local library, \$5.00; Immigrants' Manual, \$1.90; Ellis Island, \$5.57; Constitution Hall, \$2.95; Marking Historical Spots, \$2.00; one subscription to D. A. R. Magazine, \$1.80; total, \$42.62.

## SERGEANT NEWTON CHAPTER, COVINGTON

## Miss Annabel Robinson, Regent

Forty-seven members; per capita tax paid on 45; \$3.00 given to Bicentennial marker in Atlanta; \$10.00 from chapter for restoration of historical church in Oxford, Ga.; fulfilled all Honor Roll Requirement; observed all historic days.

Meetings are well attended, being opened with prayer, Flag Salute and Flag Creed. Programs outlined by Mrs. Max Land have been carried out. The thirty-ninth birthday of our chapter was observed in February with an interesting program, and a beautiful birthday cake was cut.

Welfare Work in Chapter: We have supplied meals, clothing, money, beds and blankets to the needy of our town and county, amounting to \$70.50. During the Christmas season our members assisted in distributing toys, fruits and clothing to the unfortunate families of our community.

A Roosevelt tree has been planted on our public school grounds; 398 roses and shrubs have been planted by members.

On June 30 our chapter marked jointly with the John Houston Chapter the grave of William Norris, Revolutionary soldier.

We have sent in several Bible Records. The American Creed is taught in our public and county schools.

Our chapter erected a historical marker at old Brick Store in Newton County. Mrs. W. D. Travis, Regent, and other members of chapter worked untiringly on this marker for three years. It commemorates the old stage coach roads and the site where Newton County held first superior court. The coach road extended from Charleston, S. C., to New Orleans, and from Ruckersville, Elbert County, to Milledgeville, Ga., former State Capitol. The marker is Sergeant Newton Chapter's contribution to Georgia Bicentennial. The estimated cost of the marker was \$175.00—\$99.20 going through State Treasurer for the bronze tablet. The boulder and other expenses were borne locally.

### FORT EARLY CHAPTER, CORDELE

#### Mrs. D. H. Standard, Regent

Fort Early Chapter has 39 resident and two non-resident members. We have transferred one member and have received four new members during the year.

We have eight meetings a year and they are held in the homes of the members. At each meeting we have prayer and Scripture reading by our Chaplain and follow the program sent out by Mrs. Max Land, State Chairman. Each meeting is reported to the local paper and several notices have been sent to the State Editor. We have met all Honor Roll Requirements and have observed most of the patriotic days.

A \$2.50 gold piece was given for the highest average made in American history in the high school. We gave \$10.00 to buy school books for underprivileged children We made a contribution of \$5.00 toward the indebtedness on Constitution Hall, also sent old gold for Constitution Hall Memory Book. We cooperated with the county committee in holding a ball in honor of the President's birthday. A very gratifying sum was made.

Each year our May meeting is held out at the Old Fort Early site on the banks of the Flint River. This meeting is in the form of a picnic to which our families are invited.

## BENJAMIN HAWKINS CHAPTER, CUTHBERT

## Mrs. Chas. S. Harris, Regent

Members enrolled, 25. Meetings held the third Tuesday at the homes of the members. All patriotic days are observed at these meetings with readings and addresses; 75 per cent of the members attend.

The merchants, library and schools own flags and display them on patriotic days. The Flag Code is placed in the schools and the Pledge to the Flag and the American Creed is taught in each grade.

Chapter activities have been planned this year "not for ourselves

but for others." Magazines and books are sent each month to the CCC boys at Cotton Hill. Many school books and much clothing has been given to underprivileged children in the schools. At Christmas a box of home canned fruits, vegetables and nuts was sent to the Tamassee Industrial School in South Carolina. The administrations of Federal Relief in Randolph County is under the direction of one of our members. Work on the County History, with Mrs. Annette Suarez, Chairman, has progressed wonderfully. The first Much research work has been done on state records. census report, the land lot records and the abstract of wills and marriages of the 100 years of Indian and Civil War period has The records of church and educational periods been completed. are partly completed. A gold medal is given to the pupil in the senior class of high school making the best average in American history. We have been enabled to build a large Colonial bookcase in the Carnegie Library for books of Genealogy and Revolutionary history.

We have met all Honor Roll Requirements.

#### TOMICHICHI CHAPTER, CLARKESVILLE

#### Mrs. Phil Ogletree, Regent

The Tomichichi Chapter, with 34 members, has paid all state and national dues and met most of the Honor Roll Requirements. Owing to the lack of money to do big things, we substituted doing many little things which required work instead of money.

The Committee on Patriotic Education has accomplished much work. All patriotic days have been emphasized on the monthly programs of the chapter and at local schools. Addresses were given by members on Armistice Day, at high schools and grammar schools in Clarkesville, Demorest, and Cornelia. One member gave an address at Piedmont College on Washington's birthday. A review of the Flag Code and questionnaire was given at the March meeting.

The Finance Committee has given splendid support and by hard work has made it possible for us to mark a historic spot in the county. We had planned to do this before Conference but bad weather and mountain roads made it impossible.

We gave a scholarship to Camp Wilkins and a prize to the expression department of Piedmont College.

We sent a box of books to the Merchant Marine Library. We sponsored the Red Cross Roll Call and bought Christmas Seals. Most of the members did social work among the needy ones near them and the chapter helped in a small way, financially.

The Committee on Bible Records found that getting records was an easy task, and rescued a number of old Bibles which would have soon been destroyed. The roads again stopped the work, but we hope to get all in the county by next year.

#### JAMES PITTMAN CHAPTER, COMMERCE

## Mrs. C. E. Pittman, Regent

James Pittman Chapter has 41 members; 15 non-resident members; two resigned; one dropped for non-payment of dues; one new member; three papers pending; five accepted, pending filing of papers. All meetings opened with patriotic songs and closed with American Creed and Pledge to the Flag. Ten monthly meetings in homes of the members. Met all Honor Roll Requirements. All meetings given publicity in local paper, three in Sunday Constitution. All patriotic days observed with programs. The History of National Society is subject for programs for the year. All reports requested by State Chairman have been sent. One subscription to "The National Republic Magazine," given to the public school library. Three subscriptions to D. A. R. Magazine. Five dollars to student in high school for highest monthly average, above 90, in American history. Four dollars to grammar grades, 5, 6, 7, and two mixed grade (6 and 7) memorizing and singing best some patriotic song, selected by committee.

Six Revolutionary soldiers' graves located. One marker ordered. Five family lines traced, 10 Bible Records, 25 pages of historical interest typed, five historical papers written for local paper by Regent, two members are County Historians: Mrs. C. E. Pittman, Regent, for Jackson County; Mrs. W. W. Stark, Historian for Madison County. A charter member, Mrs. Lollie Belle Little Ward (Mrs. C. C. Ward) has been appointed postmaster.

One hundred pieces of shrubbery and 200 bulbs put out by members. American Creed and Piedge to the Flag is taught in public school by request. Have Chapter Scrap Book and Chapter History. Birthday party given for Mrs. Magna in November at home of Regent. Seventeenth anniversary of chapter observed Friday. March 16, at home of Mrs. T. C. Hardman, Vice-Regent, with officers of Winder and Gainesville Chapters as guests. A typed list of all Revolutionary soldiers and wives of Revolutionary soldiers sent to State Historian, and Chairman of Revolutionary Soldiers' Graves and Historial Spots. Also list of graves marked and one located and not marked.

## BARON DEKALB CHAPTER, DECATUR

### Mrs. Carl T. Hudgins, Regent

It has been a pleasure and a privilege to serve my chapter, for which I make the following report:

Membership 57, with one application pending. Twelve meetings held with splendid programs given. All patriotic days observed and special emphasis given to the Georgia Bicentennial. Two programs on National Defense, one on History of Flag, and one on Approved Schools.

One of the most joyous occasions of the year was the George Washington tea given in honor of Mrs. Julian McCurry our State Regent, when we were privileged to have also our state officers and a number of other distinguished guests. The principal feature was an inspiring address by Mrs. McCurry.

Another outstanding meeting was the silver tea in November, celebrating jointly the birthday of Mrs. Magna, our President General, and the twenty-first birthday of the chapter, the proceeds going to Constitution Hall. A gavel of rhodendron wood from Neal Gap was presented to the chapter in honor of its majority by Mrs. John A. Montgomery, a former regent.

Mer. John A. Montgomery, a former regent. A government marker was unveiled at the grave of Captain Thomas Gordan, Revolutionary soldier, which is located in Gwinnett County, on the farm once owned by his son, Few Gordon, and now owned by Mr. Thomas Clower. Among descendants taking part who are active in D. A. R. work in Georgia, were Mrs. W. E. Mann, State Vice-Regent; Mrs. Edgar Gunn, who located the grave; Mrs. E. G. McDaniel; Mrs. L. J. MaGill, and the Regent. Two tree markers were unveiled in commemoration of the bicentennials of the birth of George Washington, and the founding of Georgia by James Oglethorpe, with Dr. J. R. McCain, President of Agnes Scott College, making the principal address.

Our Robert Sallette Society C. A. R. is active and several members, with Mrs. Walter Estes, Senior President, attended National Conference in Washington. Five S. A. R. Citizenship medals offered in grammar schools and one D. A. R. ring for best historical essay offered in high schools, all valued at \$20.00. Honor Roll Requirements were met; contributed \$5.00 to Georgia D. A. R. name on Bicentennial Patrons' table; \$1.50 toward purchase of Mrs. Franklin Roosevelt's plates; \$15.00 to Red Cross, DeKalb Clinic, and Christmas fund. Assisted with Poppy Sale and Red Cross Membership drive.

We have gift scholarships in piano, voice and violin. Outstanding work shown in Better Films by Mrs. A. L. Wade, Chairman; Flag Codes presented to the 49 county schools; a box of books sent to Tamassee School, conservatively valued at \$25.00; 146 Tombstone Records sent; have Chapter Scrap Book and made contribution to State Scrap Book; had three profitable benefits; entered car in parade of Atlanta Ladies' Memorial Association. We made a contribution of gold pieces for Constitution Hall Memory Book.

#### JOHN LAURENS CHAPTER, DUBLIN

#### Mrs. A. T. Coleman, Regent

Interesting and instructive programs on "America at War," have been given at our meetings and 14 patriotic and historical anniversaries have been observed. Through our efforts, ministers observed Georgia Day in sermons and prayer. By invitation, on February 8, our chapter visited Hawkinsville Chapter and Georgia Day was observed. Armistice Day was celebrated with the American Legion, in elaborate exercises.

Our Year Book was lovingly dedicated to Augustus Stanley Adams, Regent, Honorary Life Regent of John Laurens Chapter, State Librarian Georgia Society, 1930, 1932, and State Recording Secretary, Georgia Society, D. A. R. One of the outstanding accomplishments of the chapter is the

One of the outstanding accomplishments of the chapter is the work that we did in the restoration of an old cemetery in the heart of the city, wherein is buried an ancestor of several of our members, a Revolutionary soldier, Thomas McCall. We were assisted in this work by the city. During the year, additions have been made to our Laurens County History and the manuscript has been sent to our State Historian. The grave of Josiah Warren, a Revolutionary soldier, has been located in Laurens County.

Five dollars were donated to the American Merchant Marine Library. Five dollars given for the book plate, and 200 book plates bought by the chapter. Ten dollars given on the debt fund for Constitution Hall. Three hundred dollars given in local charity work by members, during the winter months. Five dollars given to the Empty Stocking fund. Five dollars given to the local library. A donation was sent to the approved schools. Our members helped raise funds for the Red Cross. We assisted in CWA work.

Each year our chapter offers a prize in the local school, of \$5.00, for the highest average in American history, and \$1.00 given for general excellence in the local school. Twenty dollars spent for memorial offerings.

Two hundred and fifty shrubs and trees have been planted by the members of the chapter. All chapter meetings have been reported. Three subscriptions to the D. A. R. Magazine.

Articles of interest have been added to our Scrap Book, which has been kept by the chapter for 18 years.

Total membership, 67. We regret to report the death of Mrs. Percy Rice, and that of Mrs. Josephine Rowe Carswell, a charter member. Three new members received, one transfer, and five resignations. Our average attendance is 75 per cent.

The chapter's expenditure to national, state and local, amount to \$234.47.

## THE STONE CASTLE CHAPTER, DAWSON

#### Mrs. Jonathan Williams, Regent

One of the most prized possessions of the chapter, a beautiful American flag on a standard, is constantly used by organizations and it is our pleasure to loan it at any time. We also display it at chapter meetings.

Through gifts of clothing, whenever needed, and buying \$139.29 worth of books, the Amorette Burge Dismuke Educational Committee has made it possible for 70 children in the county to attend school this year. In this work we feel that we are serving the Master. For in many of His teachings He pleads: "Take care of my little ones." "Feed my lambs."

The Daisy McNulty Memorial Stocking fund sent, at Christmas time, baskets of toys and fruit to 130 children, four adults and two love offerings to "Shut in" chapter members.

Mrs. I. C. Melton, Chairman of the Terrell County Historical Committee, reports the history ready for typing.

One hundred and forty-seven shrubs and trees have been planted since September.

We have transferred three members; lost one, by resignation; and gained two new ones. Our chapter, at present, totals 48 members.

## DOROTHY WALTON CHAPTER, DAWSON

#### Mrs. W. L. Smith, Regent

An active and interesting year's work has been that of the Dorothy Walton Chapter.

We have a membership of 35; two members reinstated. Important days during the year were observed; Washington's birthday was celebrated with a silver tea.

The chapter has the honor of being the first in Georgia to present a President Roosevelt program.

A prize is offered in the seventh grade to the pupil making highest average in history. Chapter cooperated with Terrell County Historical Committee in compiling our county history and assisted in a Georgia Bicentennial pageant.

A book shower will be given to our school library.

In May, the chapter sponsored the Junior-Senior banquet and realized a neat sum for patriotic education.

Two papers have been sent to the Lending Bureau. Reports of meetings were sent to local paper and the Constitution. Much welfare work has been done.

Pledge to the Flag, American Creed and patriotic songs are used at each meeting.

Total expenditures for the year, \$200.06, and a balance on hand, \$32.65.

# GOVERNOR JOHN MILLEDGE CHAPTER, DALTON

## Mrs. Clarence Fraker, Regent

Governor John Milledge Chapter, with 52 members, has observed all patriotic days. This year we followed our study of the Bicentennial with that of noted Georgians. Our chapter took part in the NRA parade on Armistice Day and sponsored a specal Armistice Day program, other organizations joining with us. We placed a wreath on our World War Memorial and a flag on the grave of each veteran in the county.

In patriotic education, prizes and medals to the value of \$20.00 awarded in local schools. School books, amounting to \$5.00, bought for needy children. Contributions have been made to Tamassee and Meadow Garden. One box, valued at \$5.00, sent to Ellis Island; 1,200 magazines distributed through county; one book case valued at \$20.00 and books valued at \$60.00 given Davis Memorial Library (local); old gold contributed for clasps for Memory Book to be placed in Constitution Hall.

Five dollars by chapter and generous contributions made by members to Community Chest. Members gave generously of time and money to Red Cross work. Through the efforts of a D. A. R. member, who is our local Chairman of Red Cross, china, silverware and kitchen utensils were given to the new cafeteria at Fort Hill School, play ground equipment for North Dalton School. Medicine, clothing, and money to many in need.

Planting by members of D. A. R. on highways, and school grounds amounted to 500 shrubs and trees.

Copy of Whitfield County History was presented at Georgia Bicentennial celebration in April and another to Miss Blair, State Historian.

Much genealogical work has been done by chapter members.

#### COL. WILLIAM FEW CHAPTER, EASTMAN

#### Mrs. Thos. J. Sappington, Regent

Our meetings, which have been held regularly each month, are opened by our Chaplain who follows the suggested outline of the State Chaplain. Following this we have a patriotic song, Pledge to the Flag, and the recitation in concert of the American Creed. All meetings have been well attended and interesting. Our programs have been confined largely to the suggestions of our State Chairman, at the same time they incorporated the celebration of special patriotic days.

In Conservation and Thrift we were not entirely inactive: 46 trees and 240 pieces of shrubbery were planted, the destructive use of holly discouraged, and food and clothing given to the needy. Fruits, candies, and 100 toys given to underprivileged children at Christmas.

Copies of the Pledge to the Flag and the American Creed were given to the teachers of the county and requested they be taught to the children.

We gave one citizenship medal in high school, and three cash prizes of \$2.50 each were given in our public school for the highest grades made in American history. The prizes were given in the fifth, seventh and eleventh grades.

Only one subscription to D. A. R. Magazine. Several pieces of old gold were collected and sent to Mrs. Lane for Constitution Hall Memory Book.

A contribution was made to each project sponsored by our State

D. A. R.; \$5.00 was given for the inscription of Georgia D. A. R. on Memorial bronze table in the Capitol, and \$10.00 given on debt on Constitution Hall.

Our most outstanding achievement during this year was the creation of a Student Loan fund of \$453.25. This has been named the Mary Mitchel Daniel fund, in honor of our greatly loved Mrs. W. B. Daniel, who served so faithfully and so efficiently as Regent for 12 years in three separate administrations. This fund has enabled us to send two students to college.

A box of wool, valued at \$1.50, was sent to Ellis Island. A sketch of Col. William Few was written and copies directed into the proper channel.

Due to financial conditions, we lost several members, which we hope the CWA will soon re-enlist them in our rank and file. We have 33 members.

# STEPHEN HEARD CHAPTER, ELBERTON

## Mrs. Edna Rogers, Regent

It was the pleasure of the chapter to entertain the State Executive Board last October.

Present membership, 56; lost, by death one member; two by transfer, and three being dropped from the roll; one new member has been added to the roll, and two names pending.

All patriotic days have been observed. One program was given on National Defense and one on Approved Schools. Georgia history has been the keynote of programs for the year.

Notice of all meetings has been sent to State Editor.

A bronze marker has been placed in the chimney of the Nancy Hart Cabin.

Marked six graves of Revolutionary soldiers, and located two other graves, sketches of these soldiers have been sent to the Historian.

Five Bible Records have been sent in.

Thirteen historic spots have been located. Description and location given in Historian's report.

Chapter keeps a Scrap Book. Also collects historic post cards and uses same in the schools of the county.

Creditable work has been done by Girls' Home Makers Clubs.

Patriotic songs and American Creed are taught in the schools and are used in chapter meetings.

A survey of the schools of the county was made as to the teaching of American history. Chapter cooperated with committee in putting on the Roosevelt Ball.

A tree from the Gov. Stephen Heard place and one from the Nancy Hart place were sent to Atlanta to be planted in the Bicentennial Memorial Park, to the memory of these Revolutionary heroes.

The chapter cooperates in welfare work of the town and county. A Valentine shower was given Miss Pool and Mrs. Newsome.

Curator, Mrs. Copeland, has in her possession the following ar-ticles: Nancy Hart's pipe; "The Cluster of Spiritual Songs," by Jesse Mercer, published 1829; "Treatise on Self Knowledge," John Mason, published 1818; "Sermons on Doctrinal and Experimental Subjects," Seth Williston, published 1812; a scriptural atlas, containing 10 maps, M. Carey, published 1813. One box sent to Ellis Island. Purchased second volume of

Wilkes County Records, compiled by Mrs. Davidson.

## NATHANIEL ABNEY CHAPTER, FITZGERALD

## Mrs. Harold Beall, Regent

The Nathaniel Abney Chapter has 25 members; two new members, and one dropped from role.

Patriotic days have been observed. Our chapter has a D. A. R. shelf in Carnegie Library. We place our D. A. R. Magazines there for reference; also books that the chapter contributes to the library.

We used programs for meetings outlined by State Chairman. Several reports of meetings have been sent to Sunday's Consti-

several reports of meetings have been sent to Sunday's Constitution.

We have a Student Loan fund used by high school graduates from Fitzgerald High School; two girls and one boy are using this fund at present.

All chapter members are interested in welfare work and cooperate with other organizations in this line of work. We also cooperate with Red Cross work.

We could not meet all Requirements of Honor Roll but contributed to some of most important ones.

At present we are interested in beautifying our public road to cemetery; our plans are to solicit and contribute trees and shrubbery for this much-needed road.

#### JAMES MONROE CHAPTER, FORSYTH

### Mrs. Elbert White Banks, Regent

The James Monroe Chapter has 40 members, four associate members, and one paper pending. We have had four resignations this year.

State and national dues have been paid. The chapter has not contributed to all Honor Roll Requirements on account of need in local work.

Ten regular meetings of the chapter have been held in the homes of the members. The meetings were opened with Pledge to Flag, American Creed, patriotic song, followed by Scripture and prayer by the Chaplain.

We have conformed to the plans for general study and celebrations of patriotic days and added features, altogether making attractive and enjoyable programs. Of special interest was the Flag Day program, with special music and an address by Ex-Congressman Carlton Mobley. On Armistice Day the graves of World War veterans, who are buried in Forsyth, were decorated with flags.

The members have planted two park ways on the national highway.

The chapter sponsored the sale of the Christmas Seals, the proceeds of which was \$21.00 and were used for health purposes at the Forsyth Grammar school.

A contribution of 26 books was made to the Forsyth library by a member of the chapter, the books to be placed in the D. A. R. Alcove. Also subscriptions to five magazines were given by the chapter to the library. We have raised \$22.00 in cash for the library. A two-year subscription to the D. A. R. Magazine.

Two prizes are offered at Mary Persons High School, Forsyth, one in seventh grade, "American History," and one in eleventh grade, "Citizenship."

A scholarship to Bessie Tift College is given each year to a local girl.

We have sent in to Mrs. Eli Thomas, chairman, a large number of Cemetery and Bible Records.

## FORT VALLEY CHAPTER, FORT VALLEY

## Mrs. Cornelius Hall, Regent

The Fort Valley Chapter, of Fort Valley, has 27 members and two new members. We hold monthly meetings at the homes of the members, the meetings being opened by the Chaplain and the flag being prominently displayed at each meeting. We have given a prize of \$5.00 for the highest mark in American history in the eleventh grade every year since we have been organized. We have taken an active interest and participation in all matters pertaining to D. A. R. work. We have contributed to the City Welfare fund and to the public library of the town.

The interest of our Student Loan fund has been used this year to enable a worthy young woman of the town to complete a business course.

Our programs for the year have been the ones outlined by Mrs. Max E. Land, State Chairman of Historical Programs, and have been a great benefit and interest to the members.

#### GOV. TREUTLEN CHAPTER, FORT VALLEY

#### Miss Wilma Orr, Regent

The Gov. Treutlen Chapter D. A. R., of Fort Valley, has 27 resident members and 10 non-resident members; dropped two, papers for four now pending.

The Creed was taught to 300 school children in Daily Vacation Bible School by our State Chairman.

Observed all patriotic days, in chapter meetings and special programs at the schools. Patriotic songs included on our chapter programs.

We have met all Honor Roll Requirements.

We gave two prizes in local schools, one for the best average in American history, the other in domestic science.

Our Child Welfare Committee assists needy children with clothes and see that they have books.

We contributed \$10.00 to our local Thomas library. Later in the year our Library Committee had a rummage sale which increased our gift to \$31.00. Part of this amount is used to add to the valuable shelf of lineage books in our public library; as well as contributing of historical works.

Members have planted 110 shrubs, 430 plants, 300 bulbs, 60 roses, \$5.00 worth of seed.

We publish accounts of our meetings in local and state papers. We take two copies of the D. A. R. Magazine; one is placed in library, accessible to all. We have a Scrap Book. We are continuing our work in Bible Records, Wills, etc.

Nearly all of our Scholarshp fund of \$400.00 is loaned out.

## COL. WM. CANDLER CHAPTER, GAINESVILLE

#### Mrs. George Ashford, Regent

The Col. Wm. Candler Chapter has 33 members Monthly meetings opened by the Chaplain, followed by the Salute to the Flag and a patriotic song.

Historical papers have been prepared, and patriotic days observed. At our November meeting we had a lovely silver tea in honor of Mrs. Magna's birthday. Our scholarships amount to \$430.00, and we have added to our loan fund. In our schools, we have given seven history prizes and one for citizenship. Also a subscription to D. A. R. Magazine was given to high school library.

A box of material has been sent to Ellis Island, \$10.00 contributed to community library, and \$25.00 to community club house.

A marker for William Clark's grave has been applied for.

## ARTHUR FORT CHAPTER, GRANTVILLE

#### Mrs. V. G. Williams, Regent

Meetings have been held regularly, patriotic days have been observed.

Patriotic songs have been used and National Defense presented at each meeting.

We have an enrollment of 19, one new member, one resignation, and three papers pending. Books, clothing and school supplies donated to needy children, \$14.75. One of our members served as local Chairman of the Red Cross and aided in the distribution of 700 yards of cloth and \$100.00 in money for local relief. In cooperation with other organizations the members of our chapter have contributed \$324.00 for local needs. A medal, value \$5.00, was awarded to the senior making the highest average in American history.

Box of supplies sent to Ellis Island.

#### OLIVER MORTON CHAPTER, GRAY

#### Mrs. Homer Harris, Regent

Membership, 25. Historical meetings have been held regularly in the homes of members with appropriate programs given. On the observation of Thomas Jefferson's birthday, Mr. Carlton Mobley, ex-Congressman, delivered a splendid address. Armistice Day was appropriately observed. The George Washington celebration given at the home of the Regent, was the most elaborate of the year, and was also an observaton of the chapter's twelfth birthday.

All dues were collected before February 1, and necessary disbursements made. The chapter is planning to send a delegate to Washington.

Two benefit card parties have been sponsored by the chapter, one in May and another in December. The proceeds amounted to \$35.00. The chapter added this amount to the funds to be used for the publication of the County History, which is still its goal.

There are two scholarships in the treasury, one of \$100.00, and one of \$50.00.

The chapter assisted the Habersham Chapter of Atlanta, in the unveiling in this county in October, of three markers, two of Shirley, and one of Brooks.

The latest work undertaken by the chapter is that of the C. A. R. in the schools.

## PULASKI CHAPTER, GRIFFIN

#### Mrs. J. B. Turner, Regent

Pulaski Chapter has not reached its goal of meeting all Honor Roll Requirements this year, but we have determined that next year we will. We have 50 members, one new member and two with papers pending. We followed the historical program outlined by our State Chairman. We have featured the flag whenever possible, displaying it in front of the club house on our meeting days and presenting and pledging allegiance to it at all meetings. Flag Codes have been placed in all schools of the city and county.

A copy of Spalding County History, written by Col. Lucien Goodrich, is being prepared to be presented to the Georgia Department of Archives.

Pulaski Chapter celebrated our President General's birthday with a tea given by the officers of the chapter. A birthday gift was sent to Constitution Hall.

A committee from our chapter assisted in the Red Cross Roll Call. Members bought and sold Red Cross Seals, aided in the NRA drive, Griffin Relief Association drive, and contributed to the Empty Stocking fund. We cooperated in sponsoring the President's Ball and contributed a birthday gift which was sold for the benefit of the Warm Springs Foundation.

A D. A. R. gold medal is presented by the chapter each year to the high school student making the highest average in American history.

We have contributed to S. B. C. Student Loan fund. We also added a substantial amount to our Chapter's Student Loan fund.

## HAWKINSVILLE CHAPTER, HAWKINSVILLE

#### Mrs. Ruel A. Anderson, Regent

The Hawkinsville Chapter has 48 members. Held all regular meetings with patriotic, musical and historic programs outlined by State Chairman, Mrs. Max E. Land.

We have located the graves of one Revolutionary soldier, two soldiers of 1812, and two daughters of a Revolutionary soldier. These graves are in the George Walker family cemetery in Bleckley County. Being abandoned as a cemetery it was in a state of dilapidation and through the efforts of our beloved chapter member, Mrs. George Walker Jordan, this cemetery has recently been restored. Marker for the Revolutionary soldier's grave has been received and application for marker for one soldier of 1812 has been approved.

We have placed three markers of concrete with bronze tablets in memory of the great men in whose honor the trees were planted, George Washington, James Edward Oglethorpe, and Woodrow Wilson. These trees are planted on the approach to Memorial Bridge, which is dedicated to World War soldiers, over the Ocmulgee River on the national paved highway in our city. Photographs of trees and markers have been sent State Scrap Book.

We have copied four Cemetery Records, sent three Historic Postcards to State Chairman, published Year Book, sold poppies on Armistice Day, purchased Georgia book plates for all books in chapter library, sent box containing seven books and 50 magazines to Merchant Marine Library, and one book each to Kate Duncan Smith and Tamassee School libraries. Have scholarship at Brenau College, value \$100.00. Two S. A. R. citizenship medals given in Hawkinsville high school, and one offered every school in the county, a total of seven. We sent gifts to Real Daughters. Made contribution of gold to Constitution Hall Memory Book. Planted 35 trees, 3,325 shrubs, published articles in local paper requesting conservation of native decorative trees and shrubs, and have cooperated with Garden Club in planting court house grounds. We have cooperated with civic and religious organizations in interest of welfare work for women and children, purchased and used Christmas Seals and sent Christmas box to patient at Alto. Have active Chairman of Better Films who keeps in close touch with programs at local theatre. Our Scrap Book is a complete history of chapter since organization. A colonial exhibit was held at the April meeting. Flag lessons presented history classes in Hawkinsville school for study.

We celebrated the President General's birthday by holding a rummage sale and made \$5.00.

Col. Wm. Few Chapter, of Eastman, was the guest of our chapter at the November meeting and presented a Thanksgiving and Armistice Day program, and the John Laurens Chapter, of Dublin, at the February meeting.

Our chapter has been honored with a state officer, Mrs. J. L. Mims. State Consulting Registrar.

Hawkinsville Chapter has contributed to and supported as far as possible all state and national objects.

## JOHN BENSON CHAPTER, HARTWELL

## Mrs. H. I. Alford, Regent

John Benson Chapter has 30 resident members, nine non-resident members, one new member, and other applications; eight resignations; lost one member by death, and one demit.

The most outstanding work of the chapter for the year has been in cooperation with the local U. D. C., Woman's Club, and the American Legion in building a community club house, to which \$200.00 has already been contributed.

The year books are dedicated to and contain a full page photograph of the State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry, who is the honored and beloved Organizing Regent of this chapter.

The Radio Chairman arranged a program which was broadcast over WTFI.

The Publicity Chairman has written up all meetings for the local paper and sent several articles to the State Chairman.

The Motion Picture Chairman receives ratings of pictures and reports same at each meeting.

Three members receive the cards sent out by the National Chairman. The Chapter Constitution and By-Laws have been revised and adopted.

The chapter history has been completed by the Historian. A brief history of the chapter was written by the Secretary, read at one of the meetings and published in "Hart County History." This book was sponsored by this chapter. The chapter presented the National Society and the Georgia Society with a copy.

An article of about 1,500 words has been written by a member about John Benson, for whom this chapter is named. Another member has compiled brief histories of every Revolutionary soldier whose grave is marked in Hart County. One Revolutionary soldier's grave has been marked this year and another located. Thirteen Bible and 17 Cemetery Records have been sent to the State Chairman. Several members visited Tamassee School and a cash donation of \$2.00 was made. Fifty dollars has been given in food, clothing and fuel for relief work.

Gave three scholarships to Hartwell grammar and high school. One medal to the student making highest average in American history.

Total expenditures, \$350.00.

#### JOHN BALL CHAPTER, IRWINTON

#### Mrs. John F. Porter, Regent

Membership, 19.

Report of our meetings are sent to the State Editor and to two local papers. Our programs have provided for a study of the National and State Society D. A. R., and for the observance of patriotic days. We publish a year book of which we are justly proud. The American Creed, Pledge to the Flag, and "America" are printed in it.

In addition to our programs on Georgia we have further commemorated the Bicentennial celebration by sponsoring the presentation of the Georgia pageant written by Mrs. H. M. Franklin, and by planting a tree on the court house grounds in memory of Oglethorpe. The chapter members have cooperated in collecting material for a Georgia Scrap Book and have completed a very interesting and valuable book.

Mrs. Magna's birthday was celebrated with a quilt and old relic display, and from the proceeds a donation made to Constitution Hall. By way of Highway Beautification we have graded around the marker which we erected several years ago. Grass and shrubs have been planted and by these means this spot has been made most attractive. We are collecting data on other spots of historic importance in our county and are making plans towards placing another marker soon.

Three very excellent biographies of outstanding Georgians have been sent to the Committee on Filing and Lending Historic Papers. Four Bibles and three Cemetery Records have been sent to Mrs. Thomas. Two copies of the Wilkinson County History have been presented to the Federation of Woman's Clubs. We sent a box to Ellis Island valued at \$5.00 and cooperated with the County Red Cross in the membership drive.

We are glad to report that one of the CWA projects put on in Wilkinson County was the re-indexing of records and as a result the county has one of the most complete sets of county records in Georgia. A member of the John Ball Chapter was director of this project. The oldest deed recorded is dated July 27, 1803.

We have given especial attention to patriotic education in the schools of Wilkinson County in the following ways: by presenting a framed picture of George Washington to one of the high schools of the county; by sponsoring an essay in the high schools of the county, and by continuing the work in the negro schools in Sons and Daughters of U. S. A. Clubs. We gave an American flag to each negro school. We have visited nine clubs, and Daughters of the U. S. A. buttons have been given 202 members of these clubs.

## WILLIAM MCINTOSH CHAPTER, JACKSON

### Mrs. J. D. Jones, Regent

William McIntosh Chapter reports 29 members; one applicant for membership.

All designated patriotic days have been observed, and all state and national obligations have been met. All Honor Roll Requirements have been complied with. Fifty cents per capita has been set aside for the Memorial fund and a like amount given to the fund for the Jackson club house which is owned jointly by the D. A. R., the U. D. C. and the Jackson Woman's Club.

The chapter joined the Jim Finley Post, American Legion, in celebration of Armistice Day.

The graves of two Revolutionary soldiers have been located. They are Clement Moore and Obadiah Morris, neither of whose name has appeared before on any roster.

The outstanding historical work of the year was the completion of the Butts County History by Mrs. John E. Lane, Chapter Historian and County Historian. Mrs. Lane has contributed her time and funds generously to this great work, and every citizen feels indebted to her. The history has 19 chapters, making 975 typed pages, single spaced. It contains sketches of the ancestors of the members of the William McIntosh Chapter D. A. R., 40 in number; abstracts of deeds 1826-1832; marriage register, 1826-1861; abstracts of Butts County wills; roster of soldiers, 1776, 1812, 1836, 1846, 1861, 1917, and sketches of all soldiers of 1776 and 1812 and several others; genealogies of 55 pioneer families of the county; Tombstone Records from nine public and five private burial grounds.

All officers and chairmen have worked faithfully and harmoniously for the good of the chapter.

## WILLIAM MARSH CHAPTER, LAFAYETTE

## Mrs. Tom Lee, Regent, Chickamauga

The William Marsh Chapter, of LaFayette, has a paid up membership of 34, with one associate member. Four applications pending. One of these applicants is a resident of China.

We have lost a beloved associate member by death, Mrs. Caroline Arnold, poet and musician.

The one hundredth anniversary of Walker County was celebrated in November. The D. A. R. Chapter cooperated in having a Colonial group on a suitably decorated float, and we also had a pageant of Colonial times at the evening entertainment.

At an educational meet at LaFayette we were asked to help with a luncheon for the guests of the schools, which we gladly did.

In making out our year books, we used Mrs. Max E. Land's suggestions for programs featuring "The National Society D. A. R., Its Organization, Properties and Activities."

We had 10 meetings during the year, including Flag Day, with the regulation D. A. R. opening, using flags, both state and national, on the Regent's desk.

The birthday of our President General, Mrs. Russell William Magna, was celebrated at our November meeting and a contribution sent to apply on the indebtedness on Continental Hall.

Our chairman appointed to collect old gold to be used towards

making the clasps for our Memory Book, was very active, and sent off a most creditable collection.

A contribution was made to the two approved schools suggested, Kate Duncan Smith and Tamassee.

A Creed Chairman has been appointed and Flag Codes placed in schools in the county.

We are giving D. A. R. medals in two schools in the county, one at LaFayette and one at Chickamauga. A medal is offered to pupil making highest grade in United States history.

The members of the chapter have been active in Red Cross work, sale of Tuberculosis Seals, going to the polls and voting at elections, taking part in beautifying public property, as well as our own beloved John B. Gordon Hall which is developing into a show place, as an example of Colonial architecture and landscape gardening.

#### LAGRANGE CHAPTER, LAGRANGE

#### Mrs. Thomas G. Polhill, Regent

LaGrange Chapter has 45 members with one new member, one transfer and one resignation during the year. Honor Roll Requirements were met in full on January 10.

Programs have followed closely the outline suggested by Mrs. Max Land. Rev. Willis E. Howard, pastor of LaGrange First Baptist Church, addressed the chapter on Woodrow Wilson Day. State Senator J. Render Terrell, Jr., spoke on "What We Owe to George Washington" at the February meeting. Col. Hatton Lovejoy discussed "National Defense" at the March meeting. Other programs of the highest historical and cultural value have been given by chapter members with frequent contributions to the musical features by faculty and students of LaGrange College.

All meetings have been reported to the State Editor and to our local paper. All patriotic days have been observed.

A tree has been planted in city park commemorating Georgia's Bicentennial and marked with bronze tablet.

Cooperated in observance of "Americanism Week," the Regent writing on "The Need for Loyalty" for local paper. Cooperated with signing of NRA cards.

Cooperated with County Historian by furnishing chapter history. Two prizes of \$5.00 each are given annually to high school students—one for excellence in American history and one for citizenship; \$5.00 was given LaGrange Welfare Association; \$5.00 from the birthday party was contributed to Constitution Hall debt; \$30.00 was set aside to apply on scholarship fund at LaGrange College; \$103.50 in scholarships was given the chapter by LaGrange Academy of Arts. This same amount was given last year but too late to be included in our 1933 report.

Seven articles were sent to the State Scrap Book. A story of the place for which LaGrange Chapter was named sent State Chairman. The location of the "Burnt Village," and old Indian trails and stage coach roads reported to be marked at a future date. An attractive scrap book is kept by our Chapter Historian.

We have three subscriptions to D. A. R. Magazine, one being donated to city library.

Have sent three Bible Records to chairman. Old gold valued at \$16.56 was donated for memory book decorations. A box of wool yarn valued at \$3.00 was sent to Ellis Island.

Six books and about 200 magazines and periodicals were given

to city library. Five volumes sent to Merchant Marine Library. D. A. R. Manuals for Citizenship were distributed to the seven city schools; the nine county schools; the city library, and LaGrange College library.

One dollar was contributed to Georgia Book-Plate fund and 100 plates ordered for local use.

We have a very active C. A. R. Society with 25 members, six new names having been added this year and all dues paid in full. Flag Day program in May will be presented by the children for the adult chapter under direction of their very capable and efficient leader, Mrs. R. A. Malone.

#### **ROANOKE CHAPTER, LUMPKIN**

#### Mrs. William A. Fitzgerald, Regent

Seventeen members.

We have held all meetings at the homes of members, always displaying flag. Have used Ritual, Pledge to the Flag, and American Creed, and have followed the state program throughout the year. We always have year books and keep a beautiful scrap book. We held two quilt displays, the merchants furnishing the prizes, also a benefit. The chapter subscribes for the D. A. R. Magazine, and has a Better Film Chairman. Our meetings are always published by our local paper and things of interest are sent to State Editor.

We have collected 52 Tombstone Records and 30 Bible Records. Our most outstanding work has been and will be until completed, the marking of the site of the Battle of Shepherd's Plantation.

Roanoke Chapter contributed to the following: Bicentennial Tablet, Immigrant's Manual, National Defense, Ellis Island, Publication and Bulletin, Constitution Hall, Lucy Cook Peel Memorial, Marking Historic Spots; paid state and national dues and has a balance in the bank.

## MARY HAMMOND WASHINGTON CHAPTER, MACON

#### Mrs. Julian Lewis, Regent

The Mary Hammond Washington Chapter is completing its fortyfirst year mindful of the obligations of the Daughters of the American Revolution in the present crisis. At our meetings today's problems have been presented by able speakers, in touch with national affairs. The Indian Mounds of Old Ocmulgee Fields, where the Smithsonian Institute is making important explorations, are receiving due attention.

We have a membership of 100. We continue to support the Genealogical and Historical Department, established by our chapter at Washington Memorial Library. Current releases have been most ably reviewed by our Better Films Chairman. A silver cup was given for the best historical essay of the senior class at Miller High School for Girls.

The Benjamin Hawkins Society of the Children of the American Revolution has an active and interested membership, with a waiting list.

The children presented an impressive flag pageant in observance of Georgia Day, at our February meeting and at the conclusion of the pageant our chapter presented them with a flag of our country. At this time we added another handsome United States flag to our own collection. The chapter has cooperated with its sister chapters and with other civic and patriotic organizations on appropriate occasions.

Fellowship and the welfare of others have been our constant concern and we are looking forward to continued service for home and country.

# NATHANIEL MACON CHAPTER, MACON

# Mrs. J. E. Wright, Regent

Our chapter has 80 members. Three of the programs have been on our National Society and for the others we have asked some of Macon's best speakers to talk to us on the outstanding questions of the day.

We have met many Requirements of the Honor Roll and on Mrs. Magna's birthday contributed to Constitution Hall.

In the NRA parade held in Macon in October our chapter entered four cars, beautifully decorated in the D. A. R. colors.

We presented a copy of the Flag Code issued by the National Society to each of the 27 grammar schools of Bibb county. The letters received from the principals expressed their need for these Codes.

Through the efforts of our committee, \$15.00 given by the chapter, brought Christmas cheer to several families of the World War and Confederate veterans who would otherwise have been neglected.

Our annual awards of \$5.00 will be presented on Recognition Day —one to the senior at Miller High School for excellency in American history and one to the senior at Lanier High School for Boys for outstanding qualities of good citizenship.

The rebuilding of Ft. Hawkins is still the major objective of our chapter. As reported last year by the Regent, the stone foundation, built of the original stones, has been finished. The board of management has worked long and hard on the project this year and it seems that in the near future it will be completed.

#### STEPHEN HOPKINS CHAPTER, MARSHALLVILLE

#### Miss Willie E. Rice, Regent

Thirteen resident members, two non-resident members.

Many of our programs have been given by distinguished guest speakers. All programs are reported to local and state papers and scrap book kept. Special days are noted in year books and appropriate responses given.

Contribution to Constitution Hall sent. Two prizes given to successful contestants at Marshallville High School. A committee ably assisted County Historian in compiling Macon County History. Seven Bible Records were sent in to State Chairman. A collection of Indian artifacts is being gathered from local fields and a chapter representative was invited to use them in a lecture at the high school. The chapter has affiliated with a Memorial Highway Association in beautifying four miles of Highway No. 49 leading into Marshallville. Four thousand camellias, interspersed with crepe myrtle have been planted and the D. A. R. plan to carpet the outer shoulder with Guernsey Illy, narcissi, daffodils and jonguils in April.

Though small in number, we are mighty in enthusiasm.

# FIELDING LEWIS CHAPTER, MARIETTA

# Mrs. Chas. N. Clotfelter, Regent

Forty-eight members. The meetings of our chapter have been held in the homes of the members; all special days observed. We used most of the programs outlined by Mrs. Max Land. National Defense, the Constitution, and Approved Schools figured prominently on our programs.

The chapter keeps a scrap book.

Human Conservation: Ten of our members cooperated with other organizations in Red Cross and Community Chest drives, the chapter donating \$10.00 to the chest. One of our members is actively engaged in CWA work.

Our Student Loan fund for college is \$228.00; for high school, \$28.19, and we made a gift of \$10.00 for books in the grammar grades.

We have a Better Film Chairman. Contribution to Constitution Hall, \$5.00. Books sent to the Marine Library in New Orleans. Three Bible Records sent in.

We cooperated with the county committee in celebrating the Centennial of Cobb County last fall, and our float, representing the Seal of Georgia, had first place in the parade. Our part of the expense in this celebration was \$25.00.

#### MATTHEW TALBOT CHAPTER, MONROE

#### Mrs. J. Roy Nunnally, Regent

The meetings have been well attended with average attendance of 88½ per cent.

Membership numbers 24. We have had eight resignations and one member dropped. We have two new members with four other applications for membership pending.

Nine interesting and instructive historical programs suggested by Mrs. Max Land used for 1933-34. Splendid year book printed. Have ritual of patrotic music, Salute to Flag, American Creed, and prayer.

All Honor Roll Requirements have been met.

A large number of trees and shrubs have been planted by individual members and several Daughters decorated living Christmas trees.

Have cooperated with Red Cross. Maintain room in local hospital. Representative members assisted in the sale of Tuberculosis Christmas Seals. Cooperating with Woman's Club and patriotic organizations of the town.

Armistice Day observed with beautiful services at local church. Distinguished out-of-town World War veteran, Robert Mizell, of Atlanta, speaker of the day. Special music at service.

History of chapter and history of Matthew Talbot, for whom chapter was named, completed by Chapter Historian, and same sent to State Historian.

Entertained at a luncheon honoring our beloved State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry. Other distinguished out-of-town guests included Mrs. Julius Talmadge and her mother, Mrs. Erwin, and Mrs. George Napier, all of Athens. These guests brought the chapter inspirational talks.

Chapter has scrap book.

Georgia Day observed with special program in high school.

Matthew Talbot Chapter continues to give two citizenship medals to most outstanding boy and most outstanding girl in high school as outlined by S. A. R. and D. A. R. Gives American history prize and Girl Home Makers' medal.

Contributed to Constitution Hall.

Total receipts, \$128.04.

# ELIZABETH MARLOW CHAPTER, MONTICELLO

#### Mrs. J. S. Wilson, Regent

Meetings have been held regularly in the homes of members. The members have given loyal support in attendance, interest and cooperation.

The programs outlined by our State Chairman, and the Ritual, sent out by the State Chaplain, have been used.

A box of wool, crochet thread and shirting was sent to Ellis Island. The Sweeny history medal has been offered to the most proficient child in American history.

A contribution of books was sent to the Kate Duncan Smith School, at Grant, Alabama.

Mrs. Magna, our President General's birthday, was celebrated at our November meeting at which time a free-will offering was taken for Constitution Hall.

We are proud to report that through our Chapter Chairman, the American Creed has been learned by all the school children from the first through the eleventh grades and we are planning to observe Creed Day, April 3.

Some of our members worked in the court house cleaning and dusting the early records of the county and were instrumental in getting the county commissioners to have shelves built in the lower vault to preserve these records.

Our chapter sent a shower of Christmas cards to our two Real Daughters.

A two-year subscription to the D. A. R. Magazine was the gift of the chapter to the Regent.

On September 24, 1933, our chapter unveiled a marker to William Fears, Revolutionary soldier, at which time Governor Talmadge, a descendant, made the principal address.

An account of this was sent to State Historian for State Scrap Book.

#### JOHN BENNING CHAPTER, MOULTRIE

#### Mrs. L. L. Dickerson, Regent

The John Benning Chapter has a membership of 43, of which seven are non-residents. We have had a very pleasant year with instructive programs centering around the work of the State and National Societies. Patriotic songs and observance of patriotic days are also a part of our programs. The schools observed Flag Day in February with an instructive and interesting program, including the correct use of the flag demonstrated by the Boy Scouts. The chapter observed Flag Day with a special program. The Flag Salute and the American Creed have been taught in the schools and are used at chapter meetings. One flag has been given to the public schools.

We are very glad to report a county history, a chapter history, and a chapter scrap book. We have a Better Films Chairman, a shelf in the public library, one subscription to D. A. R. Magazine, one subscription to National News Defense, and have given copies of Manual of the United States for Immigrants and Foreigners to schools for use in American history and civics classes.

The chapter has sponsored essay writing contests in American history in the junior and senior high schools. Amount given for medals, \$10.00. Contributions have been made to Tamassee, old Greenfield Church, and the milk fund for needy school children.

Thirty-six members have actually engaged in relief and welfare work. The chapter has given \$26.00 to Americanism, endeavoring to promote good citizenship and reduce illiteracy. Twenty-five dollars was given the Moultrie Carnegie Library and \$25.00 to the Morgan Loan fund. The chapter maintains two scholarships amounting in value to \$600.00; also has a Student Loan fund of \$282.90.

Contributions toward Conservation and Thrift amount to \$1,-431.00.

#### NANCY HART CHAPTER, MILLEDGEVILLE

#### Miss Floride Allen, Regent

The Nancy Hart Chapter has a membership of 57, including two Real Daughters. One new member has been added, two resigned, and two lost by death.

The year book was lovingly dedicated to our faithful Chaplain, Mrs. Anna Green Cook, a charter member of Nancy Hart Chapter and author of Baldwin County History.

The chapter was happy to observe its thirty-third birthday in November and to have as honor guests Mrs. Thomas Mell and Mrs. Howard McCall.

True maternal love exists between Nancy Hart Chapter and Suckey Hart Society, Children of American Revolution. At the January meeting they presented a program and a silver tea was given them for Harriet M. Lothrop Memorial.

The Sons of American Revolution were dinner guests at an evening meeting in February. Mr. Richard Reid, of Augusta, spoke on "Earliest History of Georgia."

Hstorical articles from original sources, material on Cherokee Indians and Early History of Baldwin County were published in local newspaper, the Atlanta Journal, and Chronicles of Oklahoma. Five papers were contributed to Committee on Filing and Lending Historical Papers.

Verification slips have been received for marking two graves— Rev. Carey Cox, Revolutionary soldier and soldier of 1812, Putnam County; John Moran, soldier of 1812, Baldwin County.

The chapter sponsors four Sons and Daughters of U. S. A. Clubs in county schools, and flags were presented to each school.

Georgia Day programs were sponsored in all county schools.

Seven citizenship medals will be given in local schools.

The Leola Beeson Scholarship fund has grown to \$100.00, and is used by a Baldwin County girl at Georgia State College for Women.

The chapter has been represented at all civic and community meetings. Ten dollars was contributed to Red Cross and Community chest. Several members have given unlimited efforts to relief work.

A Christmas box was sent our two Real Daughters. On March 11 the Regent, with a committee, had a delightful visit to these old ladies.

Shrubs were planted around the LaFayette marker on Georgia Military College campus. A box of threads was sent to Ellis Island and 10 books sent Merchant Marine Library. The chapter has a fine scrap book, and reports five subscribers to D. A. R. Magazine. Reports were sent to 25 state committees.

Total disbursement, \$163.64.

### SERGEANT JASPER CHAPTER, MONTICELLO

#### Mrs. Hugh C. Tucker, Regent

The Sergeant Jasper Chapter has 40 paid up members. The meetings are held in the homes on the second Thursday with nine meetings during the year. The meetings are opened with a patrictic song followed by Scripture reading and prayer by the Chaplain. Reading from the Ritual in unison. We have followed the program sent out by the State Chairman, Mrs. Max Land. All patrictic days have been observed.

Five dollar D. A. R. medal given in high school for highest average in American history.

Four members gave liberally of time to Red Cross work.

#### SARAH DICKINSON CHAPTER, NEWNAN

# Mrs. Wade Stallings, Regent

The Sarah Dickinson Chapter is very happy to report a most successful and enthusiastic year. The meetings have been held in the homes of the members, with good attendance, opened with the Lord's Prayer in concert, Flag Salute, and American Creed. At the conclusion of the programs delightful social hours are enjoyed.

We used historical programs suggested by our State Chairman of Programs, Mrs. Max Land. We also observed other patriotic days with appropriate music. Flag Day observed in June. All Honor Roll Requirements met.

At our November meeting we celebrated the birthday of our President General, Mrs. Russell Magna, at which the chapter voted to send \$5.00 to Constitution Hall.

A medal, valued at \$5.00, was given in high school to the student who made the highest average in American history.

In the past year, five new members have been enrolled, three reinstated, making a total of 53 paid members.

# GENERAL DANIEL STEWART CHAPTER, PERRY

#### Mrs. F. G. Chandler, Regent

Our monthly meetings have been well attended and our programs have been passed on the historical outline given by Mrs. Max E. Land. More than half of the communications from state chairmen have been answered. The Year Book Committee arranged very unique and helpful year books. Flag Codes were distributed to class rooms in schools. Most all patriotic days have been observed. Chapter members assisted with public county-wide meeting in November when county history was presented and accepted. One typed copy of history to be sent to State Historian, Miss Ruth Blair. We featured a study of the American Indian at one meeting. Gave a George Washington tea in February. All members exercise their right of citizenship by voting. Each member engages in some charity work through several churches. Meetings are published in local A most able paper on National Defense was given by one paper. of our members. Chapter scrap book begun.

Five dollars added to local Student Loan fund. Two prizes of

\$2.50 each are given for highest average in year in American history. Two citizenship medals awarded through school, \$1.00 each. Six dollars given to buy books for needy school children. Entire membership crusade against obnoxious weeds and plant shrubs. Twelve dollars national dues paid. Four dollars and eighty cents state dues paid. Ellis Island, \$.03; per capita, \$.72. Marking historic spots, \$2.00. Memorial gift for Continental Hall honoring Mrs. McCurry, \$1.00. Constitution Hall, \$1.00. S. B. C. Morgan Student Loan fund, 10 cents per capita, \$2.40; balance on hand, \$20.00.

# HAWTHORN TRAIL CHAPTER, PELHAM

# Mrs. W. C. Twitty, Regent

The Hawthorne Trail Chapter has held meetings each month with an average attendance of 50 per cent; we have used and enjoyed the historical programs suggested by Mrs. Max Land.

A detailed copy is attached to this report.

Our members have been ready at every case to "feed the hungry," and no estimate can be made of the value of such aid, nor time spent.

We have three papers pending, and trust that soon we will see an increase in our membership.

In addition to the above report our members bought \$4.00 worth of Tubercular stamps, gave a bed worth \$30.00, and helped materially in sending a tubercular mother and child to Alto. Have been active in Red Cross and all other charities.

# HANNAH CLARKE CHAPTER, QUITMAN

# Mrs. H. T. Brice, Regent

The Hannah Clarke Chapter has had well attended meetings showing a keen interest in D. A. R. work. We have 47 members and are striving to build up our chapter.

On Georgia Day two Georgia flags were presented at special exercises in chapel to the Quitman high and grammar schools. On January 19 we joined in a county-wide celebration and contributed a most attractive float of George and Martha Washington riding in an antique Victoria drawn by horses. We celebrated our twentyfifth birthday on April 18, 1933, with a silver tea. The charter members acted as hostesses.

Five dollars was donated to the Red Cross. The chapter continued to maintain a charity lunch room at school through last year's term. Also was assisted in every way in making the annual flower show a success.

Eight prizes were given at the close of school. One in high and one in grammar school for student having the best history averages, \$5.00 and \$2.50 respectively. One in the senior class of each for boy standing highest in citizenship; also one in each of the four high schools of the county.

Mrs. J. L. Davidson, several times Regent, now Honorary Regent and former State Historian, D. A. R., presented the chapter with her second book on Wilkes County. By our endorsement she has been appointed Historian of Brooks County by the county commissioners. We hope to have the history completed by next year. We have placed four new lineage books on our library shelf and two National Society D. A. R. books.

Our contribution to the joint club assembly room was \$2.50 to aid in tuning the piano and \$15.00 for purchasing china.

We have ordered 100 Georgia Book Plates to be placed in our books. On account of conditions it was impossible to meet the Honor Roll. Our contributions were to Constitution Hall, Lucy Cook Peel Memorial and \$2.00 for Marking Historic Spots. We do subscribe to the Magazine.

A small sum has been appropriated to help defray expenses for delegate attending the State and National Conference. Three girls are now using the Hannah Clarke Loan fund. Total amount of fund is \$604.30. Disbursements for the year total \$195.98.

# **GOVERNOR JARED IRWIN CHAPTER, SANDERSVILLE**

# Miss Louise Evans, Regent

The Governor Jared Irwin Chapter reports a most interesting year's work.

We dedicated our year books to Governor Irwin, putting a picture of him in every copy, and we held a special program in his honor.

We have a membership of 26, five of which are non-resident members. There have been three resignations and one request for transfer during the past year. We have one new member.

We have followed the leadership of our state officers and chairmen.

We have had \$80.50 in our treasury this year. From this we met our obligations to state and national treasuries, and spent \$25.65 locally.

Patriotic education has been stressed. Our chapter paid the tuition for two school children. In May we gave a tea for our school faculty at which we presented prizes to the boy and girl in the senior class making the highest average in American history. We have offered the same prizes again this year.

#### NOBLE WIMBERLY JONES CHAPTER, SHELLMAN

# Mrs. J. D. Pipkin, Regent

The Noble Wimberly Jones Chapter has held regular meetings in the homes of the members and all historical and patriotic days have been observed with appropriate programs. The chapter has 11 resident members, four non-resident members and application pending for one new member. The meetings are well attended and great interest has been shown in the programs. Patriotic songs are sung at each meeting and a short devotional is led by the Chaplain, using the D. A. R. Ritual. We have lost by death a beloved member, Mrs. W. R. Terry, Registrar and Past Regent.

A scrap book is being made and when completed will be of great interest and value to the chapter.

Our Regent and Ex-Regent have served as co-chairmen for the local Red Cross, working in cooperation with the relief worker of the CWA. All members of the chapter have responded to many benevolent calls. This line of work was considered more necessary than meeting Honor Roll Requirements.

# THE LACHLAN MCINTOSH CHAPTER, SAVANNAH

# Mrs. Henry L. Purse, Regent

The Lachlan McIntosh Chapter has 62 members. We are studying the Constitution of the United States. Much interest is being shown in this subject. We are paying a small amount each month to care for the chapter's marker at Jasper Springs, and for the upkeep of the Lachlan McIntosh lot in Colonial Cemetery, Savannah. We have fittingly observed all patriotic days. Our library work is

being carried on in a most efficient manner by our Librarian, Mrs. S. Branch LaFarr. Many new books were placed on our library shelf at Hodgson Hall.

The chapter is sponsoring the publication of a book of "Chatham County Wills." This contains abstracts of all wills on record from the year 1773 to 1817 inclusive, which have been taken from Volumes A, B, C, D and E of Chatham County Wills, the work being done by Mabel Freeman LaFarr and Caroline Price Wilson through the efforts of the Library Committee. The abstracts are being published by the National Genealogical Society, Washington, D. C.

We feel that our most outstanding feat is the library and research work we have accomplished. We have 13 years of D. A. R. Magazines in binders on our shelves.

During the past year all of our chapter members have through service of every form and nature cooperated with civic workers and especially in the National Recovery Administration work. It is with regret that we report the death of one of our chapter members, an honorary member of our chapter, Miss Margaret Arnold Cosens, better known among our local members as "Miss Meg." She was Regent from 1912 to 1916.

# BONAVENTURE CHAPTER, SAVANNAH

#### Mrs. Arte Usher, Regent

Bonaventure Chapter D. A. R. has 40 members.

One paper at least has been given at each meeting on the program "The Establishment of the United States Under the Constitution," as recommended by the National Congress. Patriotic days have been observed.

The most outstanding thing added to the history of Savannah in the past year was a visit paid us by our President, the Honorable Franklin Delano Roosevelt, last fall as part of our celebration of the Bicentennial.

Some of our members attended the naturalization exercises held in United States Court.

The award that is our custom to present to the high school student will be given again. This year, they are requested to select Revolution history as their subject, and we will use the regular D. A. R. medal.

We have the Pledge to the Flag, and Creed printed in our year book and use them at each meeting. We are encouraging the use of them in the schools and are meeting with cooperation. We have had a flag cleaned for our school and have studied the use of it on all occasions.

#### SAVANNAH CHAPTER, SAVANNAH

#### Mrs. James N. Carter, Regent

The Savannah Chapter has 124 members. During the year has lost two by transfer, and two new members. The board of management meets each month at the home of the Regent. The chapter meetings being the 15th of the month at the home of the members.

The Regent has attended innumerable conferences to further the plans of the National Reconstruction policies, such as CWA, mosquito and sandfly control, and other government projects in Chatham County. Our year book for 1933-34 is dedicated to the "Spirit of the D. A. R.," which ever keeps alive the ideals of the founders, Miss Mary Desha, Mrs. Mary S. Lockwood, Miss Eugenia Washington, Miss Ellen Harden Wolworth.

In February members attended United States Court when nine foreigners took the Oath of Allegiance to our government, a most impressive and dignified ceremony. Flags, identification cards and Manuals were distributed by the Chairman of Americanism.

Colonial Cemetery, close to the heart of the Savannah Chapter, has a local chairman. This year the entire board took part in an Arbor celebration, planting memorial shrubs and trees. At this sacred spot are buried two Revolutionary generals, two Signers of the Declaration of Independence and hundreds of other patriots whose dust mingles with the soil of this historic shrine. The chapter has been able to effect much needed protection and preservation.

All patriotic days have been observed with appropriate programs. The program on National Defense, Mrs. John W. Daniel, Chairman, was outstanding; the speaker, Brigadier General Robert J. Travis. Patriotic Education has been stressed and by request a Creed Chairman was appointed and the American Creed taught in two schools.

Bought for the D. A. R. book shelf in the public library, one copy of "Abstracts of Chatham County Wills," compiled by Mrs. Mabel LaFarr and Mrs. Walter S. Wilson.

Conservation and Thrift: assisting Crittenden Home, Tuberculosis Sunshine Unit, Y. W. C. A., meals and clothing to the needy. Contributed \$10.00 to Boy Scouts and assisted in the upkeep of Jasper Springs Memorial.

# JOHN CLARKE CHAPTER, SOCIAL CIRCLE

#### Mrs. George W. Funk, Regent

Thirty-four members.

Patriotic education is stressed by sponsoring programs on all patriotic days and this year presenting an early American quilt pageant. Following our annual custom, prizes for good citizenship are offered in the fourth, fifth and sixth grades and a medal is presented to the pupil making the highest average in American history. Fifty dollars was contributed to the building fund of a community house on the school campus and \$27.00 to the school library.

Mrs. Magna's birthday party in November was an interesting meeting and \$10.20 was sent for payment on Constitution Hall.

In addition to maintaining a local loan fund and chapter expenditures of about \$30.00, \$5.00 was sent to Georgia Bicentennial Patron's fund; \$1.00 to Meadow Garden; old gold for the Memory Book clasp, and many trees and shrubs have been planted. Georgia's two Real Daughters were remembered at Christmas. Over \$250.00 has been given the deserving needy.

# ADAM BRINSON CHAPTER, SWAINSBORO

#### Mrs. I. A. Brannen, Regent, Pulaski

Adam Brinson Chapter reports a spirit of hearty cooperation in the D. A. R. work generally. Our meetings are yet held in the homes of members, for club house is not completed. We have an attendance of about 50 per cent, the other 50 per cent are teaching or live too far away to attend regularly.

The meetings are very interestingly carried out in the patriotic manner.

Our chapter birthday was observed October 10 at Regent's home and Mrs. Magna's birthday was celebrated at the home of Mrs. Lane with a "covered dish" party.

The chapter has not contributed to all the various calls of the State and National D. A. R. as we wished to do but lack of funds prevented.

Our membership is gradually increasing.

We have nine members teaching and nine ex-teachers, hence "patriotic education moves on." One program was devoted to approved schools.

We have offered a prize in schools of county to one making highest mark in American history. Have asked that the Pledge to Flag be taught children, also lessons given in Citizenship Training.

We have collected quite a number of records from tombstones and Bibles. Have located two graves of Revolutionary soldiers, also a Daughter's grave and expect to mark them before next Conference. We are continuing our work to obtain marker for "Pioneer Set-

tlers" of Emanuel County.

# GOVERNOR DAVID EMANUEL CHAPTER, SWAINSBORO

#### Mrs. W. S. Flanders, Regent

Governor David Emanuel Chapter, with an enrollment of 47, has admitted four new members, one by transfer, and sustained one loss by death during the year.

Attractive year books were issued early in the fall, containing all regular and special programs.

We used the spiritual and patriotic programs for our regular meetings, as suggested by Mrs. Shellnutt and Mrs. Land. We have sponsored seven patriotic lectures, numbering among our out-oftown speakers of prominence, the late Lucian Lamar Knight, Judge Walter Sheppard and Col. John G. Kennedy. We have had an average attendance of over 50 per cent for our regular meetings. We have met the Honor Roll Requirements, and have exercised our rights of citizenship at the polls.

Our Committees on Patriotic Education, Eradication of Illiteracy, National Defense, Conservation and Thrift, and Welfare of Women and Children have cooperated to raise the citizenship standard and care for the needy of our community.

We have sponsored clinics and were instrumental in having five tuberculosis patients sent to Alto; \$107.78 was raised during the recent Tuberculosis Seal sale which was directly sponsored by our chapter. Emanuel County's part of these funds are handled by our chapter committee.

Our chapter has accomplished much toward beautifying the highways, and is now erecting stone pillars on the north side of Highway No. 1 at the city limits of Swainsboro. It is our plan to continue this work until each approach to our city on our two national highways have been so marked.

Our Forestry Committee has been active and instrumental in having fire breaks ploughed.

We have contributed 30 books to the American Merchant Marine Library.

We are offering again this year the \$2.50 prizes in our local school for the best student in United States history in high school and in grammar school. We are also offering the citizenship medals in the 11 high schools of the county. Our chapter continues to sponsor the Sons and Daughters of the U. S. A. Clubs and Girl Home Makers' Clubs in the county.

We have enlisted the aid of our local theater, thereby enabling the public to see some of the highest rated motion pictures.

We have a growing library for which we have ordered 100 Georgia book plates. We contributed \$8.50 to Mrs. Magna's Birthday fund.

Two of the high lights of our year's work from an historical point of view was the unveiling of markers to the memory of two Revolutionary soldiers, Ephraim Herrington and J. C. Sumner. Appropriate programs featuring speakers of distinction marked these occasions. Other unveilings by our chapter for the past year include two World War veterans and one Spanish-American War veteran.

All D. A. R. endeavor is dear to our hearts, but one of the most cherished projects has been our Marion Sibley Wylie Student Loan fund, started in our first year and named for Mrs. Wylie who was then our State Regent. We have added \$119.85 to this fund during the past year and take pride in announcing that our first protege will receive her normal diploma in June.

One of our most interesting efforts has been the furnishing of our D. A. R. Club room. We have acquired a rug, overstuffed furniture, occasional tables, a book case, attractive window draperies and a lovely wall hanger. Pictures of George Washington and Franklin D. Roosevelt have been donated. We are going to use the Regent's gift of \$25.00 toward buying a silk flag for our club room. We are a congenial group of patriotic women carrying on the

ideals of our great national organization.

# BRIER CREEK CHAPTER, SYLVANIA

#### Mrs. Peter Kittles, Regent

Our chapter has had a very active year of service and accomplishments. We have a membership of 25, having lost three by resignation, and have four applications pending completion of records.

Ten regular meetings have been held at homes of Daughters, with fine attendance. All meetings opened with Bible reading and prayer, followed by Pledge to Flag and patrotic songs.

Our programs, following the suggestion of Mrs. Max E. Land, have featured splendid historical papers. Publicity Chairman sends notices of all meetings to local and Savannah papers, and special meetings to State Editor.

Committee on Marking Historic Spots reports three graves of wives of Revolutionary soldiers located, five graves of Revolutionary soldiers located, graves of two Revolutionary soldiers marked with impressive ceremony, November 11, that of John Arnett, ancestor of Reverend H. J. Arnett, "Screven County's Grand Old Man," and that of James Scott, March 11.

One of the outstanding features of the year's program was the unveiling of two markers of the George Washington Highway in Screven County.

Our Chairman on Patriotic Education reports two medals for excellence in United States history; total cost \$5.00; singing of patriotic songs in every school in the county; flags displayed and Pledge and Salute to Flag given daily at all schools; new flag at Sylvania school; studying Flag Code in schools and at chapter meetings; American Creed, Pledge and Salute to Flag have all become loved and familiar language to the children of Screven County. Our local school children attend unveiling exercises in a body, and together with Boy Scouts lead in patriotic songs and Pledge to the Flag.

Chairman Conservation and Thrift reports 427 trees and shrubs planted. Thrift banks used in local school with fine success. Better Films Chairman, in cooperation with local theatre, reports D. A. R. Magazine placed in school library by local chapter. Scrap Book Committee reports valuable and historical data being collected and preserved in Chapter scrap book, also a Bicentennial scrap book in the making. Chairman Genealogical Research reports copies of 12 wills and five deeds dating back to the early years of American Independence. Ten living Christmas trees were decorated on lawns of our Daughters. Ten dollars was sent to Constitution Hall Memory Book.

Thus the year has run its course; this being her last report, the Regent wishes to state that this privilege of service has been an absorbing interest and inspiration made possible through the loyalty, interest and cooperation of every Daughter of Brier Creek Chapter.

# BARNARD TRAIL CHAPTER, SYLVESTER

# Mrs. I. H. Mann, Regent

In our chapter meetings over the past year we have used the historical programs as outlined by our State Chairman and our work has been educational and very interesting.

The chapter has very fittingly observed all patriotic days. Washington's birthday was celebrated with a Colonial tea at which members of the chapter, wearing Colonial costumes, were hostesses to the women of Sylvester. At Christmas time we followed a custom established several years ago and decorated a living Christmas tree in the public square.

We feel that the outstanding work of the year is the completing of the Worth County History which is now in the hands of the publishers and will be off the press in a few weeks.

We have given two prizes for the best papers on "The Early History of Georgia," one prize to girl doing the most outstanding work in home economics department of the Sylvester High School, two prizes to grades learning the greatest number of patriotic songs, four citizenship medals, two in high school and two in junior high, and one history medal to senior in high school.

The members of the chapter remembered Georgia's own Real Daughters with a box of home-made candies and roasted pecans.

We have enrolled two new members and have made a loan of \$8.50 to a local girl to enable her to enter college.

Striving ever onward we enter another year with renewed inspirations and determination for greater achievements.

Our chapter annualy presents prizes to the high school and grammar school for highest average in American history. We have a Loan Scholarship fund which is being used by a deserving girl. Have placed copies of the Flag Code in schools, and Immigrant's Manual in school library. Our chapter sponsored a Tree of Light which beamed with good cheer during the holidays. Much welfare work has been done by our members. One was County Chairman for the Red Cross.

A list of nineteen graves of Revolutionary soldiers marked by our chapter some time ago, has been furnished the State Historian. The Georgia song, official song of the U. D. C., and the Bicentennial pageant, "Georgia Our Queen," written by our Regent, were used by many chapters throughout the state.

Numerous trees and shrubs have been planted, our chapter has made contributions to all the most important enterprises.

# JOHN HOUSTON CHAPTER, THOMASTON

# Mrs. E. T. Nottingham, Regent

Seventy-six members of the John Houston Chapter send greetings to the Thirty-sixth State Conference and submit the chapter's twenty-third annual report as follows:

Besides having met the Honor Roll Requrements, \$255.00 has been loaned to a senior at the University of Georgia; \$10.00 given to city and county schools for prize essays on American history; three Lineage Books and one copy of the Lamar County History have been added to the chapter library.

Eight subscribers to the D. A. R. Magazine have been secured. The chapter history through the current administration has been recorded. All patriotic days have been observed. Seven members have been accepted during the year. Fifty per cent of resident members have answered monthly roll call.

The grave of William Norris, Revolutionary soldier, was marked. It is located near Covington, in Newton County. The Sergeant Newton Chapter cooperated in arranging a suitable program for the unveiling exercises which occurred June 30, 1933.

In December, 1933, the first marker (in Upson County) on the old Alabama Stage Road was erected. The Chapter Committee on Highway Beautification planted as a background for this marker 250 shrubs and flowering trees.

One box was sent to Cross Nore; \$62.36 was contributed to Mrs. Magna's Birthday party; old gold valued at \$26.00 was donated for Memory Book in Constitution Hall; 92 Bible Records have been sent to the State Chairman; entertained our State Regent in August.

Miniature of Col. Benjamin Hawkins, famous Revolutionary hero, has been purchased for presentation to Rhodes Memorial Hall. Special work of our chapter has been cooperation in canvassing

Special work of our chapter has been cooperation in canvassing for local NRA pledges; entering a D. A. R. float in the local NRA parade in November, 1933, and assisting the local Chairman of Arrangements for President Roosevelt's Birthday Ball.

The total amount expended during the year amounts to \$560.98.

#### MAJOR GENERAL SAMUEL ELBERT CHAPTER, TENNILLE

#### Mrs. Herbert M. Franklin, Regent

Our chapter believes in preparedness, so we are working with zeal for the good times which we hope are "just around the corner." The state programs, prepared by Mrs. Max E. Land, are used at every meeting. One of our most interesting meetings included an address by the State Chaplain, Mrs. C. D. Shellnut, of Sandersville, who told of a visit to two of Georgia's Real Daughters, Miss Mary Poole, and Mrs. Mary Poole Newsome.

Our outstanding work for the year was participation in the Washington County Celebration of the Georgia Bicentennial on November 3. Our chapter presented on a float "Betsy Ross Making the Flag." With our Regent, Mrs. Herbert Franklin as chairman, our chapter had charge of a museum at the Woman's Club. A list of historic places has been furnished the committee in charge of efforts to have Route 15 paved. There are Indian relics, the remains of old forts, signs of old trails and many other reminders of days of yore.

#### THOMASVILLE CHAPTER, THOMASVILLE

# Mrs. W. D. Hargrave, Regent

Thomasville Chapter Daughters of the American Revolution has held each monthly meeting, using programs suggested by State Chairman and observing special anniversaries as requested.

Chapter has 54 members, lost one by death, and seven by resig-

nation during the year. No new members. Chapter made \$21.25 at the yearly George Washington tea and card party given on February 21. Gave \$5.00 as a prize to Girl Scouts and \$5.00 as a prize in domestic arts department in the local schools. Gave \$5.00 toward cancellation of debt on Constitution Hall and \$10.00 on free lunch fund for local schools.

#### TOCCOA CHAPTER, TOCCOA

#### Mrs. John William Marks, Regent

Toccoa Chapter has held regular meetings, observing all patriotic days, using the programs suggested by our State Program Chairman.

The chapter has 31 members.

February 22 the chapter entertained at a luncheon in honor of our beloved State Regent, Mrs. Julian McCurry. We were also honored by having Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Mrs. Sidney Smith and Miss Annie Crawford with us.

Seven dollars and sixty cents donated to Boy Scouts to buy windows for their log cabin which has just been completed.

November 15 the chapter celebrated our President General's birthday with a silver at Mrs. Chaffin's home. Fifteen dollars was sent to Constitution Hall.

One box sent Ellis Island valued at \$3.00.

To encourage American history in our school the chapter offers \$5.00 annually; \$2.50 each to boy and girl handing in best thousand word essay on subject given.

The chapter sponsored one picture show and cleared \$12.00. A scrap book is being kept which gives complete history of the chapter's activities from its organization to the present time.

#### VIDALIA CHAPTER, VIDALIA

#### Mrs. J. E. Mercer, Regent

The Vidalia Chapter has 25 members. We lost one member by transfer, and two by resignation, but we gained two new ones.

The graves of seven daughters of Revolutionary soldiers have Our chapter has a friend who has the distinction of been located. being the real granddaughter of two Revolutionary soldiers. She is Mrs. Mary Cook Ryals McArthur.

We gave \$5.00 to pupil making highest average in American history and \$5.00 for improvement in scholarship in Georgia history.

We hope to mark the site of Fort King George which was built by General Nicholson, of South Carolina, at the junction of the Oconee and Ocmulgee Rivers in 1720. This was probably the first military work of this kind in what is now the State of Georgia.

We visited the grave of Governor George M. Troup, in Treutlen County, on an acre of ground set apart by the legislature, tax free forever. The original tomb was placed there over the grave of Robert L. Troup. Later Governor Troup was buried there and on a marble slab in the base of the monument is the following inscription:

> "George Michael Troup, Born September 8, 1780, Died April 26, 1856."

No epitaph can tell his worth. The history of Georgia must perpetuate his virtues and commemorate his patriotism. There he teaches us the argument being exhausted to "Stand By Our Arms."

# BURKHALTER CHAPTER, WARRENTON

#### Mrs. Charles H. Evans, Regent

Burkhalter Chapter D. A. R. of Warrenton, Ga., organized in November, 1921, has 28 members. Ten interesting meetings have been held in the homes of the members with delightful programs, as outlined by State Chairman, and a pleasant social hour followed during which delicious refreshments were served.

A gold D. A. R. history medal was awarded and a prize given for American citizenship.

Gave 24 books and clothing to local school children.

We celebrated Georgia Bicentennial with programs and took part in a County Bicentennial pageant.

Have sent 25 postal cards to Mrs. Mildred Russell, Hollywood, Cal., for weekly reviews of films. These will be published in the Warrenton Clipper, the official organ of Warren County.

Plans are being mapped out for erection of a large boulder to the memory of the Revolutionary soldiers who died in Warren County. It will contain 100 or more names.

A member of the chapter presented to the Department of History and Archives of Georgia typed History of Warren County, in six volumes.

The chapter sponsored the sale of Tubercular Christmas Seals. All Honor Roll Requirements were met and a contribution was made to Mrs. Russell William Magna's Birthday fund for Constitution Hall. We also made contributions of old gold for clasps of Memory Book for Constitution Hall.

At Thanksgiving time the chapter gave Mrs. Mary Pool Newsome and Miss Sara Pool, our own Real Daughters, a post card shower accompanied by a large basket of fruit. A card shower was given them at Christmas time also.

Total receipts for the year, \$86.00; expenditures, \$67.35.

#### LYMAN HALL CHAPTER, WAYCROSS

#### Mrs. Dan Lott, Regent

Lyman Hall Chapter has a membership of 36, having lost two members, and gained one by transfer.

The leaflet sent out by Mrs. Max E. Land has been the basis of our monthly programs. We have used in our meetings the Ritual, American Creed, Pledge to the Flag and patriotic songs.

Jonathan Bryan Chapter, Lyman Hall Chapter, and Winona

Chapter, C. A. R., had a very enjoyable joint meeting in celebration of Georgia Day and Washington's birthday.

In the observance of Georgia Book Week at the close of the Georgia Bicentennial, the chapter sponsored a table of old Georgia books, records and relics.

Our welfare work, which was begun last year, in one of our county consolidated schools, has been continued through our chairman, Mrs. H. J. Carswell. We have helped also, both with clothing and food, needy children in the city schools.

Lyman Hall Chapter worked faithfully in the NRA campaign, the Regent serving as chairman in the city-wide canvass.

# JONATHAN BRYAN CHAPTER, WAYCROSS

# Miss Claudia E. Little, Regent

Jonathan Bryan Chapter had a very profitable year with instructive programs each month. All meetings were held in the homes of members, with splendid attendance, and a spirit of loyalty and enthusiasm.

Membership numbers 26 resident and 11 non-resident. We follow the devotions as outlined for the year. Patriotic days have been appropriately observed. Excellent papers on subjects, suggested by State Chairman, have been given at each meeting. In February, the Lyman Hall Chapter met with our chapter and the Winona C. A. R. Chapter furnished a splendid program celebrating Georgia Day and George Washington's birthday.

Ten dollars contributed to Georgia Hall at Warm Springs; \$2.50 each, offered to the junior and senior high schools for the highest average attained in American history, also memorizing the American Creed and Pledge to the Flag.

The D. A. R. Magazine given to the high school library. The second volume of Wilkes County Records bought, and have ordered a copy of Ware County History, as soon as published. The annual package sale was held in December, the proceeds was used to help a needy mother and five children. The chapter has cooperated with other organizations in all welfare work.

#### EDMUND BURKE CHAPTER, WAYNESBORO

#### Mrs. F. M. Cates, Jr., Regent

The Edmund Burke Chapter has a membership of 16, four of whom live in other cities.

We have held monthly meetings, with a special meeting celebrating Mrs. Magna's birthday and at which time we sent offering for debt on Constitution Hall.

We have observed all special days with appropriate programs. We use the Ritual as prepared by Mrs. Shellnutt, the program by Mrs. Land, D. A. R. Magazine and suitable articles from magazines and newspapers.

In October we cooperated with the Chairman of Bicentennial of Burke County in presenting her plans.

Presented book, 'Petals of the Cherokee," to Waynesboro High School library.

Have ordered copies of the Manual to place in all high schools and libraries of Burke County.

#### SUNBURY CHAPTER, WINDER

#### Mrs. J. H. Pledger, Regent

The chapter participated with the American Legion Auxiliary in joint observance of Armistice Day. The chapter was guests of the Auxiliary for Georgia Day program. In January the Regent addressed the Auxiliary on Woodrow Wilson. Had joint program with the Woman's Club and Parent-Teacher Association in December. Several officers of the chapter attended the anniversary party of the James Pittman Chapter in Commerce in March.

Good citizenship has been emphasized at all times in the chapter and in our schools. Flag Etiquette has been presented in the schools. Two medals are given each year in high and junior high school for excellence in American history. A cook book is given in domestic science classes as a prize for progress in work.

Aid was given many people during the Thanksgiving and Christmas seasons. Forty-eight dollars was realized from the sale of Christmas Seals. The Regent was appointed by the mayor of the city to serve as General Chairman of Roosevelt Ball in January. One hundred and sixty-three dollars was realized from this affair and sent to the Warm Springs Foundation. Twenty-five dollars was given to buy books for the underprivileged children in the city schools. Practically \$70.00 was realized from a beauty pageant and fashion revue presented last August.

An active Chairman of Better Films has had D. A. R. Motion Picture Guide appear in local paper. This paper has also published an account of all chapter meetings. Two meetings were sent to Atlanta papers also.

An outline of Barrow County's History has been placed in Rhodes Memorial Hall in Atlanta.

Several yards of material is being sent this month to Ellis Island. A scrap books is kept which gives a complete history of the chapter's activities from its organization in 1921 to the present time.

# COURTESY EXPRESSION

#### Mrs. Herbert M. Franklin, Chairman

A great writer has said: "Of all the lights you carry in your face, joy shines farthest out to sea." Looking out over this assemblage we find so much joy pictured in your happy faces that the sea must be alight with the brilliant sunshine of your smiles.

This is what Albany has done for us, the beautiful city where roses bloom about your doors, and their cheer and brightness live in the smiles with which you greet your guests, live in the warm clasp of your hand, and live forever in the heart of the visitor.

Words cannot express our gratitude to the Albany Chapters Daughters of the American Revolution, for we realize how faithfully you have worked for the success of the Conference. That all the plans of our hostess chapters have been carried out so beautifully is due in a great measure to the personal charm and indefatigable zeal of the Regents, Mrs. W. C. Fripp, Regent Commodore Richard Dale Chapter, and Mrs. Leo Leader, Regent Thronateeska Chapter. Their committees have lent strength and power, and we commend their rare good judgment in the appointment.

We wish to express our grateful appreciation to the officials for the use of this splendid building. We extend our thanks to those who have decorated so beautifully, for you make us feel indeed that:

"All times are good, if that one friend be true,

And one white lily lifts its lips to you."

So with all these lovely flowers about us, good times must be here to stay!

We are indeed indebted to those who have given us such a cordial welcome, Mrs. W. C. Fripp, Regent Commodore Richard Dale Chapter, and Mrs. Leo Leader, Regent Thronateeska Chapter.

We appreciate the spiritual inspiration of the ministers who were with us.

We would express to Mrs. William A. Becker, National Chairman of Patriotic Defense, our heartiest appreciation of her magnificent address on opening evening. She is so imbued with patriotism and enthusiasm that none of her hearers could fail to feel inspired for higher ideals, and more ardent work for our beloved country.

She is one who sees "real duty in the task supreme of building well."

We are indebted to Georgia's own National Officer, Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney, Vice-President General, for the inspiration of her presence and for her eloquent words of wit and wisdom.

We thank our own beloved State Regent for her splendid address, expressive of her patriotic ideals and sentiments. She inspires us with love for our work, love for humanity, love for God, and in setting forth these ideals for us, she brought back to herself, our love, a hundred fold from all Georgia chapters. It is said that "man forms and educates the world, but woman educates man," so she leads in our patriotic education of mankind.

What would we Georgia D. A. R. do without the noble influence and guiding hands of our Past Vice-President General, Mrs. Julius Talmadge? She leads us along the paths she has trod, with sisterly aid, holding high the torch of light and inspiration. There are others present who lend their influence and encouragement in all patriotic endeavor. Although they have made brilliant records, they are not content merely to sit upon the reviewing stand, but they keep step right along with the procession as it moves onward, our Honorary State Regents, Mrs. Max E. Land, Mrs. Charles Akerman, Mrs. Bun Wylie, and I am happy to say, "Mrs. Franklin is among those present."

We are most grateful to the musicians who have transported us to realms of joy which tongue is powerless to express, and remind us to:

"Keep your heart a-singing, till others hear the song, And your cheerful music helps the world along."

A noted writer has said: "Good diet with wisdom best comforteth man," so throughout the Conference, we have been comforted to our hearts' delight. The feast is always ready and there is no 3.2 per cent about Albany's cordial home brew of hospitality. We are greatly indebted to the Commodore Richard Dale Chapter, Mrs. W. C. Fripp, Regent, and the Thronateeska Chapter, Mrs. Leo Leader, Regent, for the splendid banquet on Monday evening; to the two Albany chapters for the delightful luncheon on Tuesday. We are indeed grateful to the Rotary Club, Kiwanis Club, Lions

Club, and American Legion for the enjoyable dinner on Tuesday.

We would express our great appreciation to the Albany Wo-

man's Club, American Legion Auxiliary, Business and Professional Women's Club, Colonial Dames, Dougherty County U. D. C., Pilot Club, Spanish-American Auxiliary for the luncheon on Wednesday.

Again we are under obligations to the Thronateeska Chapter D. A. R. for the tea on Wednesday at the home of the Regent, Mrs. Leo Leader. These occasions draw us close together when "hand clasps hand, and eye looks into eye," in the closest bond of friendship.

Our sincerest thanks are due the pages who have served us so charmingly. They flit around like butterflies, and lend rich color and beauty. The word "adorable" was coined just for them, and they cause us to realize that:

"Though the world is full of sadness, we can make it bright, By smiling, smiling, by smiling with delight! There is a silvery lining beneath the darkest cloud,

Keep smiling, smiling, smiling, keep smiling right out loud!"

We wish to express heartiest appreciation to the newspapers, to the papers here which have given us such delightful publicity in advance, and will have most enjoyable accounts of our meeting. We appreciate sincerely the kindness of the Atlanta Constitution in giving us our own columns where we may broadcast to the world our accomplishments.

This Conference inspires us to return to our homes with the determination to work with greater zeal than ever before for all D. A. R. enterprises. Let us:

Widespread the grand achievements of patriotic Daughters, From North and South, to East and West, and on across the waters, Uplift our glorious colors; we'll falter not nor wait, Till in the light of glory, they float near Heaven's gate!

# Memorials

Deceased Members 1933-1934

# State Chaplain, Mrs. C. D. Shellnutt

ALBANY: COMMODORE RICHARD DALE CHAPTER Mary Lee Nelson (Mrs. T. M.)

AMERICUS: COUNCIL OF SAFETY CHAPTER Mattie Lewis Dodson (Mrs. W. A.)

ATHENS: ELIJAH CLARKE CHAPTER Mrs. Mattie Burton McDorman

ATLANTA: ATLANTA CHAPTER Mrs. Whiteford Russell Mrs. Wren McGuin Mrs. Allen P. Davis Mrs. W. I. Elkin Mrs. P. C. Carnes Miss Carrie Kirtley

ATLANTA: JOSEPH HABERSHAM CHAPTER Mrs. D. I. MacIntire Miss Carrie L. Stanton

AUGUSTA: AUGUSTA CHAPTER Marie Dupont Farrar (Mrs. F. P.)

BRUNSWICK: BRUNSWICK CHAPTER Mrs. C. B. Gomen

COLUMBUS: OGLETHORPE CHAPTER

Effie Boykin Tucker (Mrs. W. H.) Nellie Bog Slade (Mrs. Silas DeWolfe) Isabel Lyman Blackmar (Mrs. E. B.) Helen Slade Farish (Mrs. R. E.)

DUBLIN: JOHN LAURENS CHAPTER Claudia McLamore Rice (Mrs. Percy) Josephine Rowe Carswell (Mrs.)

EASTMAN: WM. FEW CHAPTER Mrs. C. M. Dye ELBERTON: STEPHEN HEARD CHAPTER Mrs. Dora Seymour Allen

HARTWELL: JOHN BENSON CHAPTER Mrs. E. R. McMurry

LaFAYETTE: WILLIAM MARSH CHAPTER Mrs. Caroline Arnold

MACON: MARY HAMMOND WASHINGTON CHAPTER Bessie Craige McFerrn (Mrs. J. M.) Miss Meta Roosevelt Erwin

MARIETTA: FIELDING LEWIS CHAPTER Sallie Lowe Malone (Mrs. J. D.) Emma Haseltine Rambo (Mrs. S. D.)

MARSHALLVILLE: STEPHENS HOPKINS CHAPTER Mrs. Hanna Slappey Neil

MILLEDGEVILLE: NANCY HART CHAPTER Miss Mary Agnes Howell Scott Mrs. Annie Barksdale Howard

SAVANNAH: LACHLAN MCINTOSH CHAPTER Miss Margaret Arnold Cosens

SHELLMAN: NOBLE WIMBERLY JONES CHAPTER Elizabeth Crittenden Terry (Mrs. W. R.)

SWAINSBORO: ADAM BRINSON CHAPTER Susan Lane Kemp (Mrs. W. R.)

SWAINSBORO: GOV. DAVID EMANUEL CHAPTER Mrs. Leila Wilder Lindsey

TENNILLE: GOV. SAMUEL ELBERT CHAPTER Mrs. G. C. Sinquefield

THOMASTON: JOHN HOUSTON CHAPTER Elizabeth McKenzie Dallas (Mrs. R. E.)

THOMASVILLE: THOMASVILLE CHAPTER Sallie Heard Parker (Mrs. C. S.)

VALDOSTA: GEN. JAMES JACKSON CHAPTER

Mrs. W. T. Staten Mrs. Geo. B. Fager Mrs. W. E. Rouse Mrs. Wm. Wisenbaker

153

# BY-LAWS OF THE STATE CONFERENCE

### REVISED 1932

# ARTICLE I.

# Object

The object of the State Conference of the Daughters of the American Revolution in Georgia is to promote the aims set forth in the Constitution of the National Society and to secure the benfits of cooperation of the chapters of our own state, keeping in view especially the preservation of the memory of its Revolutionary patriots, the study of its history, and the education of its youth in patriotic ideals and in the duties of citizenship.

#### ARTICLE II.

# Membership

The voting members of the State Conference shall be its officers, the officers of the National Society whose membership is within the state, and the Regent (or in her absence the First Vice-Regent) or alternates, the delegates or their alternates from the chapters of the state that are entitled to representation at Continental Congress or special meetings of the National Society. The number of representatives from each chapter shall be determined by the rules for representatives of chapters in the Continental Congress, as given in the National By-Laws. A member must have belonged to a chapter at least one year before she is eligible to serve as a delegate or alternate from the chapter. Chapters failing to pay dues required of them by the By-Laws shall not be entitled to representation at the meeting of the State Conference.

#### ARTICLE III.

#### Officers

Section 1. Officers of the State Conference shall be the State Regent, State First Vice-Regent, a Second Vice-Regent, a Chaplain, Recording Secretary, Corresponding Secretary, a Treasurer, Auditor, a Consulting Organizing Secretary, a Consulting Registrar, a Genealogist, Historian, Librarian, Reporter to Smithsonian Institute, Curator, Editor, and Assistant Editor. These officers shall be elected by the State Conference biennially by ballot. A majority of the votes shall elect. Vacancies in office between annual meetings shall be filled by appointment made by the State Regent and unexpired term of officers so appointed shall be filled by election at the next annual meeting.

Sec. 2. The term of office shall begin at the close of the Continental Congress following their election.

Sec. 3. Any member of a chapter in this state who has been a member of the Society for two years and is in good standing as such, is eligible for office in the State Conference, but no one who has held such an office for a term of two years shall be eligible for the same office for the next term.

Sec. 4. On the election of State Regent and State Vice-Regent a

certificate of their election, containing a copy of the Conference minutes as to the election signed by the presiding officer and the secretary of the meeting, shall be promptly transmitted to the Organizing Secretary General of the National Society by registered mail, duplicates shall be furnished to those elected. The nomination of a candidate for Vice-President shall be certified in the same manner. (See Article X, Section 1, National By-Laws).

# ARTICLE IV.

#### **Duties of Officers**

Section 1. The State Regent shall be the presiding officer of the State Conference. In her absence the State Vice-Regent shall preside. In the absence of both of these officers the Second Vice-Regent shall preside.

Sec. 2. The Chaplain shall open all meetings of the society with the reading of Scripture and prayer, and shall conduct such religious services as occasion may require.

Sec. 3. The Recording Secretary shall record the proceedings of the State Conference and of meetings of its Executive Board, and shall compile and have printed the book of the Proceedings, under the supervision of the State Regent and the Press Committee.

Sec. 4. The Corresponding Secretary shall conduct correspondence, and send notices in behalf of the State Conference, the State Regent, and the Executive Board, as directed by them.

Sec. 5. The Treasurer shall be the custodian of the funds of the State Conference. She shall collect the State Conference dues from the chapters, and shall receive all sums contributed through the Conference. She shall pay out such sums only when authorized by the By-Laws or by the State Conference. She shall keep an account of all sums received and paid out, and shall keep receipts for all payments.

Sec. 6. The Historian shall conduct such historical work and make such reports as to matters relating to Georgia history, or to the work of the Society, as she may deem proper, or as may be directed by the State Conference.

Sec. 7. The Librarian shall endeavor to collect books and documents which shall relate to the work of the Society or which may be useful for reference in its historical or genealogical work. She may deposit books and documents in the Department of Archives and History at the State Capitol, and, with the approval of the Executive Board, may turn over books to the State library. She shall furnish to the State library, and may furnish to other public libraries, the Proceedings of the State Conference, and shall keep on file the Proceedings of all annual meetings. She shall keep a catalogue of books and documents received, and receipts for those delivered by her, and shall deliver to her successor all books and papers in her possession as librarian, not disposed of as above.

Sec. 8. The Consulting Registrar shall, when requested, assist applicants for membership in the National Society to prove eligibility where they reside in towns and counties in which there is no chapter and shall give desired assistance to Chapter Registrars in verifying lineage papers.

Sec. 9. The Auditor shall examine the accounts and report of the Treasurer and shall report thereon at the annual meeting or when requested by the Executive Board.

Sec. 10. The Editor shall conduct the departments devoted to

the Daughters of the American Revolution in the Atlanta Constitution, which is the official organ of the State Conference. She shall be assisted by the Assistant Editor.

Sec. 11. The Consulting Organizing Secretary shall assist the State Regent in the organization of chapters.

Sec. 12. The Genealogist shall, when requested, asssit members in genealogical research, collect and bind all available material, and place in Constitution Hall library for the use of the Registrar General, members of our Society and the general public. She shall also give a copy of all records to the State Chairman of the Lucy Cook Peel Memorial Committee. She shall serve as State Chairman of the Genealogical Research Committee.

Sec. 13. The Reporter to the Smithsonian Institute shall make yearly reports to the Reporter General of the Smithsonian Institute, under the direction of the State Regent.

Sec. 14. The Curator shall report to the Curator General, and collect Revolutionary relics for Memorial Continental Hall museum.

#### ARTICLE V.

#### Committees

Section 1. The State Regent shall, as soon as practicable after the commencement of her term of office, appoint committees to assist in conducting the work of the Society and of the State Conference, Rules, Press, Continental Memorial Hall, Records, Historic Sites and Monuments, Graves of Revolutionary Soldiers, Patriotic Education, Patriotic Anniversaries, Historical Program, Meadow Garden and such other committees as may be provided for by the State Conference or may be deemed proper by the State Regent. The Treasurer and the Corresponding Secretary shall be ex-officio members of the Committee on Credentials.

#### ARTICLE VI.

#### **Executive Board**

The officers of the State Conference and the chairman of the standing committees shall constitute the Executive Board, with the State Regent, (or in her absence, the State Vice-Regent) as its presiding officer. The Board shall meet at or before the time of the meeting of the State Conference, and whenever called together by the State Regent. It shall receive reports from officers and committees as to their work, shall supervise the program and arrangements for the Conference, and shall make recommendations to the Conference.

### ARTICLE VII.

#### Meetings

Section 1. The State Conference shall convene annually between the first day of February and the time of the meeting of the Continental Congress. The Congress shall not convene in Lent, if it is practicable to meet at a different time within the period prescribed above, and shall never convene in Holy Week. The Executive Board shall fix the time and place of meeting when not fixed by the presiding conference, or when for any reason it may be impracticable to meet at a time or place fixed by the Conference.

Sec. 2. The State Regent shall send notice of the time and place of meeting and credential blanks to the chapters at least sixty days before the time of meeting. Sec. 3. To constitute a quorum for a meeting of the State Conference, delegates from a majority of the chapters in the state must be present.

Sec. 4. The Order of Business of the Conference shall be as follows:

Conference called to order by the State Regent. Invocation. Greetings and responses. Credential Committee's report. Roll call. Program Committee's report. Executive Board minutes read. Reports of officers, committees, and chapters. Unfinished business.

Nomination and election of officers. New business.

#### ARTICLE VIII.

#### Dues

The annual dues of chapters to the State Conference shall be 20 cents for each member of the chapter, to be paid to the Treasurer of the Conference at least 30 days before the annual meeting.

#### ARTICLE IX.

# **Expenses of Officers**

Necessary expenses of the State Regent and of the other officers of the State Conference for stationery and correspondence shall be paid by the Treasurer on presentation of itemized statements approved in writing by the State Regent.

#### ARTICLE X.

#### **Rules of Order**

Roberts' Rules of Order (Revised) shall be the governing authority in parliamentary law for the State Conference in matters not covered by the By-Laws.

# ARTICLE XI.

#### Amendments

The By-Laws of the State Conference may be amended at any annual meeting, after sixty days' notice of the proposed amendment has been given to the chapters. Publication of such notice by the State Editor in the department conducted by her shall be sufficient notice.

An affirmative vote of two-thirds of the delegates present shall be necessary for the adoption of an amendment to the By-Laws.

### EXTRACTS FROM NATIONAL BY-LAWS

Article IX, Sec. 6. Delegates and alternates to the Continental Congress must be elected on or before the first day of March of each year. A typewritten list of the delegates and alternates, with the date of their election by the chapter, must be sent at once to the Chairman of the Committee on Credentials, and to the State Regent. The delegates and alternates so elected shall be the delegates and alternates to attend any special meeting of the National Society which may be held prior to the Continental Congress of the following year.

Article IX, Sec. 7. Any member must have belonged to a chapter at least one continuous year immediately preceding the Continental Congress, to be eligible to represent her chapter at said Congress, except in the case of the Regent or First Vice-Regent, of a newly organizd chapter, as provided for in Article IX, Sec. 8 (a).

Article IX, Sec. 8. The representation of any chapter at any meeting of the National Society during the year, beginning February 1, shall be based upon the number of members, whose dues for the current year are credited upon the books of the Treasurer General the first day of February preceding the Continental Congress except as hereinafter stated, viz.:

(a) A chapter organized and confirmed by the Board of Management after the first day of February shall be allowed representation by its Regent only, or in her absence by its First Vice-Regent, provided it has the required number of members and paid dues.

(b) Life members and Real Daughters shall be counted in the basis for representation.

(c) The right to elect delegates and alternates shall date from the date that the chapter is confirmed and recognized by the National Board of Management, which day must have been at least one year prior to the opening day of Continental Congress (Monday).

Each chapter of at least 12 members, and each other chapter of at least 25 members, organized in a locality where a chapter already exists, shall be entitled to be represented by its Regent, or in her absence by its First Vice-Regent, providing it has at least 12 or 25 dues for the current year credited upon the books of the Treasurer General the first day of February. Chapters having at least 50 members whose dues for the current year are credited upon the books of the Treasurer General, the first day of February, shall be entitled to one delegate, in addition to representation by the Regent; chapters having at least 200 members whose dues are credited upon the books of the Treasurer General the first day of February, shall be entitled to two delegates and for each additional 100 members whose dues have been credited by the Treasner General the first day of February, one additional delegate.

Regents and delegates shall be entitled to alternates, but no more than 10 alternates shall be elected from any chapter. A Chapter Regent is authorized to fill vacancies in its delegation to Continental Congress or special meeting of the National Society, from duly elected alternates.

No Regent, First Vice-Regent, delegate, or alternate whose dues for the current year have not been received in the office of the Treasurer General on or before the first day of February preceding the Congress, shall be entitled to represent her chapter.

Article IX. Sec. 11. Chapter Treasurer shall report to the Treasurer General on the first day of June and December, all members in arrears, changes in membership, marriages, and deaths, since the last report. The fees and dues sent to the Treasurer General by the Chapter Treasurer must be accompanied by an alphabetical list of the members to whom the dues shall be accredited.

Article IX. Sec. 12. Chapter Regents shall report to the Organizing Secretary General the election of officers and date of taking office.

#### **Chapter Contributions**

All contributions by chapters should be made through the State Treasurer, for State and National work.

#### **Information to Members**

The following resolution which applies to the nominations of a State Regent by chapters appears in the Proceedings of the Twentieth State Conference, 1918.

"Resolved, That it is the judgment of the Executive Board that nominations for State Regent should not be made by chapters earlier than three months prior to the meeting of the Conference. When so made they shall be furnished to the State Editor for publication."

Chapters are requested to hold their elections in May. It is desirable that the reports to Conference shall be made by officers whose work covers at least the greater part of the year preceding the Conference. Chapter By-Laws must be in accord with National and State By-Laws.

At the opening of the State Conference, by unanimous consent, the rights and privileges of delegates can be voted to the State Chairman, with this exception, State Chairman cannot vote in the election of State Regent and State Vice-Regent unless they have been elected delegates by their respective chapters and so registered with the Credential Committee. (The election of the State Regent and State Vice-Regent must be confirmed by the Continental Congress).

(See Article X, Section 1 and Section 2, of the National By-Laws).

"Where there is only one candidate for an office and the Constitution requires the vote to be by ballot, it is common to authorize the Secretary to cast the ballot of the assembly for such and such a person."

If anybody objects, however, it is necessary to ballot the usual way. So when a motion is made to vote unanimous, it fails if anyone objects. Passed 1915.

Each State Conference may by a two-thirds vote, adopt such additional rules of order as it may deem advisable for the government of that Conference, provided they are not in conflict with the Constitution and By-Laws of the National and State Society.

# STATE CONFERENCE

The first State Conference was called by Mrs. S. B. C. Morgan, State Regent, and was held at the Atlanta Exposition of 1895. The Annual Conference began in 1899. In that year a conference for the purpose of effecting a state organization was called by Mrs. Robert Emory Park, State Regent, and was held in Atlanta, May 23-24. By-Laws were adopted and state officers elected. The succeeding Conferences were numbered from this Conference, until the Conference of 1909 adopted a motion, offered by Mrs. Mallory Taylor, "that the first State Conference in 1895 be recognized, and the next Annual Conference, instead of being the twelfth, shall be the thirteenth." (Minutes, p. 21). No Conference was held in 1911; the time of meetings having been changed from the fall to the first part of the year by the Conference in 1910, which adopted a recommendation by the Executive Board (made on the motion of Mrs. P. W. Godfrey) "that the State Conference be carried over from November, 1910, to 1912, prior to Congress in 1912;" amended by Miss Ray of Atlanta, "that we have Conference in the spring, not to interfere with Lent." (Minutes, p. 21).

The dates and places of meeting and the numerical designation of the Conferences after the first Annual Conference (1899) were as follows: (2) Atlanta, Nov. 27-28, 1900. (3) Augusta, Nov. 21-22, 1901. (4) Savannah, Nov. 13-14-15, 1902. (5) Atlanta, Nov. 5-6-7, 1903. (6) Athens, Nov. 9-10-11, 1904. (7) Macon, Nov. 15-16-17, 1905. (8) Columbus, Nov. 21-22-23, 1906. (9) Rome, Oct. 23-24-25, 1907. (10) Covington, Nov. 4-5-6, 1908. (11) Brunswick, Nov. 10-11-12-13, 1909. Change in Conference number so as to count from Conference of 1895. (13) Savannah, Nov. 22-23, 1910. (14) Marietta, April 9-10-11, 1912. (15) Augusta, March 25-26-27-28, 1913. (16) Macon, Feb. 16-17-18-19, 1914. (17) Atlanta, Feb. 9-10-11-12, 1915. (18) Columbus, Feb. 22-23-24-25, 1916. (19) Quitman, Feb. 13-14-15-16, 1917. (20) Athens, April 3-4-5, 1918. (21) Albany, April 1-2-3, 1919. (22) Moultrie, April 6-7-8, 1920. (23) Dalton, April 5-6-7, 1923. (26) Savannah, March 11-12-14, 1924. (27) Columbus, March 31, April 1-2, 1925. (28) Americus, March 16-17-18, 1926. (29) Thomaston, April 5-6-7, 1927. (30) Augusta, March 27-28-29, 1918. (31) Brunswick, March 12-13-14, 1929. (32) Newnan, March 25-26-27, 1930. (33) Macon, March 24-25-26, 1931. (34) Waycross, March 29-30-31, 1932. (35) Atlanta, March 15-16-17, 1933. (36) Albany, March 19-20-21, 1934

160

# ITEMS OF INFORMATION

# INFORMATION FOR REGENTS

Prompt reports should be sent to Director General in charge of Smithsonian report.

The election and appointment of officers should be promptly reported to the Organizing Secretary, Memorial Continental Hall; to the State Regent, and to the State Secretary. The full Christian names of chapter officers should be given together with the husband's name or initials, name of chapter, and address of Chapter Regent.

Notices of death and resignation, marriages, transfers, and dropped members should be sent to the Treasurer General. Notice of change of address should be sent to the Organizing Secretary General.

The Historian General requests "that to insure uniformity and convenience of filing, all records shall be typewritten upon one side of paper, eight and one-half by eleven  $(8\frac{1}{2}x11)$  inches, with one inch margin on left side and bottom. One and one-half inches at top." One copy should be sent to the Historian General, one copy to the State Historian, and one copy retained in Chapter Archives.

Chapter year books should be  $5\frac{1}{2}x7$  inches, to conform to requests from National Secretary, in order that the Librarian General can file copies as records. Copies should be sent to her. Year books should be sent to State Regent and State Recording Secretary.

Chapter By-Laws must not conflict with the National and State By-Laws. Chapters are advised to incorporate their By-Laws in the year books.

#### Memorials

The Emily Hendree Park Memorial—A library placed at Continental Memorial Hall in memory of Mrs. Robert Emory Park, State Regent and Vice-President General.

The Lucy Cook Peel Memorial—Books of Historical Collections published by the State D. A. R. in memory of Mrs. William Lawson Peel, Honorary State Regent and Vice-President General. Other books to be published later.

The Augusta Strong Graham Memorial—The Proceedings of the Georgia D. A. R. 1925 published in memory of Mrs. John M. Graham, State Regent and Honorary State Regent. In 1926, bound copies of a complete set of the D. A. R. Proceedings of the Georgia D. A. R. were presented to the Georgia D. A. R. by Mr. John M. Graham in memory of his wife to be placed in the library of the state capitol, Atlanta, Georgia, to be known as the Augusta Strong Graham Collection of Proceedings.

The Fannie Trammell Memorial Loan Fund in memory of Mrs. Paul B. Trammell, State First Vice-Regent, this fund to be used in the educational work of the Georgia D. A. R.

The Sarah Berrien Casey Morgan Memorial Loan Fund in memory of Mrs. S. B. C. Morgan who was State Regent, Vice-President National Society and charter member of National Society. This fund to be used at Georgia State College for Women, Milledgeville.

# IMPORTANT DAYS TO BE OBSERVED

February 12, Georgia Day; February 22, George Washington's Birthday; June 14, Flag Day; July 4, Independence Day; September 6, LaFayette Day; September 17, Constitution and Magna Charta Day; November 11, Armistice Day; April 13, Thos. Jefferson's Birthday; January 17, Benjamin Franklin's Birthday; and April 3, National American's Creed Day.

#### BADGES FOR STATE CONFERENCE

1. Only the two colors of the Society, white and blue, are to be used for badges.

2. Blue ribbon with white letters and insignia to be used as badges for officers and chairmen of committees.

3. White ribbons with blue letters and insignia to be used for Regents and delegates.

4. White ribbon with word "Alternate" printed in blue letters to be used for alternates.

5. White ribbon with only names of hostess chapter in blue letters, to be used by entertaining chapter or chapters. Delegates to the State Conference are requested to wear a badge of white ribbon with the name of their chapters in blue letters.

6. The officers, chairmen, delegates and alternates are required to sign their names with Credential Committee before receiving a Conference badge.

#### D. A. R. Student Loan Fund

In 1916, the resolution by Mrs. Howard H. McCall, State Regent, to establish a D. A. R. Loan Fund, was adopted by the State Conference.

In 1919, the resolution offered by Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Regent of Elijah Clarke Chapter, to establish a \$5,000 Memorial scholarship for our soldier boys who died in the World War to 5e placed at the University of Georgia (for boys) was adopted.

In 1919, a resolution to give a \$150 loan scholarship from the D. A. R. Loan fund to a girl to enter the University of Georgia was adopted.

In 1923, the resolution to increase the amount to \$5,000 for the D. A. R. Student Loan fund was adopted.

In 1923, the resolution to establish a loan fund of \$1,500 to be placed at the Georgia State Woman's College at Valdosta was adopted. In 1926, the State Conference voted to increase this fund to \$5,000.

In 1925, a resolution to establish a "Fannie Trammell Loan fund," as a memorial to Mrs. Paul B. Trammell, First State Vice-Regent, was adopted. In 1926, the State Conference voted to increase this fund to \$5,000.

In 1927, State Conference voted to include all the loan funds under the name of the D. A. R. Student Loan fund, to be in accord with the name used by the National Society.

The history of this splendid educational work will be found in the annual reports of the following State Regents: Mrs. Howard H. McCall, 1916-1918; Mrs. James S. Wood, 1918-1920; Mrs. Max E. Land, 1920-1922; Mrs. Charles Akerman, 1922-1924; Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge, 1924-1926; Mrs. Herbert M. Franklin, 1926-1928; Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney, 1928-1930; Mrs. Bun Wylie, 1930-1932.

In 1932, a resolution was adopted to name the D. A. R. Loan fund, established in 1916, and changed to Student Loan fund (\$5,000) in 1923, to the May Erwin Talmadge Scholarship fund, in honor of Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge, Former State Regent, and Ex-Vice-President General.

In 1932, a resolution was adopted to establish a \$2,500 Student Loan fund to be called the Sarah Berrien Casey Morgan Loan fund, as a memorial to Mrs. S. B. C. Morgan, State Regent, 1893, 1894, 1895, 1896, and 1897, and Vice-President General, 1898-1902. In 1934, this fund was placed at Georgia State College for Women, Milledgeville.

In 1932, a resolution was adopted that the five funds be under the name of the Student Loan Fund Committee.

#### JOSEPH HABERSHAM HISTORICAL COLLECTIONS

Compiled and edited by Mrs. William Lawson Peel and Miss Helen Prescott; property of the Joseph Habersham Chapter of Atlanta.

Vols. I and II—Published in 1901 and 1902, contain unpublished lists of soldiers, lists of immigrants, marriage bonds, death notices, all kinds of court records, family sketches, and valuable genealogies; all original documents.

Vol. III—Published in 1910. Contains all wills, deeds, marriages, etc., of 18 Georgia counties prior to 1796; also Logan's manuscript History of Upper Carolina, containing hundreds of names. All three books completely indexed; \$5.00 each.

For further information apply to the Chapter Librarian, Mrs. W. F. Dykes, Atlanta.

# HISTORICAL COLLECTIONS OF THE GEORGIA CHAPTERS D. A. R.

#### Lucy Cook Peel Memorial

Vol. I—Published in 1926 and dedicated to the memory of Mrs. William Lawson Peel. Contains early records of Baldwin, Bullock, Clarke, Franklin, Jackson, Jasper, Jefferson, Jones, Laurens, Lincoln, Madison, Morgan, Pulaski, Putnam, Tattnall, and Telfair Counties in Georgia. Names of 232 Revolutionary soldiers buried in North Carolina, certified by Miss Anna Blair, North Carolina D. A. R. Historian. Other genealogical data; 373 pages; \$5.00.

Vol. II—Early records of Richmond County, Ga., abstracted and compiled by Mrs. John L. Davidson, Georgia D. A. R. State Historian, published 1929. Contains abstracts of wills, deeds, administrators bonds, guardians' bonds, marriage bonds, minutes of the Inferior court, etc.; 1750-1840, inclusive; also history of the Walton family; 402 pages; complete index; \$5.00.

Vol. III—Early records of Elbert County, Ga., abstracted and compiled by Mrs. John L. Davidson, State Chairman of Genealogical Research Committee, 1928-30. Contains abstracts of wills, 1791-1835; index Will book, 1829-1860; administrator's and guardian's bonds, 1791-1931; Record book, 1830-38; minutes of the Inferior court, 1791-1830; deed books, "A," "B," "C," and "D," 1789-1797; Land Court records, 1791-1822; Land lotteries, 1806, 1821, 1827, 1832; Tombstone Records; marriages, 1806-1834; 348 pages; complete index; \$5.00.

Vol. IV—Bible Records and Old Wills of Georgia; contains family records abstracted from old Bibles by the D. A. R. Chapters of Georgia and compiled by Mrs. J. C. Gentry, State Chairman of Lucy Cook Peel Memorial Committee. Complete index. Published 1932. \$5.00.

# TROPHIES AND AWARDS

Helen Rogers Franklin Trophy—For general excellence, including Honor Roll Requirements, compilation of chapter history, observance of patriotic days, percentage of members attending chapter meetings, and special work accomplished.

Blanche McFarland Gaffney Trophy—To D. A. R. member for the most outstanding historical essay on any Georgia subject.

Mrs. John A. Perdue Loving Cup—To chapter securing greatest number of new subscriptions to D. A. R. Magazine.

Helen McCall Bashinski Trophy—To chapter sending greatest number of certified Bible Records.

. Marion Sibley Wylie Award—\$5.00 in gold to chapter securing, on a percentage basis, greatest number of new members.

State Editor's Award—\$5.00 in gold to chapter sending in best publicity material for D. A. R. column.

State Treasurer's Award—\$5.00 in gold to first chapter meeting all Honor Roll Requirements.

State Regent's Award—\$10.00 in gold to chapter giving largest amount to educational work on a percentage basis.

Jean LaFrage Felton Trophy-To chapter making most outstanding record pertaining to Girl Home Makers.

Annie Turner Hightower Award-\$10.00 to chapter doing best work for Better Films.

# **REQUIREMENTS FOR HONOR ROLL, 1934-35**

National dues of \$1.00 to be sent to Treasurer General, Miss Katherine Nettleton, Memorial Continental Hall, Washington, D. C. 1. State dues .....\$0.20 3. National Defense Through Patriotic Education ..... .15 4. Ellis Island ..... .03 .02 .05 7. Constitution Hall ..... .05 .10 8. Kenmore Gardens ..... .05 .10 .05 Traveling Genealogical Library ..... .10 13. Two dollars from each chapter for Marking Historic Spots 2.00 One chapter subscription to D. A. R. Magazine. 14. 15.

15. One subscription to D. A. R. Post Card Guide to Moving Pictures.

Send 25 self-addressed post cards to Mrs. Mildred Lewis Russell, c|o Hollywood Citizen-News, Hollywood, Cal.

# CHAPTER ORDER OF INSTALLATION

Atlanta, Atlanta	April 15, 1
Xavier, Rome	July 18, 1
Augusta, Augusta	
Savannah, Savannah Oglethorpe, Columbus	
Pulaski, Griffin Mary Hammond Washington, Macon Susannah Elliott, LaGrange (Disbanded) Thronateeska, Albany, January 4, 1895, reorganized. Sergeant Newton, Covington Francis Marion, Thomasville (Disbanded) Kettile Creek, Washington Piedmont Convingental Atlante, (Disbanded)	February 6, 1
Succession by Blight La Crange (Dicharded)	October 30, 1
Thronsteeka Albany January 4 1895 recorrection	
Sergeant Newton Covington	February 1
Francis Marian Thomasvilla (Dichanded)	The second secon
Ketttle Creek Washington	Sentember 11 1
Piedmont Continental Atlanta (Dishanded)	June 27 1
John Adam Treutlen Waveross (Disbanded)	1
Joseph Habersham, Atlanta	February 12, 1
Jonathan Bryan, Waveross	February 17, 1
Thomas Jefferson, Atlanta (Disbanded)	
Rettile Creek, Washington Piedmont Continental, Atlanta (Disbanded) John Adam Treutlen, Waycross (Disbanded) Joseph Habersham, Atlanta Jonathan Bryan, Waycross Thomas Jefferson, Atlanta (Disbanded) Nancy Hart, Milledgeville	October 5, 1
Elijah Clarke, Athens	
Lachlan McIntosh, Savannah	
Stephen Heard, Elberton	July 6, 1
George Walton, Columbus	July 4, 1
Brunswick, Brunswick	
Sarah Dickinson, Newnan	
Enjan Charke, Athens Lachlan McIntosh, Savannah Stephen Heard, Elberton George Walton, Columbus Brunswick, Brunswick Sarah Dickinson, Newnan Shadrach Inman, Hephzibah (Disbanded) Stephen Hopkins, Marshallville Fielding Lewis, Marietta Nathaniel Macon Macon	
Stephen Hopkins, Marshallville	
Fielding Lewis, Marietta	
Sarah McIntosh, Atlanta (Disbanded)	
Sarah McIntosh, Atlanta (Disbanded) Lyman Hall, Waycross Governor Treutlen, Fort Valley Button Gwinnett, Columbus James Jackson, Valdosta	May 7, 1
Governor Treutlen, Fort Valley	October 7, 1
Button Gwinnett, Columbus	
James Jackson, Valdosta	L
Hannah Clarke, Quitman Council of Safety, Americus Archibald Bulloch, Montezuma	April 18, 1
Anabibald Bullach Mantagama	October 15, 1
Etomoh Contonnello	February 5, 1
Etowah, Cartersville John Benning, Moultrie	
Tomochichi, Clarkesville	
Sargaant Jasnar Monticello	Fohrmory 99 1
Sergeant Jasper, Monticello	
	1
David Mariwether Greenville	
David Meriwether, Greenville	
David Meriwether, Greenville	
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle. Dawson	March 10, 1 March 21, 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald	1 March 10, 1 March 21, 1 November 16, 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm Morsh LaFavatte	1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm Morsh LaFavatte	1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm Morsh LaFavatte	1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston\(Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston\(Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov, John Milledge, Dalton Gov, John Milledge, Dalton	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston\(Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov, John Milledge, Dalton Gov, John Milledge, Dalton	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor, Edward Telfair, Thomaston\(Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. Peter Early, Blakely Ocholocknee, Thomasville Baron DeKalb, Clarkston	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston (Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Baron DeKalb, Clarkston Lanahasee, Buena Vista	March 10, 1           March 21, 1           March 21, 1           November 16, 1           1           April 12, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           November 12, 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston\(Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. Peter Early, Blakely Ocholocknee, Thomasville Baron DeKalb, Clarkston Lanahassee, Buena Vista	March 10, 1           March 21, 1           November 16, 1           1           April 12, 1           March 15, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           November 12, 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston\(Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. Peter Early, Blakely Ocholocknee, Thomasville Baron DeKalb, Clarkston Lanahassee, Buena Vista	March 10, 1           March 21, 1           November 16, 1           1           April 12, 1           March 15, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           November 12, 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston\(Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. Peter Early, Blakely Ocholocknee, Thomasville Baron DeKalb, Clarkston Lanahassee, Buena Vista John Benson Hartwall	March 10, 1           March 21, 1           November 16, 1           1           April 12, 1           March 15, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           November 12, 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston\(Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. Peter Early, Blakely Ocholocknee, Thomasville Baron DeKalb, Clarkston Lanahassee, Buena Vista	March 10, 1           March 21, 1           November 16, 1           1           April 12, 1           March 15, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           November 12, 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston (Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. Peter Early, Blakely Ocholocknee, Thomasville Baron DeKalb, Clarkston Lanahasee, Buena Vista John Benson, Hartwell Maj. Gen. Samuel Elbert, Tennille Col. Wm. Few, Eastman William McIntosh, Jackson James Monroe. Forsyth	March 10, 1           March 21, 1           March 21, 1           November 16, 1           April 12, 1           March 15, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           November 12, 1           March 12, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           Movember 12, 1           March 13, 1           November 12, 1           June 15, 1           March 12, 1           June 14, 1           May 24, 1           July 4
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston (Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. Jeter Early, Blakely Ocholocknee, Thomasville Baron DeKalb, Clarkston Lanahasee, Buena Vista John Benson, Hartwell Maj. Gen. Samuel Elbert, Tennille Col. Wm. Few, Eastman William McIntosh, Jackson James Monroe. Forsyth	March 10, 1           March 21, 1           March 21, 1           November 16, 1           April 12, 1           March 15, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           November 12, 1           March 12, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           Movember 12, 1           March 13, 1           November 12, 1           June 15, 1           March 12, 1           June 14, 1           May 24, 1           July 4
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston\(Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. Peter Early, Blakely Ocholocknee, Thomasville Baron DeKalb, Clarkston Lanahassee, Buena Vista John Benson, Hartwell Maj. Gen. Samuel Elbert, Tennille Col. Wm. Few, Eastman William McIntosh, Jackson James Monroe, Forsyth Anawauqua, Fairburn (Disbanded) Matthew Tolbert, Monroe	March 10, 1           March 21, 1           November 16, 1           1           April 12, 1           March 15, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           March 15, 1           March 15, 1           June 15, 1           March 15, 1           June 15, 1           June 15, 1           March 12, 1           March 12, 1           June 15, 1           January 20, 1           January 24, 1           January 23, 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston (Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. Jeter Early, Blakely Ocholocknee, Thomasville Baron DeKalb, Clarkston Lanahasee, Buena Vista John Benson, Hartwell Maj. Gen. Samuel Elbert, Tennille Col. Wm. Few, Eastman William McIntosh, Jackson James Monroe, Forsyth Anawauqua, Fairburn (Disbanded) Matthew Tolbert, Monroe Samuel Reid, Eatonton	March 10, 1           March 21, 1           March 21, 1           November 16, 1           April 12, 1           March 15, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           November 12, 1           March 15, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           March 12, 1           March 14, 1           June 15, 1           June 15, 1           June 14, 1           January 20, 1           January 23, 1           January 23, 1           January 26, 1           January 26, 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston\(Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. Peter Early, Blakely Ocholocknee, Thomasville Baron DeKalb, Clarkston Lanahassee, Buena Vista John Benson, Hartwell Maj. Gen. Samuel Elbert, Tennille Col. Wm. Few, Eastman William McIntosh, Jackson James Monroe, Forsyth Anawauqua, Fairburn (Disbanded) Matthew Tolbert, Monroe Samuel Reid, Eatonton Benjamin Hawkins, Cuthhert	March 10, 1           March 21, 1           November 16, 1           1           April 12, 1           March 15, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           March 15, 1           March 15, 1           June 15, 1           March 15, 1           June 15, 1           June 15, 1           June 12, 1           March 12, 1           June 13, 1           Juny 24, 1           January 23, 1           January 26, 1           January 26, 1           January 26, 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston\(Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. Peter Early, Blakely Ocholocknee, Thomasville Baron DeKalb, Clarkston Lanahassee, Buena Vista John Benson, Hartwell Maj. Gen. Samuel Elbert, Tennille Col. Wm. Few, Eastman William McIntosh, Jackson James Monroe, Forsyth Matthew Tolbert, Monroe Samuel Reid, Eatonton Benjamin Hawkins, Cuthbert Noble Wimberly Jones, Shellman	March 10, 1           March 21, 1           November 16, 1           1           April 12, 1           March 15, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           June 15, 1           March 15, 1           June 15, 1           January 20, 1           January 23, 1           January 26, 1           January 28, 1           January 28, 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston\(Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. Peter Early, Blakely Ocholocknee, Thomasville Baron DeKalb, Clarkston Lanahassee, Buena Vista John Benson, Hartwell Maj. Gen. Samuel Elbert, Tennille Col. Wm. Few, Eastman William McIntosh, Jackson James Monroe, Forsyth Matthew Tolbert, Monroe Samuel Reid, Eatonton Benjamin Hawkins, Cuthbert Noble Wimberly Jones, Shellman	March 10, 1           March 21, 1           November 16, 1           1           April 12, 1           March 15, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           June 15, 1           March 15, 1           June 15, 1           January 20, 1           January 23, 1           January 26, 1           January 28, 1           January 28, 1
David Meriwether, Greenville Governor Jared Irwin, Sandersville Stone Castle, Dawson Dorothhy Walton, Dawson Nathaniel Abney, Fitzgerald Wm. Marsh, LaFayette Governor Edward Telfair, Thomaston\(Disbanded) John Houston, Thomaston Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. John Milledge, Dalton Gov. Peter Early, Blakely Ocholocknee, Thomasville Baron DeKalb, Clarkston Lanahassee, Buena Vista John Benson, Hartwell Maj. Gen. Samuel Elbert, Tennille Col. Wm. Few, Eastman William McIntosh, Jackson James Monroe, Forsyth Anawauqua, Fairburn (Disbanded) Matthew Tolbert, Monroe Samuel Reid, Eatonton Benjamin Hawkins, Cuthbert	March 10, 1           March 21, 1           November 16, 1           1           April 12, 1           March 15, 1           January 20, 1           June 15, 1           March 15, 1           March 15, 1           June 15, 1           March 15, 1           June 15, 1           June 15, 1           March 12, 1           June 13, 1           Juny 24, 1           January 23, 1           January 23, 1           January 28, 1           January 28, 1           January 28, 1           February 8, 1           February 8, 1

John Laurens, Dublin	Februrary	25,	1916
James Pittman, Commerce	March	16,	1916
Altamaha, Jesup			
Oconee, McRae	December	30.	1916
John Clarke, Social Circle	April	18.	1917
Chattahoochee, West Point (Disbanded)	January	13.	1918
Hawthorn Trail, Pelham	February	9.	1918
Capt. John Dooly, Vienna (Disbanded)			1920
Commodore Richard Dale, Albany	April	17.	1920
Hawkinsville, Hawkinsville	Anril	17.	1920
Hancock, Sparta			
LaGrange LaGrange	February	5	1920
Ama-Kanasta, Douglasville (Disbanded)	March	20	1920
Sunbury, Winder			1921
Bainbridge, Bainbridge			
Peter Coffee, Abbeville (Disbanded)	May	17	1091
Briar Creek, Sylvania	May	17	1021
Col. John McIntosh, Convers	Norombor	50	1091
Bernard Trail, Sylvester	November	15,	1021
Elizabeth Marlow, Monticello	December	19,	1000
Oliver Morton, Gray Old Marion, Jeffersonville (Disbanded)			1922
Old Marion, Jeffersonville (Disbanded)		0.4	1922
Burkhalter, Warrenton	October	31,	1922
Тоссоа, Тоссоа	October	31,	1923
Adairsville, Adairsville	June	10,	1924
Fort Valley, Fort Valley	February	7 2,	1925
Edmund Burke, Waynesboro			
Bonaventure, Savannah			
Elizabeth Washington, Augusta			
Jeffersonia Hawkins, Roberta	June	16,	1925
Roanoke, Lumpkin	November	• 3.	1925
Knox-Conway, Ashburn	November	5.	1925
John Ball, Irwinton	April	9.	1926
Arthur Fort, Grantville	Ap	ril.	1927
Camilla, Camilla			
Lamar-LaFayette, Barnesville	April	14.	1928
Vidalia, Vidalia			
Thomson. Thomson			1930
Adam Brinson, Swainsboro			1930
Gov. David Emanuel, in Emanuel County	May	26	1931
Gov. David Emandel, in Emandel County		-0,	200A

# NATIONAL SOCIETY OF THE CHILDREN OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION

# Organized at Washington, D. C., April 5, 1895

# State Directors

Mrs. John Sage, Atlanta1922-1928Mrs. Thomas Coke Mell, Atlanta1930-1934Mrs. Thomas Harris Yarbrough, Milledgeville.1930-1934

While the C. A. R. is an entirely separate organization from the D. A. R. and S. A. R., it is wholly depnedent upon these two Societies for its officers, both State and National. The local Societies have their junior officers.

The State Director C. A. R. corresponds to the State Regent D. A. R., and is appointed by the National President, being also a member of the National Board. The State D. A. R. Chairman of Cooperative Relations Between C. A. R. and D. A. R. works for the advancement of the C. A. R. because it is the training for the D. A. R. She is appointed by the State Regent. All appointments pertaining to the Society of the C. A. R. are made by the State Director.

The D. A. R. chapters are asked to send the name of one of their members, who will act as Organizing President together with the name of the Society, to the State Director for confirmation by the National Board in Washington. The National Organizing Secretary will then send the necessary information for a Society to be formed. Local Societies should be named as far as possible for persons, places or events associated with the early history of our country. Names of girls and boys who helped promote the cause of American Independence may be chosen when practicable.

The membership of a Society must be not less than six. Any girl or boy under 21 years of age, who is lineally descended from a man or woman having rendered aid to the cause of American Independence is eligible for membership.

Girls may be transferred to the D. A. R. and boys to the S. A. R. without paying the usual initiation fee, provided the transfer card is received by the National Society before they have reached their 22nd birthday.

Entrance fee is \$1.00 and annual dues are \$1.00.

During the directorship of Mrs. Mell, she presented, as a personal gift, a beautiful silk Georgia flag to the National Society. The Societies were deeply grateful to Mrs. Mell for this donation.

# COUNT D'ESTAING SOCIETY CHILDREN OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION, ATHENS

Count D'Estaing Society was organized on February 19, 1934, with six members, and several other papers pending. We are sponsored by Elijah Clarke Chapter, D. A. R. The following officers were elected for the year: Senior President, Mrs. Henry Reid; Junior President, Agnes White; Recording Secretary, Rose Mayne. Our members include: Agnes White, Rose Mayne, Mary Arnold Reid, Henry Reid, Marion West, and Roby Redwine, Jr.

Two meetings have been held, with full attendance. Our meetings are opened with the Pledge to the Flag, and patriotic programs are featured, after which we spend a while with hand work which we sell for current expenses. A social half hour follows.

All of our meetings are reported to our local papers.

We have cooperated with the Elijah Clarke Chapter D. A. R. by serving at a benefit bridge party. On this occasion, the girls were attractively dressed in blue and white aprons, and head pieces, and the boys wore blue and white caps.

Having so recently organized, we have not been able to give to all requirements, but we hope to do our part next year.

### DOLLY MADISON SOCIETY, CHILDREN OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION

Dolly Madison Society, Children of the American Revolution, is sponsored by the Atlanta Chapter D. A. R., of Atlanta, Ga., and was reorganized March 26, 1926, with Mrs. Thomas Coke Mell as Organizing President.

Mrs. Harry Collier Malone is Senior President; Miss Margaret Annette Rogers, Junior President, and Acting Treasurer; Miss Mary Jane Wilson, Secretary; and Mr. John Wilson, Registrar.

We have 20 members, have held six meetings, each with a business session followed by a social hour. Each meeting is opened with the Lord's Prayer, followed by Salute and Pledge to the Flag, and a patriotic song.

We have observed American Navy Day, Armistice Day, Thanksgiving Day, Georgia Bicentennial, and featured the Americanization work of our D. A. R., and Correct Use of the Flag.

A contribution was sent to the Harriet M. Lothrop Memorial Building fund, and one for local Christmas charity. We subscribe to C. A. R. Magazine. We have on hand eight lovely scrap books to be given to the childrens' wards of local hospitals.

At present, there are seven sets of application blanks being filled out by prospective new members, also some supplementals, and applications pending in Washington. List of Members, Dolly Madison Society, Atlanta, Ga.: Anne

List of Members, Dolly Madison Society, Atlanta, Ga.: Anne Babington, Lowry Davis, Mary Virginia McConnell, Dorothy High Peteet, Margaret Annette Rogers, Charlotte Sage, Dan Y. Sage, Jr., Heyl Tebo, John Wilson, Mary Jane Wilson, Betty Spiker, Margaret George, Carroll H. George, Helen Trippe, Evelina L. Stevenson, Martha E. Turner, Hazel V. Turner, Meredith S. Turner, Aline Timmons, Alma Wade.

# LADY ELIZABETH OGLETHORPE SOCIETY, CHILDREN OF AMERICAN REVOLUTION, ATLANTA

Mother Chapter, D. A. R., Joseph Habersham, Atlanta. Date of organization, July 30, 1930. Organizing President, Mrs. B. C. Ward. Officers: Senior President, Mrs. B. C. Ward; Junior President, Sarah Louise Davison; Secretary, Gertrude L. Benning; Treasurer, Betty L. James.

Membership: Margaret Duckworth, Katherine Latham Alexander, Catherine Rowena Benning, Gertrude L. Benning, William Lee Dix, Charles C. Kauffman, Jr., Jean C. Smith, Katherine E. Smith, Martha Frances Smith, Martha Dean Mathers, Frederick Preston Roddey, Marguerite Ward Roddey, Jessamine Crenshaw Ward, Ann Coniff Lane, Frances Alston, Margaret Alston, Betty James, Jean L. Ethridge, Virginia Gann, Sally Beacon Fort, Virginia Manson Marshall, Emily Walsh, Elizabeth Walsh, Sarah Louise Davison, Mrs. B. C. Ward. The Lady Elizabeth Oglethorpe Society has accomplished very little compared to her previous work. We held six meetings this past year. We observed the following days with special programs: July 4 (Independence Day), Arbor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, Washington's Birthday, April 26 (Memorial Day).

We finished paying for the Society banner and have paid all debts in full. There is a balance of approximately \$5.00 in the Society's account. The Treasurer was in a terrible accident and the Society sent several notes, and individuals visited her and sent her longer letters.

#### ROBERT SALLETTE SOCIETY, CHILDREN OF AMERICAN REVOLUTION, DECATUR

Sponsored by Baron DeKalb Chapter D. A. R. Mrs. Daniel M. Byrd, Organizing President. Date of organization, November 17, 1928.

Officers: Mrs. Walter Estes, Senior President; Winnie Hudson, Junior President; Jacqueln Howard, Treasurer; Eloise Estes, Registrar; Elizabeth Cousin, Recording Secretary; Helen Harralson, Corresponding Secretary; Louise Trotter, Historian; Nell Scott Earthman, Color Bearer.

Members: Molly Jones, Mary E. Harralson, Helen Harralson, Winnie Hudson, Jacqueln Howard, Eloise Estes, James Hodges Wade, Elizabeth Cousins, Nell Scott, Earthman, Louise Trotter.

We have held two meetings this year. One to elect officers, and the other to name the delegates to attend the Annual Convention in Washington.

Dues for the 10 members have been sent to the National Treasurer. One dollar was given for the Harriet M. Lothrop Memorial Building fund.

Our Senior President, Mrs. Walter Estes, with three members, Winnie Hudson, Junior President; Eloise Estes, delegate; Elizabeth Cousins, Color Bearer for Georgia, attended the Thirty-ninth C. A. R. Convention in Washington, D. C., April 16 to 20, 1934.

#### LAGRANGE SOCIETY CHILDREN OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION, LAGRANGE

Sponsored by the LaGrange Chapter D. A. R.

The Society was organized by Mrs. R. A. Malone, November 3, 1928. Mrs. Malone has acted as Senior President since the Society was organized.

The present officers are: Junior President, William Hutchinson; Vice-President, Claude Handley; Secretary, Lollie Traylor; Treasurer, Ely Callaway; Historian, Mary Page Sargent; Registrar, Alice Mallory; Flag Bearer, William Handley.

The membership is as follows: Barbara Bain, Ely Callaway, Loula Callaway, Claude Handley, Julia Handley, Sara Handley, William Handley, Mary Hutchinson, Pauline Hutchinson, Sara Hutchinson, William Hutchinson, Alice Mallory, Arthur Mallory, Blanche McCall, Bernard J. Mayer, Jr., Mary Mayer, Margaret Mooty, Emmette Morgan, Elizabeth Reed, Margaret Reynolds, Mary Page Sargent, Annie Laura Traylor, Emily Wilson, Marian Wilson, Emily Rowe.

It is our pleasure to report that the Society has increased its membership since January, 1934, with six rew members, and three applications pending.

Splendid papers on Georgia Bicentennial and on other historic

subjects have been written and given by the members. Twelve historic and patriotic days observed and at each meeting the historic calendar of the month is given by the Historian.

A special feature of our work is the annual program with which the members entertain the LaGrange Chapter of D. A. R. In this and in all our programs we employ only the membership and talent of the Society. Once annually we add to our program with an address by some prominent local citizen. This year in February the Regent of LaGrange Chapter, Mrs. T. G. Polhill, gave a charming and instructive address on the subject, "Washington's Visit to Georgia."

Proper Flag Salute and Pledge are given at each meeting.

In the fall our Senior President, Mrs. Malone, entertained the members at Hutchinson's Camp, on the Chattachoochee River, at a meeting and program followed by a weiner roast.

The Harriet M. Lothrop Memorial Building fund is a project sponsored by our Society, sending 10 cents per capita. Annual dues have been 100 per cent. Six business and six social meetings have been held.

The Society has taken on a new feature of work, the joint scholarship fund with the LaGrange Chapter D. A. R. for LaGrange College. The members are giving an operetta, proceeds going towards the scholarship fund; the benefactor of the scholarship to be a member of our local Society or a daughter of a member of the LaGrange Chapter D. A. R.

#### BENJAMIN HAWKINS SOCIETY CHILDREN OF AMERICAN REVOLUTION, MACON

Sponsored by Mary Hammond Washington Chapter D. A. R. Organized in the fall of 1930. (Organizing President was appointed by National Board of Management, November 14, 1929).

Officers: Senior President, Mrs. Clisby Clarke; Junior President, Erin O'Neal Clarke; Vice-President, Elise Seay; Secretary, Louise Moultrie Bowen; Treasurer, Frances Katherine Hawthorne; Registrar, Camille Lamar Roberts; Chaplain, Marcella Dearing Martin; Custodian of the Flag, Harriett Cork.

Members: Walton Bowen, Louise Bowen, Mary W. Chambers, Harriett Cork, Ethyl Geraldine Garrett, Katherine Hawthorne, Rosa W. Johnston, Edwina P. Johnston, Martha Evelyn Weaver, Erin O'Neal Clarke, Gladys M. Holder, Marcella D. Martin, Garrett Middlebrooks, Camille L. Roberts.

The Benjamin Hawkins Society C. A. R. reports for the year 1933-34 progress in cooperation and enthusiasm of its members. We started the year with 15 active members, but unfortunately lost one through resignation. We have now three applications pending in Washington and 14 have accepted, whose papers are not yet completed. Our meetings throughout the year have been well attended and interesting.

The February meeting was a joint one with the Mary Hammond Washington Chapter D. A. R., and our Society gave the Pageant of Flags, written and directed by Mrs. Piercy Chestney, as our part of the program. At this time we were presented with a beautiful silk flag by our Sponsor Chapter of the D. A. R.

Dues for all active members have been paid and a small contribution made to the Lothrop Memorial fund.

#### BENJAMIN FITZPATRICK SOCIETY CHILDREN OF AMERICAN REVOLUTION, MADISON

Sponsored by Henry Walton Chapter D. A. R., Madison. Organized March 20, 1930.

Mrs. Leonard Wallace, Senior President; Isabelle Reid, Junior President; Charlotte Brown, Vice-President; Adelaide Wallace, Treasurer; Laura Baldwin, Recording Secretary; Billie Atkinson, Corresponding Secretary; Julia Thomaston, Historian; Gladys Baldwin, Registrar; Martha Baldwin, Reporter; Anne Wallace and Carter Shepherd, Flag Bearers; Mary Ann Lamber, Butler Atkinson, Jr., Richmond Walton Atwater.

Benjamin Fitzpatrick Society, Children of the American Revolution, has completed an active and enthusiastic year's work. With 13 interested members the meetings have been instructive and enjoyable.

We have one subscription to the C. A. R. Magazine; have given 10 cents per capita to the Harriet M. Lethrop Memorial Building fund; have planted 25 trees; given one book to the town library and four books to the school library; purchased a flag for our Society and celebrated six important historic days, besides having papers written on many important Revolutionary subjects.

We have awarded a citizenship prize to the outstanding pupil of the grammar school. Members of the Society assisted in the sale of Red Cross Seals.

Our Junior President was appointed by Mrs. Yarbrough and Mrs. Sinclair as a page at the National Conference.

Total expenditure for the year, \$30.75.

#### SUKEY HART SOCIETY CHILDREN OF AMERICAN REVOLUTION, MILLDEGEVILLE

Sponsored by the Nancy Hart Chapter D. A. R.

The Sukey Hart Society was organized July 18, 1932; Miss Katherine Jewell as Organizing President.

Officers: Senior President, Mrs. Edwin Allen; Junior President, Elisabeth Alford; Registrar, Josephine Bone; Secretary, Lois Hatcher; Treasurer, Betty Allen; Corresponding Secretary, Louise Alford; Historian, Elizabeth Chandler; Color Bearer, June Bell.

Roll: Elisabeth Culver Alford, Louise Little Alford, Betty Canty Allen, June C. Bell, Josephine Bethune Bone, Elizabeth Chandler, Lois Wright Hatcher, Elizabeth Humber Hean, Nancy James, Frances Milton, Anne Andrews McKinley.

The charter of the Society was presented by Nancy Hart Chapter.

During the past year (1933-1934) the Society has held eight business and eight social meetings; the attendance at meetings has been good. We have followed a general program centering historical facts and citizenship training.

We have presented one American flag to a county school. Last April we observed Founders' Day with a beautiful program, the candle lighting ceremony being used; this meeting was held at the home of our State Director, Mrs. Y. H. Yarbrough. In November we assisted the American Legion with the Armistice Day parade. In December we had a Christmas meeting.

In January we gave a silver tea at the Old Governor's Mansion, in our city, and at this time we gave a delightful program to the Nancy Hart Chapter D. A. R. The money gained from this amounted to \$10.00; this was given as our part toward the Harriet Lothrop Memorial Building fund.

We are fortunate in having in our town the Georgia State Director, Mrs. Y. H. Yarbrough, who at all times has been most helpful and devoted much of her time to our Society.

Total expenditure for the year, \$19.97.

#### WINONA SOCIETY CHILDREN OF AMERICAN REVOLUTION, WAYCROSS

Sponsored by the Jonathan Bryan Chapter D. A. R. Organized March 28, 1932.

Mrs. Paul Norwood Harley, Organizing President.

Mrs. Fred P. Odum, Senior President; Miss Carol Harley, Junior President; Miss Mary Stanton, Secretary; Miss Gladys Darlin, Treasurer; Miss Ruth Knight, Registrar; Miss Isabel Parker, Color Bearer; Miss Melona Watt, Miss Jean Garrett, Miss Isabel McCall.

Regular monthly meetings are held the last Thursday in each month, excepting July and August, during which time we are inactive.

The minutes are carefully recorded and read aloud at each meeting.

All members have paid dues and our Society subscribes to the Children of the American Revolution Magazine.

At the time of the National Convention we had not contributed to the Harriet M. Lothrop Memorial Building fund, but since that time we have raised a fund for this purpose. We also have on hand a small contribution for the work at the Tamassee Schools.

Three social meetings were held during the year. In February, 1934, the Winona Society entertained the Jonathan Bryan and Lyman Hall Chapters D. A. R. with a Georgia Day and George Washington Birthday celebration.

Seven regular business meetings are held with good reports, excellent program and fine attendance.

We have spent in the following manner: Subscriptions to C. A. R. Magazine, 50 cents; purchased small American flag, 50 cents; booklet on S. S. Constitution, 50 cents; memorial tree, Winona, to be planted and dedicated in June, 1934, Winona Park, Waycross, \$1.00; basket of groceries for needy, \$1.80.

The Society has begun a small historical library. At the present time we have three volumes.

We have endeavored to cooperate with all historical and patriotic societies and celebrations.

# DIRECTORY OF CHAPTERS

OOTHCALOGA CHAPTER, ADAIRSVILLE (1934)
RegentMrs. G. M. Boyd, Sr., Adairsville
THRONATEESKA CHAPTER, ALBANY (1895) RegentMiss Cena Jackson Whitehead, 318 Pine St., Albany
COMMODORE RICHARD DALE CHAPTER, ALBANY (1920) RegentMrs. J. M. Barnett, Albany
COUNCIL OF SAFETY CHAPTER, AMERICUS (1908) RegentMrs. W. H. Emmet, Americus
KNOX-CONWAY CHAPTER, ASHBURN (1925) Regent
ELIJAH CLARKE CHAPTER, ATHENS (1900) Regent
ATLANTA CHAPTER, ATLANTA (1891) RegentMrs. Francis Brown Chase, 477 Pryor St., S. W., Atlanta
JOSEPH HABERSHAM CHAPTER, ATLANTA (1900) Regent
AUGUSTA CHAPTER, AUGUSTA (1892) RegentMrs. Frederick E. Smith, 2634 Henry St., Augusta
ELIZABETH WASHINGTON CHAPTER, AUGUSTA (1925) RegentMrs. E. G. Wilson, Augusta
BAINBRIDGE CHAPTER, BAINBRIDGE (1912) RegentMrs. Peter Cummings, Bainbridge
LAMAR-LAFAYETTE CHAPTER, BARNESVILLE (1928) RegentMrs. E. L. Coleman, Barnesville
GOV, PETER EARLY CHAPTER, BLAKELY (1912) RegentMrs. R. C. Singletary, Blakely
BRUNSWICK CHAPTER, BRUNSWICK (1903) RegentMrs. C. H. Leavy, Brunswick
LANAHASSEE CHAPTER, BUENA VISTA (1913) RegentMrs. S. M. Burt, Buena Vista

CAIRO CHAPTER, CAIRO (1922) Regent......Mrs. J. A. Pope, Cairo CAMILLA CHAPTER, CAMILLA (1927) Regent......Mrs. S. H. Floyd, Camilla ETOWAH CHAPTER, CARTERSVILLE (1909) TOMICHICHI CHAPTER, CLARKESVILLE (1909) Regent......Mrs. Phil Ogletree, Cornelia BUTTON GWINNETT CHAPTER, COLUMBUS (1908) GEORGE WALTON CHAPTER, COLUMBUS (1901) Regent......Mrs. John H. Walton, 1612 Jackson St., Columbus OGLETHORPE CHAPTER, COLUMBUS (1892) Regent......Mrs. George Burrus, Jr., Columbus JAMES PITTMAN CHAPTER, COMMERCE (1921) COL. JOHN McINTOSH CHAPTER, CONYERS (1921) Regent......Mrs. C. B. Fitzgerald, Conyers FORT EARLY CHAPTER, CORDELE (1914) Regent......Mrs. W. M. Gammon, Cordele SERGEANT NEWTON CHAPTER, COVINGTON (1895) **BENJAMIN HAWKINS CHAPTER, CUTHBERT (1914)** Regent......Miss Lucia Massee, Cuthbert GOV. JOHN MILLEDGE CHAPTER, DALTON (1912) Regent......Mrs. C. L. Bradley, Dalton STONE CASTLE CHAPTER, DAWSON (1910) Regent......Mrs. Jonathan Williams, Dawson DOROTHY WALTON CHAPTER, DAWSON (1911) Regent......Mrs. H. A. Wilkinson, Dawson BARON DEKALB CHAPTER, DECATUR (1912) 17 Regent......Mrs. J. Walter Estes, 351 S. McDonough St., Decatur

174

JOHN LAURENS CHAPTER, DUBLIN (1916) COL. WILLIAM FEW CHAPTER, EASTMAN (1913) Regent......Mrs. Thos. J. Sappington, Eastman SAMUEL REID CHAPTER, EATONTON (1914) Regent......Mrs. Jessie A. Champion, Eatonton STEPHEN HEARD CHAPTER, ELBERTON (1901) NATHANIEL ABNEY CHAPTER, FITZGERALD (1911) JAMES MONROE CHAPTER, FORSYTH (1913) Regent......Mrs. E. W. Banks, Forsyth GOV. TREUTLEN CHAPTER, FORT VALLEY (1909) FORT VALLEY CHAPTER, FORT VALLEY (1925) COL. WM. CANDLER CHAPTER, GAINESVILLE (1914) Regent......Mrs. Price Charters, Gainesville ARTHUR FORT CHAPTER, GRANTVILLE (1927) Regent......Mrs. V. G. Williams, Grantville OLIVER MORTON CHAPTER, GRAY (1922) Regent......Mrs. Homer Harris, Bradley DAVID MERIWETHER CHAPTER, GREENVILLE (1922) 'Regent......Mrs. R. S. Parham, Greenville PULASKI CHAPTER, GRIFFIN (1893) Regent......Mrs. J. B. Turner, Griffin JOHN BENSON CHAPTER, HARTWELL (1913) Regent......Mrs. H. I. Alford, Hartwell HAWKINSVILLE CHAPTER, HAWKINSVILLE (1900) Regent......Mrs. N. A. Jelks, Hawkinsville JOHN BALL CHAPTER, IRWINTON (1926) Regent......Mrs. A. W. Hearn Daughtry, Allentown

48	WILLIAM McINTOSH CHAPTER, JACKSON (1913) RegentMrs. John Edward Lane, Jackson	
49	ALTAMAHA CHAPTER, JESUP (1916) RegentMrs. Horace Kingstover, Jesup	
3-3	WILLIAM MARSH CHAPTER, LaFAYETTE (1911) RegentMrs. Tom W. Lee, Chickamauga	e.
3-1	LaGRANGE CHAPTER, LaGRANGE (1920) RegentMrs. John D. Faver, 406 Broad St., LaGrange	/
5-2	ROANOKE CHAPTER, LUMPKIN (1925) RegentMrs. W. A. Fitzgerald, Omaha	(
3-3	MARY HAMMOND WASHINGTON CHAPTER, MACON (1893) RegentMrs. Julian S. Lewis, 717 Vineville Ave., Macon	e
3-4	NATHANIEL MACON CHAPTER, MACON (1905) RegentMrs. J. E. Wright, Macon V	
3- 3-	HENRY WALTON CHAPTER, MADISON (1910) RegentMrs. Leonard Wallace, Madison	r.
	FIELDING LEWIS CHAPTER, MARIETTA (1904) RegentMrs. W. H. Perkinson, 811 Church St., Marietta	1
	STEPHEN HOPKINS CHAPTER, MARSHALLVILLE (1903) RegentMrs. Willie E. Rice, Marshallville	
3-8	NANCY HART CHAPTER, MILLEDGEVILLE (1900) RegentMrs. Henrietta Allen, Milledgeville	1
3-1	MATTHEW TALBOT CHAPTER, MONROE (1914) RegentMrs. Lena Felker Lewis, Monroe	Þ
60	ARCHIBALD BULLOCK CHAPTER, MONTEZUMA (1909) RegentMrs. F. M. Mullino, Montezuma	1
61	SERGEANT JASPER CHAPTER, MONTICELLO (1910) RegentMrs. H. C. Tucker, Monticello	V
62	ELIZABETH MARLOW CHAPTER, MONTICELLO (1922) RegentMrs. Ezelle S. Goolsby, Monticello	~
63	JOHN BENNING CHAPTER, MOULTRIE (1909) RegentMrs. S. M. Withers, Moultrie	V

OCONEE CHAPTER, MCRAE (1916) 642 SARAH DICKINSON CHAPTER, NEWNAN (1903) Regent......Mrs. Wade Stallings, 62 Spring St., Newnan HAWTHORN TRAIL CHAPTER, PELHAM (1918) Regent......Mrs. W. C. Twitty, Sr., Pelham GENERAL DANIEL STEWART CHAPTER, PERRY (1914) Regent......Mrs. H. P. Dobbins, Perry HANNAH CLARKE CHAPTER, QUITMAN (1924) Regent......Mrs. O. J. Taylor, Quitman XAVIER CHAPTER, ROME (1891) Regent......Mrs. James P. Rounsaville, Rome GOV. JARED IRWIN CHAPTER, SANDERSVILLE (1910) Regent......Mrs. S. G. Lang, Sr., Sandersville LACHLAN McINTOSH CHAPTER, SAVANNAH (1901) SAVANNAH CHAPTER, SAVANNAH (1892) Regent......Mrs. J. N. Carter, 107 E. James St., Savannah BONAVENTURE CHAPTER, SAVANNAH (1925) NOBLE WIMBERLY JONES CHAPTER, SHELLMAN (1914) Regent......Mrs. J. D. Pipkin, Shellman JOHN CLARKE CHAPTER, SOCIAL CIRCLE (1917) Regent......Mrs. C. T. Wiley, Social Circle HANCOCK CHAPTER, SPARTA (1920) Regent......Mrs. W. H. Britt, Sparta ADAM BRINSON CHAPTER, GRAYMONT-SUMMIT Regent......Mrs. Ira T. Brinson, Graymont GOV. DAVID EMANUEL CHAPTER, SWAINSBORO (1931) Regent......Mrs. Arthur Thompson, Swainsboro BRIAR CREEK CHAPTER, SYLVANIA (1921)

BARNARD TRAIL CHAPTER, SYLVESTER (1921) RegentMrs. I. H. Mann, Sylveste	e <b>r</b>
MAJ. GENERAL SAMUEL ELBERT CHAPTER, TENNILLE (1921 RegentMrs. William Brantley, Tennill	
JOHN HOUSTON CHAPTER, THOMASTON (1911) RegentMrs. Carolyn Walker Nottingham, Thomasto	n
THOMASVILLE CHAPTER, THOMASVILLE (1912) RegentMrs. J. A. Horn, Thomasvill	e
THOMSON CHAPTER, THOMSON (1930) RegentMrs. Clyde Forrest Hunt, Thomso	n
TOCCOA CHAPTER, TOCCOA (1930) RegentMrs. Winston Owen, Tocco	a
GEN. JAMES JACKSON CHAPTER, VALDOSTA (1908) RegentMrs. Frank S. Harrell, Valdost	a
VIDALIA CHAPTER, VIDALIA (1928) RegentMrs. Louise Hurst (Frank E.) Howald, Vidali	a
BURKHALTER CHAPTER, WARRENTON (1923) RegentMrs. Darwin Ricketson, Warrento:	n
KETTLE CREEK CHAPTER, WASHINGTON (1895) RegentMrs. W. I. Jackson, Washington	n
JONATHAN BRYAN CHAPTER, WAYCROSS (1900) RegentMiss Claudia Little, Waycros	s
LYMAN HALL CHAPTER, WAYCROSS (1907) RegentMrs. Dan Lott, Waycros	s
EDMUND BURKE CHAPTER, WAYNESBORO (1925) RegentMrs. Francis Marion Cates, Waynesbor	0
SUNBURY CHAPTER, WINDER (1921) Regent	r

r

Ý

# STATE COMMITTEES, 1934-1935

#### STATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEES, 1935

#### ELIJAH CLARKE CHAPTER, ATHENS, HOSTESS.

Miss Annie Crawford, Regent, and General Chairman.

Arrangements-Mrs. J. V. H. Rucker, Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Mrs. D. F. Miller.

Program-Mrs. Roby Redwine, Mrs. Julian McCurry, Mrs. Julius Talmadge.

Credentials-Mrs. J. T. Dudley, Mrs. Peter Brown, Mrs. Tom Mell, (State Treasurer), Mrs. E. L. Griggs.

Hospitality-Mrs. H. B. Ritchie, Mrs. S. V. Sanford, Mrs. Joel Wier, Mrs. Alex Rhodes, Mrs. Lamar Rucker.

Pages-Mrs. Henry West, Mrs. Henry Reid.

#### STATE EXECUTIVE BOARD

#### GENERAL JAMES JACKSON CHAPTER, VALDOSTA, HOSTESS

#### Mrs. Frank S. Harrell, Regent.

Committee: Mrs. W. H. Oliver, Mrs. Richard Harris, Mrs. Thomas B. Courvoisie, Jr., Mrs. James West, Mrs. Curtis Grant Taylor, Miss Anna Ashley.

#### STATE STANDING COMMITTEES

Americanism-Chairman, Mrs. W. E. Mann, Dalton; Mrs. Mark Smith, Thomaston; Mrs. Miller S. Bell, Milledgeville; Miss Henrietta Caphton, Savannah.

American Creed-Chairman, Mrs. Bun Wylie, 43 Peachtree Place, N. W., Atlanta; Mrs. Jim Bradfield, LaGrange; Mrs. Frank Dennis, Eatonton; Mrs. W. L. Smith, Dawson; Mrs. J. W. Marsh, Toccoa.

American Merchant Marine Library-Mrs. J. L. Mims, Hawkinsville; Mrs. W. W. Connell, Savannah; Miss Annie S. Crawford, Athens; Mrs. Louise Evans, Sandersville.

Approved Schools—Chairman, Miss Sue Reid Vason, Madison;
Mrs. S. V. Sanford, Athens; Mrs. J. N. McBride, Savannah; Mrs. Sam Candler, Cartersville; Mrs. E. T. Whatley, Savannah.
Armistice Day—Chairman, Mrs. I. H. Sutton, Clarkesville; Mrs.
B. J. Tarbutton, Sandersville; Mrs. Arte Usher, Savannah; Mrs. Leo

Leader, Albany; Mrs. A. H. Brenner, Augusta.

Blanche McFarlin Gaffney Trophy-Chairman, Mrs. T. D. Power, Columbus.

Better Films-Chairman, Mrs. P. R. Kittles, Sylvania; Mrs. Harrison Hightower, Thomaston; Mrs. J. A. Selden, Macon; Mrs. J. E. Mercer, Vidalia; Mrs. Julian McCurry, Athens.

Book Plate for Georgia Books in Library at Constitution Hall-Chairman, Mrs. Branch LaFarr, 510 East Duffy St., Savannah; Mrs. E. B. Freeman, Dublin; Miss Floride Allen, Milledgeville; Miss Sue Reid Vason, Madison.

Collection and Preservation of Family Records-Chairman, Mrs.

Eli Thomas, 39 Fourteenth St., N. E., Atlanta; Miss Isabelle Clarke, Augusta; Miss I. H. Sutton, Clarkesville; Mrs. Julian McCurry, Athens.

Courtesy-Chairman, Mrs. H. M. Franklin, Tennille.

Constitution and Magna Charta Day-Chairman, Mrs. Lucius Mc-Connell, 1296 Fairview Road, N. E., Atlanta; Mrs. M. L. Felk, Warrenton; Mrs. Dan Lott, Waycross; Mrs. Irwin A. Brannen, Pulaski.

Constitution Hall Finance-Chairman, Mrs. Turner Brice, Quitman; Mrs. J. H. Calais, Savannah; Mrs. J. H. Redding, Waycross; Mrs. J. C. Puder, Savannah; Miss Annie Crawford, Athens.

Constitution Hall Memory Book-Chairman, Mrs. A. T. Coleman, Dublin; Mrs. W. A. Capps, Athens; Mrs. J. E. Lane, Jackson.

Cooperative Relations Between D. A. R. and C. A. R.-Chairman, Mrs. J. N. Brawner, 2806 Peachtree Road, Atlanta; Mrs. Lena Felker Lewis, Monroe; Mrs. George Funk, Social Circle.

Cooperative Relations Between D. A. R. and S. A. R.-Chairman, Mrs. Polhill, LaGrange; Miss Mildred Pledger, Winder; Mrs. Wm. Lattimer, Washington; Mrs. George W. Funk, Social Circle.

Correct Use of Flag-Chairman, Mrs. John Slaton, 2962 Peachtree Road, Atlanta.

Custodian of Flag and Conference Properties-Chairman, Mrs. J. V. H. Rucker, Athens.

Custodian of Trophies-Chairman, Mrs. M. R. Redwine, Athens.

County Histories-Chairman, Mrs. C. E. Pittman, Commerce; Mrs. R. A. Wilkerson, Dawson; Mrs. W. L. Smith, Dawson; Mrs. C. B. Smith, Savannah.

Conservation and Thrift Including Forestry-Chairman, Mrs. Ed. Wohlwonder, Sr., Columbus; Mrs. Chas. N. Clotfelter, Marietta; Mrs. W. A. Fitzgerald, Lumpkin; Mrs. J. H. Porter, Irwinton.

D. A. R. Magazine-Chairman, Mrs. Edgar Oliver, 610 Victory Drive, Savannah; Mrs. Ober D. Wortham, Vidalia; Mrs. J. Thos.
Wood, Savannah; Mrs. W. B. Daniel, Eastman.
D. A. R. Forest Park—Chairman, Miss Edna Rogers, Elberton;

Miss Floride Allen, Milledgeville; Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney, Columbus; Miss Mary Lizzie Wright, Elberton; Mrs. Harrison Yarbrough, Milledgeville; Mrs. D. M. Thompson, Elberton.

D. A. R. Manual for Citizenship—Chairman, Mrs. R. M. McMaster, Waynesboro; Mrs. E. T. Agerton, Waynesboro; Mrs. J. A. Quattlebaum, Savannah; Mrs. J. W. Long, Sycamore; Mrs. Hugh Peterson, Ailey.

Eradication of Illiteracy-Chairman, Mrs. Julian Lewis, Macon; Miss Louise Falligant, Savannah; Mrs. J. D. Jones, Jackson; Mrs. Homer Harris, Gray.

Ellis Island-Chairman, Mrs. C. H. Leavy, Brunswick; Miss Virginia Sapp, Brunswick; Mrs. R. H. Roux, Savannah; Mrs. W. H. Emmett, Americus.

Educational Funds for Local Schools-Chairman, Mrs. H. Fay Gaffney, Columbus; Mrs. J. D. Power, Columbus; Mrs. Peter Cummings, Bainbridge; Mrs. E. George Butler, Savannah; Mrs. Frank Dennis. Eatonton.

Filing and Lending of Historic Papers-Chairman, Mrs. Ober D. Worthen, Vidalia; Miss Lillian Mitchell, Barnesville; Mrs. George Ashford, Gainesville; Mrs. James B. Turner, Griffin; Miss Laura Fraser, Hinesville; Mrs. E. A. Caldwell, Monroe. Flag Day—Chairman, Mrs. Jena C. Collier, Barnesville; Mrs. B.

C. Ward, Atlanta; Mrs. W. C. Twitty, Pelham; Mrs. Butler Ray, Cordele; Mrs. Guy Norris, Hartwell.

Flag Processional-Chairman, Mrs. J. W. Oglesby, Jr., Quitman. Fannie Trammell Memorial Loan Fund-Chairman, Mrs. Chas. Kreischer, Dalton; Co-chairman, Mrs. W. E. Mann, Dalton.

George Washington's Birthday—Chairman, Mrs. Retta Coney, 717 E. 44th St., Savannah.

Georgia Day-Chairman, Mrs. Henry L. Purse, 2403 Harmon St., Savannah.

Georgia Banquet at Continental Congress-Chairman, Mrs. W. H. Flanders, Swainsboro; Co-chairman, Mrs. John S. Adams, Dublin.

Georgia Box in Constitution Hall-Chairman, Mrs. J. T. Wood, 1004 Seiler Ave., Savannah; Mrs. E. B. Freeman, Dublin.

Girl Home Makers-Chairman, Mrs. Miller S. Bell, Milledgeville; Mrs. W. H. Britt, Sparta; Mrs. J. E. McGuire, Shellman.

Georgia D. A. R. Student Loan Fund-Chairman, Mrs. Howard McCall, 208 Rumson Road, Atlanta; Mrs. Chas. Kreischer, Dalton; Mrs. E. B. Freeman, Dublin; Mr. Di. Ingram, Valdosta; Mrs. Y. Harris Yarbrough, Milledgeville.

Georgia Room in Administration Building-Chairman, Mrs. John D. Pope, Albany; Mrs. James R. Rounsaville, Rome.

Helen McCall Bashinsky Trophy-Chairman, Mrs. Izzie Bashinsky, Dublin.

The Helen Rogers Franklin Trophy-Chairman, Mrs. John Satterfield, Macon.

Historical Program-Chairman, Mrs. J. L. Beeson, Milledgeville. Historical Post Cards-Chairman, Mrs. Clyde F. Hunt, Thomson;

Mrs. C. E. Pittman, Commerce; Mrs. E. G. Wilson, Augusta. Historical Spots; National Old Trails-Chairman, Mrs. Robert J. Travis, "Avalon," Savannah; Miss Isabelle Clarke, Augusta; Mrs.

J. Alva Davis, Perry; Miss Jetta Cummings, Bainbridge.

Independence Day-Chairman, Mrs. Carl Tillman, 212 W. 39th St., Savannah; Mrs. Clyde F. Hunt, Thomson; Mrs. J. W. Marks, Toccoa; Mrs. W. W. Sanders, Valdosta.

Indian Welfare and Citizenship-Chairman, Mrs. J. M. Murrah, Columbus; Mrs. Carl Hudgins, Decatur; Mrs. Peter Brown, Athens.

Kenmore Gardens--Chairman, Mrs. Chas. Akerman, Macon; Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Athens; Mrs. J. V. C. Rucker, Athens.

LaFayette Day-Chairman, Mrs. Wade Stallings, Newnan; Mrs. Hugh Peterson, Ailey.

Legislation-Chairman, Miss Virginia Harden, 1207 Peachtree St., N. E., Atlanta; Mrs. Lucius McConnell, Atlanta; Mrs. F. B. Chase, Atlanta; Mrs. Thos. C. Mell, Atlanta; Mrs. John M. Slaton, Atlanta; Mrs. Hugh Harden, Forsyth; Mrs. Howard McCall, Atlanta; Mrs. Frank Oliver, Savannah.

Lucy Cook Peel Memorial-Chairman, Mrs. W. F. Dykes, 570 Ridgecourt Road, Atlanta; Mrs. J. N. Brawner, Atlanta; Mrs. Howard McCall, Atlanta; Mrs. George Niles, Atlanta; Mrs. J. L. Davidson, Quitman.

Marking Old Trails-Chairman, Mrs. Mark Smith, Thomaston; Mrs. W. H. Emmett, Americus; Mrs. Alex Anderson, Nelson.

Marking Revolutionary Soldiers' Graves-Chairman, Mrs. T. Z. Copeland, Elberton; Mrs. Albert Tidwell, Quitman; Mrs. R. S. Roddenbury, Moultrie; Miss Anna C. Benning, Columbus; Mrs. Peter Knox, Thomson; Miss Annie Crawford, Athens. Marion Sibley Wylie Award—Chairman, Mrs. George Riley, Daw-

son; Mrs. Bun Wylie, Atlanta.

May Erwin Talmadge Scholarship—Chairman, Mrs. E. B. Freeman, Dublin; Mrs. Chas. Rice, Atlanta; Mrs. Barnett Solomon, Blakely; Mrs. J. A. Selden, Macon; Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Athens.

Meadow Garden—Chairman, Mrs. Sanford Gardner, 2561 Walton Way, Augusta; Mrs. Fred Smith, Augusta; Mrs. Robert Walton, Augusta; Mrs. Marion Fleming, Bailey; Mrs. Robert Crichton, Augusta.

Medals and Prizes—Chairman Mrs. W. C. Fripp, Albany; Mrs. E. W. Banks, Forsyth; Mrs. O. I. Snapp, Fort Valley.

Members of Anti-Tuberculosis Board-Chairman, Miss Claudia Little, Waycross.

National Defense Embodying Patriotic Education—Chairman, Mrs. John S. Adams, Dublin; Mrs. Bun Wylie, Atlanta; Mrs. M. J. Guyton, Dublin; Mrs. J. N. Brenner, Atlanta; Mrs. T. E. Ryles, Macon; Mrs. Miller S. Bell, Milledgeville.

Patriotic Songs—Chairman, Miss Frances Talmadge, Athens; Mrs. Worth Hanks, Savannah; Mrs. J. S. Wilson, Monticello.

**Press**—Chairman, Miss Nell Knox, Social Circle; Mrs. Harrison Hightower, Thomaston; Mrs. W. E. Mann, Dalton; Mrs. Max Land, Atlanta; Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Athens; Mrs. Howard McCall. Atlanta; Mrs. John S. Adams, Dublin; Mrs. Julian McCurry, Athens; Mrs. F. B. Chase, Atlanta.

Parliamentarian and Chairman of Rules—Chairman, Mrs. Julius Y. Talmadge, Prince Ave., Athens.

Patriotic Lectures—Chairman, Mrs. Harold I. Tuthill, 26 Thirtyfirst St., East, Savannah; Mrs. J. K. Quattlebaum, Savannah.

Publicity--Chairman, Mrs. Wheeler Talbot, Columbus; Mrs. Miller S. Bell, Milledgeville.

Radio—Chairman, Mrs. Francis B. Chase, 477 Pryor St., S. W., Atlanta; Mrs. Lucius McConnell, Atlanta; Mrs. A. Gannon, Athens; Mrs. W. T. Knight, Jr., Savannah.

Real Daughters—Chairman, Mrs. W. J. Vereen, Moultrie; Mrs. Y. H. Yarbrough, Milledgeville; Mrs. W. L. Beeson, Milledgeville; Miss Floride Allen, Milledgeville.

Resolutions—Chairman, Mrs. Max Land, 975 Myrtle St., N. E., Atlanta; Mrs. Chas. Akerman, Macon; Mrs. Julius Talmadge, Athens; Mrs. Di. Ingram, Valdosta; Mrs. Howard McCall, Atlanta; Mrs. Julian McCurry, Athens; Mrs. J. T. Wood, Savannah; Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney, Columbus; Mrs. Herbert Franklin, Tennille; Mrs. Bun Wylie, Atlanta.

Sons and Daughters of the U.S. A.—Chairman, Mrs. J. I. Garrard, Milledgeville; Mrs. J. W. Hooks, Gordon; Mrs. J. N. Carter, Savannah; Mrs. W. H. Flanders, Swainsboro. Scrap Book—Chairman, Mrs. Jas. B. Turner, Griffin; Mrs. J. W.

Scrap Book—Chairman, Mrs. Jas. B. Turner, Griffin; Mrs. J. W. Hooks, Gordon; Mrs. W. H. Flanders, Swainsboro; Miss Alva Davis, Perry; Mrs. Flory Johnson, West Point; Mrs. F. L. Felts, Warrenton.

State Editor's Award—Chairman, Mrs. W. S. Coleman, Atlanta; Mrs. Knox Anderson, Madison.

State Regent's Award—Chairman, Mrs. R. H. Roux, 125 E. 45th St., Savannah; Mrs. Julian McCurry, Athens; Mrs. Lucius McConnell, Atlanta.

State Treasurer's Award-Chairman, Mrs. Thomas Mell, Atlanta.

Mrs. S. B. C. Morgan Loan Scholarship Fund—Chairman, Mrs. Y. Harris Yarbrough, Milledgeville; Mrs. Miller S. Bell, Milledgeville; Mrs. J. T. Wood, Savannah.

Textbook-Chairman, Mrs. John Lane, Jackson; Mrs. Harold I.

Tuthill, Savannah; Mrs. Turner Brice, Quitman; Mrs. Lowry Axley, Savannah.

Time and Place—Chairman, Mrs. Chas. Rice, 2724 Peachtree Road, N. E., Atlanta.

Transportation—Chairman, Mrs. J. N. Carter, 107 E. Jones St., Savannah; Miss Henrietta Caphton, Savannah.

Thomas Jefferson Memorial—Chairman, Mrs. Thos. J. Sappington, Eastman; Mrs. J. Roy Nunnally, Monroe; Miss Willie E. Rice, Marshallville; Mrs. J. T. Thomas, Jesup.

**Traveling Genealogical Library**—Chairman, Mrs. J. D. Wadsworth, Columbus; Mrs. W. F. Dykes, Atlanta; Mrs. Eli Thomas, Atlanta; Mrs. J. H. Nicholson, Atlanta; Mrs. Barnett Solomon, Blakely; Mrs. Sydney O. Smith, Gainesville; Mrs. John Tarver, LaGrange; Mrs. T. O. Tabor, Elberton; Mrs. C. B. Smith, Savannah; Mrs. John Favor, LaGrange.

Valdosta Loan Fund-Chairman, Mrs. Di. Ingram, Valdosta.

World War Memorial Fund—Chairman, Mrs. Julius Dudley, 1593 S. Lumpkin St., Athens.

Welfare of Women and Children-Chairman Mrs. J. W. Hooks, Gordon.

### MINUTES OF

## STATE OFFICERS' CLUB, D. A. R. OF GEORGIA

The State Officers' Club of Georgia met at the breakfast table of the New Albany Hotel, Albany, Georgia, Tuesday morning, March 20, 1934. The tables formed a "T" and were beautifully decorated in spring flowers; at each cover was a lovely shoulder spray, compliments of the Albany Garden Club.

Mrs. Herbert Fay Gaffney, President, greeted the members with a cheery "Good Morning" and in her gracious manner extended words of welcome on this happy occasion.

Honor guests: Mrs. Wm. H. Becker, National Chairman of National Defense Embodying Patriotic Education; Mrs. Julian Mc-Curry, State Regent; Mrs. Julius Talmadge, first President of the Club; Mrs. Leo Leader and Mrs. W. C. Fripp, the Hostess Regents; Mrs. J. W. Walters, Thronateeska, and Mrs. John D. Pope, Commodore Richard Dale, Organizing Regents, were presented.

Members were led in prayer by Mrs. Bun Wylie, Chaplain.

Twenty-seven members responded to roll call.

Messages from invited guests and absent members, expressing regrets at their inability to be present, were read by the Secretary.

Mrs. Gaffney expressed regrets at the absence, especially of Mrs. Vereen, Moultrie; Mrs. Coney, Savannah; Mrs. Sidney O. Smith, Gainesville; Mrs. Rounsaville, Rome; Mrs. Adams, Dublin; Mrs. Hightower, Thomaston, and Mrs. Howard McCall, Atlanta.

Resignations of Mrs. John L. Davidson, Quitman, and Mrs. Mary Lane Curtis, Columbus, were announced.

The Treasurer's report showed a balance of \$72.16. Mrs. Dykes, Auditor, complimented the neatness and completeness of records kept by Mrs. McCurry, Treasurer. The Treasurer's report was accepted.

Mrs. Gaffney suggested a moratorium be declared for State Officers' Club for 1935 dues and a motion by Mrs. Franklin to this effect, was passed.

By vote of the Club, Mrs. John D. Pope, Albany, and Mrs. T. E. Blackshear, now a resident of Florida, were made honorary members for life. Both expressed appreciation for this honor.

Thanks were given "to Mrs. Janie Davant, President of the Albany Garden Club, for the corsages;" "to the President for presiding at the breakfast;" "to the Chairman of Arrangements, Mrs. John Adams, and her Co-chairman, Mrs. Fripp, for thoughtfulness and efficiency in planning the breakfast," and "to the President for the engagement calendars selected as souvenirs of the occasion."

Telegrams of sympathy were sent Mrs. Adams and Mrs. Hightower, because of recent bereavements.

Mrs. Gaffney stated that one of the souvenirs would be sent Mrs. Walton, mother of the State Regent of Georgia.

Adjournment was made for attendance at the morning session of the State Conference.

MRS. HERBERT FAY GAFFNEY, President MRS. MELL KNOX, Recording Secretary.